
CITY OF RIALTO 
UTILITIES COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

Civic Center  
Council Chambers 
150 S. Palm Avenue 
Rialto, CA  92376 

Tuesday 
September 20, 2016 

6:15 p.m. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Public Works 
Department at (909) 421-4999.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II]

 
Members of the public are given an opportunity to speak on any listed agenda items.  Please notify the Public Works Department if you wish to do so.  
All agendas are posted in the City Hall Administration Building (150 South Palm Avenue, Rialto, California 92376) at least 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  Copies of the staff reports relating to each item on the agenda are on file in the Public Works Department. Please call (909) 421-4999 to inquire 
about any item described on the agenda. 
 
Based upon the open meeting laws (the Brown Act), additional items may be added to the agenda and acted upon by the Utilities Commission only if it 
is considered to be a “subsequent need” or “emergency item” and is added by a two-thirds vote.  Matters raised under Oral Communications may not 
be acted upon at that meeting other than as provided above. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER  Time:  

 

ROLL CALL Present Absent  

 

Chairperson Barbara Zrelak-Rickman ☐ ☐  

Vice-Chairperson June Hayes ☐ ☐  

Commissioner Richard “Kim” Chitwood ☐ ☐  

Commissioner Kevin C. Kobbe ☐ ☐  

Commissioner James M. Shields ☐ ☐  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

MOMENT OF SILENCE / INVOCATION 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING August 16, 2016 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATION (5 minutes) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 1 of 495



NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 

FALCON RIDGE PROJECT PRESENTATION ITEM 1 

Bob Stiens, Southern California Edison (SCE) 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO ACTION 

WASTE MANAGEMENT REPORT ITEM 2 

Amy Crow, City of Rialto 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO ACTION 

BUDGET BASED RATE STUDY UPDATE ITEM 3 

Katie Nickel, City of Rialto 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO ACTION 

VEOLIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM PRESENTATION ITEM 4 

Melissa Demsky/ Amparo Munoz, Veolia 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO ACTION 

FINAL CONSTRUCTION WORK AUTHORIZATION (FCWA)- S3 ITEM 5 

Alejandro Juarez, Veolia Water 
ACTION 

FINAL CONSTRUCTION WORK AUTHORIZATION (FCWA)- S4 ITEM 6 

Alejandro Juarez, Veolia Water 
ACTION 

VEOLIA OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT ITEM 7 

WATER/WASTEWATER/CUSTOMER SERVICE/FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT UPDATE 
Staff, Veolia Water 
RECEIVE AND FILE – NO ACTION 

OLD BUSINESS 

PREVIOUS DISCUSSION UPDATES ITEM  8 

1. Consolidation of Water and Wastewater Resolutions 
2. Streetlight Acquisition Project Update  
3. Budget Based Rates 
4. Rialto Water Services’ Customer Update- Gale Blankenship.  

TO DO LIST ITEM 9 

 

COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 
ITEM 10 

ADJOURNMENT Motion  

 
Second  

 
Vote  

 
Time  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 2 of 495



 

ATTACHMENTS/HANDOUTS 

1.  Monthly Waste Management Report- August 2016 
2.  Budget Based Rate Study Update Staff Report  
3.  FCWA S3- Staff Report 
4.  FCWA S4- Staff Report 
5.  Veolia Asset Management Program Summary  
6.  Veolia Water Operations and Maintenance Report – August 2016 
7.  To Do List- August 2016 

CITY STAFF 

Robert Eisenbeisz, Public Works Director/ City Engineer 
Katie Nickel, Public Works Program Coordinator 
Amy Crow, Administrative Analyst 
Dayan Malfavon, Commission Clerk 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 3 of 495





REGULAR MEETING OF THE UTILITIES COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 

The Regular meeting of the Utilities Commission of the City of Rialto was held in the 
Civic Center Council Chambers located at 150 S. Palm Avenue, Rialto, California 
92376, on Tuesday, August 16, 2016. 

 o0o 

 This meeting was in accordance with the provision of the Government Code §54956 
of the State of California.  

 o0o 

CALL TO ORDER Vice-Chairperson Hayes called the meeting to order at  6:20 P.M. 

 o0o 

ROLL CALL The roll was called and the following Commissioners were present: Barbara Zrelak-
Rickman, June Hayes, Richard “Kim” Chitwood, Kevin C. Kobbe, and James M. 
Shields. Staff present:  Robert Eisenbeisz, Amy Crow, Katie Nickel, and Dayan 
Malfavon. Also present: Clarence Mansell, David Villanueva, John David Terry, Paul 
Herman, Marlon Brando, La’Lisa Winfrey, Alejandro Juarez, Chipper Greene, and 
Lynn Merrill. 

 o0o 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Chairperson Zrelak-Rickman led the pledge of allegiance. 

 o0o 

MOMENT OF SILENCE/ 
INVOCATION 

Commissioner Chitwood led the Invocation. 

 o0o 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  
Regular Meeting July 19, 
2016 

 The Vice-Chairperson Hayes moved to approve the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of July 19, 2016 as written. 

 Commissioner Kobbe seconded the motion.  

 Motion carried.  

 VOTE: 5 to 0 in favor of approval of the minutes. 

 Concerning the W1- Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition Project, Vice-
Chairperson Hayes informed the Commission TESCO have guaranteed their 
proposal until November 1, 2016.  

 o0o 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  Gale Blankenship, Rialto property owner, expressed her concerns and 
suggestions in regards to the following items: 

 The broad wording in Resolution 3983- Water Rules and Regulations, to 
which she suggested various corrections and adding a section addressing 
statute of limitations.  

 Blankenship stated she opened a water service account in February 2016 and 
was not notified of any delinquencies until June 15, 2016, receiving a bill 
statement of approximately $600.00 dollars. 

 The lack of Rialto Water Services Customer Service staff training of policies 
and regulations, for which she suggested Resolution 3983 should be reviewed 
with all staff assisting customers, including management. 

 New packets not provided to customers at the time of application, to which 
she suggested RWS make full disclosure of any history and/or balances due 
prior to opening an account. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 4 of 495



 RWS claims to have sent notifications of a past due balance to Blankenship’s 
account but were never received, for which she suggested all time sensitive 
mail should be sent certified to the property owner and not the address being 
serviced, which may sometimes be tenants. 

 A new account was opened for Blankenship without proper disclosure of an 
existing past due balance despite language in Resolution 3983; section III.F 
that states, “Any water billing indebtedness must be paid in full prior to 
approval of the water service application”. 

 In regard to Resolution 3983; section VIII.A which states “Water bills are due 
and payable upon presentation and shall be considered delinquent after 
twenty-five (25) days from the billing date”, Blankenship stated no routine 
procedure was ever exercised to located the past due balance. 

 Blankenship suggested reconsidering not turning on the water if there is a 
past due balance on the account, stating water is a public utility and a 
necessity.  

 Blankenship stated she inquired with RWS staff member, Nadia Loukeh, when 
the account auditing is done, for which she stated Loukeh replied, “When I 
have time.” Blankenship suggested the City contract an outside source to 
identify all past due balances and any accounts owed money due to statute 
of limitations.  

 Blankenship stated RWS would not allow her to turn off the water service to 
allow new tenants to open an account and expressed she does not believe 
the water service should be her responsibility if she is not residing in the 
property.  

 Blankenship stated La’Lisa Winfrey sent her a Forgiveness Letter with the 
incorrect amount noted and contacted Winfrey to request an updated letter 
but has not received such letter to date.  

 Blankenship inquired how much the deposit for the water service would be for 
the new tenant, for which she was informed the deposit is $200.00 dollars, but 
recalls paying $132.00 dollars herself when she opened an account.  

 Resolution 3983 states deposits can be returned to the applicant after two 
years, for which she suggested deposits should be returned after one year. 

 Recommended conflicting language in the Disconnect Notice regarding the 
acceptance of checks after the due date be revised. 

 A discussion ensued with the Commission in regard to tenant responsibility for 
utility service bills. 

 Blankenship expressed to the Commission her overall concern is she does not 
believe RWS is compliant with the City’s Resolution 3983. 

 Winfrey provided answers to questions and comments from the Commission in 
regards to the following items: 

 The security deposit for a water account versus a sewer account.  

 The agency responsible for addressing Blankenship’s concerns and 
ultimately changing policies if needed. 

 Winfrey offered to look into Blankenship’s account to determine how the charges 
came about and rectify any conflicts. 

 The commission inquired about the “Application Packet”. Winfrey provided 
clarification of the language used in the New Service Application Packet and 
agreed to revise the wording to prevent confusion for water and sewer customers.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 5 of 495



 Vice-Chairperson Hayes spoke about the consolidation of Water and Wastewater 
resolutions and provided a brief status. 

 The Commission thanked Blankenship for bringing her concerns forward. 

 o0o 

NEW BUSINESS ITEMS  

 o0o 

Item 1- Waste Management 
Report    
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO 
ACTION 

 Amy Crow presented the monthly Waste Management Report. 

 Crow informed the Commission that Burrtec provided the tonnage report via email 
but had to cancel the monthly meeting due to a scheduling conflict. 

 Crow reviewed the tonnage, special collection, and scavenger reports. 

 The Commission inquired about the variation in tonnage reported. Crow stated 
she did not know the answer to but would look further into the matter. 

 The Commission inquired about the standard scheduling of the Hazardous Waste 
Collection. Crow confirmed it is normally scheduled for the second and fourth 
Friday and Saturday of every month unless there are holiday weekends that can 
cause a conflict. 

 Crow informed the Commission that the City Council approved the purchase of 
the Streetlights on July 26, 2016 and that staff is working to finalize the 
agreement. Crow also informed the Commission that Southern California 
Edison’s deadline to return the agreement was August 15, 2016 but granted Rialto 
a 30-day extension. 

 The Commission received and accepted the reports. 

 o0o 

Item 2- Fats Oils and Greases 
Program and Industrial 
Pretreatment Program 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO 
ACTION 

 Lynn Merrill and Chipper Greene reviewed the “Fats Oils and Greases [FOG] 
Program and Industrial Pretreatment Program [IPP]” PowerPoint presentation 
provided to the Commission in the agenda packet. 

 Merrill provided answers to questions from the Commission in regards to the 
following items: 

 The frequency of the FOG and Storm Water inspections and the extent of 
the inspections on high priority businesses.  

 The manner in which charges are determined if there is a need for 
additional inspections after the first inspection and the frequency of the 
additional inspections. 

 The Commission inquired about how the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) program is funded. Katie Nickel stated the inspection charges 
cover a small part of the program and the remaining part is funded through the 
Waste Management fund under the Storm Water Program. 

 Greene explained to the Commission how Technically Based Local Limits are 
determined when Federal Regulations are not available.  

 Merrill ended the presentation by summarizing the larger differences between the 
FOG program and the IPP program. 

 The Commission received and accepted the report. 

 o0o 

Item 3- Veolia Operations And 
Maintenance Report 
RECEIVE AND FILE- NO 
ACTION 

 Daniel Villanueva presented the monthly Wastewater Operations report provided 
to the Commission in the agenda packet. 

 Villanueva and Paul Herman clarified what parts of the plant 5 mixed liquor pump 
have failed and are out for repair. 

 Villanueva spoke on the multiple FLU failures that occurred in July.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 6 of 495



 A discussion ensued concerning the cause of the FLU failures and the plan of 
action. 

 Villanueva informed the Commission that SCE made contact to inform staff that 
the switchgear for the emergency power gear was showing signs of failure. Upon 
further investigation, it was discovered that Veolia had not been paying a fee to 
make that switch available when needed.  

 The Commission inquired about when SCE began charging said fee and whom 
the responsible person/party is for ensuring the fee is paid. No answer was 
provided.  

 A discussion ensued about searching for reliable alternate options to ensure the 
switchgear operates during emergencies as intended.  

 Vice-Chairperson Hayes noted no action was taken to reduce the Cyanide levels 
until the Regional Board alerted Veolia to which Clarence Mansell disagreed and 
informed the Commission efforts have been made to correct the issue. 

 A discussion ensued regarding the high Cyanide levels and the plan of action 
Veolia is implementing to reduce the Cyanide levels reported.  

 The Commission inquired about the recently received Notice to Comply from the 
Air Quality Management District (AQMD) for the city failing to obtain a permit for 
the construction of and the operation of digester #1. 

 Robert Eisenbeisz clarified to the Commission that while Digester 2 is operating 
without its own, single permit, the City is working on modifying an existing permit 
to cover both digesters and informed the Commission a request for a two-week 
extension was granted to correct the issue. 

 The Commission inquired about the reduced levels of FOG reported. While 
Villanueva did not agree the levels are low, he ensured the Commission the 
collection of FOG is not limited. 

 The Commission requested that Eisenbeisz contact Liquid Environmental to 
assure Veolia is not discouraging the collection of FOG to which Eisenbeisz 
agreed he would. 

 The Commission requested to have the reports revised and updated every month 
to reflect the most current, up-to-date information. Villanueva assured the 
Commission he will be more detailed in future reports.  

 Herman presented the monthly Collections Cleaning Footage report provided to 
the Commission in the agenda packet. 

 Herman informed the Commission the crews worked on a sinkhole on Agua 
Mansa on August 4, 2016 and will provide photos at the next regular meeting. 

 David Terry informed the Commission that Chino #2 was down and Rialto Well 3 
went down in early July. 

 Terry reviewed the Water Conservation Report provided to the Commission in the 
agenda packet. 

 Commissioner Chitwood expressed he had difficulty believing the forecasted 
water production figures for 2017, 2018, and 2019. Terry stated it is only a 
forecast having calculated several different factors into the reported figures. 

 Vice-Chairperson Hayes noted that the Water report is missing in the agenda 
packet. Terry did not have an explanation, but assured the Commission he will 
include it in the next regular meeting.  

 Eisenbeisz provided a brief update to the Commission concerning the efforts 
taken to identifying customers who need a backflow device. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 7 of 495



 Winfrey informed the Commission her resignation will be effective August 26, 
2016. 

 Winfrey presented the monthly Customer Service report provided to the 
Commission in the agenda packet. 

 Vice-Chairperson Hayes inquired about the report previously requested detailing 
the average number of calls Rialto Water Services receives and again requested 
that the report be added to the agenda packet for next regular meeting.  

 Chairperson Zrelak-Rickman inquired how often San Bernardino County transfers 
the funds collected through the property tax roll-off. Eisenbeisz stated the funds 
are transferred twice a year and Winfrey confirmed the information is correct.    

 Commissioner Chitwood noted there is a large difference between water aging 
balances and sewer aging balances. Winfrey provided several possibilities for the 
variance.    

 The Commission inquired about the Zero-Consumption study. Winfrey stated 
there has been no success locating customers who are owed a refund but 
assured the Commission efforts are still underway. 

 The Commission requested a Zero-Consumption study progress report be added 
to the agenda packet moving forward. 

 Alejandro Juarez presented the monthly Facility Improvements Project report 
provided to the Commission in the agenda packet. 

 Vice-Chairperson Hayes inquired about the WA- Meter Replacement project 
(Year 4). Juarez provided answers to the following items: 

 The completion status of Year 3. 

 The status of the list of locations where meters were replaced during Year 
3. 

 The schedule of Year 4 and estimated completion time. 

 The Commission requested to include the number of meters replaced to date in 
the monthly report. 

 Commissioner Chitwood requested clarification concerning the exact location 
where the WD- Small Dead End Mains (Looping) Project at the Metrolink Station 
will be taking place. Juarez stated the project will be taking place on Riverside, 
not Willow. 

 Vice-Chairperson Hayes inquired about the status of the SA- Manhole 
Rehabilitation project (Year 4). Juarez provided answers to the following items: 

 The status of years 1-3. 

 The estimated completion time of Year 4 if the project begins in 
September, as anticipated. 

 The Commission noted the Final Construction Work Authorizations (FCWA) that 
have recently been approved during Council Meetings were not presented to the 
Commission prior to Council and requested that, moving forward, all FCWA’s are 
brought to the Commission before Council reviews them. 

 Mansell informed the Commission that the California Energy Commission 
awarded a grant to BDP Technologies to test different methods of efficiently 
treating wastewater and reducing energy cost at the wastewater treatment plant.   

 Mansell provided a handout to the commission that contains more information on 
the grant, BDP Technologies, and a copy of the Deployment Site Commitment 
Letter from the City of Rialto.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 8 of 495



 Vice-Chairperson Hayes reminded Mansell the item has to be provided to the 
Commission for recommendation and to Council for approval no later than the 
mid-September to ensure commencement of the project in October, as 
anticipated. 

 The Commission received and accepted the report. 

 o0o 

Item 4 - Old Business 
“To Do List”         

 The “To Do List” was reviewed and discussed. 

 The Commission inquired about the Concession Agreement Quarterly Overview. 
Dayan Malfavon stated Stephen Dopudja informed her it may be brought to the 
Commission in September for review. 

 The Commission inquired about items that were requested to be added to the “To 
Do List” the during the previous regular meeting to which Malfavon assured the 
Commission she will add said items to the next “To Do List”. 

 The Commission requested that Malfavon follow up with Terry to add a chart 
identifying contaminants in wells in the report for the following regular meeting.  

 o0o 

Item 5- Commissioner’s Report  Vice-Chairperson Hayes informed the Commission she attended the 10th Annual 
SBC Water conference at the Ontario Convention Center and provided a brief 
summary of the items reviewed.   

 Malfavon advised the Commission there would be a need to schedule a training 
session for all Commissioners to transfer to electronic format of the agenda 
packets and would prefer organizing the training during a regular or special 
meeting to facilitate everyone’s attendance. The Commission decided that it 
would be best to schedule a special meeting on August 24, 2016, permitting the 
Council Chambers are available. 

 o0o 

ADJOURNMENT  Commissioner Chitwood made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  

 Commissioner Shields seconded motion.  

 Motion Carried.  

 Meeting adjourned at 9:58 P.M. 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 9 of 495



CITY OF RIALTO 
 

UTILITIES COMMISSION 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

 For the Meeting of September 20, 2016 
 

  

TO: Honorable Utilities Commission Members 
  

FROM: Amy Crow, Administrative Analyst  
  

SUBJECT: Monthly Activity Report for City of Rialto Waste Management Services  
  

DATE: September 8, 2016 
  

 
BACKGROUND: 

The City of Rialto Municipal Code Chapter 2.24 establishes and defines the Rialto Utilities 
Commission.  The responsibilities assigned to the Commission include acting “as an 
advisor to the City Council and City Administration regarding solid waste policies, 
recycling, source reduction, and other related state mandates.”  This report provides 
general information to the Commission on the activities and events for the Public Works 
Department’s Waste Management Division. 
 
ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: 

 Items relating to the City’s Solid Waste Management services and of interest to the 
Commission are as follows:  

 

 Hazardous Household Waste – There were two hundred thirteen (213) residents 
served during the month of August.  Items collected included the following: 

 
o 290 gallons of used motor oil, 
o 4 pallets of paint, 

o 8 drums of miscellaneous poisons and other toxic liquids, 

o 11 barrels of sharps, including needles, lancets, and syringes used by 
residents for their home healthcare and medical needs. 

 

During the month of September, the Household Hazardous Waste site was open 
on 9th and 10th and will be open on the 23rd and 24th from 8 am until 12 noon. 
 

Burrtec Waste Tonnage Report –  
 

 The reports for June 2016 have been attached to this staff report for Commission 
review.   
 

Agenda # __________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 10 of 495



The following documents were not available when the reports were prepared and will be 
presented on the night of the Utilities Commission Meeting. 
 

 Burrtec Commercial Recycling Report – August 2016 

 Burrtec Scavenging Report – August 2016 

 Rialto Code Enforcement Scavenging Report – August 2016 
 

Drought Tolerant Landscape Design Class 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Utilities Commission receive this report for the month of 
September, 2016. 
 
Attachments:  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 11 of 495



1. Burrtec Waste Tonnage Reports – June, 2016 
 
Report Prepared by: Amy Crow, Administrative Analyst 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 12 of 495



BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES
RIALTO

CIWMB Program 

Code Description Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Y-T-D

Refuse

Residential Refuse 1,889.95 1,778.93 2,083.98 1,894.99 1,945.42 2,153.73 11,747.00

Residential Refuse (residue) 158.19 136.76 174.08 155.52 172.50 180.34 977.39

Special Collection - Bulky 35.72 51.11 69.25 56.55 60.84 86.52 359.99

Government Refuse 0.00

School Refuse 176.18 168.25 189.48 186.79 188.76 162.31 1,071.77

Residential Bin Refuse 5.78 5.79 6.58 6.44 6.29 5.55 36.43

Residential Bin Refuse (residue) 0.00

Multi-Family Refuse 877.05 906.21 1,008.98 916.60 955.13 876.03 5,540.00

Multi-Family Refuse (residue) 6.57 7.47 7.92 7.10 8.02 6.97 44.05

Commercial Refuse 1,016.37 1,019.25 1,166.79 1,098.60 1,133.64 1,051.11 6,485.76

Rolloff Refuse 883.11 830.71 842.52 783.40 772.82 843.95 4,956.51

Commercial Refuse (residue) 30.31 34.50 36.56 36.07 40.78 35.44 213.66
Rolloff Refuse (residue) 16.31 15.41 25.81 22.84 22.29 20.83 123.49

Refuse Totals 5,095.54 4,954.39 5,611.95 5,164.90 5,306.49 5,422.78 31,556.05

Source Reduction

1000-SR-XGC Xeriscaping, Grasscycling 0.00

1010-SR-BCM Backyard Composting 0.00

1020-SR-BWR Business Source Reduction 0.00

1030-SR-PMT Procurement 0.00

1040-SR-SCH School Source Reduction 0.00

1050-SR-GOV Government Source Reduction 0.00

1060-SR-MTE Material Exchange, Thrift Shops 0.00

1070-SR-OTH Other Source Reduction 0.00

Source Reduction Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Recycling (Net of Residue)

2000-RC-CRB Residential Curbside Recycling 361.82 313.60 345.00 308.05 341.62 356.81 2,026.90

2010-RC-DRP Residential Drop-Off Recycling 0.00

2020-RC-BYB Residential Buy-Back Centers 0.00

2030-RC-OSP Commercial On-Site Pickup 47.00 53.49 56.69 55.02 62.21 54.05 328.46

2040-RC-SFC Commercial Self Haul Recycling 0.00

2050-RC-SCH School Recycling 13.20 15.01 15.91 15.45 17.46 15.17 92.20

2060-RC-GOV Government Recycling 0.00

2070-RC-SNL Special Collection - Seasonal 46.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.50

2080-RC-SPE Special Collection - Events 0.00

2090-RC-OTH Other Recycling-Pre Sorted Roll-off 16.57 9.71 15.33 18.19 15.89 13.27 88.96

Recycling Totals 485.09 391.81 432.93 396.71 437.18 439.30 2,583.02

Composting

3000-CM-RCG Residential Curbside Greenwaste 625.77 767.93 1,164.35 931.63 953.06 972.01 5,414.75

3010-CM-RSG Residential Self Haul Greenwaste 0.00

3020-CM-COG Commercial On-Site Greenwaste 27.07 18.97 12.10 5.80 24.06 19.38 107.38

3030-CM-CSG Commercial Self Haul Greenwaste 0.00

3040-CM-FWC Food Waste Composting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3050-CM-SCH School Composting 0.00

3060-CM-GOV Government Composting 0.00

3070-CM-OTH Other Composting 0.00

Composting Totals 652.84 786.90 1,176.45 937.43 977.12 991.39 5,522.13

Special Waste

4000-SP-ASH Ash 0.00

4010-SP-SLG Sludge (sewage industrial) 0.00

4020-SP-TRS Tires 0.06 0.08 0.18 0.03 0.09 0.11 0.55

4030-SP-WHG White Goods 2.96 3.05 3.42 3.83 4.97 3.76 21.99

4040-SP-SCM Scrap Metal 3.47 0.04 0.17 0.28 3.59 0.34 7.89

4050-SP-WDW Wood Waste 80.11 68.81 84.66 80.23 92.19 83.37 489.37

4060-SP-CAR Concrete/Asphalt/Rubble 34.97 64.98 111.97 74.13 94.47 82.22 462.74

4070-SP-DSD Disaster Debris 0.00

4080-SP-SGL Shingles 0.00

4090-SP-RND Rendering 0.00

4100-SP-OTH Other Special Waste 51.10 51.43 86.08 71.48 74.80 61.95 396.84

Special Waste Totals 172.67 188.39 286.48 229.98 270.11 231.75 1,379.38

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 13 of 495



BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES
RIALTO

CIWMB Program 

Code Description Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Y-T-D

Public Education & Outreach

5000-ED-ELC Electronic (radio, TV, WWW, Hotlines) 0.00

5010-ED-PRN Printed Media 0.00

5020-ED-OUT Outreach (workshops, fairs, field trips) 0.00

5030-ED-SCH 0.00

5040-ED-OTH Other Public Education 0.00

Public Education & Outreach Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Policy Incentives

6000-PI-PLB Product & Landfill Bans 0.00

6010-PI-EIN Economic Incentives 0.00

6020-PI-ORD Ordinances 0.00

6030-PI-OTH Other Policy Incentives 0.00

Public Education Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Facility Recovery

7000-FR-MRF Material Recovery Facility 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7010-FR-LAN Landfill 0.00

7020-FR-TST Transfer Station 0.48 13.33 0.27 0.28 0.32 0.00 14.68

7030-FR-CMF Composting Facility 0.00

7040-FR-ADC Alternate Daily Cover 0.00

7050-FR-OTH Other Facility Recovery 0.00

Facility Recovery Totals 0.48 13.33 0.27 0.28 0.32 0.00 14.68

Transformation

8000-TR-WTE Waste-to-Energy 5.93 0.00 11.31 17.24

8010-TR-WDW Biomass (wood waste) 0.00

8020-TR-TRS Tires 0.00

8030-TR-OTH Other Transformation 0.00

Transformation Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.93 0.00 11.31 17.24

Household Hazardous Waste

9000-HH-PMF Permanent Facility 0.00

9010-HH-MPC Mobile/Periodic Facility 0.00

9020-HH-CSC Curbside Collection 0.00

9030-HH-WSE Waste Exchange 0.00

9040-HH-EDP Educational Programs 0.00

9045-HH-EWA Electronic Waste 1.67 1.70 2.16 1.44 2.26 2.10 11.33

9050-HH-OTH Other Household Hazardous Waste 0.00

HHW Totals 1.67 1.70 2.16 1.44 2.26 2.10 11.33

All Programs Total 1,312.75 1,382.13 1,898.29 1,571.77 1,686.99 1,675.85 9,527.78

Total Refuse 5,095.54 4,954.39 5,611.95 5,164.90 5,306.49 5,422.78 31,556.05

Total Tonnages Generated 6,408.29 6,336.52 7,510.24 6,736.67 6,993.48 7,098.63 41,083.83

Multi Family Net Diverted Tonnage 

2030-RC-OSP Multi Family Curbside Recycling 10.72 12.20 12.93 11.58 13.10 11.38 71.91

3020-CM-COG Multi Family Curbside Greenwaste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 14 of 495





CITY OF RIALTO 
 

UTILITIES COMMISSION 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

 For the Meeting of September 20, 2016 
 

  

TO: Honorable Utilities Commission Members 
  

FROM: Katie Nickel  
  

SUBJECT: Monthly SAWPA Update  
  

DATE: September 20, 2016 
  

 
BACKGROUND: 

On September 22, 2015 the City Council accepted a grant funding contract with the Santa 
Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA).  The City of Rialto was awarded $215,030.00 
for the investigation and possible implantation of an efficiency-based water rate structure.   
 
The SAWPA Grant Program reimburses the City for rate evaluation expenses. Typical 
investigation and evaluation steps include: 

1. Aerial imagery of landscape and square footage data. SAWPA is developing these 
documents and will provide this information at no cost to the City.  

2. Utility Commission/City Council workshop.  The workshop will provide additional 
information and address and questions. 

3. Billing system review.  This review evaluates the capacity of the existing billing 
system and recommends updates if required.  

4. Development of local evapotranspiration data.  Weather data that is needed has 
been recorded by two existing weather stations in Rialto located on the north end 
and the other on the south end of the City.  

5. Cost-of-service analysis/rate study. This examination is necessary to develop the 
specific allocations for each customer, generate the revised rate structure, and 
characterize the financial impacts. 

6. Public involvement activities.   
 
 

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: 

The following work has been accomplished during the month of July: 

 Limited work on the rate study and financial calculations. 

 The City is working to obtain water budget allocations for its customers. 

 CV Strategies has been retained by the City to provide community 
relations/outreach services.  
 

Agenda # __________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 15 of 495



The following work is anticipated for the next period: 
 

 Resolve geocoding data issue so the water budget data allocation work can 
proceed. Retaining a third-party to acquire this data is being considered.  

 Rate study calculations are on hold until water budget allocations are developed.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Utilities Commission receive this report for the months of July and 
August, 2016. 
 
 
Report Prepared by: Sara Raymondi, Contractor with Lynn Merrill Consulting  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 16 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

PURPOSE 
 

The public looks to the City of Rialto, the Concessionaire (RWS), and Contractor (Veolia) to provide 
sound asset management practices that guarantee the City’s infrastructure has sufficient reliability 
and capacity to meet present and future needs.  This document summarizes the program executed 
by Veolia to ensure complete life cycle management of the water and wastewater assets. 
 
 

OVERALL PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

The currently implemented asset management program contains standard components as 
designated through prudent industry practices, the Concession Agreement, and as recognized by 
leading water and wastewater technical organizations. The asset management program is developed 
around components of the asset life cycle which includes design, procurement, installation, 
operations, maintenance, decommission, and replacement.  Each component must be managed 
properly to maximize service life and the long-term viability of the assets.  This program aligns with 
the EPA 10 Step Asset Management Program and Veolia’s global asset management principles.  
 
 

COMPUTERIZED MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CMMS) 
 

The foundation of the asset management program lies within CMMS systems. The CMMS platforms 
for the Rialto facilities are Oracle Utilities Work and Asset Management (OWAM) for above ground 
components and Innovyze InfoNet for the underground and network assets. Each system was 
chosen to best meet the application needs of the asset types. An interface is installed to share 
information across the platforms for enhanced asset management integration.  
 
Veolia’s Information Technology (IT) department hosts the CMMS programs at Veolia’s Milwaukee 
headquarters. The systems are upgraded annually with the latest software version improvements. 
Veolia’s IT Department provides extensive regression testing and performance tracking. Support for 
end users is provided for issue tracking, notifications, training, and upcoming events. 
 
A hierarchy structure was created to organize the assets by facilities or networks, then each of those 
broken down to processes, and each process broken down into functional systems.  Assets were 
assigned to the appropriate functional system/process/facility for organizational and functional 
context.  Each CMMS contains a listing of all assets within the designated system. Each asset 
record contains attribute information such as nameplate data, asset type, hierarchy assignment, 
location, installation date, and replacement value. Preventive and predictive maintenance tasks are 
integrated into the system for automatic work order generation based on best industry practices to 
protect the assets. Work order planning, scheduling, and tracking of preventive and corrective work 
are managed in the systems. Inventory and purchasing controls are also embedded into the systems 
for maintaining critical spare(s) availability as well as budget management and recording of life-cycle 
costs. Metrics and key performance indicators ensure monitoring and benchmarking of CMMS 
processes. A reporting software, Optimas, allows users to easily manage and distribute reports.  
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 17 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 2 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Baseline Facility Record (BFR) – Above Ground Assets 
 
The Baseline Facility Record is an inventory of the Facility assets that are active and online as well as 
inactive but onsite for the Water and 
Wastewater Facilities.  This document 
was developed in the first year of the 
agreement and is updated annually 
with changes annotated.  This record 
includes the asset ID, description, 
system hierarchy, equipment/structure 
designation, status, criticality, condition 
scores, useful life, install date, 
remaining life, replacement cost, 
manufacturer, building, and projected 
overhaul cost and frequency.  Each 
field is 100% populated for each asset 
in the record. Annual updates are 
based on repair and replacement 
information logged in the CMMS.  For 2016, modifications included updates to each asset for 
remaining life, condition, and criticality as well as status change for 67 assets and the addition of 43 
new asset records.  The BRF database is regularly used to optimize maintenance activities and to 
define OR&R and Capital projects.   
 
 

Network Asset Summary – Below Ground Assets 
 
A summary of the network assets has been developed to provide a means of network asset 
presentation outside of the CMMS.  This summary includes the asset listing for each asset type and 

key attribute data.  There is a validation effort in 
progress to field verify the full asset listing as it 
has been determined that the supplied 
databases did not fully contain all assets.  Key 
attribute fields vary in terms of population of the 

data.  An initiative is in progress to populate the 
missing key attribute data.  For the installation year, 
a project is being initiated to cross-correlate the 
age of neighborhoods where the install year was 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 18 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 3 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

not available in the database.  Updating network assets is a continuous task.  When field crews using 
the data to guide their maintenance efforts uncover differences between the data and their 
observations, they report back these findings and the InfoNet database is updated within 14 days.  
System changes related to capital projects go through the same process and are updated in InfoNet 
once completed.  During 2015, for the 55,000 asset records in the database, there were a total of 
6,792 updates to Water and 23 updates to Wastewater.  
 
 
    

 
 
 
 

Preventive and Corrective Work Order Management 
 
Maintenance work orders consist of preventive and corrective tasks.  Preventive and predictive tasks 
automatically generate on set schedule in the CMMS and log all routine maintenance performed on 
assets.  These scheduled tasks comply with warranty requirements during the warranty period, and 
then industry best practices and maintenance crew observations throughout the remainder of the 
asset life. Where applicable and relevant, condition based predictive maintenance tasks have been 
assigned. These tasks provide an understanding of the condition of the asset and provide advanced 
warning when interventions need to 
be scheduled as corrective work.  
Each preventive work order is 
captured in the CMMS system and 
labor hours, spare parts, services, 
and directly purchased items are 
captured when the work order is 
completed.  An important preventive 
care component of the sanitary sewer 
collection system is the “hot spot” 
program where pipes with known 
clogging history are targeted for a 
more frequent cleaning schedule.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 19 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 4 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

Based on field observations this program list is frequently updated as assets are added or removed 
and maintenance methods and frequencies adjusted.  There are currently 50 out of the 5,430 sewer 
pipe segments  being managed in the “hot spot” program.   
 
Corrective work orders are generated for all investigative, repair, and replacement activities. Such 
documentation ensures that work is properly planned and repair costs captured. Corrective work 
orders are prioritized based on the 
criticality rankings and input on current 
operating conditions as well as 
maintenance requirements and history. 
This allows for that work to be 
completed in priority order to ensure 
Level of Service requirements are met.  
Work plans are developed and 
necessary materials gathered prior to 
the start of work.  Labor hours, spare 
parts, services, and directly purchased 
items are all captured to the work 
orders.  Additionally, when a WO is 
completed a narrative summary of the 
work is captured along with failure 
coding. 
 
 It should be noted that the concentration of preventive work in wastewater and corrective work in 
water is normal for the industry as blockages in the wastewater collection system can be controlled by 
preventive maintenance while leaks in the water distribution system are generally repaired as they 
occur.  Both preventive and corrective work order histories provide a valuable tool for the prioritization 
of capital projects. 

 
 
ASSET INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 

The Asset Investment Strategy document summarizes the key components to the comprehensive 
asset management program that is utilized to carry out the proper and efficient management of the 
water and wastewater systems.  This strategy document outlines how the categorical priorities are 
used to determine the investment allotment across the assets.  Summarized below are the key 
components covered in the Asset Investment Strategy Document and further details on each can be 
found within the document.  This document is reviewed and updated annually.  
 

 
Level of Service Expectations 

 
Defined Level of Service expectations are derived from the Water and Wastewater Master Plans and 
include water quality and pressure concerns, wastewater effluent quality, capacity and growth 
projections, treatment efficacy and efficiency, reliability, safety and environmental factors. 

 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 20 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 5 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 21 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 6 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

Criticality Analysis 
 
Optimized maintenance is a blend of approaches, targeted to ensure a required Level of Service with 
an acceptable level of risk. A systematic relative criticality analysis review was completed for the 
Rialto Water and Wastewater 
facilities in 2013 and updated in 
2016.  This process prioritizes 
assets based on rankings from a 
standardized scale of 1 to 5, 
where 1 is minor and 5 is critical, 
for consequence and likelihood of 
worst case failure scenarios.  
Applying this process to each 
asset ensures that maintenance 
management and capital 
decisions meet the Level of 
Service business objectives.  It 
should be noted that the graph on 
the right represents the above 
ground assets for the Rialto 
Water and Wastewater systems.  Underground network assets can be flagged as critical using factors 
such as number of upstream connections, supply to critical assets such as hospitals, assets that run 
underneath critical infrastructure such as railways or interstates, magnitude of overflows, etc.  A 
continuous improvement action item to flag critical assets in InfoNet is underway and should be 
implemented over the next year.   
 
  

Condition Assessment 
 
An initial condition assessment was completed for all assets and is updated annually for assets over 
$10,000 in value and every third year for all other Water and Wastewater assets. The condition 
assessment is a “snap shot” of the 
condition of an asset where 
ranking numbers are assigned 
over a series of categories to the 
asset based on a deficiency 
scoring where 1 is new and 5 is 
failed in areas such as 
performance, appearance, 
vibration, reliability, safety, etc.  
Evidence of defects, excessive 
wear, or aging warrants higher 
value scores. If an asset is in an 
advanced state of wear or aging, 
an “end-of-life” can be predicted. 
For those assets in good condition 
one can “calibrate” the mean 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 22 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 7 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

expected lifetimes. While this predicted end-of-life may not be reliable for any one asset, in the 
statistical aggregate, it provides for sound budgetary planning. 
  
 

Expected Life & Remaining Life 
 
An expected life span for each asset is assigned using the Expected Life Tool.  This tool 
incorporates industry 
standard expected life 
with life cycle failure 
data collected through 
the Veolia 
Environment Paris 
Technical Group and 
North America Asset 
Management.  The 
CMMS calculates 
remaining expected 
life as the difference 
between the years in 
service and the 
expected life span.       
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
Maintenance Budget, OR&R, and Capital Planning 

 
Asset Management Program output information is used to develop maintenance budgeting and 
capital planning.  
 
Each asset is evaluated based on the criticality ranking, condition ranking, and anticipated remaining 
life projection. These evaluations are then used to establish Repair and Replacement Budgets as 
well as Capital Improvement Project recommendations over a running five year period. Operational 
history is accounted for in the recommendations with a focus on projects that will improve 
operational efficiency and reliability. In considering repair versus replacement decisions, factors such 
as failure history, spares availability, energy efficiency, and new technologies are considered. 
 
Based on the assessment briefly described above, maintenance and capital tasks are categorized by 
the year in which the improvement is planned or required. Estimated cost to complete repairs and 
replacements will be established using data from Veolia’s corporate data base as well as locally 
established repair cost projections.  Then, the projects are allocated to the appropriate budget for 
review based on the project scope and price.  Available budgets include the maintenance budget, 
routine repair, operating repair and replacement (OR&R), capital, and significant capital.  Annually 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 23 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 8 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

OR&R and Capital Plans are reviewed, updated, and submitted.  Additionally, and OR&R tracking 
spreadsheet is being used to document modifications and progress throughout the year. 
 
Within the concession agreement are 26 Facility Improvement Projects identified.  These projects are 
managed through the Capital team.  Anticipated FIP interventions/replacements are coordinated with 
the OR&R and Capital Plans.  Outputs from each project such as new asset data is input into the 
CMMS upon project completion.   
 
The graph below demonstrates the condition and industry standard remaining asset life for the above 
ground assets.  This provides a visual representation of the correlation between condition and 
expected life, demonstrating an overall average score of 2.9.  The trend lines show that in general 
the average condition score are bell-shaped with the majority in the 3 score range.  Assets in the 10+ 
years past expected life begin shifting towards an average 4 condition.  These graphs assist in 
providing a holistic view of the health of the assets in combination with criticality, replacement costs 
and other key parameters. 

 

 
 
As a means of providing analysis of the assets, the following graph has been compiled.  This graph 
compiles assets that are in better than 3.5 condition score (1 to 3.33) and that are past the end of the 
their expected life.  Essentially, these are assets where the life has been extended past the end of 
expected life, but are still is functionally operational condition and not overly worn.  The table to the 
right indicates the asset type category for the assets in the 
graph, showing a mix of electrical, instrumentation, 
mechanical, structural, and valve/piping equipment.  The ability 
to continue to operate these facilities in good condition is an 
attribute the asset management and maintenance programs, 
essentially providing strong preventive care and proper repair 
programs. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 24 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 9 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
PROGRAM ASSESSMENT & CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 

Asset Management Grid Audit Process 
 
Veolia has developed an Asset Management grid ranking self-assessment process that is being 
implemented globally.  The assessment ranks the asset management program based on 8 Asset 
Management Pillars and captures estimated rankings for the start of the Concession Agreement, 
current level of maturity, 1 Year Goals, and a long term projection for the program.  This assessment 
was completed for the Rialto facilities in 2016 and a summary report developed for both water and 
wastewater that includes the rankings along with short term and long term action plans.  This 
assessment process will be utilized annually as an internal audit record.   
 
The following are the spider graphs for Water and Wastewater, Above and Below Ground Programs - 
demonstrating the direction of the program and focus on continuous improvement.   
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 25 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 10 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 26 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 11 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 27 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 12 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) & Root Cause Failure Analysis (RCFA) 
 
The RCM approach is a detailed, systematic approach that evaluates an asset’s operational function 
in a manner that will yield the optimum maintenance program for the asset. RCM reviews are 
completed on the most critical systems and result in the correct maintenance mix of time or cycle 
based actions, condition based actions, and run to failure maintenance. RCM is a proven approach 
that helps reduce risk and optimizes maintenance labor resources to most needed areas. Veolia 
proposes to complete one RCM review for a water system in 2016.  The system will be 
collaboratively chosen based on the criticality ranking, projected remaining life, failure history of the 
equipment. 
 
RCFA is a method of troubleshooting to identify the root cause of a failure or fault and is typically 
applied in a reactive method after a failure event has occurred. RCFAs influence Repair and 
Replacement maintenance as well as Capital Planning decisions.   New tool to be provided with 
training in 2016. 
 

LONG TERM PROJECTION 
 

The current asset management program focus is on the day-to-day operational aspects of the 
program in conjunction with the shorter term 
OR&R and capital planning and management 
processes within the concession agreement.  
Over time, long term planning processes 
involving the analysis of future replacement 
costs based on escalation/inflation and service 
life will be initiated to provide all parties an 
understanding of the long term annual 
investment anticipated for continuing to meet 
Level of Service expectations.    
 
 
 
 

 
 

METHODS FOR MONITORING THE ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
 
Below are the proposed recommendations for methods in which the Asset Program can be monitored 
to ensure adherence to the Asset Investment Strategy. 
 

CMMS Data Entry and Data Management  
 

Assets 
A summary is provided of the asset information as well as asset changes in the annual submittal for 
the Baseline Facility Record (BFR). The BFR document summarizes active and inactive assets in 
each system and the details associated with those assets.  A separate document is submitted 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 28 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 13 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

annually which summarizes a listing of new assets created, assets moved to inactive, and assets 
retire, as well as any other asset changes in the system.    
 
The BFR document can be monitored for field completeness, updates to condition, criticality, and 
remaining life each year.  The Records Modifications document can be monitored to ensure that 
assets are added or removed in relation to OR&R, Capital, and FIP projects.   
 

Work Orders  
The best methodology for monitoring work order entry and management is through the monthly Key 
Performance Indicator (KPI) data that is provided monthly through the MOR Report.  Enhancements 
to the KPI and narrative data are underway and will be incorporated into the July MOR.  These 
updates have been developed in collaboration with Veolia, RWS, and West Yost for enhanced 
understanding of the data and ease of interpretation.  The KPI data summarizes count of preventive 
and corrective work orders as well as other support type work, hours spent on preventive and 
corrective work orders, preventive work aged over 30 and 90 days, and a forecast for anticipated 
preventive work for the upcoming month.  Targets as well as warning and alarm limits are included to 
provide expectations of the data values for each month and when further investigation or intervention 
is necessary.  Narratives will be provided each month relating to these values and any action items 
triggered.    
 

OR&R and Capital Project Implementation 
 
An Operating Repair and Replacement (OR&R) and Capital Plan are each updated and submitted 
annually detailing projected projects for the next three and five years respectively.  A tracking 
spreadsheet is used to monitor progress of the OR&R projects. An update to the spreadsheet could 
include monitoring prioritization changes as well as including tracking of the capital projects in a 
similar fashion.  It is recommended that this spreadsheet be used to monitor the implementation of 
the OR&R and Capital plans and track changes between the plan and final implementation.    
 

Semi-Annual Workshop Proposal 
 
A semi-annual workshop is recommended to provide an avenue to provide updates as to the 
execution of the concession agreement contract deliverables as well as progress on continuous 
improvement action items.  This workshop can be used to answer questions and provide feedback as 
to the program outputs and communication between stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 29 of 495



Asset Management Program Summary 
Rialto Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
 

 
Page 14 of 14         Prepared 9/14/2016 

 
 

 
 

 

Summary of Proposed Monitoring Practices 
 

 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 

By targeting key applicable Level of Service needs and then utilizing Asset Management practices to 
drive program decisions to meet this Level of Service, we ensure that the investment decisions made 
meet the current and future needs of the Community. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 30 of 495



 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECTS 

File:  014050/9651400090      SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC   5-25 
 

CITY OF RIALTO 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

 

Concession Agreement Project S3 
 

SEWER PIPE REPLACEMENTS 
 
Design and Permitting: Varies 
Construction: Varies                                              Project Costs: $325,987 
SAIC Asset Management CIP Project S3 

 

Need for Project: 

Existing sewer pipe replacements are needed to relieve current capacity issues which may cause 

sewer backups and surcharging, reduce system maintenance efforts, and to provide additional 

capacity for future development growth.   

Background: 

The location of the sewer mains to be replaced is along Sycamore north of Etiwanda Avenue 

and along Etiwanda Avenue east of Sycamore.  Existing sewer mains in this area are old and 

undersized for existing flow conditions.  The proposed sewer replacements are also in an area 

where the current sewer system operator, Veolia, reports frequent maintenance problems.   

Recommended Solution: 

The proposed solution will consist of the replacement of approximately 200 linear feet of an 

existing undersized 8-inch diameter sewer pipe along Sycamore with larger 18-inch diameter 

pipe.  In addition, the replacement of approximately 1,100 linear feet of an existing undersized 

8-inch diameter sewer pipe along Sycamore with larger 12-inch diameter pipe.  Approximately 

270 lf of new 10-inch diameter pipe will be required to be installed along Etiwanda Avenue to 

connect two existing 8-inch diameter gravity mains and direct flow to an existing 15-inch 

diameter gravity main in Acacia Avenue. 

These proposed replacement and new pipe will relieve the current problems and provide 

additional capacity for future development growth.  See Figure S3 for an illustration of the pipes 

that are proposed. 

Output and Benefits:  

The proposed CIP project will relieve current capacity issues that are the cause of sewer 

backups and surcharging.  In addition, the sewer pipe replacements will reduce the wastewater 

system maintenance efforts and provide additional capacity for future growth. 

Options:  

Doing nothing will result in the continued maintenance issues which will be exacerbated by 

future development.     

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 31 of 495



 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECTS 

File:  014050/9651400090      SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC   5-26 
 

 

Budget Discussion: 

The total estimated cost for this project is $325,987.  Refer to Table 5-2 for a breakdown of the 

cost estimate and back-up data. 

 

 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 32 of 495



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2 !!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

219-6

219-5

219-4

219-7

235-3235-4

235-2
235-1

219-3

235-7

235-5

234-70

219-24

234-29

234-22

234-41

234-42

218-33
219-39 219-40 219-41

234-43

234-77

219-23

219-30

234-21

219-37

219-29

234-49

235-16

234-67

219-79

234-20234-19

219-26

234-76234-75

234-54
234-53

234-50 234-52
234-51

234-37

235-59234-38

219-28

234-69234-68234-66234-65

219-42

235-18

235-48

235-14

235-43

219-72219-71

234-36

219-32

235-60

219-21219-22

219-31

218-35

218-36

234-40

219-54

219-53

235-62

219-33

234-39 234-57

219-34

234-26

234-48

219-78

219-77

234-32

218-34218-18

219-27

219-25

218-17

234-56234-55

219-45

218-27

234-58

218-40

234-45

219-43

235-11

235-21

235-12

235-45

219-47

235-26

235-25

235-10

219-48

219-66

235-28235-27

218-30

219-62

235-52

218-29218-28

235-19

218-51

235-38 235-46

235-30235-29

235-44

218-43

218-39

218-48

235-73

234-60

235-15

219-44

235-70
235-69

218-32

218-31

235-37235-20

235-78

218-41

234-59

219-36

219-35

235-47
235-39

235-36

218-47

235-24

235-23

234-63

234-47
234-46

219-67

235-41

235-40

234-64

235-64235-63

218-53218-52

235-17

219-38

235-13

219-46

218-50218-49

218-55

218-54

235-81

235-49

218-44218-42

218-46218-45

235-22

234-62234-61

219-56

219-55

218-38

218-37

235-79

218-26

AC
AC

IA
 AV

E

RI
VE

RS
ID

E A
VE

SY
CA

MO
RE

 AV
EALLEY

MORGAN ST

DA
TE

 AV
E

SA
GE

 AV
E

EN
CI

NA
 AV

E

OA
KD

AL
E A

VE

MA
GN

OL
IA

 AV
E

OL
IVE

 AV
E

OR
AN

GE
 AV

E

FR
EM

ON
TIA

 AV
E

Source: Esri, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, GeoEye, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, and the GIS User Community

500 0 500250
Feet

±
Figure S3

Five Year Sewer
Capital Improvement Project

Rialto Sewer Master Plan

CIP  #S3

Legend
Rialto City Limits
Sewer Service Area
Freeway/Highway
Local Road
Rail Road

 
Sewer Lines

Existing Pipelines
Pipe Replacements

CIP  #S3

CIP  #S3

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 33 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

FINAL CONSTRUCTION WORK AUTHORIZATION 

Project 

S3 Sewer Replacement on Sycamore Ave.   

 

Scope of Work 

The following narrative is taken directly from the Concession Agreement (CA): 
 
Sewer Main Replacement on N. Sycamore, E. Etiwanda, and N. Acacia (8,308 feet total). 
Problem or Opportunity: Sewers are surcharged and/or could overflow under current conditions. 
Recommended Solution: Replace 2,400’ of 8” with 12” on N. Sycamore; 1,320’ of 8” with 10” 
on E. Etiwanda; and 1,648’ of 8” with 12”, and 2,940’ of 10” with 12” on N. Acacia. 
Measurable Benefits: No surcharge or overflow under current conditions. 
Basis of Recommendation: RW Beck hydraulic modeling. 
Assumptions / Risks: The proposed improvements reflect internal growth but not external growth 
such as the proposed Lytle Creek development. Normal construction risks associated with 
unknown underground conditions exist. 
 
Veolia’s value engineering: 

The CA estimated replacement of 8,308 feet of sewer main replacement along N. Sycamore, E. 
Etiwanda, and N. Acacia. After Veolia performed value engineering studies of sewer mains it 
was determined that only approximately 1,521 feet of sewer needed replacement along Sycamore 
Ave. There are also 17 sewer lateral connections that will be addressed which the CA did not 
include in its estimate. The method for construction will be through pipe bursting existing 8’’ 
pipe to 12’’. Surcharge is constantly observed along Sycamore Ave by Operations staff. 

 

Cost Estimate 

See Attachment 2 – Final Cost Sheet with total cost of $562,302. 

The CA estimated cost for the project was $1,464,000 for a larger scope but after value 
engineering and scope reduction, the cost was reduced to $562,302. 

 

Schedule 

See Attachment 3. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 34 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 
Notice of Inviting Bids, Request for Bid (RFB) and Addendum 
 
See Attachment 4. 
 
 
 
Construction Contract and Technical Specification 
 
See Attachment 4 – Refer to PDF pages 28 to 72 for the Technical Specifications. Refer to PDF 
pages 73 to 171 for the Contract. 
 
 
 
Insurance and Bonding Requirement 
 
See Attachment 5. 
 
 
 
Acceptance Testing 
 
 
See Attachment 4 - Refer to the Technical Specifications sections: 
 
 
Page 53; Section 02776 Part III, Video Inspection 
 
Page 55; Section 02776 Part III, Section V. Field Testing 
 
Page 59; Section 07950 Part 3.3 Preliminary Inspection 
 
Page 60; Section 07950 Part 3.7 Inspection and testing of lining 
 
 
 
 
Major Assumptions 
 
No major assumptions underlie this Wastewater Facility Improvement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 35 of 495



Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

Other Provisions 

Upon completion of construction, provide a Notice of Completion and information required for 
GASB 34.  

Employment Impact 

Ferreira Construction Co, Inc. based out of Chino, CA, Veolia’s subcontractor, anticipates 7 
employees will be expended to complete the project. No new employees will be hired for this 
work. None of the current employees reside in Rialto, CA. Therefore, the investment of 
$562,302 for Project S3 will not be creating any new jobs to the market; however, it will keep 
the current workforce employed. The contractor has 27 years of experience in the nature of work 
that this project covers. 

Approval by Rialto Utility Authority of Conceptual Design Report: 

Approved on: ___October 10, 2014_____________________________ 

Approval by Rialto Utility Authority of Substantial Complete Design: 

Approved on: _____April 13, 2016___________________________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 36 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 37 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 – Scope of Work 

 

The CA estimated replacement of 8,308 feet of sewer main replacement along N. Sycamore, E. 
Etiwanda, and N. Acacia. After Veolia performed value engineering studies of sewer mains it 
was determined that only approximately 1,521 feet of sewer needed replacement along Sycamore 
Ave. There are also 17 sewer lateral connections that will be addressed which the CA did not 
include in its estimate. The method for construction will be through pipe bursting existing 8’’ 
pipe to 12’’. Surcharge is constantly observed along Sycamore Ave by Operations staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 38 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 – Final Cost Sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 39 of 495



ver. 8.9.16

Item Description Quantity Unit Total Cost

1 Mobilization 1 LS $20,460 

2 Traffic Control (incl. Traffic Control Plan) 1 LS $35,285 

3 General Conditions/Construction Site Management/BMP's 1 LS $7,095 

4 Potholing 1 LS $8,315 

5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 17 EA $27,200 

6 Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12- inch 1521 LF $164,268 

7 Open Trench Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch 29 LF $16,472 

8 Sewer Bypass System 1 LS $10,340 

9 Street Repair 1 LS $39,155 

10 CCTV Pre & Post Inspection 1 LS $13,435 

11 Insurance and Business Licence 1 LS $1,000 

12 Payment and Performance Bonds 1 LS $5,500 

13 Manhole Rehabilitations 9 EA $84,015 

$432,540 

10%  $               43,254.00 

1%  $                 4,325.40 

6%
 $               25,952.40 

5%
 $               21,627.00 

8%
 $               34,603.20 

 $                  562,302 Grand Total

Ferreira

Contingency

O&M Project Development

Detailed Design & Permitting / Bidding 

Support

Construction Phase Engineering 

Services

O&M Project Management Services

Construction Total*

$9,335 

$1,000 

$5,500 

$39,155 

$13,435 

$568 

$10,340 

$108 

$7,095 

$8,315 

$20,460 

$35,285 

Unit Price

Veolia - S3 Sewer Replacement
City of Rialto - Sycamore Ave.

Total Project Cost

$1,600 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 40 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 – Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 41 of 495



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 Contract Documents 26 days Tue 8/2/16 Tue 9/6/16

2 Notice to Proceed 1 day Wed 9/7/16 Wed 9/7/16 1

3 Contract Submittals &
Material Procurment

30 days Thu 9/8/16 Wed 
10/19/16

2

4 Pot Hole Site 5 days Thu 10/20/16 Wed 10/26/163

5 Pre‐ Dig Latterals 8 days Thu 10/27/16 Mon 11/7/16 4

6 Dig Launch Pits 6 days Tue 11/8/16 Tue 11/15/16 5

7 String Pipe & Fuse 10 days Wed 11/16/16 Tue 11/29/16 6

8 Burst Pipe 20 days Wed 11/30/16 Tue 12/27/16 7

9 Site Restoration 10 days Wed 12/28/16 Tue 1/10/17 8

10 Punch List 5 days Wed 1/11/17 Tue 1/17/17 9

M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T
ul 31, '16 Aug 7, '16 Aug 14, '16 Aug 21, '16 Aug 28, '16 Sep 4, '16 Sep 11, '16 Sep 18, '16 Sep 25, '16 Oct 2, '16 Oct 9, '16 Oct 16, '16 Oct 23, '16 Oct 30, '16 Nov 6, '16 Nov 13, '16 Nov 20, '16 Nov 27, '16 Dec 4, '16 Dec 11, '16 Dec 18, '16 Dec 25, '16 Jan 1, '17 Jan 8, '17 Jan 15, '17

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: Project1
Date: Tue 8/2/16

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 42 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 – Notice of Inviting Bids, Request for Bid (RFB) and Addendums if applicable 
 

 
Construction Contract and Technical Specification 
 
See PDF pages 28 to 72 for the Technical Specifications. Refer to PDF pages 73 to 171 for the 
Contract. 
 
 
 
Acceptance Testing 
 
See Attachment 4 for Acceptance Testing - Refer to the Technical Specifications sections: 
 
 
Page 53; Section 02776 Part III, Video Inspection 
 
Page 55; Section 02776 Part III, Section V. Field Testing 
 
Page 59; Section 07950 Part 3.3 Preliminary Inspection 
 
Page 60; Section 07950 Part 3.7 Inspection and testing of lining 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 43 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -1 

 
 
 
 

 

 
VEOLIA WATER WEST OPERATING SERVICES, INC. 

IN THE CITY OF RIALTO 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
 

FOR RECEIVING BIDS ON: 
 

PROJECT: S3 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Sycamore 
 

METHOD: Design, Bid, Build 
 

 
 

Bid Opening: May 17, 2016 @ 437 N Riverside Ave., Rialto, CA 92376 
 

 
      

 
Veolia Water 

Capital Improvement Projects 
 437 N Riverside Ave., Rialto, CA 92376 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 44 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -2 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS)  
 

BID FORM 
 
BID BOND 
 
IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT 
 
PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BONDS   
 
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
 
CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE/INSURANCE ENDORSEMENTS 
 
SAMPLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT 
 
CONTRACT/PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION FORM 
 
BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
BID SCHEDULE 
 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
LUMP SUM CONTRACT SCHEDULE R.3 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS SCHEDULE R.6 
 
SUBCONTRACTORS & CONSULTANTS INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS SCHEDULE R.9 
 
  
 
  
  
  
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 45 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -3 

 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) 

 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

 
PROJECT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. SYCAMORE 

 
FOR 

 
CITY OF RIALTO 

 
THROUGH DESING-BID-BUILD PROJECT DELIVERY METHOD 

 
Veolia hereby requests sealed bids for project S3 Sewer consisting of sewer replacement along 
N. Sycamore Ave. upsizing from 8’’ to 12’’. Bids will be received Alejandro Juarez through 
email (alejandro.juarez@veolia.com) and/or Veolia Customer Service Office located at 437 N 
Riverside, Rialto, CA 92376. All bid forms must be completed in full or the bid will not be 
considered. Emailed bids must be received at the due date and time. 
 
Mandatory Site Walk held Thursday May 26, 2016 @ 1141 N. Sycamore Ave. 
 
Bids are due and will be opened by Tuesday June 7, 2016 by 5:00PM PST. 
 
Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and will be 
revealed no later than June 10, 2016. 
 
Veolia reserves the right after opening bids to reject any or all bids, to waive any informality 
(non-responsiveness) in a bid, or to make award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder and 
reject all other bids, as it may best serve the interest of Veolia Water and/or Rialto Water 
Services (RWS). If a bid is accepted, it will be combined with other project costs (owner 
purchased equipment, construction management, etc.) and presented to Rialto Utility Authority 
and RWS for approval. Although we believe that the project will approve, there is no guarantee 
of authorization of the project, project proceeding, or ratification of a contract. The bidder shall 
guarantee the Total Bid Price for a period of 90 Calendar days from the date of bid submittal. 
 
As a condition of award, the successful bidder must provide proof of insurance. Insurance 
certificates shall list City of Rialto, Rialto Utility Authority, Rialto Water Services, and Union 
Bank N.A. as additionally insured. Automobile, general liability, and workers compensation 
insurance are required.  Contractor shall thoroughly understand insurance requirements provided 
in Schedule R9 and under the Subcontract Exhibit G. Contractors bidding this project must have 
a Class A License in good standing to bid this project. Upon awarding the contractors shall also 
obtain a business license with City of Rialto and any other permits needed. 
 
Your quotation should include all labor, supervision, material, supplies, equipment, inspections, 
and any other incidentals required for the work as described in the enclosed documents provided. 
Your firm is presumed to hold all necessary licenses and other qualifications, and your work will 
be required to meet all local, state and federal codes, laws, rules and regulations. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 46 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -4 

 
Any discrepancies you may discover among documents provided and applicable laws, rules, 
codes, or regulations should be brought to Veolia’s attention with your quotation. For purposes 
of pricing the work, you should assume that the most stringent of the foregoing requirements will 
apply to your work. Should you be awarded a Subcontract, no additional compensation will be 
granted for compliance with any of these requirements. 
 
Should your review of the Scope documents indicate that cost and/or schedule savings might be 
realized through the use of alternate materials, modified configurations, or more efficient layouts 
(all without compromising function, interfaces, or quality), Veolia may consider detailed 
alternate proposals in addition to the base-bid proposal. Alternates may be considered only if 
submitted along with the base bid proposal. 
 
Do not submit any project correspondence such as RFI's, bids, questions, etc. to the City of 
Rialto directly, these are to be returned to Veolia who is the Prime Contractor for Rialto 
Water Services. All questions relative to this RFP shall be in writing utilizing the Request for 
Information (RFI) Form found in this bid package, and emailed to;  Alejandro Juarez, Project 
Engineer at alejandro.juarez@veolia.com.  
 
The RFI submission deadline is six (6) business days before the bid due date. Veolia will 
respond to bid RFI's no later than close of business five (5) business days after the RFI 
submission unless extensions are granted by an extended due date for bids. Responses will be 
made by email, call or as seen necessary by Veolia.    
 
Bidder confirms that bidder and all subcontractors are bound by and signatory to a collective 
bargaining agreement with a labor organization whose jurisdiction covers the type of work to be 
performed, that is 1) either currently affiliated with, or previously affiliated with as of January 1, 
2001, the Building and Construction Trades Department of the AFL-CIO; and 2) whose 
collective bargaining agreement or other applicable documentation provides a mechanism for the 
expeditious resolution of jurisdictional  disputes, and 3) that observes area standards for wages 
and other terms and conditions of employment, including fringe benefits.” 
 
The Veolia is an equal opportunity employer. Minority business enterprises and women's 
business enterprises are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The parties acknowledge and agree that their obligations 
under this Agreement are subject to, and conditioned upon, 
the approval of City/RUA of the project, and the execution 
and delivery of a Final Construction Work Authorization 
by City/RUA and a Final Work Authorization by RWS.   If 
these conditions precedent fail to occur, this Agreement will 
terminate without further notice or action by either party. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 47 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -5 

General History and Description of Work 
 
History:   
 
A section of undersized pipe has been identified for replacement along N. Sycamore Ave. 
 
Scope:  
 
Chosen subcontractor shall replace existing 8’’ sewer with new 12’’ sewer via the pipe bursting 
method for about 1521 feet. Connection to sewer laterals and bypass systems is required. 
 
Provide and furnish all measures, administrative, facilities, equipment, labor, material, logistics, 
insurance, bonds, and design for the project. See attached Bid Schedule, Specifications, and 
Plans. 
 

BIDDER'S REFERENCE/EXPERIENCE 
  
Bidders must be Union. The following statements as to experience of the bidder are submitted in 
conjunction with the bid as part thereof and the truthfulness and accuracy of the information is 
guaranteed by the bidder. 
 
The bidder has been engaged in the contracting business, under the present business name for _____ 
years.  Experience in work of a nature similar to that covered in the bid extends over a period of 
_____ years. The bidder has completed at least three (3) construction projects of a similar nature and 
size to the subject project. Similar projects shall have included installation of sewer of a similar size 
and nature to the project sewer replacement, in live sewer lines within an urban setting. 
 
The bidder, as a contractor, has never failed to satisfactorily complete a contract awarded to him 
except as follows (name any and all exceptions and reasons therefore): 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
The following contracts have been satisfactorily completed in the last five (5) years for the persons, 
firms, or authorities indicated, and to whom reference is made (name five (5) contracts) of these 
three. At least two (2) of the listed will have been the same or almost the same project for another 
client: 
 

Year 
 

Type of Work 
 

Contract 
Amount 

 
Location and for Whom Performed 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 48 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -6 

BIDDER'S REFERENCE FINANCIAL 
 
Reference is hereby made to the following bank or banks as to the financial responsibility of the 
bidder: 
 
 

Name of Bank 
 

Address 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Reference is hereby made to the following surety companies as to the financial responsibility and 
general reliability of the bidder: 
 
Name of Surety Company ________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                               
 
Name of Surety Company ________________________________________________________                                                                                            
 
Signature of Bidder ____________________________________________________________
                                                                                            
Title__________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                             
 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 49 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -7 

BID FORM 
 

BID TO VEOLIA 
 

PROJECT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. SYCAMORE 
 

Name of Bidder______________________________________________________________                                                                                                       
 
Business Address____________________________________________________________                                                                                                      
 
Mailing Address _____________________________________________________________                                                                                                       
 
Phone Number ____________________  Place of Residence  _________________________ 
 
Pursuant to and in compliance with your Notice to Contractors and other documents relating thereto, the 
undersigned bidder, having familiarized himself with the terms of the contract and the cost of the work at the place 
where the work is to be done, hereby proposes and agrees to perform within the time stipulated in the contract, 
including all of its component parts and everything required to be performed, and to provide and furnish any and all 
of the labor, material, tools, expendable equipment, and all utility and transportation services necessary to perform 
the contract and complete in a workmanlike manner all of the work required in connection with the construction of 
PROJECT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLCEMENT all in strict conformity with the plans and specifications, the 
Department of Transportation Standard Plans, the Standard Specifications, the Labor Surcharge and Equipment 
Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished, the General Prevailing Wage Rates, latest issue, and 
other contract documents, including all Addenda on file in the office of the City Engineer of the City of Rialto for 
the contract unit prices hereinafter set forth.  The following documents are attached in this bid or will be provided 
before commencement of Work: 
 
• Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
• Bidder's Reference 
• Bidder's Reference Financial 
• Bid Schedule 
• Subcontractors  
• Non-Collusion Affidavit 
• Bid Bond 
• Compliance with IRCA 
• Certificate of Contractor 
• Performance Bond 
• Payment Bond 
• Contractor Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
• Certificate of Insurance 
• Insurance Endorsements 
• Sample Agreement 
• Request for Information (RFI) form 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 50 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -8 

 
 
The undersigned as bidder declares that the only persons or parties interested in this bid as principals are those named 
herein, that this bid is made without collusion with any person, firm, or corporation, and he proposes and agrees if this 
bid is accepted that he will execute a contract with Veolia substantially in the form of the contract; the bidder once 
awarded the bid will accept in full payment thereof for the following lump sum cost and unit prices, to with: 
 

BID SCHEDULE 
 
Please see attachment in email. 
Completed signed and dated bid schedule shall be submitted with this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 51 of 495



Date: ________________

Item Description Quantity Unit
Unit Price          

$
Total Cost    $

1 Mobilization 1 LS -$                  

2 Traffic Control 1 LS -$                  

3 General Conditions/Construction Site Management/BMP's 1 LS -$                  

4 Potholing 1 LS -$                  

5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 17 EA -$                  

6 Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch 1521 LF -$                  

7 Open Trench Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch 29 LF -$                  

8 Sewer Bypass System 1 LS -$                  

9 Street Repair 1 LS -$                  

(1)  Include Contractor pipe replacement method/technology for Bid Item 6 in the provided space below.

(2) Contractors shall submit their project schedule for their base bid.

(3) Disclaimer: Work not specified or referenced in bid schedule does not relieve the contractor of complying with 

the Documents: drawings, specifications, addendums and any and all related documents provided and the costs 

that may accrue in complying with the documents. Bidder understands and agrees that bid will remain valid for 90 

calendar days.

(4) By signing and submitting this bid Contractor acknowledges that bid is "Complete"

EA = Each,  LS = Lump Sum,  LF = Lineal Feet, SF= Square Feet, SY = Square Yard, CY = Cubic Yard

Notes

BID SCHEDULE

Bid Total in Words: ______________________________________________________________________

Veolia - S3 Sewer Replacement
City of Rialto - Sycamore Ave.

Contractor Name: ________________________________________________________________________

Total

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 52 of 495



Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost

1 Mobilization 1 LS 10,000$      10,000$       

2 Traffic Control (incl. Traffic Control Plan) 1 LS 30,000$      30,000$       

3
General Conditions/Construction Site 

Management/BMP's
1 LS 10,000$      10,000$       

4 Potholing 1 LS 9,000$        9,000$         

5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 17 EA 1,800$        30,600$       

6
Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-

inch
1521 LF 175$            266,175$     

7
Open Trench Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-

inch
29 LF 225$            6,525$         

8 Sewer Bypass System 1 LS 30,000$      30,000$       

9 Street Repair 1 LS 50,000$      50,000$       

442,300$     

66,300$       

508,600$     

EA = Each,  LS = Lump Sum,  LF = Lineal Feet, SF= Square Feet, SY = Square Yard, CY = Cubic Yard

Contingency @ 15%

Grand Total

S3 Sewer Replacement

Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

3/11/2016

Rev. 1 - Revised for Plan Check Comments

Subtotal

City of Rialto - Sycamore Ave

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 53 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -9 

BID BOND 
(This or other official form is acceptable) 

 
 
We, ___________________________________________________________ as Principal,  
 
and _______________________________________________ as Surety, jointly and severally, bind 
ourselves, our heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, as set forth herein, to the 
 
 

 VEOLIA 
 

 
(herein called City) for payment of the penal sum of   
 
  
 
_________________________ Dollars ($________________________), lawful money of the United States.  
Principal has submitted the accompanying bid for the construction of 
 
 

 PROJECT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. SYCAMORE 
 
If the Principal is awarded the contract and enters into a written contract, in the form prescribed by Veolia, at 
the price designated by his bid, and files two bonds with Veolia, or substitute security in lieu thereof, one to 
guarantee payment for labor and materials and the other to guarantee faithful performance, in the time and 
manner specified by Veolia, and carries all insurance in type and amount which conforms to the Contract 
Documents and furnishes required certificates and endorsements thereof, then this obligation shall be null 
and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Forfeiture of this bond, or any deposit made in lieu thereof, shall not preclude Veolia from seeking all other 
remedies provided by law to cover losses sustained as a result of the Principal's failure to do any of the 
foregoing. Bid Bond shall be 100% of the total amount bid. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 54 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -10 

Principal and Surety agree that if Veolia is required to engage the services of an attorney in connection with 
the enforcement of this bond, each shall pay Veolia’s reasonable attorney's fees incurred with or without suit. 
 
 Executed on _________________________,20  
 
   
 PRINCIPAL 
 
(Seal if Corporation) By   
 
 Title   
 
(Attach Acknowledgment of Authorized Representative of Principal) 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
  (name and address of Surety) 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  (name and address of Surety's agent for service of 
  process in California, if different from above) 
  
 
  
 
 
   (Telephone number of Surety's agent in California) 
 
 
(Attach Acknowledgment)    
  SURETY 
 
  By   
  (Attorney-in-Fact) 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: 
 
No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted.  Sureties must be authorized to do business 
in and have an agent for service of process in California.  Certified copy of Power of Attorney must be 
attached.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 55 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -11 

SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4100 to 4113 inclusive, of the Government Code of the 
State of California, every bidder shall set forth the name and location of the place of business of 
each subcontractor who will perform work or labor in or about the construction of the work or 
improvement in an amount in excess of one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total 
bid.  If the Bidder fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work in excess of one half 
(1/2) of one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total bid, he agrees to perform that portion himself.  
The following is the required list of subcontractors: 
 

BIDDER'S LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Use extra sheet if necessary) 

 
 
Type of Work Name and Address of Subcontractors Contractor’s License No. 
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
 
________________________________                   ___________ 
Signature of Bidder     Date 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 56 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement BF -12 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
 

___________________________________________________________, being first a duly  
 
sworn, deposes and  says that he/she is    of   
  the party making the foregoing bid, that the bid is not made in the 
interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or 
corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly 
induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall 
refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, 
communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any 
overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage 
against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all 
statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted 
his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative 
thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, 
bid depository or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid." 
 
  ___________________________________ 
  Bidder 
 
 
 
 
State of California ) 
    )   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
On this _________ day of ____________________ 20_____, before me personally came 
___________________________to me known, or proven to be on the basis of satisfactory evidence, who 
being duly sworn, did depose and say:  that _________________________ is an authorized representative of 
the _________________________________ and acknowledged to me that 
_________________________________ executed the within instrument on behalf of said bidder. 
 
In witness whereof, I have signed and affixed my official seal on the date first above written. 
 
   
    
  Notary Public 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 57 of 495



Veolia   
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  1 

COMPLIANCE WITH IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT 
("IRCA") 

 
 
Contractor acknowledges that Contractor, and all subcontractors hired by Contractor to perform services 

under this Agreement, are aware of and understand the Immigration Reform and Control Act ("IRCA").  

Contractor is and shall remain in compliance with the IRCA and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired by 

Contractor to perform services under this Agreement are in compliance with the IRCA.  In addition, Contractor 

agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers and employees, from any liability, 

damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that Contractor's employees, or the 

employees of any subcontractor hired by Contractor, are not authorized to work in the United States for 

Contractor or its subcontractor and/or any other claims based upon alleged IRCA violations committed by 

Contractor or Contractor's subcontractor(s). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________           _____________________ 
Signature of Bidder                                                                     Date 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 58 of 495



Veolia  Certificate of Contractor 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  CC - 1 

 
CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR 

 

I,_______________________________________________________, certify that I am a/the 

__________________________________ [designate sole proprietor, partner in partnership, or specify 

corporate office, e.g., secretary] in the entity named as CONTRACTOR in the foregoing contract. 
 

I hereby expressly certify that the name of the entity to which I am associated is 

______________________________________________; that this entity is in good standing and has 

complied with all applicable laws and regulations, and that I have been expressly authorized by the 

proper parties in this entity to execute this contract on behalf of the above-named entity. 
 
 
    
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 
Name   
          (Please Type) 
 
Title   
 
 
On this _______ day of ____________________, 20__, before me personally came 
____________________________ to me known, or proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, 
who being duly sworn, did depose and say:  that (he/she) is an authorized representative of the 
Contractor and acknowledged to me that (he/she) executed the within instrument on behalf of said 
Contractor, ________________________________________. 
 
In witness whereof, I have signed and affixed my official seal on the date in this certificate first above 
written. 
 
 
    
  NOTARY PUBLIC 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 59 of 495



Veolia Payment Bond 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  PYBD - 1 

 
 
 
 

PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDS 
 
 
Please attach payment bond and performance bond rider which includes the following as additional 
obligees for each payment and performance bond separately: 
 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
    437 North Riverside Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
    335 West Rialto Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
    350 California Street, 11th Floor 
    San Francisco, CA 94104 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 60 of 495



Veolia Contractor's Certificate Regarding Workers' Compensation 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  CCRWC - 1 

 
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' 

COMPENSATION 
 
 
Description of Contract: Veolia 
 PROEJCT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. SYCAMORE 
 
Labor Code Section 3700 Provides (in part): 
 

"Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more 
of the following ways: 

 
(a)  By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly 
authorized to write compensation insurance in this State. 

 
(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, 
which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of 
ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees." 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be 
insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the 
work of this contract. 
 
 
Dated: , 20__  
  (Contractor) 
 
  By____________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  (Official Title) 
 
  (SEAL) 
 
 
(Labor Code Section 1861 provides that the above certificate must be signed and filed by the Contractor 
with the City prior to performing any work under this contract.) 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 61 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  1 
 

INSURANCE 
 
Insurance and other details are included in Schedule R5 and its attachments. 
Attach insurance certificates for all required insurances and include the following below as additional 
insured for each insurance form including insurance form C G 20 12: 
 
 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
    437 North Riverside Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
    335 West Rialto Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
    350 California Street, 11th Floor 
    San Francisco, CA 94104 
 

 
 

 
 
Please pay special attention to Section 2.4.1 on amounts of Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance 
under Schedule R.5 in exhibit G.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 62 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  2 
 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
 
 
Description of Contract: Veolia 
 PROJECT S3 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. SYCAMORE 
 
Type of Insurance: Liability Insurance 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the following policies have been issued by the below-stated company in 
conformance with the requirements of Schedule R9 and Exhibit G from the Subcontract and are in force 
at this time: 
 
 POLICY                  EXPIRATION         LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
NUMBER                        DATE                 In Thousands (000)   
 
 
 A. GENERAL LIABILITY  
  General Aggregate 

Products-Comp Ops 
   Aggregate 

$   
 
$   

  Personal and 
   Advertising 
   Injury          

 
 
$   

  Each Occurrence 
Fire Damage 
(any one fire) 
Medical Expense 
(any one person) 

 
 
$   
 
$   

  
 
B. 

 
 
EXCESS GENERAL LIABILITY 

Each 
Occurrence 

$___________ 

 
AGGREGATE 
$__________ 

 C. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  
  Bodily Injury 

(Each Person) 
Bodily Injury 

(Each Accident 
Property Damage 

 
$   
 
$   
$   

  Or 
Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage 

Combined Single Limit 

 
 
 
$   

  
 
D. 

 
 

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

Each 
Occurrence 

$___________ 

 
AGGREGATE 
$__________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 63 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  3 
 

 
The following types of coverage are included in said policies (indicate by "X" in space): 
 

A. GENERAL LIABILITY  

 Commercial Form .......................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Premises-Operations ..................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Explosion and Collapse Hazard .................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Underground ...............................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Products/Completed Operations ................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Contractual Insurance ................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Broad Form Property Damage ...................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Independent Contractors ............................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury ........................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

B. EXCESS GENERAL LIABILITY  

 Following Form  ..........................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

C. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

 Business Auto Form Including Loading and Unloading..............................   YES___ NO___ 

 Owned ........................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Hired ...........................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Non-Owned .................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

D. EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

 Following Form ...........................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 64 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  4 
 

 
This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  
This certificate does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed herein. 
 
This is to certify that the policy has been issued to the named insured for the policy period indicated, 
notwithstanding any requirement, term, or condition of any contract or other document with respect to 
which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described 
herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions, and conditions of such policies. 
 
The Company will give at least 30 days' written notice to the City and the Engineer/Architect prior to any 
cancellation of said policies.   
 
 
    
Named Insured (Contractor)  Insurance Company 
 
    
Street Number  Street Number 
 
    
City and State  City and State 
 
 
  By  
  (Company Representative) 
 
  (SEE NOTICE ON PAGE 4) 
 
 
Insurance Company Agent for Service 
of Process in California: 
 
  
  
Name 
 
  
Agency 
 
  
Street Number 
 
  
City and State 
 
  
Telephone Number 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 65 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  5 
 

NOTICE: 
 
No substitution or revision to the above certificate form will be accepted.  If the insurance called for is 
provided by more than one insurance company, a separate certificate in the exact above form shall be 
provided for each insurance company. 
 
Insurers must be authorized to do business and have an agent for service of process in California and 
have a "B+" policyholder's rating and a financial rating of at least Class VIII in accordance with the most 
current Best's Rating. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 66 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  6 
 

 
SAMPLE 

 
SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT: 

 
 

SCHEDULE R3 AGREEMENT FORM 
PROVIDED AS ATTACHMENT 

 
Article 31. Contract Documents and Order of Precedence 
 
This Contract, together with any Attachments hereto (all of which are incorporated herein by 
this reference) shall comprise this Contract and shall together be referred to as the “Contract 
Documents.” 
 
Upon discovery, the Contractor shall promptly notify the other in writing of any conflicts, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies, errors, or omissions in, between or among any of Contract 
Documents or Applicable Legal Requirements and shall cooperate in effecting a resolution of 
the same that is consistent with the principles expressed in this Article 31. In the event of any 
inconsistencies between this Contract and the other Contract Documents, the following order 
of precedence in the interpretation hereof or resolution of such conflict hereunder shall 
prevail: 
 
 (i) duly authorized and executed Change Orders and written amendments to this 
Contract executed by both Parties; 
  
  (ii) this Contract; 
  
  (iii) the Attachments; and 
  
  (iv) Drawings produced and delivered pursuant to this Contract (in respect of 
which, precedence shall be given to Drawings of a larger scale over those of smaller, figured 
dimensions on the Drawings shall control over scaled dimensions, and noted materials shall 
control over undimensioned graphic indications). 
 
Where an irreconcilable conflict exists among Applicable Legal Requirements, this Contract, 
the Drawings and the specifications in the Materials, the earliest item mentioned in this 
sentence involving a conflict shall control over any later mentioned item or items subject to 
such conflict. Notwithstanding the foregoing terms of this Article 31, if a conflict exists 
within or between parts of the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and 
Applicable Legal Requirements, the more stringent or higher quality requirements shall 
control. Where a conflict exists among Codes and Standards applicable to Seller’s 
performance of the Work, the most stringent provision of such Codes and Standards shall 
govern. 
 

Special Conditions 
 
Notification Requirements 
 
Contractor shall post notices to the local residences and businesses of when they will be working in the area. 
The notice shall clearly state the estimated duration of the work and provide contact information, phone 
numbers and emails to the Project Manager and field foremen. The notices shall be posted 72 hours prior to 
performing any work in the area 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 67 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  7 
 

CONTRACT / PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

Bidder shall provide a project schedule which shall reflect the progress that the contractor can make to 
the best of the contractors ability.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 68 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  8 
 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) 
 

 

DATE REQUESTED:  

SUBJECT / TOPIC:  

TO:  

FROM:  
 
 
 

REQUEST 

 

CAUSE FOR 
REQUEST 

 

SUGGESTION/ 
ATTACHMENT 

 

RESPONSE 

 

 
 
NOTE: Request will only be submitted in this format. Veolia shall have five (5) business 
days to provide a response which may or may not necessarily resolve the request. Veolia 
holds the right to, have the contractor research, investigate, study, test, field check or use any 
methods and means necessary and acceptable to industry standards for the resolution of 
requests after a notice to proceed. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 69 of 495



Veolia  
S3 Sewer Main Replacement  9 
 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items Submitted for Bid Approval 
 

1. Proposal (Bid Schedule attachment) signed with bid in numbers and words       
2. Bid Bond & Pertinent Official Documents            
3. Bidders Reference / Experience             
4. List of Subcontractors               

 
Items Submitted After Bid is Approved  

(Require three original hard copies of each) 
 
5. Schedule R3 
6. Insurance with additional insured and CG 20 12 form 
7. Payment bond with additional obligee riders and Performance bond with additional 

obligee riders 
8. Project Schedule 
9. Certificate of Non-Collusion Affidavit 
10. “IRCA” 

 
Items after NTP is given 

 
11. City Business License 
12. Encroachment Permit 
13. Material Submittals 
14. Any other requested documents 
15. Certified Payroll as requested 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 70 of 495



SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Article 31. Contract Documents and Order of Precedence 

This Contract, together with any Attachments hereto (all of which are incorporated herein by 
this reference) shall comprise this Contract and shall together be referred to as the “Contract 
Documents.” 

Upon discovery, the Contractor shall promptly notify the other in writing of any conflicts, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies, errors, or omissions in, between or among any of Contract 
Documents or Applicable Legal Requirements and shall cooperate in effecting a resolution of 
the same that is consistent with the principles expressed in this Article 31. In the event of any 
inconsistencies between this Contract and the other Contract Documents, the following order 
of precedence in the interpretation hereof or resolution of such conflict hereunder shall 
prevail: 

(i) duly authorized and executed Change Orders and written amendments to this 
Contract executed by both Parties; 

(ii) this Contract; 

(iii) the Attachments; and 

(iv) Drawings produced and delivered pursuant to this Contract (in respect of 
which, precedence shall be given to Drawings of a larger scale over those of smaller, figured 
dimensions on the Drawings shall control over scaled dimensions, and noted materials shall 
control over undimensioned graphic indications). 

Where an irreconcilable conflict exists among Applicable Legal Requirements, this Contract, 
the Drawings and the specifications in the Materials, the earliest item mentioned in this 
sentence involving a conflict shall control over any later mentioned item or items subject to 
such conflict. Notwithstanding the foregoing terms of this Article 31, if a conflict exists 
within or between parts of the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and 
Applicable Legal Requirements, the more stringent or higher quality requirements shall 
control. Where a conflict exists among Codes and Standards applicable to Seller’s 
performance of the Work, the most stringent provision of such Codes and Standards shall 
govern. 

Notification Requirements 

Contractor shall post notices to the local residences and businesses of when they will be working in the area. 
The notice shall clearly state the estimated duration of the work and provide contact information, phone 
numbers and emails to the Project Manager and field foremen. The notices shall be posted 72 hours prior to 
performing any work in the area 

Veolia 
S3 Sewer Main Replacement 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 71 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 1 of 5 

 

SECTION 012000 

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

PART 1 GENERAL 

 

I. SECTION INCLUDES 

 

A. Explanation and Definitions 

 

B. Measurement 

 

C. Payment 

 

D. Schedule of Values 

 

II. EXPLANATION AND DEFINITIONS 

 

A. The following explanation of the Measurement and Payment for the Bid 
Schedule items is made for information and guidance. The omission of 
reference to any item in this description shall not, however, alter the intent 
of the Bid Schedule or relieve the CONTRACTOR of the necessity of 
furnishing such as a part of the Contract. Measurement and payment for 
all Contract Items shall made be in accordance with this section or as 
modified by the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
 

III. MEASUREMENT 
 

A. The quantities set forth in the Bid Schedule are approximate and are given 
to establish a uniform basis for the comparison of bids. Veolia reserves 
the right to increase or decrease the quantity of any class or portion of the 
work during the progress of construction in accord with the terms of the 
Contract. 
 

IV. PAYMENT 
 

A. Make payment for the items listed on the Bid Schedule on the basis of the 
work actually performed and completed, such work including but not 
limited to, the furnishing of all necessary labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, clean up, restoration of disturbed areas, and all other 
appurtenances to complete the construction and installation of the work as 
shown on the drawings and described in the specifications. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 72 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 2 of 5 

 

B. Unit prices are used as a means of computing the final figures for bid and 
Contract purposes, for periodic payments, for work performed, for 
determining value of additions or deletions and wherever else reasonable. 

 

V. SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

A. Approval of Schedule: Submit to Veolia for approval a preliminary 
schedule of values, in duplicate, for all of the Work. Prepare preliminary 
schedule in accordance with the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
Submit preliminary schedule of values within 10 calendar days after the 
Effective Date of the Agreement. Submit final schedule of values in 
accordance with the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
 

B. Format: Utilize a format similar to the Bid Schedule. Identify each line item 
with number and title of the major specification items. Identify bonding and 
insurance. Include within each line item a direct proportional amount of 
CONTRACTOR's overhead and profit. 

 

C. Revisions: With each Application for Payment, revise schedule to list 
approved Change Orders.  

 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 
 

Not Used 

 
PART 3 EXECUTION 
 
I. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

 
A. Payment will be made on the basis of work actually performed completing 

each item in the Bid, such work including, but not limited to, the furnishing 
of all necessary labor, materials, equipment, transportation, cleanup, and 
all other appurtenances to complete the construction and installation of the 
work to the configuration and extent as shown on the drawings and 
described in the specifications. Payment for each item includes 
compensation for cleanup and restorations. Cost of cleanup and surface 
restorations (including pavement replacement) will be considered as the 
percentage retained in accordance with the Contract Documents, and 
complete payment will not be made until cleanup, restorations and as-
bullts are completed. 
 
1. Mobilization: Payment for mobilization will be made at the Contract 

lump sum price. Mobilization shall be performed per Section 01505 
of the project specifications. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 73 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 3 of 5 

 

2. Traffic Control: Payment for traffic control will be made at the 
Contract lump sum price. Traffic control shall be provided as 
required by the project drawings. This items includes: all materials, 
equipment, and labor for all project traffic control; staging and 
restaging of, adjustments and modifications to the plan; all traffic 
control devices including bicycle and pedestrian traffic control 
devices; engineered traffic control plan and modifications thereto; 
coordination with Veolia and City of Rialto. 

 

3. General Conditions, Construction Site Management, Best 
Management Practices (BMPs): Payment for General Conditions, 
Construction Site Management, BMPs will be made at the Contract 
lump sum price. This item includes: construction management; 
coordination with Veolia, City of Rialto, property owners, tenants, 
other contractors and all others related to performing the work and 
running the site; project administration; bonding and insurance; 
coordination with the engineer and requests for information; jobsite 
vehicles, offices, portable toilets and sanitation facilities; break 
areas; transportation; potable drinking water; water for general use 
including but not limited to dust control and cleaning; compliance 
with safety requirements including personal protective equipment 
(PPE); dust and runoff control best management practices including 
materials, equipment, and labor; jobsite housekeeping and cleanup; 
street sweeping; and as-builting of project drawings. 

 

4. Potholing: Payment for potholing will be made at the Contract 
lump sum price. This item includes: utility locating labor, equipment, 
and coordination; sawcutting; excavation of all materials by all 
methods including but not limited to high pressure air, vacuum, and 
excavator-type equipment; soil handling, storage and/or disposal; 
traffic and pedestrian trench and hole covers and temporary 
pavement patching; coordination with utility owners and 
technicians; backfill material, backfill and compaction. 

 

5. Sewer Lateral Service Connections: Payment for sewer lateral 
service connections will be made at the Contract unit price per each 
acceptable connection made. This item includes: sewer service 
lateral locating labor, equipment, and coordination; sawcutting; 
excavation of all materials by all methods including but not limited 
to high pressure air, vacuum, and excavator-type equipment; soil 
handling, storage and/or disposal; traffic and pedestrian trench and 
hole covers and temporary pavement patching; temporary capping 
of laterals; labor, materials and equipment for reconnection of 
laterals to sewer mains; coordination with utility owners and 
technicians; coordination with property owners and tenants; backfill 
material, backfill and compaction. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 74 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 4 of 5 

 

 

6. Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch: 
Payment for replacement of new sanitary sewer pipe by pipe 
bursting shall be made at the Contract unit price per lineal foot for 
the pipe in-place. This item includes: clearing, disposal, and 
replacement of trees, grass, irrigation, bushes, mailboxes and 
landscaping; sawcutting, removal and disposal of concrete and 
pavement, pavement markers and striping; replacement of concrete 
including but not limited to sidewalks, curbs, and gutters; 
preparation of manholes for installation; excavation of all materials 
encountered including handling and storage; backfill, compaction, 
and replacement of sidewalks, driveways and other surface 
materials not specifically designated in the bid; excavation in 
vicinity of adjacent utilities and in shallow areas to accommodate 
bursting; traffic and pedestrian trench and hole covers and 
temporary pavement patching; compaction testing; labor, 
equipment and materials for storage and staging of pipe; materials, 
labor, and equipment for bursting and installation of pipe (size and 
type per the Project Drawings); labor, materials, and equipment for 
excavation shoring; protection of existing utilities; pipe reaming; 
repair of manholes; dewatering; coordination with other contractors; 
videoing of new pipe. Measure pipe to the nearest foot along the 
centerline including the lengths of manholes and fittings. Measure 
lineal footage horizontally.  
 

7. Open Trench Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch: 
Payment for replacement of new sanitary sewer pipe by open 
trench shall be made at the Contract unit price per lineal foot for the 
pipe in-place. This item includes: clearing, disposal, and 
replacement of trees, grass, irrigation, bushes, mailboxes and 
landscaping; sawcutting, removal disposal, of concrete and 
pavement, pavement markers, signage and striping; replacement of 
concrete including but not limited to sidewalks, curbs, and gutters; 
preparation of manholes for installation; excavation of all materials 
encountered including handling, storage, and disposal; traffic and 
pedestrian trench and hole covers and temporary pavement 
patching; backfill, compaction, and replacement of sidewalks, 
driveways and other surface materials not specifically designated in 
the bid; bedding and pipe zone material; labor, equipment and 
materials for storage and staging of pipe; materials, labor, and 
equipment for open trench installation of pipe (size and type per the 
Project Drawings) including water; protection of existing utilities; 
material and labor for installation of tracer wire; compaction testing; 
labor, materials, and equipment for excavation shoring; dewatering; 
pipe reaming; repair of manholes; coordination with other 
contractors; videoing of new pipe. Measure pipe to the nearest foot 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 75 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 5 of 5 

 

along the centerline including the lengths of manholes and fittings. 
Measure lineal footage horizontally. 
 

8. Sewer Bypass System: Payment for the sewer bypass system will 
be made at the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: 
design, engineering, and coordination including submittals; storage, 
staging, setup, restaging and removal of materials and equipment; 
materials, equipment, and labor; protection of, maintenance of, and 
adjustments to the system; coordination with property owners, 
tenants, Veolia, and the City;  

 

9. Street Repair: Payment for street repair will be made at the 
Contract lump sum price. This item includes: preparation of 
subgrade; subbase, base and pavement material, material handling 
and storage; compaction and compaction testing; labor and 
equipment; paving; sawcutting, removal, grinding and disposal of 
pavement; repair and replacement of grade rings around manholes 
and other utility covers; replacement of striping and pavement 
markers; overlay and fog seal. 
 

END OF SECTION 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 76 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 1 

SECTION 01330 

SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Submittal procedures. 

B. Construction progress schedules. 

C. Proposed products list. 

D. Product data. 

E. Shop drawings. 

F. Samples. 

G. Design data. 

H. Test reports. 

I. Certificates. 

J. Manufacturer's instructions. 

K. Manufacturer's field reports. 

L. Erection drawings. 

II. SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 

A. Transmit each submittal with Engineer acceptance form. 

B. Number each submittal sequentially. Mark revised submittals with original 
number and sequential numeric suffix. 

C. Identify Project, Contractor, subcontractor and supplier; pertinent drawing 
and detail number, and specification section number, appropriate to 
submittal. 

D. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, 
approval, verification of products required, field dimensions, adjacent 
construction Work, and coordination of information is in accordance with 
requirements of the Work and Contract Documents. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 77 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 2 

E. Schedule submittals to expedite Project, and deliver to Engineer at 
business address.  Coordinate submission of related items. 

F. For each submittal for review, allow 15 days excluding delivery time to and 
from Contractor. 

G. Identify variations from Contract Documents and product or system 
limitations which may be detrimental to successful performance of 
completed Work. 

H. Allow space on submittals for Contractor and Engineer review stamps. 

I. When revised for resubmission, identify changes made since previous 
submission. 

J. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals as appropriate.  Instruct parties to 
promptly report inability to comply with requirements. 

K. Submittals not requested will not be recognized or processed. 

L. Submit number of submittals Contractor requires returned plus four copies 
to be retained by City/Engineer. 

III. CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

A. Submit preliminary outline Schedules within 15 days after date established 
in Notice to Proceed for coordination with Owner's requirements and work 
of separate contracts.  After review, submit detailed schedules within 15 
days modified to accommodate revisions recommended by Owner or 
Engineer. 

B. Submit revised Progress Schedules with each Application for Payment. 

C. Distribute copies of reviewed schedules to Project site file, subcontractors, 
suppliers, and other concerned parties. 

D. Instruct recipients to promptly report, in writing, problems anticipated by 
projections indicated in schedules. 

E. Submit computer generated horizontal bar chart with separate line for 
each major portion of Work or operation, identifying first work day of each 
week. 

IV. PROPOSED PRODUCTS LIST 

A. Within 15 days after date of Notice to Proceed, submit list of major 
products proposed for use, with name of manufacturer, trade name, and 
model number of each product. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 78 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 3 

B. For products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, 
trade name, model or catalog designation, and reference standards. 

V. PRODUCT DATA 

A. Product Data:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and design concept 
expressed in Contract Documents.  Provide copies and distribute in 
accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record 
documents purposes. 

B. Submit number of product data Contractor requires returned plus four 
copies to be retained by City/Engineer.  Electronic copies of this 
information can be substituted for hard copies if approved by the City in 
advance.   

C. Mark each copy to identify applicable products, models, options, and other 
data.  Supplement manufacturers' standard data to provide information 
specific to this Project. 

D. Indicate product utility and electrical characteristics, utility connection 
requirements, and location of utility outlets for service for functional 
equipment and appliances. 

E. After review distribute in accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
article above and provide copies for record documents. 

VI. SHOP DRAWINGS 

A. Shop Drawings:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and design concept 
expressed in Contract Documents.  Produce copies and distribute in 
accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record 
documents purposes. 

B. Indicate special utility and electrical characteristics, utility connection 
requirements, and location of utility outlets for service for functional 
equipment and appliances. 

C. Submit number of shop drawings Contractor requires returned plus four 
copies to be retained by City/Engineer.  Electronic copies of this 
information can be substituted for hard copies if approved by the City in 
advance.   

VII. SAMPLES 

A. Samples:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of checking 
for conformance with information given and design concept expressed in 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 79 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 4 

Contract Documents.  Produce duplicates and distribute in accordance 
with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record documents 
purposes. 

B. Samples For Selection as Specified in Product Sections: 
1. Submit to Engineer for aesthetic, color, or finish selection. 
2. Submit samples of finishes from full range of manufacturers' 

standard colors or in custom colors selected, textures, and patterns 
for Engineer selection. 

3. After review, produce duplicates and distribute in accordance with 
SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record documents 
purposes. 

C. Submit samples to illustrate functional and aesthetic characteristics of 
Products, with integral parts and attachment devices. Coordinate sample 
submittals for interfacing work. 

D. Include identification on each sample, with full Project information. 

E. Submit number of samples specified in individual specification sections. 

F. Reviewed samples which may be used in the Work are indicated in 
individual specification sections. 

G. Samples will not be used for testing purposes unless specifically stated in 
specification section. 

VIII. DESIGN DATA 

A. Submit for Engineer's knowledge as contract administrator or for Owner. 

B. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

IX. TEST REPORTS 

A. Submit for Engineer's knowledge as contract administrator or for Owner. 

B. Submit test reports for information for limited purpose of assessing 
conformance with information given and design concept expressed in 
Contract Documents. 

X. CERTIFICATES 

A. When specified in individual specification sections, submit certification by 
manufacturer, installation/application subcontractor, or Contractor to 
Engineer, in quantities specified for Product Data. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 80 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 5 

B. Indicate material or product conforms to or exceeds specified 
requirements.  Submit supporting reference data, affidavits, and 
certifications as appropriate. 

C. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or Product, 
but must be acceptable to Engineer. 

XI. MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS 

A. When specified in individual specification sections, submit printed 
instructions for delivery, storage, assembly, installation, start-up, adjusting, 
and finishing, to Engineer for delivery to Owner in quantities specified for 
Product Data. 

B. Indicate special procedures, perimeter conditions requiring special 
attention, and special environmental criteria required for application or 
installation. 

XII.  MANUFACTURER'S FIELD REPORTS 

A. Submit reports for Engineer's benefit as contract administrator or for 
Owner. 

B. Submit report in duplicate within 30 days of observation to Engineer for 
information. 

C. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

XIII. ERECTION DRAWINGS 

A. Submit drawings for Engineer's benefit as contract administrator or for 
Owner. 

B. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

C. Data indicating inappropriate or unacceptable Work may be subject to 
action by Engineer or Owner. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Not Used 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

Not Used 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 81 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MOBILIZATION 
2/11/16  01505 - 1 

 

SECTION 01505 

MOBILIZATION 

 

 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. DESCRIPTION 

A. Mobilization shall include the obtaining of all permits, licenses, bonds and 

insurance; moving onto the site of all plant and equipment; furnishing and 

erecting temporary facilities, and their removal; all as required for the 

proper performance and completion of the work. Mobilization shall include, 

but not be limited to, the following principal items: 

1. Moving on to the site of all Contractor's plant and equipment 

required for operations. 

2. Installing temporary construction power, lighting and other 

temporary facilities. 

3. Developing construction water supply. 

4. Providing and maintaining a field office for the Contractor. 

5. Providing on-site sanitary facilities and potable water facilities. 

6. Arranging for and erection of Contractor's work and storage yard. 

7. Obtaining and maintaining all required permits, insurances and 

bonds. 

8. Posting all OSHA required notices and establishment of safety 

programs. 

9. Having the Contractor's superintendent at the job site full time, at all 

times when the construction is in progress. 

10. Submitting Construction Schedule. 

11. Submitting Schedule of Values. 

12. Maintaining the site in a clean, safe and orderly condition. 

13. Demobilization and cleanup. 

14. Photographic documentation of the site and access conditions prior 

to, start of, and at the completion of construction. 

15. Maintaining contractor redline as-built markups throughout 

construction and submission upon completion of the project. 

PART 2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 

I. Standard Plans 

II. Technical Specifications 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 82 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MOBILIZATION 
2/11/16  01505 - 2 

 

PART 3 MATERIALS 

NOT USED 

 

PART 4 EXECUTION  

NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 83 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 1 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 

SECTION 02620 
HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE AND FITTINGS 

 
 
 
PART 1  GENERAL 
 
 
1.01  DESCRIPTION 
 

This section covers requirements for High Density polyethylene pipe and fittings 
for sewer use.  
 
 

1.02  REFERENCE STANDARDS 
 
The publications listed below form part of this specification to the extent 
referenced and are referred to in the text by the basic designation only. 
Reference shall be made to the latest edition of said standards unless otherwise 
called for.  
 
A. ASTM D3035 – Standard Spec for PE Pipe (DR-PR) based on Controlled 

Outside Diameter  
 

B. ASTM D3261 – Butt Heat Fusion PE Fittings for PE Pipe & Tubing 
 

C. ASTM D3350 – Standard Specification for PE Pipe & Fittings Materials  
 

D. ASTM D1238 – Melt Flow Index 
 

E. ASTM D1505 – Density of Plastics 
 

F. ASTM D2837 – Hydrostatic Design Basis 
 

G. TR-33/2005 – Generic Butt Fusion Joining Procedure for Field Joining of 
PE Pipe 

 
 

1.03  RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 
 
A. Standard Plans 
 
B. Technical Specifications 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 84 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 2 

 
1.04  SERVICE APPLICATION 
 

A. HDPE pipe will be used to transport and convey wastewater. 
 
1.05  SUBMITTALS 
 

A. DOCUMENTATION  
 
1. Documentation from the resin’s manufacturer showing results of the 

following tests for resin identification: Melt Flow Index ASTM D1238.  
 
2. Density ASTM D1505 

 

B. MANUFACTURER  
 
All HDPE pipe and fittings shall be from a single manufacturer, who is fully 
experienced, reputable and qualified in the manufacture of the HDPE pipe 
to be furnished. The pipe shall be designed, constructed and installed in 
accordance with the best practices and methods and shall comply with 
these Specifications.  
 

C. FINISHED PRODUCT EVALUATION  
 
Production staff shall check each length of pipe produced for the items 
listed below. The results of all measurements shall be recorded on 
production sheets, which become part of the manufacturer’s permanent 
records.  
 
1. Pipe in process shall be checked visually, inside and out for cosmetic 

defects (grooves, pits, hollows, etc.)  
2. Pipe outside diameter shall be measured using a suitable periphery 

tape to ensure conformance with ASTM F714 or ASTM D3035, 
whichever is applicable.  

3. Pipe wall thickness shall be measured at 12 equally spaced locations 
around the circumference at both ends of the pipe to ensure 
conformance with ASTM F714 or ASTM D3035, whichever is 
applicable.  

4. Pipe length shall be measured.  
5. Pipe marking shall be examined and checked for accuracy.  
6. Pipe ends shall be checked to ensure they are cut square and clean.  
7. Subject inside surface to a “reverse bend test” to ensure the pipe is 

free of oxidation (brittleness).  
 
 

D. STRESS REGRESSION TESTING  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 85 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 3 

 
The polyethylene pipe manufacturer shall provide certification that stress 
regression testing has been performed on the specific polyethylene resin 
being utilized in the manufacture of this product. This stress regression 
testing shall have been done in accordance with ASTM D2837 and the 
manufacturer shall provide a product supplying a minimum Hydrostatic 
Design Basis (HDB) of 1,600 psi as determined in accordance with ASTM 
D2837.  

 
E. COMPATIBILITY  
 

Contractor is responsible for compatibility between pipe materials, fittings 
and appurtenances. 

 

F. WARRANTY 
 

The pipe MANUFACTURER shall provide a warranty against 
manufacturing defects of material and workmanship for a period of ten 
years after the final acceptance of the project by the OWNER. The 
MANUFACTURER shall replace at no expense to the OWNER any 
defective pipe/fitting material including labor within the warranty period. 

 
 
PART 2  MATERIALS 
 
2.01  MATERIALS FOR PIPE SIZES 4-INCH DIAMETER AND LARGER  

A.  Sizes of the insertions to be used shall be such to renew the sewer to its 
original or greater than flow capacity. The minimum inner diameter (ID) of 
the furnished pipe shall be within a tolerance of ±1-inch of the minimum 
diameter specified in the plans. 

B. Materials used for the manufacture of polyethylene pipe and fittings shall 
be made from a PE 3408 high density polyethylene resin compound 
meeting cell classification 345434C per ASTM D3350; and meeting Type 
lll, Class C, Category 5, Grade P34 per ASTM D1238.  

C.  If rework compounds are required, only those generated in the 
Manufacturer’s own plant from resin compounds of the same class and 
type from the same raw material supplier shall be used.  

D.  Dimensions and workmanship shall be as specified by ASTM F714. HDPE 
fittings and transitions shall meet ASTM D3261. HDPE pipe shall have a 
minimum density of 0.955 grams per cubic centimeter. All HDPE pipe and 
fittings shall have a Hydrostatic Design Basis (HDB) of 1,600 psi.  

E.  HDPE pipe and accessories 4-inch diameter and larger, shall be 160 psi 

at 73.4
o
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 86 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16 02620 - 4 

F. High Density Polyethylene Pipe (HDPE) manufacturers recommend 
minimum wall thickness of SDR 17 for pipe bursting installations. 

G. Material color shall be black with grey interior lining. The black exterior is 
intended to prevent UV damage during storage, and the gray interior lining 
is to allow for more visibility during video CCTV.   

H. The pipe shall be homogenous throughout and shall be free of visible 
cracks, holes, foreign material, blisters, or other deleterious faults. 

I. The pipe Manufacturer must certify compliance with the above 
requirements.  

2.02  FITTINGS 

A. All molded fittings and fabricated fittings shall be fully pressure rated to 
match the pipe SDR pressure rating to which they are made. All fittings 
shall be molded or fabricated by the manufacturer. No Contractor 
fabricated fittings shall be used unless approved by the Engineer.  

B. The manufacturer of the HDPE pipe shall supply all HDPE fittings and 
accessories as well as any adapters and/or specials required to perform 
the work as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.  

C. All fittings shall be installed using butt-fused fittings, thermo-fused 
fittings/couplings, or flanged adapters and must be approved by the 
Engineer. No size on size wet taps shall be permitted.  

D. All transition from HDPE pipe to VCP or PVC shall be made per the 
approval of the Engineer and per the HDPE pipe manufacturer’s 
recommendations and specifications.  

E. Pipe to pipe connections shall be made with Strong Back couplings as 
manufactured by Fernco.  They shall have a stainless steel shield and 
double stainless steel bands. 

2.03 PIPE IDENTIFICATION 

A. The following shall be continuously indent printed on the pipe or spaced at 
intervals not exceeding 5-feet:  

1. Name and/or trademark of the pipe manufacturer.

2. Nominal pipe size.

3. Dimension ratio.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 87 of 495



4. The letters PE followed by the polyethylene grade in accordance with
ASTM

5. Manufacturing standard reference, e.g., ASTM F714 or D-3035, as
required.

6. A production code from which the date and place of manufacture can
be determined.

7. Color Identification, either stripped green by co-extruding longitudinal
identifiable color markings or shall be solid in color.

PART 3 EXECUTION 

3.1 INSTALLATION 

A. High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Pipe shall be installed in accordance with 
the instructions of the manufacturer, as shown on the Drawings and as 
specified herein. A factory qualified joining technician as designated by the 
pipe manufacturer shall perform all heat fusion joints. 

B. HDPE shall be installed either by the Pneumatic Pipe Bursting Method see 
Section 02776. 

C. Care shall be taken in loading, transporting and unloading to prevent damage 
to the pipe. Pipe or fitting shall not be dropped. All pipe or fitting shall be 
examined before installation, and no piece shall be installed which is found to 
be defective. Any damage to the pipe shall be repaired as directed by the 
Engineer. If any defective pipe is discovered after it has been installed, it shall 
be removed and replaced with a sound pipe in a satisfactory manner by the 
contractor, at his own expense. 

D. Under no circumstances shall the pipe or accessories be dropped into the 
trench or forced through a directional bore upon “pull-back”. 

E. Care shall be taken during transportation of the pipe such that it will not be 
cut, kinked or otherwise damaged. 

F. Ropes, fabric or rubber protected slings and straps shall be used when 
handling pipes. Chains, cables or hooks inserted into the pipe ends shall not 
be used. Two slings spread apart shall be used for lifting each length of pipe. 

G. Pipes shall be stored on level ground, preferably turf or sand, free of sharp 
objects, which could damage the pipe. Stacking of the polyethylene pipe shall 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16 02620 - 5 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 88 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 6 

be limited to a height that will not cause excessive deformation of the bottom 
layers of pipes under anticipated temperature conditions. Where necessary 
due to ground conditions, the pipe shall be stored on wooden sleepers, 
spaced suitably and of such width as not to allow deformation of the pipe at 
the point of contact with the sleeper or between supports.  
 

H. Pipe shall be stored on clean level ground to prevent undue scratching or 
gouging. The handling of the pipe shall be in such a manner that the pipe is 
not damaged by dragging it over sharp and cutting objects. The maximum 
allowable depth of cuts, scratches or gouges on the exterior of the pipe is 5 
percent of wall thickness. The interior pipe surface shall be free of cuts, 
gouges or scratches.  
 

I. Pipe shall be laid to lines and grade shown on the Drawings with bedding and 
backfill as shown on the Drawings. 
 

J. When laying is not in progress, including lunchtime, the open ends of the pipe 
shall be closed by fabricated plugs, or by other approved means. 
  

K. Sections of pipe with cuts, scratches or gouges exceeding 5 percent of the 
pipe wall thickness shall be removed completely and the ends of the pipeline 
rejoined. 
 

L. The pipe shall be joined by the method of thermal butt fusion, as outlined in 
PART 3 – Execution, Section 3.02 Joining Method. All joints shall be made in 
strict compliance with the manufacturer’s recommendations.  

 

M. The fused polyethelene pipe shall be internally reamed to remove beads 
formed during fusion. 
 

N. All HDPE pipe must be at the temperature of the surrounding soil at the time 
of backfilling and compaction.  
 

O. If a defective pipe is discovered after it has been installed, it shall be removed 
and replaced with a sound pipe in a satisfactory manner at no additional cost 
to the Owner. All pipe and fittings shall be thoroughly cleaned before 
installation, shall be kept clean until they are used in the work and when laid, 
shall conform to the lines and grades required. 
 

P. Open Trench Installation:  
 
1. The centerline of the pipe shall not deviate from a straight line drawn 

between the centers of the openings at the ends of the pipe by more than 
1/16-in per foot of length. If a piece of pipe fails to meet this requirement 
check for straightness, it shall be rejected and removed from the site. 
Laying instructions of the manufacturer shall be explicitly followed.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 89 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 7 

 
2. Good alignment shall be preserved during installation. Deflection of the 

pipe shall occur only at those places on design drawings and as approved 
by the Engineer. Fittings, in addition to those shown on the Drawings, 
shall be used only if necessary or required by the Engineer.  
 

3. Each length of the pipe shall have the assembly mark aligned with the 
pipe previously laid and held securely until enough backfill has been 
placed to hold the pipe in place. Joints shall not be “pulled” or “cramped”.  
 

4. Precautions shall be taken to prevent flotation of the pipe in the trench.  
 

5. When moveable trench bracing such as trench boxes, moveable sheeting, 
shoring or plates are used to support the sides of the trench, care shall be 
taken in placing and moving the boxes or supporting bracing to prevent 
movement of the pipe, or disturbance of the pipe bedding and the backfill. 
Trench boxes, moveable sheeting, shoring or plates shall not be allowed 
to extend below top of the pipe. As trench boxes, moveable sheeting, 
shoring or plates are moved, pipe bedding shall be placed to fill any voids 
created and the backfill shall be recompacted to provide uniform side 
support for the pipe.  
 

6. Restrained joints shall be installed where shown on the Drawings or as 
directed by the Engineer.  

 
Q. Pipe Bursting Installation:  

 
1. Refer to Section 02776 – Pneumatic Pipe Bursting in its entirety.  

 
3.02  JOINING METHOD  

A.  The pipe shall be joined with butt, heat fusion joints as outlined in ASTM 
D2657 and conform to the Generic Butt Fusion Joining Procedure for Field 
Joining of Polyethylene Pipe, Technical Report TR-33/2005, published by 
the Plastic Pipe Institute (PPI). All joints shall be made in strict compliance 
with the manufacturer’s recommendations. A factory qualified joining 
technician as designated by pipe manufacturer or experienced, trained 
technician shall perform all heat fusion joints in the presence of the 
inspector.  

 
B.  Lengths of pipe shall be assembled into suitable installation lengths by the 

butt-fusion process. All pipes so joined shall be made from the same class 
and type of raw material made by the same raw material supplier. Pipe 
shall be furnished in standard laying lengths not to exceed 50 feet and no 
shorter than 20 feet.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 90 of 495



 

S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 8 

C.  On days butt fusions are to be made, the first fusion shall be a trial fusion 
in the presence of an Inspector. The following shall apply:  

 
1. Heating plate surfaces shall be inspected for cuts and scrapes and shall 

be free of dirt and residue. Heater surfaces should be between 400
O
F 

(minimum) to 450
O
F (maximum). Measure the temperature @ 12:00, 

3:00, 6:00 and 9:00 o’clock positions using a pyrometer or infrared 
thermometer at locations where the heating plate will contact the 
pipe/fitting ends. The maximum temperature difference between any 

two points on a single heating surface must not exceed 24
O
F. If this 

temperature is exceeded, the heating plate shall be cleaned per the 
manufacturer’s recommendations.  

2. The fusion or test section shall be cut out after cooling completely for 
inspection.  

3. The test section shall be 12” or 30 times (minimum) the wall thickness 
in length and 1” or 1.5 times the wall thickness in width (minimum).  

4. The joint shall be visually inspected as to continuity of “beads” from the 
melted material, and for assurance of “cold joint” prevention (i.e. – joint 
shall have visible molded material between walls of pipe). Joint 
spacing between the walls of the two ends shall be a minimum of 1/16” 
to a maximum 3/16”.  

 
3.03 CLEANING  
 

At the conclusion of the work, thoroughly clean all of the new pipe lines to 
remove all dirt, stones, pieces of wood or other material which may have 
entered during the construction period by forcing a cleaning swab through 
all mains 4” or greater. Flushing velocities shall be a minimum of 2.5 feet 
per second. All flushing shall be coordinated with the Inspector. Debris 
cleaned from the lines shall be removed from the job site.  

 
3.04  TESTING 
 

A.  Pressure testing shall be conducted per Manufacturer’s recommendations 
and as approved by the Engineer.  

 
 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 91 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 1 of 8 

SECTION 02776 

PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. DESCRIPTION 

A. This specification shall cover the rehabilitation of existing sanitary sewers 
using the GRUNDOCRACK PIPE BURSTING SYSTEM. Pipe bursting is a 
system by which the pneumatic bursting tool fractures the existing pipe 
while simultaneously installing a new Polyethylene Pipe of the same size 
or larger size pipe where the old pipe existed, then reconnects existing 
sewer service house connections followed by television inspection of the 
Polyethylene Pipe. The installation is then completed in accordance with 
the contract documents. Only pneumatically operated equipment with 
either front or rear expanders for the proper connection to the 
Polyethylene Pipe will be allowed for use. The pneumatic tool must be 
used in conjunction with a constant tension/variable speed winch. The 
winch shall have twin cable pulling capstans with twin hydraulic drive 
motors and twin gear boxes for independent operation of 20, 10 or 5 tons. 
The size of the winch depends on the diameter of the pipe to be replaced. 

II. QUALIFICATIONS 

A. The contractor shall provide proof of training by the particular Pipe 
Bursting System Manufacturer and that such a company is a fully trained 
in the use of the pipe bursting system. 

B. Polyethylene pipe joining shall be performed by personnel trained in the 
use of butt-fusion equipment and in accordance with recommended 
methods for new pipe connections. Personnel directly involved with 
installing the new pipe shall receive training in the proper methods for 
handling and installing the polyethylene pipe. Training shall be performed 
by qualified representative. 

III. SUBMITTALS 

Submit the following Contractor’s Drawings: 

A. Shop drawings, catalog data, and manufacturer's technical data showing 
complete information on material composition, physical properties, and 
dimensions of new pipe and fittings. Include manufacturer's 
recommendations for handling, storage, and repair of pipe and fittings 
damaged. 

B. Method of construction and restoration of existing sewer service 
connections. This shall include: 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 92 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 2 of 8 

 
Detail drawings and written descriptions of the entire construction procedure to 
install pipe, bypass sewage flow and reconnection of sewer service connections. 

C. Proof of workmen training for installing pipe. 

D. Television inspection reports and videotapes made prior to pipe bursting 
and after new pipe installation. 

IV. DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Transport, handle, and store pipe and fittings as recommended by 
manufacturer. 

B. If new pipe and fittings become damaged before or during installation, 
they shall be repaired as recommended by the manufacturer or replaced 
as required by the Engineer at the Contractor's expense, before 
proceeding further. 

C. Deliver, store and handle other materials as required to prevent damage. 
D. Material shall be protected as necessary to prevent degradation or 

damage by ultraviolet (UV) radiation. Such protection shall be per the 
manufacturer or by solid, opaque, secured tarping, whichever is more 
stringent 

V. METHODS FOR NEW PIPE INSTALLATION 

The method approved for rehabilitation of existing sewer mains by pipe bursting 
and installation of new polyethylene pipe is T.T. Technologies GRUNDOCRACK 
SYSTEMS, (800-533-2078), www.tttechnologies.com or approved equal. Contact 
TT Technologies, Inc. for a list of contractors in your area. 

VI. TESTS 

Tests for compliance with this specification shall be made as specific herein and 
in accordance with the applicable ASTM Specification. A certificate with this 
specification shall be furnished, upon request, by the manufacturer for all 
material furnished under this specification. Polyethylene plastic pipe and fittings 
may be rejected to meet any requirements of this specification. 

PART 2 MATERIALS 

I. PIPE 
 
Refer to Section 02620 – HDPE Pipe in its entirety. 

II. EQUIPMENT 

The pipe bursting tool shall be designed and manufactured to force its way 
through existing pipe materials by fragmenting the pipe and compressing the old 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 93 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 3 of 8 

pipe sections into the surrounding soil as it progresses. The bursting unit shall be 
pneumatic and shall generate sufficient force to burst and compact the existing 
pipe line. See manufacturer’s specifications for what size tool should be used in 
what diameter of pipe, as well as parameters of what size tool for percentage of 
upsize allowed. 

The pipe bursting tool shall be pulled through the sewer by a winch located at the 
either upstream or downstream manhole. The bursting unit shall pull the 
polyethylene pipe with it as it moves forward. The bursting head shall incorporate 
a shield/expander to prevent collapse of the hole ahead of the PE pipe insertion. 
The pipe bursting unit shall be remotely controlled. 

The pipe bursting tool shall be pneumatic. The bursting action of the tool shall 
increase the external dimensions sufficiently, causing breakage of the pipe at the 
same time expanding the surrounding ground. This action shall not only break 
the pipe but also create a temporary void into which the bursting tool can be 
winched and enables forward progress to be made. At the same time the 
polyethylene pipe, directly attached to the sleeve on the rear of the bursting tool, 
shall also move forward.  The bursting tool shall have its own forward momentum 
while being assisted by winching. A hydraulic winch shall give the bursting tool a 
force of constant tension so that it can be moved forward. To form a complete 
operating system, the bursting tool must be matched to a constant tension 
hydraulic winching system 

III. WINCH UNIT  

A winch shall be attached to the front of the bursting tool, connecting to or 
through the advanced guide head technology. The winch shall provide a constant 
tension to the bursting tool in order that it may operate in an efficient manner. 
The winch shall have twin capstan with twin hydraulic drive motors and twin gear 
boxes for independent operation. 
 
The winch shall be hydraulically operated providing a constant tension 
throughout the operation. The winch shall be of the constant tension type but 
shall be fitted with a direct reading load gauge to measure the winching load. The 
winch must be able to be operated by a remote control if needed.  The winch 
must automatically maintain a constant tension at a set tonnage reading.  The 
constant tension winch shall supply sufficient cable in one continuous length so 
that the pull may be continuous between approved winching points.  The winch, 
cable and cable drum must be provided with safety cage and supports so that it 
may be operated safely without injury to persons or property.  The contractor 
shall provide a system of guide pulleys and bracing at the exit pit to minimize 
cable contact with the existing line between launch and exit pits. 
The supports to the trench shoring in the insertion pit shall remain completely 
separate from the winch boom support system and shall be so designed that 
neither the pipe nor the winch cable shall be in contact with them. 
The supports to the trench shoring in the insertion pit shall remain completely 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 94 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 4 of 8 

separate from the winch boom support system and shall be so designed that 
neither the pipe nor the winch cable shall be in contact with them. 
The winch shall have twin capstan with twin hydraulic drive motors and twin gear 
boxes for independent operation. In no case shall the winch cable storage spool 
be considered part of the twin capstan pulling system 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

I. SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 

All sewer service connections shall be identified and located prior to the pipe 
insertion to expedite reconnection. Upon commencement, pipe insertion shall be 
continuous and without interruption from one manhole to another, except as 
approved by the engineer and/or his representative. Upon completion of insertion 
of the new pipe, the contractor shall expedite the reconnection of services so as 
to minimize any inconvenience to the customers.  Sewer service connections 
shall be connected to the new pipe by various methods. The saddles should be 
made of a material compatible with that of the pipe. Fusion of saddle connection 
to the main is the only means of assuring complete leak free joint is obtained. 

A. Electrofusion saddles as manufactured by Central Plastics or approved 
equal, shall be installed in accordance with the manufactures 
recommended procedures. 

B. Conventional Fusion saddles as manufactured by Central Plastics and 
Performance Pipe shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommended procedures 

C. Connection of the new service lateral to the mainline shall be 
accomplished by means of a compression-fit service connection. The 
service connection shall be specifically designed for connection to the 
sewer main being installed, and shall be INSERTA TEE as manufactured 
by Inserta Tee. Hillsboro, Oregon, (503) 357-2110: or approved equal. 
Install using procedures and equipment as referenced in manufacturer's 
written installation instructions 

II. BYPASSING SEWAGE 

A. By-Pass Pumping: The Contractor, when and where required, shall 
design, furnish, install, and maintain sewage diversion or bypassing for the 
sewer replacement process. The pumps and by-pass lines shall be of 
adequate capacity and size to handle all flows. The system shall include a 
backup pump. 

B. The Contractor shall submit a written bypass plan, shop drawings and the 
pump curve for the bypass system to Veolia for review and approval. 

C. The contractor shall notify Veolia 48 hours before all bypass operations. 
D. The Contractor shall be responsible for continuity of sanitary sewer 

service to each facility connected to the section of sewer during the 
execution of the work. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 95 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 5 of 8 

E. If sewage backup occurs and enters buildings, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for clean-up, repair, property damage cost and claims. 

F. Existing sewer mains may be bypassed but sewer service laterals must 
remain in-service throughout construction. Sewer service laterals may be 
disconnected for a maximum of (8) hours. 

G. The peak sewer flows for sizing of the bypass system are in the following 
table. These flows are estimates only. The Contractor shall field verify 
flows prior to bypassing. 

Table II.E - S3 Peak Sewer Flows

From To Flow

MH No. MH No. (cfs)

219-4 219-5 2.6520

219-5 219-6 2.7335

219-6 219-7 2.7572

219-7 235-1 2.7629

235-1 235-2 2.7651

235-2 235-3 2.7651

235-3 235-4 2.9461  

III. VIDEO INSPECTION 

Video inspection of pipelines shall be performed by experienced personnel 
trained in locating breaks, obstacles and service connections by closed circuit 
color television. Video inspection shall include the following: 

A. Pre-pipe bursting video inspection by Contractor. Normal pipe bursting 
practice includes video and evaluation of the existing pipe during the 
design phase of the project or prior to commencement of pipe bursting 
operations. 

B. Submittal of post installation digital video files to Veolia Water North 
America Operating Services (Client) before final invoice. The Client will 
submit all videos to the City. 

C. Digital video files to remain property of the Client; Contractor to retain 
second copy for his use and records. All flows tributary to reach of sewer 
being inspected are to be completely by-passed around the reach during 
inspection if necessary and required by the Client. 

D. Post construction video inspection upon completion of reconstruction of 
each reach of sewer with voice description, as appropriate with stationing 
of services indicated. Data and stationing to be on video. 

E. Should any portion of the digital video inspection files be of inadequate 
quality or coverage, as determined by the Client, the Contractor will have 
the portion re-inspected and videoed at no additional expense to the 
Client. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 96 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 6 of 8 

IV. CONSTRUCTION METHOD 

A. The Contractor shall install all pulleys, rollers, bumpers, alignment control 
devices and other equipment required to protect existing manholes, and to 
protect the pipe from damage during installation.  Lubrication may be used 
as recommended by the manufacturer. Under no circumstances will the 
pipe be stressed beyond its elastic limit. Winch line is to be centered in 
pipe to be burst with adjustable boom. 

B. The installed pipe shall be allowed to cool and relax due to tensile 
stressing prior to any reconnection of service lines, sealing of the annulus 
or backfilling of the insertion pit. The duration of cooling and relaxing shall 
be per the manufacturer's recommendations, but not less than four (4) 
hours.. Sufficient excess length of new pipe, not less than four (4) inches, 
shall be installed to protrude into the manhole to provide for shrinkage, 
sealing, trimming and electrofusion coupling. Restraint of pipe ends shall 
be achieved by means of Central Plastics Electrofusion couplings (800) 
654-3872. The Electrofusion couplings shall be slipped over pipe ends 
against manhole wall and fused in place.  Installation of Electrofusion 
couplings shall be done in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommended procedures. 

C. Launch and Receiving Excavations: 
Launch pits need to be long enough to properly align the bursting tool with 
the existing pipe and to allow the HDPE pipe enough space to begin a 
graceful "S-Bend” out of the pit and transition to a “tail ditch” at the street 
above. A good rule of thumb to use for the “tail ditch” is to multiply the 
depth of the existing pipe by a factor of 4. The product is an approximate 
minimum launch pit length plus “tail ditch”.  
 
Tail Ditch Example: Existing pipe is 8' deep; 8' depth x 4 = 32' graduating 
tail ditch. 
Note: The tail ditch only needs to accommodate the outside diameter of 
new pipe.  The receiving pits,  need to be long enough to easily remove 
the bursting tool/expander combination leaving a couple of feet of the 
HDPE pipe to work with. A manhole may be used as the receiving pit at 
the discretion of the Contractor. 

 
1. Windowing Method.  Up to 12" diameter PE pipe, the Contractor 

shall use the "windowing" method where necessary, to prevent 
damage to surrounding infrastructure. This method is described in 
TT Technologies, Inc.'s "Pipe Bursting Operation Manual." Both 
entrance and exit procedures may be conducted.  Underground 
utility locating must be performed prior to determining the necessity 
and feasibility of the "windowing" method. 

2. When an exit pit is difficult due to underground utility placement or 
surrounding infrastructure, the Contractor may remove the tool 
back through the new pipe to the entrance pit. If this method is 
used, the Contractor shall use the GRUNDOCRACK PCG System. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 97 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 7 of 8 

The PCG System uses a pneumatic tool with a special head 
expander. The PCG tool also uses a remote controlled reverse 
procedure to allow reversing the GRUNDOCRACK tool for removal 
back through the newly installed HDPE. In all cases, the tool must 
have the ability to operate in reverse to prevent damage to the 
HDPE during removal. 

3. Service Connections 
Excavations for laterals should be to depth of 1 foot below the 
lateral. This will help to prevent uneven expansion of the soil by the 
bursting tool. This will minimize the potential of creating a hump in 
the new pipe at lateral connections. In some soil conditions, it will 
be important to only excavate for the lateral to the invert of the host 
pipe. This will help minimize the potential of creating sags at lateral 
connections.  These are usually lateral connections where leakage 
has been occurring for some time causing the soil to be softer than 
the rest of the pipeline. 

V. FIELD TESTING 

A. After the existing sewer is completely replaced, the new pipe shall be 
internally inspected with a television camera and recorded. The finished 
tape shall be continuous over the entire length of the sewer between two 
manholes to be free from visual defects. Digital video of the inspection 
shall be provided per Section 3.03. 

B. Defects which may affect the integrity or strength of the pipe in the opinion 
of the Engineer shall be repaired or the pipe replaced at the Contractor's 
expense. 

VI. PIPE JOINING 

A. The polyethylene pipe shall be assembled and joined at the site using the 
butt-fusion method to provide a leak proof joint. Threaded or solvent-
cement joints and connections are not permitted.  All equipment and 
procedures used shall be used in strict compliance with the manufacturer's 
recommendations. Fusing shall be accomplished by personnel certified as 
fusion technicians by a manufacturer of polyethylene pipe and/or fusing 
equipment. 

B. The butt-fused joint shall be true alignment and shall have uniform roll-
back beads resulting from the use of proper temperature and pressure. 
The joint shall be allowed adequate cooling time before removal of 
pressure. The fused joint shall be watertight and shall have tensile 
strength equal to that of the pipe. All joints shall be subject to acceptance 
by the engineer and/or his representative prior to insertion. 

C. The fused polyethelene pipe shall be internally reamed to remove beads 
formed during fusion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 98 of 495



S3 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 8 of 8 

D. Terminal sections of pipe that are joined within the insertion pit shall be 
connected with Central Plastics Electrofusion Couplings or connectors 
with tensile strength equivalent to that of the pipe being joined 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 99 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-1 

 

 

Disclaimer: 
Prior to applying any repair protective coating contractor shall verify the existing coating type. 
Repair coating shall be compatible with existing coating. Submit shop drawing of coating type for 
approvals prior to any work. 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL 

 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 

 
A. Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals as 

shown, specified, or required to rehabilitate existing manholes. 
 

B. Work primarily consists application of two part protective coating system 
consisting of epoxy primer and lining with polyurethane. Work may also 
include application of air-placed concrete "gunite" for more severely 
damaged manholes. 

 
C. Only the gunite, polyurethane and epoxy systems and methods described in 

this Section may be used to rehabilitate manholes. Contractor proposals for 
alternates, substitutions, or using systems and methods that do not appear in 
this Section are not equal and are not acceptable. 

 
1.2 SUBMITTALS 

 
A. Submit the following to the Engineer for approval - Submittals: 

 
1. Manufacturer's product data including physical properties, surface 

preparation, repair application, curing and field quality control. 
 

2. Manufacturer's qualifications including a list of references for a 
minimum of three (3) similar rehabilitation installation projects. 

 
3. Qualifications including certification stating the applicator is factory 

trained and approved by the manufacturer in application of the 
specified products. 

 
PART 2 – MATERIALS 

 
2.1 PRE-COATING 

 
A. Concrete gunite is to be used as a pre-coating for more severely damaged 

manholes as directed by the Engineer. 
 

B. Use Gunite 7101 by US Concrete products or equal. Gunite shall be 
specified for use in manhole repair applications, and applied in accordance 
with shotcrete methods per ACI 506. 

 
C. Concrete gunite shall have a 3 day compressive strength of 4,000 psi and a 

28 day compressive strength of 8,000 psi. 
 
2.2 POLYURETHANE AND EPOXY PRIMER 

 
A. Two-component, 100% solid, non-solvent, non-sag or self-leveling, 

polyurethane-base material, applicable in horizontal, vertical, and overhead 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 100 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-2 

 

 

 
 

installation. 
 

B. The top coat lining system shall have a tensile strength of 2,000 psi, a 
hardness of 55 and a tear resistance of 150 ppi, as a minimum. 

 
C. Lining shall be Sancon 100 polyurethane protective lining system, Raven 

405 or approved equal to meet the requirement specified herein. Equivalent 
system means a two part component system which uses a moisture tolerant 
100% solids epoxy base coat and a 100% solids high build polyurethane 
elastomer top coat. The resulting system provides the adhesion of epoxy and 
the flexibility of polyurethane. 

 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 

 
3.1 SURFACE PREPARATION 

 
A. Perform the preparation of the manholes in the following sequence: 

 
1. Implement sewage bypassing or plugging as necessary. Any flow 

control will be the responsibility of the contractor. 
 

2. Manhole steps shall be removed prior to rehabilitation of the 
manhole. Anchor bolts shall be  ground down to 1/2"  below the 
surface and patched flush. 

 
3. Water blast the manhole interior to remove deteriorated concrete, oil, 

grease, or existing coating. Water blast equipment shall be of a 
minimum pressure of 5,000 psi and free from cleaning solvents. 

 
4. Remove all debris prior to coating. No debris shall be allowed to enter 

the sewer system. 
 

5. Clear debris from all inlets including drop structure inlets. 
 

6. After surface preparation and prior to concrete repair, eliminate all 
active structure infiltration prior to liner application. Use gunite as a 
pre-coating to prevent infiltration. 

 
7. Air-placed concrete gunite application shall conform to Section 

303-2 of the SSPWC. Apply gunite to a thickness (minimum one-
inch thickness) which will restore the original manhole surface. 
Allow the gunite to cure for 24 hours prior to the lining application. 

 
8. Manufacturer shall field inspect manhole and provide a written 

statement that the manholes have been prepared properly and is 
ready for epoxy base coat. 

 
3.2 GUNITE PRE-COATING AND CHANNEL/BENCH RESTORATION 

 
A. In addition to gunite application for infiltration purposes above, apply gunite 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 101 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-3 

to   restore   structural   condition   of   severely   damaged   manholes   not 
designated for replacement to the satisfaction of the Engineer. 

B. Perform concrete surface preparation and abrade the concrete surface to 
remove all bond-inhibiting materials from the concrete substrate and to 
provide additional mechanical bond. Presoak the prepared concrete surface 
to provide a saturated, surface dry (SSD) condition. 

C. Apply gunite while taking proper consideration for compaction. When 
applying with multiple lifts, scratch the preliminary light before initial set. 
Apply the next lift after the preliminary lift has reached final set. If the 
succeeding lift is not to be immediately placed, keep the surface continually 
moist. Cut-off or level as required matching the original concrete elevation. 
Finish the final surface as required. 

D. Gunite shall have a minimum thickness of 1-inch, or as directed by the 
Engineer. 

E. For manholes in need of channel/bench restoration, bring back the manhole 
channel and shelf areas to their original dimensions using concrete repair 
mortar. Hand trowel shelves to provide a smooth and uniform surface. Allow 
concrete to cure for seven days prior to coating. 

F. For manholes in need of a channel bench, construct a new channel/bench 
per City Standard SS-204-0 and hand trowel shelves to provide a smooth 
and uniform surface. Allow concrete to cure for seven days prior to coating. 

3.3 PRELIMINARY INSPECTION 

A. Provide to the Engineer safe access to inspect the manholes' structural 
condition. Notify the Engineer at least two working days prior to inspection. 

B. Prior to primer coating, a manufacturer's representative shall field inspect all 
manholes and provide a written statement that the manholes have been 
properly prepared and are ready for application of the primer coat. Provide a 
written statement and submit to Engineer prior to applying primer coat. 

3.4 TWO STAGE LINING SYSTEM 

A. The lining shall be applied through equipment specifically designed and 
approved by the manufacturer of the lining material. The equipment shall 
be in good working order to ensure correct proportioning and mixing of the 
components. 

B. The lining application shall be performed only by workmen trained and 
experienced with the specified material. The contractor shall provide proof 
of such experience with the bid documents. Proof shall include a list of 
similar projects using the specified material. 

C. Prior to application of the polyurethane lining top coat, all surfaces shall 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 102 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION
07950-4

receive an epoxy primer base coat. 

1. Base coat thickness is to be 2 mils minimum.

D. Following application of base coast, apply polyurethane liner: 

1. Apply the lining to a thickness of 125 mils (1/8-inch) in one continuous
coat, without seams, free from any holes or defects immediately prior
to the epoxy primer becoming tack-free.

2. Terminate manhole lining at the flow line; DO NOT coat manhole
channels.

3. During lining application, take wet gauge thickness readings as
required to ensure correct lining thickness.

3.5 WEATHER CONDITIONS 

A. Application of the lining shall not take place when exposed to rain, or high 
winds. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure protection of the work 
from the above mentioned conditions. 

3.6 MAHOLE FRAME AND COVER REPLACEMENT AND GRADE ADJUSTMENTS 

A. For manholes requiring a new frame and cover or grade adjustments, 
remove all interfering items, including frame, cover, grade rings, etc, 
dispose of removed items, and install new components prior to application 
of lining system. 

B. Manhole frame and cover shall be Alhambra foundry A-1170 frame 
and cover conforming to either City Standard 201-0 or an approved 
equivalent after submittal of material.  

C. Concrete grade rings shall be Oldcastle, American Concrete pipe Co, or 
equal. 

D. Following installation of new manhole components, line manholes in 
accordance with Section 3.4. New manhole components do not need a 
gunite pre-coat. 

3.7 INSPECTION AND TESTING OF LINING 

A. Spark testing shall be witnessed by City inspection personnel, an authorized 
City representative or other appropriate personnel. 

B. The cured lining system shall be sparked tested for holidays with a high 
voltage holiday detector instrument. Spark testing equipment shall be Tinker 
and Rasor APW or equivalent instrument specified by the coating 
manufacturer. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 103 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-5 

 

 

 
 

C. Perform spark testing upon completion of lining installation and visual 
inspection. The voltage shall be set at a minimum of 15,000 volts. Spark 
testing voltage will be set at 100 volts per mil of coating thickness specified. 

 
D. All re-testing costs shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 
3.8 REPAIRS FOLLOWING TESTING 

 
A. The lining shall be fully cured and free from holidays, bubbles, surface 

imperfections, blisters, sags or pinholes and uniform in color. Lining shall 
be adequately adhered to the surface. 

 
B. Remove, rework and patch all areas in question to a point 1-inch minimum 

beyond the limits of the damaged area. 
 

C. All repairs shall be a minimum of 125 mils thick. 
 

D. Holidays shall be primed and recoated to an additional thickness of 30 
mils. 

 
E. Blisters, uncured lining and surface imperfections shall be completely 

removed and the areas recoated with appropriate lining material at a 
minimum thickness of 100 mils. 

 
F. Additional spark testing shall be completed after all repairs have been 

completed, reinspected and approved. All re-testing costs shall be borne 
by the Contractor. 

 
3.9 WARRANTY 

 
A. The Contractor and the manufacturer shall provide to the City a certificate of 

warranty that states: "The complete manhole rehabilitation was performed 
properly. We (the Contractor and Manufacturer) warrant all material and 
workmanship for a period of five (5) years starting from the day of final 
approval from the City. The Contractor and the manufacturer shall provide 
field response to the City's request regarding any defect in the manhole 
rehabilitation. The Contractor shall repair, at its sole expense, any areas that 
fail to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents or are defective. All 
repair work shall receive a new certificate of warranty of five (5) years with 
the same terms and conditions." 

 
END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 104 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

© ©

PROJECT
LOCATION

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 105 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121

Ontario, CA 91764

P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 106 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 107 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 108 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 109 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 110 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 111 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 112 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 113 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 114 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 115 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 4777823.9 

 

SCHEDULE R.3 
LUMP SUM SUBCONTRACT FORM 

O&M Subcontract 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 116 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 4777823.9 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBCONTRACT 
[CONSTRUCTION FORM] 

 

 
PROJECT: S3 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow 

 
 
 

LOCATED IN: 

Rialto, CA 

PROJECT NO. S3 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 12, 2016 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 117 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

 
 
 

Page 
 
 

1. BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 Prime Contract ...................................................................................................... 1 

2. THE WORK ...................................................................................................................... 1 
2.1 Standard of Care ................................................................................................... 1 
2.2 Means and Methods .............................................................................................. 2 
2.3 Subcontractor Personnel ...................................................................................... 3 
2.4 Contract Documents ............................................................................................. 3 
2.5 Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 4 
2.6 Subcontractor and Contractor ............................................................................ 4 

3. SUBCONTRACTOR .........................................................................................................4 
3.1 Permits and Fees ................................................................................................... 4 
3.2 Superintendent ...................................................................................................... 5 
3.3 Coordination of the Work .................................................................................... 5 
3.4 Field Measurements .............................................................................................. 6 
3.5 Project Meetings .................................................................................................... 6 
3.6 Materials and Equipment ..................................................................................... 6 
3.7 Storage of Materials and Equipment .................................................................. 7 
3.8 Mock-Ups ............................................................................................................... 7 
3.9 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements ....................................................... 7 
3.10 Cleaning Up ........................................................................................................... 7 
3.11 Project .................................................................................................................... 1 
3.12 Definitions .............................................................................................................. 1 
3.13 Work ....................................................................................................................... 1 
3.14 Applicable Law ...................................................................................................... 2 
3.15 Subcontracts and Purchase Orders ..................................................................... 2 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................3 
4.1 Precedence ............................................................................................................. 3 

5. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES.......................................................................... 4 
5.1 Subcontractor and Other Parties ........................................................................ 4 
5.2 Licensing ................................................................................................................ 4 
5.3 Representative ....................................................................................................... 4 
5.4 Constructability and Efficiency ........................................................................... 5 
5.5 Submittals .............................................................................................................. 5 
5.6 Layout and Protection .......................................................................................... 6 
5.7 Project Reporting .................................................................................................. 6 
5.8 Site Logistics .......................................................................................................... 6 
5.9 Risk of Loss ............................................................................................................ 7 
5.10 Safety ...................................................................................................................... 7 
5.11 Cutting and Patching ............................................................................................ 7 
5.12 Test and Inspections ............................................................................................. 7 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 118 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Page i 
(continued) 

5.13 Non-Conforming Work and Correction ............................................................. 8 
5.14 Commissioning ...................................................................................................... 9 
5.15 Punch List .............................................................................................................. 9 
5.16 Close-Out ............................................................................................................... 9 
5.17 Information and Documents ................................................................................ 9 
5.18 Excluded Approvals  ........................................................................................... 10 
5.19 Separate Contractors  ......................................................................................... 10 
5.20 Contract Price  .................................................................................................... 10 
5.21 Contract Time  .................................................................................................... 10 
5.22 Prosecution of the Work  .................................................................................... 11 
5.23 Delays Caused by Subcontractor  ...................................................................... 12 
5.24 General  ................................................................................................................ 12 
5.25 General Conditions Costs  .................................................................................. 13 

6. CHANGES IN THE WORK  ......................................................................................... 14 
6.1 Allowed Adjustments  ......................................................................................... 14 
6.2 Subcontractor Initiated Changes  ...................................................................... 15 
6.3 Pricing  ................................................................................................................. 15 
6.4 Continued Performance ..................................................................................... 16 
6.5 Allowances  .......................................................................................................... 16 
6.6 Contract Time Impacts and Extended Costs  ................................................... 16 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 119 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Page ii 
(continued) 

6.7 Surety  .................................................................................................................. 17 
6.8 Progress Payments  ............................................................................................. 17 
6.9 Payment Not Acceptance of Work .................................................................... 19 
6.10 Waiver of Claims  ................................................................................................ 20 
6.11 Regulated Substances  ........................................................................................ 20 

7. INSURANCE AND BONDS  ..........................................................................................20 
7.1 Waiver of Subrogation  ...................................................................................... 20 
7.2 Option for Subcontractor Bonds  ...................................................................... 21 
7.3 Subcontractor’s Performance  ........................................................................... 21 
7.4 Duty to Defend  .................................................................................................... 23 

8. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES  ............................................................................23 
8.1 Correction of Nonconforming Work  ................................................................ 24 

9. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION  .......................................................24 

10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE  ...................................................................25 
10.1 Notice and Informal Resolution  ........................................................................ 25 
10.2 Binding Arbitration  ........................................................................................... 26 
10.3 Pass-through to Subcontractors ........................................................................ 27 
10.4 Contractor for Cause  ......................................................................................... 27 
10.5 Termination by Subcontractor for Cause  ........................................................ 28 

(continued) 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  ..............................................................................28 
11.1 Governing Law  ................................................................................................... 28 
11.2 Notice  ................................................................................................................... 28 
11.3 Effective Date  ...................................................................................................... 28 
11.4 Survival  ............................................................................................................... 28 
11.5 Remedies  ............................................................................................................. 29 
11.6 Severability  ......................................................................................................... 29 
11.7 Commencement of Statute of Limitations  ....................................................... 29 
11.8 Waiver  ................................................................................................................. 29 
11.9 Assignment of Contract  ..................................................................................... 29 
11.10 Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure  ................................................................. 29 
11.11 Modifications  ...................................................................................................... 29 
11.12 Counterparts ....................................................................................................... 30 
11.13 Section Headings  ................................................................................................ 30 
11.14 Time is of the Essence  ........................................................................................ 30 
11.15 Legal Citations  ................................................................................................... 30 
11.16 State Licensing Requirements.  .......................................................................... 30 
11.17 Entire Agreement  ............................................................................................... 30 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 120 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Lump Sum Subcontract 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
11.18 Record Documents ................................................................................................ 8 
11.19 Acceptance Testing ............................................................................................... 9 
11.20 Early Occupancy ................................................................................................... 9 

12. CONTRACTOR ................................................................................................................ 9 
12.1 Contractor’s Representative  ............................................................................. 10 
12.2 Timeliness  ........................................................................................................... 10 

13. COMPENSATION  ......................................................................................................... 10 

14. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING  ...................................................................10 
14.1 Scheduling  ........................................................................................................... 10 
14.2 Permitted Delays  ................................................................................................ 11 

15. COST OF THE WORK  ................................................................................................. 12 
15.1 Direct Costs  ......................................................................................................... 12 
15.2 Overhead and Profit  .......................................................................................... 14 
15.3 Change Orders  ................................................................................................... 14 
15.4 Contractor Initiated Changes  ........................................................................... 15 
15.5 Submission  .......................................................................................................... 15 
15.6 Deductive Changes  ............................................................................................. 16 
15.7 Failure to Reach Agreement  ............................................................................. 16 
15.8 Omitted Work  .................................................................................................... 16 

Lump Sum Subcontract 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

16. PAYMENTS  ................................................................................................................... 17 
16.1 Final Payment  ..................................................................................................... 18 
16.2 Payments Withheld  ............................................................................................ 19 

17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  ........................................................................................20 
17.1 Indemnification  .................................................................................................. 20 
17.2 Required Insurance ............................................................................................ 20 
17.3 Builder’s Risk  ..................................................................................................... 21 

18. INDEMNIFICATION  ................................................................................................... 21 
18.1 Exceptions.  .......................................................................................................... 23 
18.2 Survival  ............................................................................................................... 23 
18.3 Warranty ............................................................................................................. 23 
18.4 Updated Information  ......................................................................................... 24 
18.5 Records  ................................................................................................................ 24 
18.6 General  ................................................................................................................ 25 
18.7 Senior Executive Meeting  .................................................................................. 25 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 121 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

Page 4 

4777823.9  

18.8 Continuation of Work  ........................................................................................ 27 

19. TERMINATION  ............................................................................................................ 27 
19.1 Termination By Contractor For Convenience  ................................................ 27 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A Definitions 

 

Exhibit B Construction Documents 
 

Exhibit C Contract Price Breakdown; Billing Rates 

Exhibit D Scope of Work 

Exhibit E Project Schedule 
Exhibit F Excluded Approvals 

Exhibit G Insurance 

Exhibit H Subcontractor General Conditions (Schedule R.6 of Prime Contract) 
Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 

Exhibit J Warranty Form 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 122 of 495



Page 1 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

LUMP SUM SUBCONTRACT 
 
This Lump Sum Subcontract (“Subcontract”) is entered into as of July 12, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) by and between: 

The contractor below (“Contractor”): 

Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. 
437 N. Riverside Ave. 
Rialto, CA 92376 

and the subcontractor below (“Subcontractor”): 

[Enter Legal Name of Subcontractor] 
[Enter Address] 
[Enter City/State/Zip] 

 
The Project (“Project”) is:  S3 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow 

 
The Contractor and Subcontractor agree as set forth below. 

 
1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 Project.  The Project is described in the Construction Documents set forth in 

Exhibit B. 
 

1.2 Prime Contract.  The Project is being designed and constructed by Contractor 
under written agreement with its client Rialto Water Services, LLC (“Concessionaire”) pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract.  The Work is provided to support Contractor’s 
obligations to Concessionaire pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract. By 
execution of this Subcontract, the Subcontractor is bound and obligated to the Contractor to the 
same extent that the Contractor is bound to the Concessionaire under the Prime Contract and 
therefore assumes all of the same obligations, liabilities, and responsibilities that the Contractor 
has assumed toward Concessionaire with respect to the Work. 

 
1.3 Definitions. Certain defined terms for this Subcontract are located in Exhibit A. 

 
2. THE WORK 

 
2.1 Work.  The Subcontractor will provide all labor, materials, equipment, and 

appurtenances necessary for proper completion of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents as defined in Article 3. The Subcontractor’s Scope of Work is set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
2.2 Standard of Care.  The Subcontractor will supervise, direct and manage the 

Work using the Subcontractor’s best skill and attention and will perform all Work in a timely, 
workman-like manner consistent with the degree of care and skill customarily exercised by 
California State licensed contractors building wastewater and water treatment facilities that are 
of a similar nature, scope, size and complexity as this Project. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 123 of 495



Page 2 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

2.3 Applicable Law. The Subcontractor will perform the Work in full compliance 
with Applicable Laws in effect at the time the Work is performed. 

 
2.4 Means and Methods.  The Subcontractor is solely responsible for all 

construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for safety precautions 
and programs in connection with the Work. The Subcontractor is entirely responsible for the 
acts and omissions of its agents or employees, subcontractors, suppliers, any of their agents or 
employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work on behalf of the Subcontractor and 
agrees that the City, Authority, Concessionaire, and Contractor are not responsible for 
Subcontractor’s acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those for whom it is responsible. 
The Subcontractor acknowledges and agrees that Contractor is not responsible for any failure of 
Subcontractor to carry out the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
2.5 Subcontracts and Purchase Orders. Those portions of the Work that 

Subcontractor does not customarily perform with its own personnel will be performed by a tier 
subcontractor under written subcontract and subject to Contractor’s approval, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld.  All subcontracts must incorporate by reference the Contract Documents 
and bind the tier subcontractor to Subcontractor to the same extent that Subcontractor is bound to 
the Contractor under this Subcontract.  All tier subcontractors used or employed by the 
Subcontractor must possess the appropriate California state licenses and certifications required 
for performance of their respective portion of the Work and carry out their Work using the same 
degree of skill and care established in Section 2.2.  Each tier subcontractor and its employees are 
obligated to carry out their portion of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  All purchase orders must be in writing. 

 
2.5.1 Subcontractor is responsible for the acts and omissions of its 

subcontractors and of persons or entities either directly or indirectly employed by its 
subcontractors.  Nothing contained in this Subcontract creates a contractual relationship between 
a tier subcontractor and any of the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City. 

 
 
 
provisions: 

2.5.2 Each agreement with a tier subcontractor must include the following 

 
 
 

10.6.1; 
2.5.2.1 overhead and profit mark-up that is consistent with Section 

 

2.5.2.2 a waiver of subrogation on the terms of Section 13.2; 
 

2.5.2.3 a requirement to make payments of builder’s risk insurance 
proceeds per Section 13.3; 

 
2.5.2.4 the provisions of Article 16 regarding books and records; 

 
2.5.2.5 a provision assigning the subcontract to Contractor if 

Subcontractor is terminated, effective upon notice from Contractor to the tier subcontractor that 
it is taking assignment of the subcontract; 

 
2.5.2.6 insurance requirements consistent with Exhibit G; 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 124 of 495



Page 3 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

2.5.2.7 an indemnification provision at least as protective of the 
Indemnified Parties as the provisions in Article 14, with the Indemnified Parties as indemnitees 
in addition to Subcontractor; and 

 
2.5.2.8 a provision that binds the tier subcontractor to the dispute 

resolution procedures set forth in Article 17. 
 

2.6 Subcontractor Personnel.  If any employee or tier-subcontractor of the 
Subcontractor fails or refuses to carry out the Work in accordance with the provisions of this 
Subcontract or appears to be incompetent or acts in a disorderly or improper manner, the 
Subcontractor will remove that person or firm immediately from the Project on demand of the 
Contractor and reassign another person or firm who is similarly qualified and reasonably 
acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
3.1 Contract Documents.  The Subcontractor’s Contract Documents include this 

Subcontract, the General Conditions (Exhibit H), all of the attachments and exhibits included in 
the list of Contract Documents listed in Section 3.1.1, the permitted Construction Documents 
(Exhibit B), and all subsequent contract modifications issued after execution of this Subcontract 
such as Change Orders.  The Contract Documents referred to in this Subcontract are incorporated 
by reference as though set forth in full. 

 
3.1.1 Exhibits. The following exhibits to this Subcontract are Contract Documents: 

 
3.1.1.1 The definitions in Exhibit A; 

 
3.1.1.2 The Construction Documents forth in Exhibit B; 

 
 
 

forth in Exhibit C; 
3.1.1.3 The Contract Price breakdown and maximum billing rates set 

 

3.1.1.4 The Scope of Work set forth in Exhibit D; 
 

3.1.1.5 The Project Schedule set forth in Exhibit E; 
 

3.1.1.6 The list of Excluded Approvals in Exhibit F; 
 

3.1.1.7 The insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit G; 
 

3.1.1.8 The General Conditions attached to Exhibit H; 
 

3.1.1.9 The statutory waiver and release forms attached to Exhibit I; 
 

3.1.1.10 The Warranty Form included in Exhibit J. 
 

3.2 Precedence.  The Contract Documents are intended to be fully cooperative and 
complementary.  Subcontractor will promptly notify Contractor in writing through a request for 
clarification or information if it notices any conflict between or among Contract Documents.  If there 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 125 of 495



Page 4 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

is a conflict between or among the various Contract Documents, the most stringent requirement or 
highest standard will govern unless the Contractor’s response to the request for clarification or 
information dictates otherwise. The general dimensions will be figured on the Construction 
Documents.  These figured dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements. 

 
3.3 Acknowledgment.  The Subcontractor acknowledges it has carefully examined 

and understands this Subcontract and the other Contract Documents; has investigated the nature, 
locality and site of the Project and the conditions and difficulties under which the Work is to be 
performed; and enters into this Subcontract on the basis of its own examination, investigation 
and evaluation of all such matters and not in reliance upon any opinions or representations of the 
Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City, or any of their respective officers, agents, 
servants, or employees. 

 
4. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES 

 
4.1 Subcontractor and Contractor. The Subcontractor’s relationship with the 

Contractor is that of an independent contractor and not as an agent, fiduciary, partner, member 
of, subsidiary of, or otherwise affiliated with the Contractor. The Subcontractor agrees to 
cooperate and collaborate with the Contractor, and to exercise the Subcontractor’s best skill and 
judgment in furthering the interests of the Contractor; to furnish efficient business administration 
and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to 
perform the Work in the most expeditious and economical manner consistent with the 
Contractor’s best interests. The Contractor agrees to timely furnish and approve all information 
required by the Contract Documents and to make timely payments to the Subcontractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2 Subcontractor and Other Parties.  The Concessionaire is an express third party 

beneficiary to this Subcontract and is therefore entitled to the performance of the obligations of 
the Subcontractor intended for the benefit of the Contractor, and to enforcement of the 
Subcontract.  Nothing contained in this Subcontract or the Prime Contract gives the 
Subcontractor or any third party any claim or right of action against the Concessionaire, 
Authority and City that does not otherwise exist without regard to this Subcontract. 

 
5. SUBCONTRACTOR 

 
5.1 Licensing.  Subcontractor warrants that it is authorized to do business in the State 

of California and is properly licensed by all necessary Governmental Agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Project for performance of the Work. 

 
5.2 Permits and Fees.  Except for the Excluded Approvals, Subcontractor will secure 

and pay for all permits and fees necessary for execution of the Work. The Subcontractor is not 
responsible for approvals, easements, assessments and fees required for the development of the 
Project. 

 
5.3 Representative. The Subcontractor will provide a qualified Project 

representative who is authorized to bind the company, receive orders, and make decisions 
regarding the Work. The Project representative may not be changed without Contractor’s written 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 126 of 495



Page 5 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  The Subcontractor’s authorized 
representative is . 

 
5.4 Superintendent. The Subcontractor will provide a qualified superintendent at the 

site to properly supervise all employees, subcontractors and their agents and employees, and 
other persons performing any Work under the Subcontract and to cause the Work to be carried 
out according to the Contract Documents. Subcontractor’s superintendent may not be changed 
without Contractor’s written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  The 
Subcontractor’s superintendent is . 

 
5.5 Constructability and Efficiency.  Throughout the Project, the Subcontractor will 

analyze the Contract Documents and make recommendations to the Contractor whenever 
opportunities exist to improve the most current Interim Project Schedule, labor efficiency, or 
Contractor’s costs and to alert the Contractor of problems in the Project design or in the work of 
Separate Contractors. 

 
5.6 Coordination of the Work.  Before starting each portion of the Work, the 

Subcontractor will (i) review and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that 
portion of the Work, as well as the information furnished by the Contractor and Separate 
Contractors’ submittals that may affect proper installation of the Work; (ii) field measure 
existing conditions related to that portion of the Work; and (iii) observe any conditions at the site 
directly affecting that portion of the Work, reporting any improper conditions and defects to the 
Contractor. The Contractor will review any improper conditions and defects of Separate 
Contractors and remedy any improperly installed work of Separate Contractors. 

 
5.7 Submittals. 

 
5.7.1 Contractor will provide Subcontractor with a submittal schedule that 

indicates when submittals will be issued and when approval is required. Subcontractor will 
submit to Contractor for review all shop drawings, product data, samples and other submittals 
required by the Contract Documents in accordance with Contractor’s submittal schedule and in 
all cases with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to avoid delays in the Work or in 
the activities of the Contractor or its Separate Contractors. Subcontractor will not submit any 
submittal that is merely a tracing or copy of any of the Construction Documents. Each submittal 
will be prepared by the Subcontractor, its tier subcontractor, or supplier and will be submitted 
according to the Contract Documents. 

 
5.7.2 Upon return of any submittal to the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor will 

make any correction required and, within five (5) business days of receipt, furnish corrected 
resubmissions to the Contractor for further review.  The Subcontractor will not perform any of 
the Work for which the Contract Documents require a submittal until the respective submittal has 
been approved by the Contractor.  Upon receipt of approval of a submittal, Subcontractor will 
file a final corrected copy with the Contractor and furnish other copies as may be needed or 
requested by the Contractor.  If Subcontractor fails to submit or resubmit Submittals in a timely 
manner as required to maintain the Project Schedule, the Subcontractor will be liable for all 
costs, expenses, and damages resulting from the delays. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 127 of 495



Page 6 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5.7.3 Subcontractor’s submission of a shop drawing to Contractor constitutes 
Subcontractor’s representation, upon which the Contractor and its consultants may rely, that 
Subcontractor has reviewed the submission for accuracy and compliance with all Construction 
Documents and other Contract Documents, and that all original engineering, if any, has been 
performed by a qualified California State-licensed professional engineer. Review of submittals 
by Contractor and its consultants will not constitute an undertaking to identify deficiencies in 
the submittal. 

 
5.8 Field Measurements.  Notwithstanding the dimensions on the Construction 

Documents, it is the responsibility of the Subcontractor to take field measurements to allow the 
proper matching and fitting of its Work with existing conditions and the work of Separate 
Contractors. 

 
5.9 Layout and Protection.  Subcontractor is responsible for its own layout. 

Subcontractor will preserve and protect all line and grade benchmarks and will not cause damage 
to other contractors’ benchmarks or lay-out points. Any additional surveying or layout caused as 
a result of Subcontractor’s failure to take the necessary precautions to protect such data will be 
performed at Subcontractor’s own cost and expense. 

 
5.10 Project Meetings.  The Subcontractor will attend all Project meetings to discuss 

jobsite procedures, progress, and scheduling, or other Project matters, and to resolve any pending 
design or construction issues. 

 
5.11 Project Reporting.  The Subcontractor will prepare and deliver to the Contractor 

with each invoice (but no less than monthly) a written progress report in a format approved by 
the Contractor that includes at least the following: (a) a brief summary of the Work performed, 
identifying tasks completed, in progress or pending; (b) an estimate of the percentage completed 
for each task; (c) explanation of significant deviations from the Construction Documents; (d) 
progress relative to the Project Schedule and any corrective actions by the Subcontractor; and (e) 
a summary of activities planned for the coming month. 

 
5.12 Materials and Equipment.  All materials and equipment required under the 

Contract Documents will be new, of good quality and free from defects. No substitutions will be 
accepted on this Project unless the specified materials or equipment have been discontinued or 
unless the Contractor has approved the substitution through written Change Order. Materials 
will be furnished in sufficient quantities and procured in time to allow uninterrupted progress of 
the Work. All materials will be properly stored and protected as directed by Contractor and any 
loss or damage due to improper storage or protection will be borne by the Subcontractor unless 
materials or equipment are stolen from Project site and the loss or damage was due to the 
Authority not providing proper security as required under the Prime Contract. 

 
5.13 Site Logistics.  The Subcontractor will schedule and coordinate delivery and 

storage of equipment and materials and the sequencing of its Work with the Contractor’s current 
site logistics plan and the most current Interim Project Schedule. 

 
5.13.1 Subcontractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of 

materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the project site or other areas 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 128 of 495



Page 7 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

identified in the current site logistics plan for such use, and shall not unreasonably encumber the 
premises with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. 

 
5.14 Storage of Materials and Equipment.  Storage of equipment and materials will 

be coordinated through the Contractor.  Subcontractor will maintain its storage area and will 
keep its storage areas clean, safe, and secure.  Any materials or equipment stored offsite will be 
insured or stored in an insured or bonded warehouse. The risk of loss will remain on the 
Subcontractor for all materials and equipment stored off-site per Section 5.15. 

 
5.15 Risk of Loss. All Work at the Project site, or in preparing or delivering materials 

or equipment to the Project site, is performed exclusively at the risk of the Subcontractor until 
the completed Work is accepted by the Contractor.  Subcontractor’s interest in the Work will be 
insured under the builder’s risk policy and, subject to the terms and conditions of that policy, 
Subcontractor may be insured for some or all of the risk of loss under this provision. Contractor 
makes no representations or warranties regarding the scope or adequacy of the builder’s risk 
coverage.  Any damage or loss to the Work will be repaired or replaced promptly by 
Subcontractor and within any extension of time granted under Article 10. 

 
5.16 Mock-Ups.  Subcontractor will provide all mock-ups as required by the Contract 

Documents. Mock-ups will be installed in a location on-site or at such other locations to be 
designated by the Contractor.  Approved mock-ups will remain as standards of acceptance of the 
Work and, where practical and approved, may be incorporated in the Work.  If not so 
incorporated, they will be demolished and removed by the Subcontractor when directed by the 
Contractor to do so. 

 
5.17 Safety. The Subcontractor will comply with the Contractor’s current safety plan 

and any other safety requirements of the Contract Documents, including the General Conditions 
(Exhibit H). 

 
5.18 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements. Subcontractor will comply with 

all prevailing wage and labor requirements set forth in the General Conditions (Exhibit H). 
 

5.19 Cutting and Patching.  Subcontractor will be responsible for all cutting and 
patching required in the prosecution of the Work.  Subcontractor will not damage or endanger a 
portion of the Work or partially or completed construction of Separate Contractors’ work by 
excavating, cutting, patching or otherwise altering the construction. The Subcontractor will 
promptly notify the Contractor before cutting, patching or modifying any construction work of 
Separate Contractors. 

 
5.20 Cleaning Up.  Subcontractor will perform its Work so as to maintain the site in a 

clean, safe, and orderly condition, as more particularly provided in the General Conditions 
(Exhibit H). 

 
5.21 Test and Inspections.  Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work 

required by the Subcontract, the Contract Documents, or by Applicable Laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations or orders of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project will be coordinated by the 
Subcontractor with the Contractor.  When portions of the Work are ready for inspection, the 
Subcontractor will make arrangements for tests, inspections and approvals with an independent 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 129 of 495



Page 8 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Contractor, or with the appropriate public authority. 
The Subcontractor will give the Contractor not less than 48 hours' notice of when and where tests 
and inspections are to be made so that the appropriate parties may be present. 

 
5.21.1 Covered Work Prior to Inspection.  If a portion of the Work is covered 

contrary to the Contractor’s request, or prior to inspection by the proper authorities, it will be 
uncovered for inspection and examination by the Contractor, Independent Engineer or other 
proper authorities and be replaced at the Subcontractor’s expense without change in the 
Subcontractor’s Contract Time or Contract Price. 

 
5.21.2 Final Inspections. The Subcontractor will coordinate the correction and 

completion of the Work with the Contractor. Following Subcontractor’s written notice that all 
Work has been corrected or completed, the Contractor will evaluate the Work to determine if it is 
ready for final inspection.  The Contractor will conduct final inspections with the Subcontractor, 
and, if required, with the Concessionaire, Independent Engineer and Authority. 

 
5.22 Non-Conforming Work and Correction.  Within 24 hours of notice, the 

Subcontractor will commence correction of Work that is rejected by the Contractor, 
Governmental Agencies or Independent Engineer for failing to conform to the requirements of 
the Contract Documents, including destroyed or damaged construction (whether completed or 
partially completed) caused by the Subcontractor’s correction or removal of the non-conforming 
Work, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, 
installed, or completed.  The Subcontractor will bear all costs associated with correction of non- 
conforming Work. 

 
5.23 Record Documents. 

 
5.23.1 The Subcontractor will prepare and maintain on a current basis an accurate 

and complete set of “Record Documents” consisting of: 
 

5.23.1.1 “Record Drawings,” which are drawings showing clearly, in a 
redlined format, all existing conditions, changes, revisions and substitutions during construction, 
including without limitation, field changes and the final location of all mechanical equipment, 
utility lines, ducts, outlets, pipes, and other significant features; 

 
5.23.1.2 “Annotated Specifications” showing clearly all changes, 

revisions and substitutions during construction.  If a specification allows the election of one of 
several brands, makes, or types of material or equipment, the annotations will show which of the 
allowable items was furnished; and 

 
5.23.1.3 Change Orders, Interim Work Directives, and submittals. 

 
5.23.2 The Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications will be updated 

regularly, no later than weekly, to reflect the as-built conditions of the Work. 
 

5.23.3 The Record Documents will be kept at the Project site. The Record 
Documents will be available for inspection by the Contractor, Authority, City, Concessionaire, 
Independent Engineer, and any Governmental Agency with jurisdiction over the Project. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 130 of 495



Page 9 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5.23.4 The Record Documents will be used to generate the final as-built 
documents as part of the Subcontractor’s close-out requirements. Subcontractor must include 
copies of the as-built plans and specifications as required by the Construction Documents in its 
deliverables to the Contractor. 

 
5.24 Commissioning.  To the extent required, the Contractor will schedule and 

oversee the Subcontractor’s final testing and start-up of utilities, operational systems, and 
equipment as part of Contractor’s commissioning of the Project. All inspections and testing will 
be conducted by the Contractor in conjunction with the Independent Engineer and other 
Governmental Agencies.  During commissioning and before Final Completion, the Contractor 
will oversee Subcontractor’s operation, adjustment and balancing of all equipment, and training 
of Contractor’s maintenance personnel in the correct operation and maintenance of equipment. 

 
5.25 Acceptance Testing. To the extent directed by the Contractor, the Subcontractor 

will assist the Contractor in conducting the acceptance test following startup of the completed 
construction of the Project.  If the Project fails to successfully complete the acceptance test, the 
Subcontractor will provide services to the Contractor as requested to determine the cause of 
failure and provide corrective actions as necessary to successfully complete the acceptance test. 
The acceptance test will be conducted by the Contractor in connection with the Independent 
Engineer and other necessary parties. 

 
5.26 Punch List.  When the Subcontractor considers its Work substantially complete it 

will notify the Contractor who, in conjunction with the Subcontractor and the engineer of record, 
will prepare a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory items and a schedule for their completion. The 
Contractor will schedule and monitor the progress of all punch list work and conduct inspections 
to determine whether the Project is ready for inspection by Governmental Agencies with 
jurisdiction over the Project to determine whether Substantial Completion has been achieved. 

 
5.26.1 Final Punch List. The Contractor will prepare a final punch list upon 

Substantial Completion. Any non-conforming Work will be corrected by the Subcontractor and its 
responsible subcontractors under Section 5.22. Subcontractor shall diligently complete its Work 
shown on the final punch list and notify Contractor when Subcontractor’s Work is ready for final 
inspection.  The Contractor will schedule and monitor the progress of all final punch list Work and 
conduct inspections to determine whether Subcontractor has achieved Final Completion. 

 
5.27 Early Occupancy. The Contractor reserves the right for Contractor, 

Concessionaire, or Authority to occupy or utilize any portion of the Work at any time before Final 
Completion, and such occupancy or use will not constitute acceptance of any part of the Work. 

 
5.28 Close-Out. After Substantial Completion but before Final Completion, the 

Subcontractor will transmit to the Contractor all required as-built drawings and specifications, 
operation and maintenance manuals, references, warranties, attic stock, keying schedule, and 
other items required by the Contract Documents. 

 
6. CONTRACTOR 

 
6.1 Information and Documents.  The Contractor will provide information 

regarding requirements for the Project, including the Construction Documents and available 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 131 of 495



Page 10 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

surveys and other information describing the Project site (including Schedule M of the Prime 
Contract) to the extent received from Concessionaire or Authority and applicable to the Work. 

 
6.2 Contractor’s Representative.  The Contractor’s designated representative is 

 Alejandro Juarez. 
 

6.3 Excluded Approvals.  The Contractor or Authority, as applicable, is responsible 
for obtaining the Excluded Approvals (Exhibit F). 

 
6.4 Timeliness.  Information or services under the Contractor’s control will be timely 

furnished to the Subcontractor by the Contractor to avoid delay in design and the orderly 
progress of the Work in accordance with the Interim Project Schedule. 

 
6.5 Separate Contractors.  The Contractor will endeavor to require its Separate 

Contractors to name the Subcontractor as an additional insured under their commercial general 
liability policies, and to waive subrogation rights against the Subcontractor under its commercial 
general liability policy and applicable property insurance. The Subcontractor likewise agrees to 
name each Separate Contractor as an additional insured under the Subcontractor’s commercial 
general liability policy, and to waive subrogation rights against the Separate Contractors under 
the commercial general liability policy. The Subcontractor will coordinate the Work with the 
work and services of Separate Contractors and will accommodate the work and services of the 
Separate Contractors to effect smooth and efficient workflow and integrated work product. 
Separate Contractors will remain responsible and liable for all safety violations arising from their 
respective work. 

 
7. COMPENSATION 

 
7.1 Contract Price. The Subcontractor’s Contract Price for providing all Work in 

strict accordance with the Contract Document is the lump sum amount of 
$TBD and constitutes full and complete compensation to Subcontractor for the Work. The 
lump sum Contract Price covers all Subcontractor’s Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, 
and Overhead and Profit, as defined in Article 9. The breakdown of the Contract Price is set 
forth in Exhibit C. The Contract Price is only subject to increases and decreases as a result of 
approved Change Orders in accordance with Article 10. 

 
8. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING 

 
8.1 Contract Time. Subcontractor must achieve Substantial Completion within the 

Contract Time, time being of the essence. 
 

8.2 Scheduling. Overall scheduling will be based on critical path or network 
precedence methodologies coordinating all major components of the Work including long lead 
item schedules and Contractor’s occupancy requirements projecting milestone dates for 
Substantial Completion and Final Completion. The Subcontractor will participate and cooperate 
with the Contractor in the development of schedules and other efforts to achieve timely 
completion of the Work as established in the Project Schedule set forth in Exhibit E. 

 
8.2.1 Monthly Project Schedules.  The Contractor will create Monthly Project 

Schedule Updates incorporating activities and schedule updates of the various contractors on the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 132 of 495



Page 11 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Project as necessary to reflect the status of construction and projected milestone dates including 
Substantial Completion. The Subcontractor will provide information in an agreed upon format, 
and as requested by the Contractor, for the scheduling of times and sequences of operations 
required for its Work in coordination with the Monthly Project Schedule Updates. 

 
8.2.2 Interim Project Schedules.  The Contractor, with the assistance of the 

Subcontractor and Separate Contractors, will also create Interim Project Schedules that will 
provide a 3-week look ahead for the performance of upcoming Project work and document all 
Project work performed during the prior 3-week period. The Subcontractor will continuously 
monitor the Monthly Project Schedule Update and Interim Project Schedule so as to understand 
and accommodate the timing, phasing, and sequencing of operations of its Work and the work of 
Separate Contractors.  The Interim Project Schedule is to be used as a working tool to evaluate 
any schedule slippages and collaborate on methods for improving labor efficiency. 

 
8.3 Prosecution of the Work. Subcontractor will commence the Work after 

execution of this Subcontract and as directed by Contractor in a written notice to proceed. 
Subcontractor will diligently prosecute and complete its Work pursuant to the most current 
Interim Project Schedule.  The Subcontractor will coordinate its Work with the work of Separate 
Contractors being performed on the Project so as not to delay, impede, obstruct, hinder or 
interfere with the commencement, progress, or completion of the whole or any part of any work 
being performed on the Project, and in accordance with the Contract Time.  Contractor will 
determine the normal working hours for the Work and overtime shall be subject to Contractor’s 
prior written approval. 

 
8.3.1 Schedule Slippage. The Subcontractor will notify the Contractor within 

three (3) business days of any delays to its Work or other slippage in the Project Schedule as a 
result of its Work and must submit a detailed recovery plan for evaluation and approval by the 
Contractor. All costs associated with the recovery will be the responsibility of the Subcontractor 
subject to Section 8.4. 

 
8.3.2 Acceleration.  The Contractor may direct the Subcontractor to work 

overtime.  If the Subcontractor is in compliance with the Project Schedule, the Subcontractor may 
submit a request for a Change Order for the actual additional wages paid, if any, per Article 10. 

 
8.4 Permitted Delays.  If the Subcontractor is delayed in the commencement, 

prosecution or completion of the Work by (i) any Uncontrollable Circumstance; (ii) Design 
Changes; (iii) Authority-Directed Changes in the Work or changes directed by the Contractor 
that were not specified, illustrated or reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents; (iv) a 
Change in Law; (v) Unknown Site Conditions; and/or (vi) unknown Environmental Conditions, 
and to the extent that the delay impacts the critical path of the Project Schedule extending the 
Substantial Completion Date, then the Subcontractor may be entitled to an extension of the 
Contract Time for the same period of time that the Substantial Completion Date was delayed 
provided that the delay was not caused, in whole or in part, by any fault, neglect, act or omission 
of the Subcontractor or those for whom it is responsible, and subject to the provisions in Article 
10.  Notwithstanding the above, the Subcontractor will not be entitled to any extension of 
Contract Time or an adjustment in Contract Price under Article 10 unless the Subcontractor (1) 
notifies the Contractor in writing of the cause or causes of the delay within three (3) business 
days of the commencement of the delay; and (2) demonstrates that it could not have anticipated 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 133 of 495



Page 12 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

or avoided the delay and has used all available means to minimize the consequences of the delay, 
including application of available schedule float. 

 
8.5 Delays Caused by Subcontractor.  If the progress of the Work or the Project is 

delayed by any fault or neglect, or act or failure to act by the Subcontractor or any of its 
employees, consultants, subcontractors or suppliers, and the delay causes any additional cost, 
expense, liability or damage to the Contractor (including legal fees and disbursements incurred 
by the Contractor, whether incurred in defending claims arising from the delay or in seeking 
reimbursement and indemnity from the Subcontractor or its surety, if any), or any damages 
(including any liquidated damage) or additional costs or expenses for which the Contractor may 
or will become liable, then the Subcontractor and its surety (if any) will compensate the 
Contractor for, and indemnify it against, all such costs, expenses, damages and liability. 

 
8.5.1 Liquidated Damages [optional].  The Contractor and Subcontractor 

acknowledge and agree that if Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the 
Contract Time, the Contractor will suffer damages that are both extremely difficult and 
impracticable to ascertain. Therefore, Contractor and Subcontractor agree that, in the event 
Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time and if as a result 
of that delay the Substantial Completion Date is extended, Subcontractor will pay to Contractor 
as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of $ per calendar day until such 
time that Substantial Completion is achieved. Payment of liquidated damages represents a 
reasonable estimate of fair compensation for the losses that reasonably may be anticipated. 
Contractor and Subcontractor acknowledge and agree that this liquidated damages provision will 
be Contractor’s only remedy for delay damages caused by Subcontractor’s failure to achieve 
Substantial Completion within its Contract Time. Nothing contained in this Section 8.5.1 will 
preclude the Contractor from recovery for actual damages caused by reasons other than the 
Subcontractor’s failure to timely achieve Substantial Completion within its Contract Time 
including, but not limited to, claims for actual losses incurred due to breach of contract, 
negligence, defective work, injury to persons or property or third party claims.  Subcontractor 
acknowledges and agrees that the liquidated damages amount is a reasonable amount for the 
Contractor’s consequential damages due to delay under the circumstances and existing at the 
time of the Effective Date of this Subcontract. 

 
9. COST OF THE WORK 

 
9.1 General.  This Article 9 addresses allowable costs when Subcontractor is 

compensated for Change Order work on a cost reimbursable basis. 
 

9.2 Direct Costs. The term “Direct Costs” means all costs from those categories of 
Subcontractor’s own labor set forth in Section 9.2.1, subcontractor costs in accordance with the 
requirements of their written subcontracts, material, equipment rentals, appurtenances, and those 
miscellaneous costs set forth in Section 9.2.2, that are necessarily incurred by the Subcontractor 
for the proper performance of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
9.2.1 Direct Labor. 

 
9.2.1.1 All labor performed by Subcontractor’s employees at hourly rates 

that do not exceed the agreed maximum billing rates shown for that classification in Exhibit C. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 134 of 495



Page 13 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

9.2.1.2 All labor performed by workers directly employed by the 
Subcontractor to perform Work on-site as documented by weekly certified payroll reports. 

 
9.2.2 Miscellaneous Costs. 

 
9.2.2.1 Sales, use, gross receipt, or similar taxes imposed by a 

Governmental Agency that are related to the Work. 
 

9.2.2.2 That portion of required Subcontractor insurance coverage and 
bond premiums that can be directly attributed to the Subcontract. 

 
9.2.2.3 Fees and assessments for permits, licenses and inspections that 

Subcontractor is required to pay under the Contract Documents. 
 

9.2.2.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents. 
 

9.2.2.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, 
process or product required by the Contract Documents. 

 
9.2.2.6 Costs of removal and disposal of debris from the site and 

recycle costs not offset by recycle fees or rebates. 
 
 
 

of the Work. 
9.2.2.7 Cost of document reproduction necessary for proper execution 

 

9.2.2.8 Expenses for Subcontractor’s personnel incurred while traveling 
in discharge of duties connected with the Work. 

 
9.2.2.9 Costs associated with safety and protection of person and 

property required under this Subcontract. 
 

9.3 General Conditions Costs.  General Conditions Costs consist of the following 
items of cost: 

 
9.3.1 Labor for Subcontractor’s project management, superintending, 

accounting, engineering, detailing, drafting, planning and scheduling, purchasing, estimating, 
review and processing of Change Orders, accounting, IT, and data processing for payroll, 
payables and receivables, whether performed at the site or off-site offices, but only for that 
portion of their time required for the Work at no more than the agreed maximum billing rates 
shown for that classification in Exhibit C; 

 
9.3.2 All costs related to on-site temporary office facilities including, but not 

limited to, temporary office furniture and equipment desk and computers (inclusive of all 
software, applications, systems, and support), devices, servers, printers, copiers, plotters, cell 
phones, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and parcel delivery 
charges, telephone service at the site, digital cameras, etc., plus any costs for transportation, 
installation, minor repairs and replacements, dismantling, and removal thereof. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 135 of 495



Page 14 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

9.4 Overhead and Profit.  The following items of cost are covered by Subcontract’s 
Overhead and Profit: 

 
9.4.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Subcontractor’s personnel 

stationed at the Subcontractor’s principal office or offices other than the site office to the extent 
not covered by Sections 9.2.1.1 or 9.3.1; 

 
9.4.2 Costs of small tools, consumables, pick-up trucks for Subcontractor personnel 

staffing the Project and other Project-related “general requirements” costs approved by Contractor; 
 

9.4.3 All costs associated with repairing or correcting damaged or non- 
conforming Work executed by the Subcontractor or its subcontractors or suppliers provided 
damage was not caused by a Separate Contractor; 

 
9.4.4 All costs and expenses associated with Subcontractor’s principal office, 

capital expenses, including interest on the Subcontractor’s capital employed for the Work; 
 

9.4.5 Costs due to the negligence or failure of the Subcontractor, its 
subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them for whose 
acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility under the Contract Documents; 

 
9.4.6 All other costs and expenses incurred in the performance of the Work 

under the Contract Documents not covered under the definition of Direct Costs or General 
Conditions Costs. 

 
10. CHANGES IN THE WORK 

 
10.1 Change Orders.  All agreed changes in the Work will only be authorized by a 

Contractor-executed Change Order and performed under the applicable conditions of the 
Contract Documents.  A Change Order signed by the Subcontractor indicates the Subcontractor’s 
agreement to changes in its Contract Price, Contract Time or other contract terms and that the 
adjustments in the Change Order fully and completely resolve any claim by Subcontractor 
regarding compensation or time arising from or related to the subject of the Change Order. 

 
10.2 Allowed Adjustments.  The Contract Price and/or Contract Time may only be 

adjusted through written Change Order under one of the following circumstances: 
 

10.2.1 Additional time or resources directed by Contractor due to an 
Uncontrollable Circumstance; 

 
10.2.2 Design Changes; 

 
10.2.3 An Authority-Directed Change in the scope of the Work or changes 

directed by the Contractor that were not specified, illustrated or reasonably inferable from the 
Contract Documents; 

 
10.2.4 Acceleration of the Work to the extent an adjustment is directed under 

Section 8.3.2 and not necessary to mitigate delays caused by the negligence or contractual breach 
by Subcontractor; 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 136 of 495



Page 15 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

10.2.5 Extra Work required due to Unknown Site Conditions or unknown 
Environmental Conditions; 

 
10.2.6 Extra Work required due to Change of Law; 

 
10.2.7 To the extent that Contractor receives proceeds from builder’s risk 

insurance attributable to damage or loss to Subcontractor’s Work, the Contract Price will be 
increased by the allocable amount of such proceeds; 

 
10.3 Contractor Initiated Changes. The Subcontractor must submit a rough order of 

magnitude of the change to the Contractor within three (3) business days of receipt of the scope 
of a proposed change order and a complete cost proposal, including any change in Contract Time 
under Section 8.4, within eight (8) business days of receipt. 

 
10.4 Subcontractor Initiated Changes. The Subcontractor must give the Contractor 

written notice of a requested Change Order within five (5) business days of discovery of the facts 
or circumstances giving rise to the proposed change order, with contractual justification and 
back-up required by Sections 8.4 and 10.6 or otherwise reasonably requested by Contractor. 

 
10.5 Submission.  All claims for additional compensation to the Subcontractor will be 

based on the billable rates set forth in Exhibit C and presented in writing to the Contractor and 
approved by the Contractor before the expense is incurred unless Contractor directs the 
Subcontractor to proceed under an Interim Work Directive. 

 
10.6 Pricing.  Methods used for determining adjustments to the Contract Price include: 

(i) mutual acceptance of a lump sum adjustment properly itemized and supported by sufficient 
substantiating data to permit evaluation of the Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, and 
Overhead and Profit, if any, as set forth in Section 10.6.1; (ii) Work performed on a time and 
material basis plus Overhead and Profit, if any, as set forth in Section 10.6.1; or (iii) unit costs 
agreed upon by Contractor and Subcontractor.  If the additional Work is performed on a time and 
material basis, the Subcontractor will keep and present an itemized accounting for the Work 
performed based on daily time tickets executed by the Contractor, material and equipment 
invoices, and other supporting data substantiating the amount of the Change Order. All time and 
material costs will be limited to Direct Costs and General Conditions Costs, and the adjustment 
to the Contract Price will be broken down by Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, Overhead 
and Profit. 

 
10.6.1 Overhead and Profit.  Adjustments to Subcontractor’s Overhead and Profit 

on additive and deductive Change Orders will be limited to those percentages set forth below. 
The Subcontractor’s Overhead and Profit will be calculated as a percentage of the subtotal of 
Direct Costs and General Conditions Costs associated with the Change Order. 

 

15% for Subcontractor on its direct subcontractors and suppliers [no more 
than 15% per Prime Contract] 

 

15% for Subcontractor on self-performed trade work [no more than 15% 
per Prime Contract] 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 137 of 495



Page 16 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5% maximum mark-up by Subcontractor’s direct subcontractors on their 
changed work 

 
10.6.2 Payment and Performance Bonds.  If Subcontractor is required to provide 

payment and performance bonds, then all Subcontractor proposals for any and all potential 
change orders will include payment and performance bond costs at a premium not to exceed    % 
of the Contractor’s Direct Costs and General Conditions costs for Work. 

 
10.7 Deductive Changes.  The amount of credit for deductive Change Orders resulting 

in a net decrease to the Contract Price will be the actual net decrease based on the decrease of the 
Direct Costs pursuant to one of the pricing methods set forth in Section 10.6 plus a decrease in 
the Overhead and Profit per Section 10.6.1. When both additions and credits covering related 
Work or substitutions are involved in a proposed change, the Change Order will be determined 
on the sum of the net increase or decrease. There will not be a decrease in General Conditions 
Costs for deductive Change Orders unless the Subcontractor’s Contract Time is reduced as a 
result of the change. 

 
10.8 Continued Performance.  No Work will be allowed to lag pending the 

adjustment through Change Order, but will be promptly executed as directed, even if a dispute arises. 
 

10.9 Failure to Reach Agreement. Provided the requested change meets one of the 
conditions in Section 10.2, if the Contractor and Subcontractor cannot agree on the value of the 
proposed change order, or if the Contractor fails to approve or disapprove of the proposed 
change within 10 business days, the Subcontractor will proceed with the Work promptly upon 
receipt of a written Interim Work Directive from the Contractor and will perform the Work on a 
time and material basis per Section 10.6.  If the Work is performed under an Interim Work 
Directive, the Subcontractor must submit all required data under Section 10.6 within 10 Days of 
completion of the Work covered by the Interim Work Directive in order to perfect its claim. 
Failure of the Subcontractor to provide the Contractor with notice of its claim and to submit the 
written claim within 10 Days of completion of the directed Work constitutes an agreement on the 
part of the Subcontractor that it will not be paid for the directed Work. No claim is allowed after 
the Work in question has been performed unless a written Change Order has been executed or 
timely written notice of claim has been made by the Subcontractor.  Subcontractor will not be 
entitled to claim or to bring suit for damages, whether for loss of Profits or otherwise, on account 
of an omission of any item or portion of Work covered by the executed Change Order. 

 
10.10 Allowances.  Any allowance items included in the Contract Price set forth in 

Exhibit C are included in the Contract Price. When the allowance item is capable of firm pricing, 
the Subcontractor will submit a request for Change Order under Section 10.4 to adjust the Contract 
Price by the difference between the firm price and the amount of the allowance item. 

 
10.11 Omitted Work. If the Subcontractor omits Work that is included in the Contract 

Documents, the Contractor will have the right to withhold from payments due or to become due 
to the Subcontractor an amount which, in the Contractor’s opinion, is equal to the value of Work 
that was omitted until the Work is performed. 

 
10.12 Contract Time Impacts and Extended Costs. The Subcontractor will not 

reserve a right to assert impact costs, extended job site costs, extended Overhead, constructive 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 138 of 495



Page 17 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

acceleration and/or actual acceleration beyond what is allowable under Article 8 and claimed in a 
proposed change order under Article 10.  No claims will be allowed for impact, extended 
Overhead costs, constructive acceleration and/or actual acceleration due to a multiplicity of 
changes and/or clarifications.  Nothing contained in this Section will be construed as restricting the 
rights and remedies of Subcontractor in violation of Civil Code section 2782.  If this provision is 
determined to conflict with Civil Code section 2782, this provision will be reformed to provide the 
greatest protection to the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority and City under Applicable Law. 

 
10.13 Surety.  All changes, additions or omissions in the Work ordered in writing by  

the Contractor are part of the Work and will be performed and furnished in strict accordance with 
all of the terms and provisions of this Subcontract and the other Contract Documents. The 
Subcontractor will keep its surety, if any, informed of all modifications to this Subcontract. 
The obligations of Subcontractor’s surety are not to be reduced, waived or adversely affected by 
the issuance of Change Orders even if the Contractor fails to inform the surety of the Change 
Order(s) and the Contractor will not be required to obtain consent of any surety to any 
Subcontract modifications. 

 
11. PAYMENTS 

 
11.1 Progress Payments. The Contractor will make monthly progress payments on all 

undisputed Work within 45 days after approval of Subcontractor’s certified application for 
payment that was properly submitted pursuant to the Contract Documents. Each application for 
payment will include a completed AIA G702 cover sheet, AIA G703 schedule of values or 
similar forms approved by Contractor, statutory conditional waivers and release of claims (see 
Exhibit I) for all amounts included in the application for payment, and all other reasonably 
requested back-up. 

 
11.1.1 Schedule of Values. The schedule of values will allocate the entire Direct 

Costs among the various portions of the Work except that the Subcontractor’s General 
Conditions Costs, Overhead and Profit will be carried on separate line items. A draft schedule of 
values must be submitted to the Contractor by the 20th day of each month in order to be included 
in the monthly billing cycle. 

 
11.1.2 Evaluation of Application for Payment. Subcontractor will submit each 

application for payment to the Contractor by the 20th day of each month for review and approval. 
The approval of an application for payment is subject to results of subsequent tests and 
inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to Final 
Completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Contractor. The Contractor is 
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the 
Subcontractor and approval will not be deemed to represent that any examination, audit, or 
arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted with the Subcontractor’s application for 
payment has been made or that Contractor has verified that the Work is in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
11.1.3 Retention. The Contractor will withhold ten percent (10%) retention on 

the entire amount of the monthly application for payment. Retention will be withheld until the 
Project achieves Final Completion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 139 of 495



Page 18 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

11.1.4 Change Orders.  Applications for payment may include requests for 
payment on account of properly authorized changes in the Work. 

 
11.1.5 Stored Materials.  Stored materials may be included in the application for 

payment provided the materials are properly stored in accordance with Section 5.14. 
 

11.1.6 Stop Payment Notices and Claims.  By submitting an application for 
payment, the Subcontractor warrants that all Work included in the application for payment has 
been performed in accordance with the Contract Documents and that title to all Work covered by 
an application for payment will pass to the Authority no later than the time of payment and to the 
best of the Subcontractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, will pass to the Authority free 
and clear of all stop payment notices, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. Subcontractor 
will provide executed statutory conditional waivers and release of claims (see Exhibit I) for all 
amounts included in the application for payment. 

 
11.1.7 Subcontractor Payment to Tier Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

Subcontractor will pay amounts due to its subcontractors, consultants and suppliers no later than 
three (3) business days after receipt of payment from Contractor. 

 
11.1.8 Contractor Payment to Tier Subcontractors and Suppliers. The Contractor 

will not have an obligation to directly pay any of Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors, consultants 
or suppliers for Work performed unless required by Applicable Law.  However, if the Contractor 
is aware that a stop payment notice has been given or has reason to believe that the 
Subcontractor is not paying its subcontractors and suppliers, the Contractor may make payment 
of sums due to Subcontractor through joint check or pay those subcontractors and suppliers 
directly and withhold those payments from Subcontractor. 

 
11.2 Final Payment.  Upon Substantial Completion, the Subcontractor will submit a 

final payment application.  If items remain to be completed at that time, then the Subcontractor 
in conjunction with the Contractor will create a punch list pursuant to Section 5.26. The 
Contractor will continue to withhold the ten percent (10%) retention until Final Completion of 
the Project, including completion of all punch list items. Upon Final Completion of the Project, 
final payment of the retention, if unencumbered, will be paid to the Subcontractor within three 
(3) business days following Contractor’s receipt of final payment. 

 
11.2.1 Contract Price Reduction. Upon Final Completion of the Project, the 

Contractor may reduce the Contract Price to reflect costs charged to the Subcontractor, back- 
charges, or payments withheld pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

 
11.2.2 Evidence.  Before issuance of final payment, Contractor may request 

satisfactory evidence that (i) all payrolls, materials bills and other indebtedness connected with the 
Work have been paid or otherwise satisfied; (ii) insurance required by the Contract Documents 
will remain in force after final payment and will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 
30 Days prior written notice has been given to the Contractor; (iii) the Subcontractor knows of no 
substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the 
Contract Documents; (iv) the surety, if any, has consented to final payment; (v) Project 
commissioning has occurred and the Contractor has received all close-out documents required 
under Section 5.28 and as required by the Contract Documents; and (vi) other data establishing 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 140 of 495



Page 19 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as statutory unconditional releases and waivers of 
claims (see Exhibit I), security interests or encumbrances arising out of this Subcontract have been 
received.  If any of Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors refuse to furnish a release or waiver 
required by the Contractor, the Subcontractor will furnish a bond to indemnify the Contractor 
against stop payment notices under Section 11.2.3, provided that the tier subcontractor’s work is 
Work for which the Subcontractor has been paid by the Contractor. 

 
11.2.3 Stop Payment Notice.  If any claim or stop payment notice is made or filed 

against the City, Authority, Concessionaire, Contractor, Contractor’s payment bond, or the Project 
funds by any person claiming that the Subcontractor or any of its subcontractors or suppliers has 
failed to make payment for any labor, services, materials, equipment, taxes or other items or 
obligations furnished or incurred for or in connection with the Work, or if at any time there is 
evidence of nonpayment or of any claim or stop payment notice for which, if established, the 
Contractor or its payment bond might become liable and that is chargeable to the Subcontractor, the 
Contractor may, in its discretion, allow the Subcontractor to file a bond in an amount equal to 125% 
of the claim stated in the stop payment notice pursuant to Applicable Law and the Contractor will 
release the funds to the Subcontractor.  If the Contractor does not permit the Subcontractor to post a 
bond, the Contractor will have the right to retain from any payment then due or thereafter to 
become due an amount that it deems sufficient to (1) satisfy, discharge and/or defend against any 
claim or stop payment notice action that may be brought or judgment, which may be recovered; (2) 
make good any nonpayment, damage, failure or default; or (3) compensate the Contractor for the 
claim. The Subcontractor will indemnify and hold each Indemnified Party harmless against any 
and all losses, liability, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements, which 
may be sustained or incurred by any or all of them in connection with the Subcontractor’s failure to 
timely and properly make payments to its subcontractors and suppliers.  The Contractor will have 
the right to withhold from Subcontractor a reasonable amount for the foregoing purposes.  If the 
amount is insufficient to cover the amount of the claim, the Subcontractor will be liable for the 
difference and will make payment to the Contractor upon 30 Days written notice. 

 
11.3 Payment Not Acceptance of Work. Approval of an application for payment 

(final or otherwise) or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Contractor, 
Concessionaire, or Authority will not be used as conclusive evidence that the Work was properly 
performed or constitute acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
11.4 Payments Withheld. In addition to the Subcontractor’s retention under Section 

11.1.3, the Contractor may withhold payments due to the Subcontractor as may be necessary to 
cover (i) claims to the extent described in Section 11.2.3; (ii) defective Work not remedied; (iii) 
failure of Subcontractor to make proper payments to its subcontractors, consultants or suppliers; 
(iv) completion of the Subcontract if there exists a reasonable doubt that the Work can be 
completed for the balance then unpaid; (v) damage to a Separate Contractor or third party caused 
by Subcontractor; (vi) amounts that may be due to the Contractor for claims against Subcontractor; 
(vii) failure to provide Contractor with timely updates under Section 8.2.1 and 8.2.2; (viii) clean- 
up of Subcontractor’s work area; (ix) failure of the Subcontractor to comply with requirements of 
the Contract Documents; (x) disputed amounts in the application for payment; and (xi) fines or 
penalties assessed against the Contractor as a result of the acts or omissions of Subcontractor or 
those for whom it is responsible. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 141 of 495



Page 20 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

11.5 Waiver of Claims.  Acceptance of final payment by the Subcontractor will 
constitute a waiver of claims by Subcontractor and its subcontractors and suppliers except for 
those previously made in writing and identified by the Subcontractor as unsettled at the time of 
final application for payment. 

 
12. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 

 
12.1 Regulated Substances.  If Regulated Substances or materials (of a type legally 

requiring employer to notify its employees) are being used or stored on the Project site by the 
Subcontractor, its subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed or retained by them, 
the Subcontractor will immediately provide written notice of the chemical composition to the 
Contractor in sufficient time to permit compliance with the law by the Contractor and Separate 
Contractors at the Project site.  If the Subcontractor encounters a material reasonably believed to 
be a Regulated Substance on site, the Subcontractor will immediately stop Work in the affected 
area and report the condition to the Contractor in writing. Work will resume in the affected area 
once the Regulated Substance is rendered harmless or removed, as determined by a licensed 
laboratory retained by the Contractor. 

 
12.2 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Subcontractor agrees to 

indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all loss, 
injury, claims, actions, proceedings, liability, damages, fines, penalties, cost and expenses, 
including legal fees and disbursements: (i) caused by the negligent mishandling by 
Subcontractor or its subcontractors and suppliers of any Regulated Substances to the extent the 
materials or substances were brought onto the Project site by the Subcontractor, its tier 
subcontractors or material suppliers; (ii) to the extent that Subcontractor was aware of an 
Environmental Condition and expressly accepted remediation as part of its Work under this 
Subcontract and then negligently performs such remediation services; or (iii) to the extent that 
the Subcontractor, or any of its employees, subcontractors or suppliers, exacerbates a pre- 
existing Environmental Condition, or renders the pre-existing Environmental Condition more 
difficult or more expensive to investigate or remediate after obtaining actual knowledge as to the 
nature, location and extent of the pre-existing Environmental Condition; or (iv) to the extent that 
the Subcontractor or any of its subcontractors takes action to disturb the pre-existing 
Environmental Condition after discovery of such condition, and in taking such action fails to 
exercise reasonable care consistent with Prudent Industry Practices and in accordance with 
Applicable Law.  Defense obligations are set forth in Section 14.3. 

 
13. INSURANCE AND BONDS 

 
13.1 Required Insurance.  The Subcontractor agrees that it will maintain insurance, 

and will cause its subcontractors and consultants to maintain such insurance, and abide by the 
Contractor’s insurance requirements, as specified in Exhibit G and Schedule R.9 of the Prime 
Contract. This Section 13.1 will survive the completion or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 
13.2 Waiver of Subrogation. Subcontractor waives all rights against Contractor, City, 

Authority, Concessionaire, and Separate Contractors and its own subcontractors for loss or 
damage to the extent reimbursed by any property or equipment insurance applicable to the Work, 
except such rights as Subcontractor may have to the proceeds of the insurance.  If any applicable 
policies of insurance referred to in this Section require an endorsement or consent of the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 142 of 495



Page 21 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

insurance company to provide for continued coverage where there is a waiver of subrogation, the 
owners of those policies will cause them to be endorsed or obtain consent. 

 
13.3 Builder’s Risk.  The Concessionaire will be providing commercially reasonable 

builder’s risk insurance for the Project on a replacement cost basis. This insurance will cover the 
interests of City, Authority, Contractor, Subcontractor and tier subcontractors in the Project.  If 
there is a covered loss affecting the Work, Contractor will pay Subcontractor its just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by Contractor, and Subcontractor by appropriate written agreements 
will require its tier subcontractors to make payments to their subcontractors in similar manner. 

 
13.4 Option for Subcontractor Bonds.  If Contractor notifies Subcontractor in 

writing any time prior to the notice to proceed with the Work that Contractor will require 
Subcontractor to provide payment and performance bonds, then Subcontractor will furnish a 
payment and a performance bond to the Contractor, each in the amount requested by Contractor, 
within 10 business days of Contractor’s notice.  The Contract Price will be adjusted by Change 
Order for the amount of the bond premium based on the percentage shown in Section 10.6.2. 
The surety supplying the bonds must be an admitted surety insurer, as defined in Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 995.120, authorized to do business as a surety in the State of California, and 
be listed in the current list of “Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable 
Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies” as published in Circular 
570 (amended) by the Audit Staff, Bureau of Government Financial Operations, U.S. Treasury 
Department except that the surety must have no less than a A-IX rating by A.M. Best.  All bonds 
shall be in the form acceptable to Contractor. All bonds signed by an agent must be 
accompanied by a certified copy of such agent’s authority to act.  Failure to furnish the required 
payment and performance bonds to the Contractor within the 10 business day time period 
constitutes a default under this Subcontract and the Contractor will have all of the rights and 
remedies provided under this Subcontract and afforded by law. 

 
13.4.1 Payment of Subcontractors. Without limiting the responsibilities of 

Subcontractor and its surety (if any) under the terms of this Subcontract, Subcontractor and its 
surety (if any) agree to promptly pay all lawful claims of the Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors, 
materialmen, laborers, persons, firms or corporations for labor or services performed or materials, 
supplies, machinery equipment, rentals, fuels, oils, tools, appliances, insurance and other items 
furnished, used, or consumed in connection with the prosecution of the Work including Change 
Orders, and will indemnify and save harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against all 
liability, loss, damage and expense, including interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, which the 
Indemnified Party may sustain by reason of Subcontractor’s or its surety’s failure to do so. 

 
14. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
14.1 Subcontractor’s Performance. To the fullest extent permitted by law and public 

policy of the State of California, but subject to Section 14.2, Subcontractor will indemnify, 
protect, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties and each of them, from and against 
any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, expenses, actual attorneys’ fees, 
losses or liabilities, in law or equity, of every kind and nature whatsoever arising out of or in any 
way relating to (i) this Subcontract; (ii) actual or alleged acts or omissions by Subcontractor or 
any of its tier subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, employees, or persons for whom it is 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 143 of 495



Page 22 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

responsible, regardless of whether the acts or omissions are negligent; or (iii) the Work, 
including, but not limited to claims for: 

 
14.1.1 Personal injury, including bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death to 

any persons, employees or agents of Subcontractor, any Indemnified Party, or any Separate 
Contractor, and/or damage to property of anyone (including loss of use) other than to the Work, 
caused or alleged to be caused in whole, or in part, by any actual or allegedly negligent act or 
omission of Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Subcontractor or anyone 
for whose acts Subcontractor may be liable regardless of whether the personal injury or property 
damage is caused in part by an Indemnified Party. 

 
14.1.2 Penalties, fees and costs imposed on account of the violation of any 

Applicable Law, including CalOSHA violations, orders, citations, rules, regulations, standards, 
ordinances or statutes, caused by the act or omission of the Subcontractor or those for whom it 
is liable. 

 
14.1.3 Failure to obtain necessary licenses for performance of the Work and 

infringement of any Intellectual Property rights (including copyright or patent) that are brought 
against Contractor, City, Authority or Concessionaire arising out of the Work. 

 
14.1.4 Project claims or stop payment notices for labor performed or materials 

used or furnished to be used for the Work, including all incidental or consequential damages 
resulting to an Indemnified Party from stop payment notices provided Subcontractor received 
payment for the Work at issue. 

 
14.1.5 Any vicarious liability, whether real or alleged, of Indemnified Parties, 

arising or alleged to arise from any negligent acts, errors or omissions of Subcontractor or any of 
its tier subcontractors or consultants. 

 
14.1.6 Failure of Subcontractor to comply with the insurance provisions set forth 

in Article 13 and Schedule R.9 of the Prime Contract. 
 

14.1.7 Claims by third parties, including Separate Contractors, alleging or 
arising, in whole or in part, out of actual or alleged acts or omissions by Subcontractor, any of its 
subcontractors or suppliers (regardless of tier), and/or any of its or their respective directors, 
officers, employees, agents, partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, successors and assigns 
(including without limitation, claims regarding alleged or actual delays, failure to cooperate or 
coordinate, damage to work performed by others, interferences, disruption, etc.). 

 
14.1.8 Any violation or infraction by Subcontractor of any Applicable Law, 

order, citation, rule, regulation, standard, ordinance or statute in any way relating to the 
occupational health or safety of employees including, but not limited to, the use of Contractor’s 
or others’ equipment, hoists, elevators, or scaffolds. 

 
14.1.9 Indemnification for Regulated Substances and Environmental Conditions 

pursuant to Section 12.2. 
 
The specific listing in Subsections 14.1.1 through 14.1.9 will not in any way limit 
Subcontractor’s agreement to indemnify any Indemnified Party for all acts and omissions of the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 144 of 495



Page 23 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Subcontractor and anyone for whom Subcontractor is responsible in the performance of the 
Work and other obligations under this Subcontract including the amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for Subcontractor under the Workers’ Compensation 
Acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. The obligation to defend and 
indemnify will apply even if Subcontractor is not actively involved in the events that give rise to 
the claims for which a defense or indemnity is sought. 

 
14.2 Exceptions.  The defense and indemnification provisions in this Article 14 will 

extend to claims occurring after this Subcontract is terminated as well as while it is in force. 
Such provisions apply regardless of any passive negligence of any Indemnified Party. 
Subcontractor, however, will not be obligated under this Subcontract to indemnify an 
Indemnified Party for claims arising from that Indemnified Party’s sole or active negligence or 
willful misconduct.  Subcontractor will not be required to provide a defense or to indemnify 
Contractor to the extent of Contractor’s own active negligence, provided that Subcontractor will 
continue to indemnify Contractor and provide a defense to the extent and in proportion to the 
degree that the Contractor is not actively negligent.  Nothing herein will be construed to impose 
any obligation in conflict with the provisions of Civil Code section 2782, 2782.05, and/or 
Insurance Code section 11580.04.  In the event of a conflict, the provision conflicting with Civil 
Code section 2782, 2782.05, and/or Insurance Code section 11580.04 will be reformed to 
provide the greatest protection to the Indemnified Parties allowed under the law. 

 
14.3 Duty to Defend.  The Subcontractor will: 

 
14.3.1 At Subcontractor’s own cost, expense and risk, defend all claims as required 

in Section 14.1 that may be brought or instituted by third persons including, but not limited to, 
Governmental Agencies or employees of Subcontractor, against the Indemnified Parties; 

 
14.3.2 Pay and satisfy any judgment or decree that may be rendered against the 

Indemnified Parties arising out of a claim covered by Section 14.1; and/or 
 

14.3.3 Reimburse the Indemnified Parties for any and all legal expense incurred 
by any of them in connection with the claim or in enforcing the indemnity granted in this section. 

 
The duty to defend will apply, and Subcontractor will be required to furnish a defense, 
notwithstanding that there has not yet been an adjudication or finding of liability on the part of 
the Subcontractor or any Indemnified Party, or as to whether an exception to provide a defense 
or indemnity may apply. 

 
14.4 Survival. This Article 14 will survive Final Completion of the Project or 

termination of this Subcontract. 
 
15. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES 

 
15.1 Warranty. Subcontractor expressly warrants that all Work will be of appropriate 

quality, free from defects, and conforming to the Contract Documents and Applicable Laws. 
Subcontractor’s warranty excludes damage due to improper or insufficient maintenance, 
improper operation, or normal wear and tear under normal usage. Subcontractor will procure all 
tier subcontractor and manufacturer express warranties required under the Contract Documents 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 145 of 495



Page 24 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

on Contractor’s behalf and will transmit the warranties to the Contractor as part of its close-out 
documentation. This provision will survive Final Completion of the Project or termination of 
this Subcontract. 

 
15.2 Correction of Nonconforming Work. For a period of one (1) year commencing 

from Substantial Completion or the date of repair, whichever is later, and for longer periods 
specified in the Contract Documents for certain equipment manufacturers or suppliers, the 
Subcontractor will provide all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to promptly repair or 
replace any and all deficient, defective or non-conforming Work, provided that the Work was 
properly maintained and used, together with any other Work that is damaged during repair or 
replacement, without expense to the Contractor (including any additional re-inspection fees).  If 
the Contractor’s operations or use are impaired by the defective or deficient Work or its 
correction, the Subcontractor shall use such overtime labor and timesaving procedures as the 
Contractor may require at the Subcontractor’s expense. Establishment of the one (1) year period 
for correction of Work relates only to the Subcontractor’s express warranty on workmanship and 
specific obligation to correct defective or non-conforming Work, and has no relationship to 
statute of limitations periods for legal claims arising from this Subcontract. 

 
15.2.1 The Subcontractor shall provide on-site troubleshooting services within 

five (5) days after receipt of notice in writing from Contractor of a problem with the Work. 
Contractor is hereby authorized to repair any defective or non-conforming Work, and the 
Subcontractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for the cost thereof, if 10 days after giving of 
such notice to the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor has failed to make or undertake the repairs 
with due diligence.  In case of emergency, where, in the opinion of Contractor, delay could cause 
serious loss or damage, repairs may be made without notice being sent to the Subcontractor, and 
the expense in connection therewith shall be charged to the Contractor, and its surety (if any) 
shall be liable for the cost thereof. 

 
15.2.2 Also, as part of the close-out documentation for Substantial Completion, 

the Subcontractor shall execute and submit a completed “Warranty Form” in the format included 
in Exhibit J, for the Work, and any portion of the Work possessed. The Warranty Form shall be 
submitted prior to Substantial Completion or within five (5) days of the occupancy or use of a 
portion of the Project, whichever is applicable. 

 
15.2.3 Prior to the expiration of the work correction period, Contractor reserves 

the right to hold a meeting and require the attendance of the Subcontractor. The purpose of the 
meeting is to review warranties, bonds, and maintenance requirements, and determine required 
repair or replacement of defective items. 

 
15.3 Updated Information. The Subcontractor shall direct all of its equipment 

suppliers and/or manufacturers to promptly provide to it and to Contractor any and all 
information concerning product defects or other problems and shall promptly forward to 
Contractor any such information received, whether before, during, or after the warranty period. 

 
16. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION 

 
16.1 Records.  The Subcontractor will keep full and detailed accounts and exercise 

controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Subcontract.  The 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 146 of 495



Page 25 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Contractor and Concessionaire will have the right during normal business hours to audit and 
copy the Subcontractor’s documents related to this Project including, but not limited to, records, 
books, estimates, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts and invoices for materials, 
supplies and equipment, temporary facilities, etc., contracts, purchase orders, vouchers, 
memorandums, Change Orders and all substantiating documentation, certified payroll, and bid 
documents in order to evaluate accuracy and completeness of Subcontractor’s billing. Should 
the audit disclose a material discrepancy from the payment applications or requirements of the 
Contract Documents, then in addition to repaying Contractor all sums due and owing, 
Subcontractor will pay __% annual interest computed monthly from the date of the overpayment. 
Subcontractor agrees to remit payment of all monies due and owing no later than 30 Days after 
receipt of notice or, at Contractor election, Contractor may deduct the sums against any monies 
due to Subcontractor.  The Subcontractor will preserve all Project records for a period of at least 
10 years after final payment or termination, or for such longer period as may be required by law. 
The Subcontractor will incorporate Article 16 auditing provisions into all its subcontracts for the 
Project and require its subcontractors to keep detailed and accurate accounting records for their 
portion of the Work for a period of at least 10 years. 

 
17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE 

 
17.1 General.  “Disputes” are disputes, claims, or other matters in question between 

the Subcontractor and the Contractor arising out of or connected to this Project, including breach 
of contract.  All Disputes will be resolved as provided in this Article 17, which article will 
survive Final Completion of the Project or termination of this Subcontract. 

 
17.2 Notice and Informal Resolution. Either party may initiate the dispute resolution 

procedures stated in this Article by providing the other party with written notice of a potential 
Dispute which specifies in reasonable detail the basis of the Dispute and the remedy sought. The 
Subcontractor must give notice of a potential Dispute to the Contractor within 14 Days following 
the occurrence of the event or condition or circumstance giving rise to the potential Dispute or 
else all claims related to the Dispute are waived.  Under no circumstances will a claim be made if 
it is barred by applicable statutes of limitation or repose. The authorized representatives of the 
parties will meet within seven (7) Days of receipt of a notice of potential Dispute and make good 
faith efforts to resolve it. 

 
17.3 Senior Executive Meeting.  If the authorized representatives of the parties are 

unable to resolve the Dispute, either party may request a meeting of senior executives of each party 
for the purpose of resolving the Dispute. Each party’s senior executive will review the Dispute in 
detail and then meet face-to-face to discuss and use good faith efforts to resolve the matter (“Senior 
Executive Meeting”). The Senior Executive Meeting will occur no later than 14 Days after the 
request made by a party for the meeting, unless the parties agree upon a longer period of time. 
The parties will promptly designate a senior executive for purposes of this section. Any party may, 
if necessary, designate by notice a different senior executive at any time during the course of the 
Project.  The Senior Executive Meeting will be for the express purposes of (a) exchanging and 
reviewing all pertinent non-privileged documents and information relating to the matters and issues 
in the Dispute; (b) freely and candidly discussing each party’s position; and (c) reaching agreement 
upon a reasonable, compromise resolution of the Dispute.  If a negotiated settlement is reached, the 
terms of the settlement will be recorded in a written Change Order (prior to Final Completion) or a 
written settlement agreement (after Final Completion) signed by the parties. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 147 of 495



Page 26 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

17.4 Binding Arbitration.  If the senior executives cannot resolve the Dispute as set 
forth above, the matter must be resolved through arbitration in accordance with the following 
arbitration procedures: 

 
17.4.1 Joinder.  The Prime Contract requires binding arbitration of disputes arising 

under it that are not informally resolved.  Each of Contractor and Subcontractor consent to the 
joinder of any other parties, including Concessionaire, Authority or City, to the arbitration if the 
Disputes under this Subcontract and claims of other parties arise from the same, substantially the 
same, or interrelated facts, issues or incidents, or where separate arbitration of disputes creates 
risk of inconsistent awards or results.  The Subcontractor has no right to join in proceedings 
between the Contractor and the Concessionaire unless the Contractor consents to the joinder. 

 
17.4.2 Location. The arbitration shall take place at Los Angeles, California, or at 

such other location as the Contractor and Subcontractor may agree, unless the Dispute is being 
arbitrated as a part of a larger arbitration under the Prime Contract, in which case the arbitration 
of the Dispute will be at the location of the arbitration proceeding under the Prime Contract. 
The arbitration of the Dispute will be in accordance with the terms of this Section 17.4 and the 
Arbitration Rules. 

 
17.4.3 Arbitration Notice. Upon the occurrence of a Dispute, and failure of the 

parties to resolve the dispute through the informal processes described above, either party may 
initiate the arbitration process by giving written notice to the other parties (“Arbitration Notice”) 
or as set forth in the Arbitration Rules. 

 
17.4.4 Appointment of Arbitrator. Within 30 days of the Arbitration Notice, the 

Contractor and Subcontractor will agree upon the appointment of a single mutually approved 
arbitrator.  The arbitrator shall be a retired judge from the California Superior Court or a retired 
judge or magistrate judge from the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
California. Such retired judge may be, but is not required to be, affiliated with a private dispute 
resolution service such as the American Arbitration Association or JAMS. No party to the 
proceeding may propose a retired judge who previously served in a judicial post in San Bernardino 
County, California.  If the Contractor and Subcontractor are the only parties to the arbitration and 
are unable to agree upon a single arbitrator within the 30-day period, then the Contractor and 
Subcontractor will each designate an arbitrator, and the arbitrators so designated by the Contractor 
and Subcontractor will, within 15 additional days, agree upon a third independent arbitrator.  If the 
Dispute is being resolved under joinder to an arbitration under the Prime Contract, then the 
arbitrator(s) will be the arbitrator(s) selected pursuant to the Prime Contract. The parties shall 
mutually cooperate to retain the arbitrator(s) upon terms and conditions mutually satisfactory to the 
parties as soon as practicable after selection of the arbitrator(s). 

 
17.4.5 Fees.  The fees of the arbitrator(s) will be split equally among the parties 

unless the arbitrator(s) award(s) fees to the prevailing party as set forth in Section 17.4.7. 
 

17.4.6 Discovery.  For a period of 90 days following the appointment of the 
arbitrator(s) (or such longer period as the parties may mutually agree or the arbitrator(s) may 
direct), the parties to the arbitration will have the right to engage in discovery relevant to the 
matters in dispute pursuant to the discovery rules of the California Code of Civil Procedure. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 148 of 495



Page 27 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

17.4.7 Arbitration Rules.  The arbitrator(s) will decide disputes pursuant to the 
Arbitration Rules in force at the time of the arbitration. The arbitrator(s) will be required to 
make a final determination, not subject to appeal, within 120 days from the designation of the 
arbitrator(s), and the parties to the arbitration will be bound by the terms of the final 
determination.  The determination by the arbitrator(s) will be made in writing and will contain 
written findings of fact, and may be specifically enforced by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
The arbitrator(s) will determine a fair and equitable allocation of the reasonable expenses of the 
parties involved in the arbitration that are incurred in connection with the resolution of any 
dispute hereunder.  Each party to the arbitration will bear its own attorney’s fees, unless the 
arbitrator(s) determines that the nature of the action or defense of the losing party was frivolous, 
in which event the arbitrator will determine a fair and equitable attorney’s fee to be paid by the 
losing party or parties to the prevailing party or parties. 

 
17.4.8 Independence.  The arbitrator(s) will retain independence of all parties to 

the arbitration, and no party shall engage or attempt to engage the services of the arbitrator(s) for 
any other purpose without prior written notice to the other parties. 

 
17.5 Continuation of Work. Subcontractor must diligently continue to prosecute its 

Work, including Work that is disputed between Contractor and Subcontractor, and Contractor must 
continue to make all undisputed payments to Subcontractor, regardless of the existence of a Dispute 
or the pendency of dispute resolution proceedings between Subcontractor and Contractor. 

 
17.6 Pass-through to Subcontractors.  The Subcontractor will cause the provisions of 

this Article 17 to be incorporated in the subcontracts with subcontractors of any tier. 
 
18. TERMINATION 

 
18.1 Contractor for Cause. The Contractor may terminate this Subcontract upon not 

less than seven (7) Days written notice and an additional seven (7) Days to commence curing if 
the Subcontractor is in material breach of any term or provision of this Subcontract. The notice 
will set forth the reason for termination and the effective date of termination after the period to 
cure.  If the Contractor terminates this Subcontract for cause, the Subcontractor will not be 
entitled to any further payments until Final Completion of the Project. The Subcontractor will be 
entitled to payment for Work rendered through the effective date of termination upon Final 
Completion of the Project, less any amounts the Contractor expended for others to perform the 
Work set forth in this Subcontract or paid under other contracts as a result of the Subcontractor’s 
breach.  Nothing stated in this paragraph will prevent the Contractor from pursuing and 
recovering any damages allowed by law from Subcontractor arising out of the breach of this 
Subcontract.  If a duly appointed arbitrator deems that termination of the Subcontractor was 
wrongful or otherwise improper, the termination will be deemed a termination for convenience 
under Section 18.2. 

 
18.2 Termination By Contractor For Convenience.  The Contractor may terminate 

this Subcontract for convenience upon seven (7) Days written notice at any time.  The notice will 
state the extent and effective date of termination. The Subcontractor will be entitled to receive 
(i) payment for all Work properly completed through the effective date of termination; (ii) the 
reasonable cost incurred by Subcontractor in securing and protecting the Work in progress 
against loss, damage, or deterioration; and (3) no more than two (2) weeks of demobilization 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 149 of 495



Page 28 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

costs, plus any cancellation charges of suppliers, and other special costs approved by Contractor 
in advance. Subcontractor will not be entitled to receive compensation for the portion of the 
Work not performed or any lost profits.  All disputes over termination will be resolved under 
Article 17. 

 
18.3 Termination by Subcontractor for Cause. The Subcontractor may terminate 

this Subcontract upon 15 Days written notice and an additional 15 Days opportunity to cure, if 
the Contractor fails to make payment to the Subcontractor in accordance with this Subcontract or 
if the Project is suspended and all labor is ceased for more than 60 days provided that the 
suspension was not caused or due to any fault or neglect of the Subcontractor or those for whom 
it is responsible.  The Subcontractor will be compensated for Work performed through the 
effective date of termination. 

 
19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
19.1 Governing Law.  This Subcontract will be governed and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California without regard to the principles of the conflict of laws. 
Both parties agree that any enforcement of a judgment or alternative dispute award will be filed 
with the appropriate court of law in San Bernardino County. 

 
19.2 Notice. Any notice required to be given by this Subcontract will be in writing and 

deemed effective upon: (a) the date of personal delivery, if received by the addressee before 5:00 
p.m. local time on a business day; (b) three (3) business days after being sent via registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested; or (c) one (1) business day after being sent by 
overnight commercial courier providing next-business-day delivery. Notices will be addressed 
to the following respective parties: 

 

Contractor: 
Fadi Alabbas 
Veolia Water West Operating 
Services, Inc. 
437 N. Riverside Ave. 
Rialto, CA 

Subcontractor: 
[name of person] 
[name of entity] 
[address] 
[city] 

 
 
 
 

19.3 Effective Date.  The Effective Date set forth above is the date as to which all 
Contract Documents have reference for purposes of coordination of their meaning and effect. 
Any Work commenced and any payments made pursuant to an award or letter of intent prior to 
the execution hereof will be deemed to have been done and paid after the Effective Date and 
governed by the terms of the Contract Documents. 

 
19.4 Survival.  The warranty, liability, indemnity, insurance, audit, and ownership of 

Work Product/Intellectual Property provisions of this Subcontract, along with the provisions of 
this Article 19, shall survive its termination or final settlement. The provisions of this 
Subcontract relating to bonds, termination and settlement of disputes and claims shall survive its 
termination, but not its final settlement. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 150 of 495



Page 29 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

19.5 Remedies. The remedies reserved for Contractor herein shall be cumulative and 
additional to any other or further remedies provided in law or equity. 

 
19.6 Severability. The terms and conditions of this Subcontract will be interpreted in 

accordance with their plain meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. Any rule of 
construction or interpretation to the contrary will be of no force or effect with respect to this 
Subcontract.  If a duly appointed arbitrator finds any term or provision of this Subcontract to be 
void or unenforceable for any reason, such term or provision will be deemed severed, and the 
remainder of the Subcontract will remain in full force and effect according to its terms and 
provisions, to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

 
19.7 Commencement of Statute of Limitations.  Causes of action between the parties 

to this Subcontract pertaining to acts or failures to act will be deemed to have accrued and the 
applicable statutes of limitations will commence to run not later than either the date of Substantial 
Completion for the Project, or the date of a recorded notice of completion, whichever is later. 

 
19.8 Waiver.  No action or failure to act by the Contractor or Subcontractor waives 

any right or duty afforded them under this Subcontract, nor will such action or failure to act 
constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach of this Subcontract, unless specifically agreed 
to in writing. 

 
19.9 Assignment of Contract. The Contractor and Subcontractor, respectively, bind 

themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this 
Subcontract and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of the other party 
with respect to all covenants of this Subcontract. The Subcontractor may not assign this 
Subcontract without the written consent of the Contractor, and any unconsented assignment is 
void.  This Subcontract may be assigned, without the consent of Subcontractor, to the 
Concessionaire or an assignee or designee of the Concessionaire including the City, Authority or 
an assignee or designee of the Secured Parties if the Prime Contract is terminated, contingent 
upon the Contractor, Concessionaire, or such assignee or designee providing written notice to 
Subcontractor that the Concessionaire or such assignee or designee is taking this Subcontract by 
assignment. 

 
19.10 Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure. During the performance of the Work, and 

for 10 years after Final Completion, Subcontractor shall not release information regarding the 
Work, except for information that is in the public domain, to any person. Noncompliance by the 
Subcontractor or others under the control or direction of the Subcontractor with this obligation 
shall be sufficient cause for Contractor immediately to terminate this Subcontract for cause 
without prior written notice, and shall entitle Contractor to injunctive and other relief from a 
court of competent jurisdiction.  In addition, Subcontractor agrees to comply with any more 
restrictive confidentiality requirements imposed by Concessionaire in the Prime Contract. 
Subcontractor acknowledges that certain information disclosed by Subcontractor and in 
possession of Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City may be subject to disclosure under 
the Public Records Act (California Government Code Section 6250 et seq.). 

 
19.11 Modifications.  All modifications to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Subcontract must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 151 of 495



Page 30 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

19.12 Counterparts.  This Subcontract may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
will be deemed an original, and all of which when taken together will constitute one instrument. 

 
19.13 Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Subcontract are for 

reference purposes only and will not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Subcontract. 

 
19.14 Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to each and every 

provision of the Contract Documents. 
 

19.15 Legal Citations.  Legal citations to statutory requirements are included in the 
Subcontract and the General Conditions to the Subcontract for convenience and an omission of 
any statutory requirement will not relieve the Subcontractor or its subcontractors from 
compliance with the law. 

 
19.16 State Licensing Requirements.  CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED BY LAW 

TO BE LICENSED AND REGULATED BY THE CONTRACTORS’ STATE LICENSE 
BOARD WHICH HAS JURISDICTION TO INVESTIGATE COMPLAINTS AGAINST 
CONTRACTORS IF A COMPLAINT REGARDING A PATENT ACT OR OMISSION IS 
FILED WITHIN FOUR (4) YEARS OF THE DATE OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION.  A 
COMPLAINT REGARDING A LATENT ACT OR OMISSION PERTAINING TO 
STRUCTURAL DEFECTS MUST BE FILED WITHIN 10 YEARS OF THE DATE OF THE 
ALLEGED VIOLATION. ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING A CONTRACTOR MAY BE 
REFERRED TO THE REGISTRAR, CONTRACTORS’ STATE LICENSE BOARD, P.O. BOX 
26000, SACRAMENTO, CA 95826. 

 
19.17 Entire Agreement. The Subcontract and Contract Documents constitute the 

entire agreement between the Contractor and the Subcontractor and supersede any and all 
contemporaneous or prior oral and written negotiations, representations, or agreements by the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Subcontract. 

 
This Subcontract is entered into as of the Effective Date first written above. 
 
Project S3 Sewer Main Replacement 

 
Contractor Subcontractor 

 
Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. [Insert] 

 

By:_   By:_   
 

Name:   Name:   
 

Title:   Title:   
 

Subcontractor License No.    
Date:                                     

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 152 of 495



Page A-1 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT A 

DEFINITIONS 

1. DEFINED TERMS 
 

1.1 “Applicable Law” means any federal, State, local (or other political subdivision) 
constitution, statute, law, rule, code, regulation, consent decree, consent order, consent 
agreement, permit, Governmental Approval, any determination or order entered, promulgated or 
approved by any Governmental Agency having jurisdiction, any common law or principle of 
common law applicable to, as the case may be, any of the Work, Project, parties, activities, 
requirements or obligations of the parties under the Subcontract. 

 
1.2 “Arbitration Rules” means California Code of Civil Procedure, section 1280 et 

seq., as may be amended by the California State Legislature. 
 

1.3 “Authority” means the Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority. 
 

1.4 “Authority-Directed Change” means changes to the Project scope illustrated in 
the Construction Documents. 

 
1.5 “Change of Law”  means any of the following events occurring after the 

Effective Date: 
 

1.5.1 the adoption, modification or repeal, or change in interpretation or 
application, of any Applicable Law; or 

 
1.5.2 the modification, change in interpretation or application, or imposition of 

any material conditions, restrictions or limitations in any Governmental Approval, which 
imposes limitations, additional costs or burdens with respect to Subcontractor’s obligations under 
this Subcontract. 

 
1.6 “Change Order” is a mutually agreed written order amending the Contract Time, 

Contract Price or other contract terms. All Change Orders will be executed by the Subcontractor 
and Contractor. 

 
1.7 “City” means the City of Rialto, California. 

 
1.8 “Construction Documents” means the permitted plans, specifications, 

calculations (if required) and other technical documents and reports describing the Work and 
listed in Exhibit B as the Construction Documents. 

 
1.9 “Contract Documents” are those documents set forth in Article 3 of the 

Subcontract and all subsequent contract modifications issued after execution of the Subcontract 
such as Change Orders. 

 
1.10 “Contractor” means Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 153 of 495



Page A-2 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.11 “Contract Price” is the lump sum price set forth in Section 7.1 of the 
Subcontract for completing all Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents, subject 
to adjustments through approved Change Order. 

 
1.12 “Contract Time” is the period of time allotted under the Project Schedule set 

forth in Exhibit E for the Subcontractor to achieve Substantial Completion. 
 

1.13 The word “delay” means any and every delay, obstruction, hindrance, 
interference, loss of productivity, or inefficiency of any kind. 

 
1.14 “Design Change” means any change in the Construction Documents that 

materially affects Subcontractor’s performance of the Work. 
 

1.15 “Direct Costs” is defined in Section 9.2 of the Subcontract. 
 

1.16 “Effective Date” means the date agreed upon by the Subcontractor and Contractor 
for the effectiveness of the Subcontract, which is set forth on page 1 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.17 “Environmental Condition” means the presence of any Regulated Substance on 

or at the Project site or any other location included in the sewage collection system or water 
delivery system, including the presence in surface water, groundwater, soils, or subsurface strata, 
or the migration of such a Regulated Substance from the Project site. 

 
1.18 “Excluded Approvals” means those permits and approvals listed in Exhibit F. 

 
1.19 “Final Completion” occurs on the date when Subcontractor has completed all Work 

in accordance with the Contract Documents; all final punch list items have been completed and 
accepted by the Contractor; the Project has been commissioned in accordance with the written 
testing and commissioning procedures; all close-out documentation required under the Construction 
Documents have been transmitted to the Contractor; a certificate of occupancy, if applicable, has 
been issued by the Governmental Agency having jurisdiction over construction of the Project; and 
confirmation of achievement of Final Completion from the Independent Engineer (if required) has 
been received. 

 
1.20 “Financing Party” means any Person that provides debt or equity financing to 

Concessionaire, including conduit issuers, financial institutions, bondholders, financial insurers, 
and hedge providers, or any agent or trustee acting on behalf of such Person (including the bond 
trustee acting on behalf of the bondholders), or that is from time to time a party to, or has rights 
under, any Financing Document. 

 
1.21 “Financing Document” means any loan agreement, trust agreement, credit 

agreement, continuing disclosure undertaking, tax agreement, pledge agreement, security 
agreement or other financing agreement or arrangement that Concessionaire may enter into in 
connection with the Concessionaire financing or additional Concessionaire financing (whether 
by means of loans, financial insurance, letters of credit, guarantees, or any other means), any 
bond documents, the trust agreement or the depositary agreement and any hedging agreement 
and, in each case, the security agreements execute in connection therewith. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 154 of 495



Page A-3 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.22 “General Conditions” means the general conditions attached to this Subcontract 
as Exhibit H. The Subcontractor will have those obligations described of subcontractors in the 
General Conditions to the extent applicable to the scope of this Subcontract. 

 
1.23 “General Conditions Costs” means those costs described in Section 9.3 of the 

Subcontract. 
 

1.24 “Governmental Agency” means any legislative, executive, judicial, or 
administrative department, board, commission, court, agency or other instrumentality of the 
Federal, State or local government, including a joint powers agency formed by two (2) or more 
of the foregoing. 

 
1.25 “Governmental Approval” means any permit, license, approval, consent or 

other authorization which is required under Applicable Law for the Work or for the performance 
of any of the obligations under this Subcontract. 

 
1.26 “Indemnified Party” includes Contractor, Concessionaire, City, Authority, 

Trustee and each Financing Party (including Secured Parties) and their respective officers, 
agents, directors, partners, members, employees, affiliates, parents and subsidiaries. 

 
1.27 “Independent Engineer” means any independent third party engineer appointed 

pursuant to the Prime Contract to fill the role of Independent Engineer under the Prime Contract. 
 

1.28 “Intellectual Property” means any patents, copyrights, trade secrets, licensed 
software, proprietary technology or systems, or other intellectual property right owned or 
licensed in accordance with Applicable Law. 

 
1.29 “Interim Project Schedule” is a detailed work plan created by the Contractor to 

provide a three-week look ahead of upcoming work by Project contractors as well as 
documentation of Project work completed three weeks prior. 

 
1.30 “Interim Work Directive” means a written directive issued by the Contractor 

authorizing the Subcontractor to proceed with a modification to the scope of Work. The Interim 
Work Directive is not a Change Order and will only be assembled and issued when there is not 
adequate time to process a Change Order prior to proceeding with revisions to the scope of the 
Work or where there is disagreement as to whether an item is included scope. The Subcontractor 
is responsible for providing rough order of magnitude pricing to the Contractor for use in 
assembling the Interim Work Directive. 

 
1.31 “Monthly Project Schedule Updates” is a monthly schedule created by the 

Contractor incorporating the activities and schedule updates of the contractors on the Project. 
 

1.32 “Overhead and Profit” is the amount included in the Contract Price for all costs 
associated with those categories of items set forth in Section 9.4 of the Subcontract and all profit 
associated with performance of the Work, as well as the percentage set forth in Section 10.6.1 as 
the mark-up for any Change Order Work. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 155 of 495



Page A-4 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.33 “Permitted Delay” means a delay qualifying for an extension of the date for 
Substantial Completion under Section 8.4 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.34 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, 

partnership, firm, association, Governmental Agency or any other entity whether acting in an 
individual, fiduciary or other capacity. 

 
1.35 “Prime Contract” means the Operations and Maintenance Subcontract made as 

of November 29, 2012 between Concessionaire and Contractor and the executed Final Work 
Authorization for the Project. 

 
1.36 “Project” means the project described by the Construction Documents set forth 

in Exhibit B. 
 

1.37 “Project Schedule” means the schedule included in the Subcontract as Exhibit E, 
as adjusted per the Subcontract. 

 
1.38 “Prudent Industry Practices” means those methods, techniques, standards and 

practices which, at the time they are employed and in light of the circumstances at the time, are 
generally accepted as reasonably prudent in the wastewater treatment and collection or drinking 
water distribution industry or recycled water delivery industry as practiced in the Western United 
States and particularly in California for water and wastewater facilities of a similar size and used for 
similar purpose as the Project.  Prudent Industry Practices is not necessarily defined as the optimal 
methods, techniques, standards or practices to the exclusion of others, but rather to refer to a range 
of methods, techniques, standards and practices that are reasonable under the circumstances. 

 
1.39 “Record Documents” are described in Section 5.23 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.40 “Regulated Substances” means any pollutant, contaminant, substance, hazardous 

substance, hazardous material, toxic substance, toxic pollutant, solid waste, municipal waste, 
industrial waste, or hazardous waste, petroleum or petroleum-derived substance, asbestos, or 
polychlorinated biphenyls, that is defined as such in, is subject to regulation under, or may form 
the basis for any requirement for investigation or remediation under, any Applicable Law. 

 
1.41 “Secured Parties” means the bond trustee, in its capacity as trustee under the bond 

indenture; the bondholders and any other agents acting on behalf of the bondholders under the bond 
documents, including any depository bank, collateral agent and the Trustee; and the holders of any 
water authority parity debt or wastewater authority parity debt and any other agents acting on behalf 
of such holders, including any depositary bank, collateral agent or trustee. 

 
1.42 “Separate Contractors” means, as applicable, another subcontractor of 

Contractor, a separate contractor of the Authority, City, Concessionaire, or any subcontractors of 
any of the foregoing to the extent they are doing work on or adjacent to the Project site. 

 
1.43 “Subcontractor” is defined on page 1 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.44 “Substantial Completion” means the date when (1) the Project is sufficiently 

complete according to the Construction Documents, Contract Documents and the written testing 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 156 of 495



Page A-5 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

and commissioning procedures to allow the Contractor to utilize the Project for its intended 
purpose and for the Contractor to begin training staff in the Project’s operation; (2) the 
Independent Engineer (if required) and Governmental Agency with jurisdiction has provided all 
necessary sign-offs and approvals for the use or occupancy of the Project. 

 
1.45 “Substantial Completion Date” is the date shown in the approved Project 

Schedule as the milestone for Substantial Completion. 
 

1.46 “Trustee” means Union Bank, N.A., as trustee under that certain Trust 
Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2012, by and among Rialto Water Services, LLC, 
Rialto Utility Authority, City of Rialto and the Trustee, and its successors and assigns 
thereunder. 

 
1.47 “Uncontrollable Circumstance” means any act, event, condition or 

circumstance beyond the reasonable control of the Subcontractor, its tier subcontractors or 
anyone performing a portion of the Work on Subcontractor’s behalf or at Subcontractor’s 
direction under this Subcontract which prevents, delays or otherwise adversely affects the ability 
of the Subcontractor to perform its Work.  Such acts, events, conditions or circumstances 
include, but are not limited to, Change of Law; labor disputes such as strikes, lockouts that 
cannot be resolved by Subcontractor through use of a dual gate, or other labor disturbances; 
earthquake, flood, hurricanes, or other natural disaster and acts of God; war, terrorism, or civil 
insurrection; any failure or delay in obtaining any Governmental Approval beyond 
Subcontractor’s or its tier subcontractors’ control and that was not due to any negligent act or 
omission in their respective performance of the Work; any failure, delay or interference by a 
third party (other than City, Authority, Concessionaire or Contractor); or issuance of a temporary 
restraining order or other form of injunction that prohibits prosecution of a material portion of 
Subcontractor’s obligations under this Subcontract. 

 
1.48 “Unknown Site Conditions” means the discovery of (i) historical, archaeological 

or cultural finds; (ii) rare, endangered or threatened species; (iii) Regulated Substances; (iv) 
underground obstructions or underground utilities; (v) geotechnical or soils issues; or (vi) 
unknown features or conditions with respect to the Project site which were either unknown by 
Subcontractor or could not have been discovered by a reasonably prudent California state 
licensed contractor through diligent review of all documentation disclosed relevant to the Project 
and Subcontractor’s site investigation performed prior to the Effective Date. 

 
1.49 “Work” or “construction work” means all labor, materials, services, equipment, 

supplies, tools, and appurtenances necessary for the proper completion of the construction work 
described in Exhibit B, and all of Subcontractor’s obligations under this Subcontract. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 157 of 495



Page B-1 Exhibit B Construction Documents 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT B 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 

[Refer to Technical Specifications and Plans] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[INCLUDE SCHEDULE M] 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 158 of 495



O&M Subcontract Schedule M - Claims Regarding Environmental
Rialto Wastewater Facility and Water Facility Conditions

1OHSUSA:751680320.2

SCHEDULE M

CLAIMS REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

In accordance with the disclosure of the Authority made under the Concession Agreement, the
Concessionaire discloses that the following pending or threatened, claims, complaints, notices or
requests for information have been received by Authority with respect to any alleged violation of
any Environmental Law at, under, in, across or arising from any of the Utility Facilities or the
Utility Facilities Site, or with respect to any potential liabilities with respect to Environmental
Conditions at, on, in, under or affecting any of the Utility Facilities or the Utility Facilities Site:

i) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order 99-86, revising Cleanup and Abatement Order No. 98-96

ii) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order dated September 25, 2002

iii) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Amended Cleanup
and Abatement Order No. R8-2004-0072, Amending Order No. R8-2003-0013

iv) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order No. R8-2004-0042, Amended Cleanup and Abatement Order
No. R8-2005-0053, and Remedial Investigative Order No. R8-2005-0121

v) State Water Resources Control Board, Matter No. A1824, In Re The Matter of
Perchlorate Contamination at a 160 Acre Site in the Rialto Area

vi) State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2008-0018, adopted
March 18, 2008

vii) United States Environmental Protection Agency, National Priorities List, B.F.
Goodrich Superfund Site, Rialto, California; EPA No. CAN000905945

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 159 of 495



Page C-1 Exhibit C Contract Price Breakdown; Billing Rates 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CONTRACT PRICE BREAKDOWN; BILLING RATES 
 
The breakdown of the Contract Price is attached to this Exhibit C. 

 
The maximum billing rates that Subcontractor may charge for Change Order work performed on 
a cost reimbursable basis are those attached to this Exhibit C behind the Contract Price 
breakdown. 

 
Any allowance items included in the Contract Price are described below: 

 
 
 
  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 160 of 495



Page D-1 Exhibit D Scope Of Work 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT D 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 
Replacement of Sewer Main along N. Sycamore Ave. Further details available in project 
specifications and plans. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 161 of 495



Page E-1 Exhibit E Project Schedule 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT E 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The Project Schedule is attached to this Exhibit E. 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 162 of 495



Page F-1 Exhibit F Excluded Approvals 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT F 

EXCLUDED APPROVALS 

1. Excluded Approvals 
 
The Subcontractor is not required to obtain the following permits and approvals: 

 
1.1 Any notification, approval, certification, environmental assessment, finding of no 

significant impact, or environmental impact report or equivalent required under the National 
Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq. and CEQA, and the regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto; 

 
1.2 Any regulatory permits for the operation of the water or wastewater treatment 

facility, as applicable; or 
 

1.3 Any City zoning or land use approvals. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 163 of 495



Page G-1 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT G 

INSURANCE 

1. General.  Subcontractor will procure and maintain all insurance required by this Exhibit 
with limits in accordance with Schedule R.9 to the Prime Contract with companies satisfactory to 
Contractor and Concessionaire.  Certificates evidencing such insurance and, upon request of 
either Contractor or Concessionaire, copies of the insurance policies and endorsements will be 
promptly delivered to Contractor. The policies will provide that there will be no cancellation or 
material modification of coverage without 30 days (except for 10 days for non-payment of 
premiums) prior written notice to Contractor and Concessionaire. Evidence that the required 
insurance is currently in force is a condition precedent to Contractor’s obligation to pay the 
Subcontractor. 

 
2. Types of Required Insurance. Subcontractor will maintain the following coverages: 

 
2.1 Workers Compensation; Employer’s Liability. Workers compensation insurance 

and occupational disease insurance as required by law and employer’s liability insurance with 
statutory minimum limits, covering all work places involved in this Subcontract.  If applicable, 
Subcontractor will furnish a certificate of permission to self-insure under the workers’ 
compensation and employers’ liability insurance statutes of California. The workers 
compensation policy will be endorsed to include coverage for USL&H benefits if 
Subcontractor’s employees work in or about navigable waterways. 

 
2.1.1 Subcontractor and its consultants and subcontractors each waive any and 

all rights of recovery against Contractor, City, Authority, and Concessionaire for all losses or 
damages pertaining to the insurance required under this Section 2.1, if such loss or damage is 
covered by any other insurance policy in force (whether or not described in this Subcontract) or 
required to be in force at the time of the loss or damage. 

 
2.2 Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance written on 

the occurrence basis on ISO form CG 00 01 12 04 or an equivalent form, with limits of not less 
than [$1,000,000] per occurrence and in the annual project aggregate.  Modified Occurrence 
form is not acceptable.  The insurance will cover all operations of Subcontractor, including but 
not limited to: (i) premises, operations and mobile equipment liability; (ii) completed operations 
and products liability; (iii) contractual liability coverage including the tort liability of another 
assumed in a business contract; (iv) explosion, collapse, and underground property damage; (v) 
broad form property damage liability; and (vi) personal injury and advertising liability. 

 
2.3 Automobile.  Commercial automobile liability insurance coverage with limits not 

less than [$1,000,000] per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined. Coverage 
will be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 12, CA 00 20, or an equivalent form 
and will apply to any auto including owned, hired, and non-owned autos. 

 
2.4 Excess/Umbrella Liability.  Excess or umbrella liability coverage will apply over 

the employer’s liability, commercial general liability and automobile liability policies required 
above and will be at least as broad as the underlying coverage, including but not limited to 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 164 of 495



Page G-2 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

completed operations and contractual liability, with limits per occurrence and annual project 
aggregate as follows: 

 
2.4.1 If Subcontractor’s scope includes any of the following items of Work, 

Subcontractor’s insurance limits will be [$9,000,000]: 
 

• installation of pipe, mains, services and meters; 
• demolition, excavation and foundations; 
• masonry or concrete (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior 

renovation); 
• steel and welding; 
• hoisting and scaffolding; 
• painting (tanks) and sandblasting; 
• roofing and waterproofing; 
• carpentry (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior renovation); 
• electrical (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior renovation); 
• HVAC, plumbing or mechanical (other than for projects involving only 

exterior/interior renovation); 
• use of hazardous equipment including cranes and boom trucks; 
• installation of large equipment such as boilers, pumps, HVAC units, etc. 
• if the scope of Work is related to plant or distribution systems. 

 
2.4.2 if Subcontractor’s scope does not include any of the items listed in Section 

2.4.1 above, insurance limits will be [$4,000,000]. 
 

2.5 Property Insurance/Contractor’s Equipment.  Subcontractor will insure its own 
property and equipment (owned, rented or borrowed) including but not limited to tools, 
materials, supplies, equipment, and temporary structures, including their contents except for such 
contents as are to be included in and remain a part of the permanent construction. 

 
3. Subcontractor will require each of its subcontractors to procure and maintain during the 
life of the Project the same insurance coverages meeting the same requirements as those 
specified above for Subcontractor.  Subcontractor will not allow any subcontractor to provide 
work in connection with the Project until that party has procured and provided evidence of the 
insurance specified herein. 

 
4. City, Authority, Concessionaire, Contractor, Secured Parties and Separate Contractors as 
notified by the Concessionaire, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees and 
affiliates will be named as additional insured parties under the commercial general liability, 
automobile liability and umbrella/excess liability insurance policies with respect to the Work. 
The additional insured endorsement on the commercial general liability policy will include both 
“ongoing operations” and liability arising from “your work/completed operations” (the 
equivalent of ISO additional insured endorsement CG20-10-11-85). 

 
5. Certificates of insurance will be provided/updated annually until one year after 
Substantial Completion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 165 of 495



Page G-3 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

6. All insurance coverage (except workers compensation) to be maintained and furnished by 
Subcontractor will be primary and non-contributory with respect to any insurance maintained by 
any additional insured. 

 
7. Each policy of liability insurance will include a waiver of subrogation in favor of all 
additional insured parties and will be endorsed to recite the name of the Project and the location 
of the Project site.  If the Subcontractor’s liability policies do not contain the standard ISO 
separation of insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they will be endorsed to 
provide cross-liability coverage. 

 
8. Insurance coverage will be maintained by insurance companies that have a rating of at 
least A-VII in the most recent edition of A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide and are otherwise 
satisfactory to the Contractor and Concessionaire.  The Contractor and Concessionaire have the 
right to periodically review Subcontractor’s insurance policies and coverages and require 
changes to such policies to the extent that said insurance is relevant to this Subcontract. Any 
additional premiums or other associated costs for such changes will be at the Contractor’s 
expense unless the policy fails to comply with the requirements of this Exhibit, in which case the 
Subcontractor will bear such costs. 

 
9. The Subcontractor will be responsible for any and all deductibles under all policies 
without adjustment to the Contract Price. 

 
10. If the policies of insurance referred to in this Exhibit require an endorsement or consent of 
the insurance company to provide for continued coverage where there is a waiver of subrogation, 
the owners of such policies will cause them to be so endorsed or obtain such consent. 

 
11. Failure to maintain the required insurance is a material breach of contract. Also, if 
Subcontractor fails to maintain the insurance as set forth herein, Contractor will have the right, 
but not the obligation, to purchase said insurance at Subcontractor’s expense. 

 
12. By requiring insurance herein, Contractor does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect Subcontractor and such coverage and limits will not be 
deemed as a limitation on Subcontractor’s liability under the indemnities granted in this contract. 

 
13. Insurance form C G 20 12 will also be completed at the City’s request which shall 
include the following additional insured: 

 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
437 North Riverside Avenue 
Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
335 West Rialto Avenue 
Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
350 California Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94104 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 166 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

SCHEDULE R.9
SUBCONTRACTOR AND CONSULTANTS INSURANCE

REQUIREMENTS
O&M Subcontract

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 167 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements
Schedule R.9

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

4745505.1

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 168 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 1 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

The attached exhibit contains the insurance coverage limits and requirements for
subcontractors engaged by Concessionaire (other than Contractor) and Contractor as
required by Section 21.2.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 169 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 2 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 170 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 3 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 171 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 4 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 172 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 173 of 495



Page H-1 Exhibit H Subcontractor General Conditions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT H 
 

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS (SCHEDULE R.6 OF PRIME CONTRACT) 
 
 
The Subcontractor General Conditions (Schedule R.6 of the Prime Contract) are attached to this Exhibit H 
for convenience and are part of the Contract Documents. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 174 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions
Schedule R.6

4734834.11

SCHEDULE R.6
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

O&M Subcontract

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 175 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions
Schedule R.6

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

i

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

4734834.11

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 176 of 495



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

Subcontractor General Conditions i
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

1. WORKERS AND WORKERS COMPENSATION ...........................................................1

1.1 Strict Discipline and Good Order.........................................................................1
1.2 Removal of Persons................................................................................................1
1.3 Insurance Certification..........................................................................................1

2. CONSTRUCTION RELATED WORK ..............................................................................1

2.1 Employment Standards .........................................................................................1
2.2 Equipment and Machinery Procurement ............................................................2

3. WORKERS RIGHTS AND LABOR NEUTRALITY........................................................2

3.1 Right to Organize ...................................................................................................2
3.2 Labor Organization Representation ....................................................................2
3.3 Collective Bargaining.............................................................................................2

4. PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES...................................................................................3

4.1 Applicability of Laws.............................................................................................3
4.2 Subcontractor Compliance ...................................................................................3
4.3 Penalty for Paying Less Than Prevailing Wage..................................................3
4.4 Monitoring Tier Subcontractor Compliance.......................................................4
4.5 Penalty for Exceeding Maximum Hour Limits ...................................................4
4.6 Posting of Rates ......................................................................................................4
4.7 Notice Regarding Complaints...............................................................................4
4.8 Copy of Certain Labor Code Provisions..............................................................4

5. EMPLOYMENT OF APPRENTICES ..............................................................................12

5.1 Applicability of Laws...........................................................................................12

6. PAYROLL RECORDS......................................................................................................12

6.1 Maintenance .........................................................................................................12
6.2 Submission and Availability................................................................................12
6.3 Forms ....................................................................................................................13
6.4 Privacy ..................................................................................................................13
6.5 Compliance ...........................................................................................................13

7. REMOVAL, RELOCATION, OR PROTECTION OF EXISTING UTILITIES. ............13

7.1 Responsibility .......................................................................................................13

8. INSPECTION FEES FOR PERMANENT UTILITIES....................................................13

8.1 Fees ........................................................................................................................13

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 177 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions ii
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

9. SOILS INVESTIGATIONS ..............................................................................................14

9.1 Examination of Site..............................................................................................14

10. TRENCHING, SHORING AND UNKNOWN SITE CONDITIONS..............................14

10.1 Labor Code Compliance......................................................................................14
10.2 Excavations Deeper than 4’-0” ...........................................................................14
10.3 Unknown Site Conditions or Environmental Conditions ................................15
10.4 Adjustment ...........................................................................................................15
10.5 Dispute ..................................................................................................................15

11. SURVEYING ....................................................................................................................15

11.1 Field Engineering .................................................................................................15

12. DEMOLITION ..................................................................................................................15

12.1 Demolition Plan ....................................................................................................15
12.2 Permits and Fees ..................................................................................................17

13. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS...................................................................................17

13.1 Water Control ......................................................................................................17
13.2 Pollution Control..................................................................................................17
13.3 Erosion Control ....................................................................................................17
13.4 Traffic Control .....................................................................................................18
13.5 Air Pollution Control ...........................................................................................18
13.6 Fire Protection Control .......................................................................................19

14. SAFETY ............................................................................................................................19

14.1 OSHA ....................................................................................................................19
14.2 Health and Safety Plan ........................................................................................19
14.3 Signs ......................................................................................................................19
14.4 Weekly Safety Meetings ......................................................................................19
14.5 Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”) .............................................................19
14.6 Safety Walks .........................................................................................................19

15. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY ................................................................20

15.1 Safety and Protection...........................................................................................20
15.2 Requirements........................................................................................................20
15.3 Field Offices ..........................................................................................................20
15.4 Temporary Protection .........................................................................................20
15.5 Damages to Materials and Equipment...............................................................21
15.6 Precautionary Measures......................................................................................21
15.7 Investigation and Reporting................................................................................21

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 178 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions iii
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

16. TEMPORARY FACILITIES.............................................................................................21

16.1 Temporary Electricity .........................................................................................21
16.2 Temporary Communications ..............................................................................21
16.3 Temporary Water ................................................................................................21
16.4 Temporary Fences ...............................................................................................21
16.5 Temporary Sanitary Facilities ............................................................................21
16.6 Temporary Barriers and Enclosures .................................................................22
16.7 Construction Equipment and Aids.....................................................................22
16.8 Removal of Temporary Facilities and Equipment............................................22

17. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL.................................................22

17.1 Testing and Inspection.........................................................................................22
17.2 Permits, Licenses, and Certificates.....................................................................22
17.3 Quality Control Plan............................................................................................22
17.4 Manufacturer’s Field Services............................................................................23
17.5 Quality Control Reports......................................................................................23
17.6 Test and Inspection Logs.....................................................................................24

18. LAWS AND REGULATIONS..........................................................................................24

18.1 Notices ...................................................................................................................24
18.2 Americans with Disabilities.................................................................................24

19. NOTICE OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS...........................................................................24

19.1 Third-Party Claims..............................................................................................24

20. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION. ...........................................................25

20.1 Subcontractor’s Certification .............................................................................25

21. NONDISCRIMINATION/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY .........................25

21.1 Non-Discrimination Policy ..................................................................................25

22. OWNERSHIP OF DESIGN DOCUMENTS.....................................................................26

22.1 Non-Exclusive, Irrevocable License ...................................................................26
22.2 Statutory Copyright.............................................................................................27

23. TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS. ...................................................27

23.1 Employees. ............................................................................................................27
23.2 Contract Price. .....................................................................................................27
23.3 Gratuities. .............................................................................................................27

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 179 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions iv
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

24. COMMUNICATIONS. .....................................................................................................28

24.1 Inquiries. ...............................................................................................................28
24.2 Correspondence....................................................................................................28

25. CLEAN UP AND RECYCLING ......................................................................................28

25.1 Material Recycling ...............................................................................................28
25.2 Cleaning Up ..........................................................................................................28

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 180 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 1 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

SCHEDULE R.6
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

O&M Subcontract

1. WORKERS AND WORKERS COMPENSATION

1.1 Strict Discipline and Good Order. At all times, Subcontractor will enforce
strict discipline and good order among its employees. Subcontractor will not employ any unfit
person or anyone not skilled in the construction work assigned on the Project.

1.2 Removal of Persons. The Concessionaire or Contractor can request removal of
any person in the employ of the Subcontractor whom Concessionaire or Contractor believes
incompetent, improper, disruptive, or a hindrance to Subcontractor’s performance of its work. If the
person is dismissed, he or she will not be re-employed to perform any portion of the work required
under the Contract Documents without written approval of the Concessionaire and Contractor.

1.3 Insurance Certification. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors and vendors
are required to secure the payment of compensation of their respective employees in accordance
with Labor Code section 3700. Before commencing any construction work on the Project,
Subcontractor and each of its tier subcontractors and vendors will sign and file a certification
with the Contractor and Concessionaire under Labor Code section 1861 stating the following:

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which
require every employer to be insured against liability for workers’
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before
commencing the performance of the construction work on the Project.

2. CONSTRUCTION RELATED WORK

2.1 Employment Standards. Subcontractor and all tier subcontractors performing
material construction work for the Project, including delivery to the job site of major
construction materials, shall:

2.1.1 Be bound by and signatory to a collective bargaining agreement with a
labor organization whose jurisdiction covers the type of work to be performed, who is an
“Approved Building Trades Department Contractor or Subcontractor,” and whose collective
bargaining agreement or other applicable documentation provides a mechanism for the
expeditious resolution of jurisdictional disputes. For purposes of this section, “Approved
Building Trades Department Contractor or Subcontractor” means a contractor or tier
subcontractor who is signatory to a labor organization that is either currently affiliated with, or
previously affiliated with as of January 1, 2001, the Building and Construction Trades
Department of the AFL-CIO; and

2.1.2 Observe area standards for wages and other terms and conditions of
employment, including fringe benefits.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 181 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 2 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

2.2 Equipment and Machinery Procurement. Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors will seek to have a “best value” policy with respect to procurement of significant
equipment or machinery (including fabrication) utilized in the Project. This best value approach
will consider the quality assurance of union-built equipment and machinery.

3. WORKERS RIGHTS AND LABOR NEUTRALITY

3.1 Right to Organize. The Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will honor the
right of every worker to organize into a union of his or her choosing and remain neutral in any
organizing efforts to ensure the exercise by employees and workers of their rights under Section
7 of the National Labor Relations Act, as well as to avoid picketing and other economic action
against the employer. The Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, as employers, will comply
with the following policies:

3.1.1 Recognize that national labor law guarantees employees the right to form
or select any labor organization to act as their exclusive representative for the purpose of
collective bargaining with their employer;

3.1.2 Refrain from any action or statement that will directly or indirectly state or
imply any opposition by the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors, as employers, to the
selection by any workers or employees of a collective bargaining agreement, or preference for or
opposition to any particular union as a bargaining agent;

3.1.3 Provide access to workers and employees and union representatives to its
non-public areas of the Project jobsites during non-working hours and on such other terms as the
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, as employers, and the union representatives may
reasonably agree for the purpose of organizing efforts; and

3.1.4 Upon request by union representatives, furnish a complete list of
Subcontractor’s and its tier subcontractors’ employees and update that list periodically, as
required by Applicable Law.

3.2 Labor Organization Representation. If a labor organization files a
representation petition with the National Labor Relations Board seeking to represent employees
of either the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors at the Project site, the Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will work in good faith to resolve any issues or other possible legal defects in
the petition and set an election date that is within 30 days of the filing of the petition. If the
employees freely vote by secret ballot to select a labor organization as their exclusive bargaining
representative, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will promptly recognize the labor
organization and agree to meet for purposes of collective bargaining.

3.3 Collective Bargaining. If a labor organization is elected as the exclusive
bargaining representative per Section 3.2, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will be
available for bargaining for no less than 15 weekdays in the first 120 calendar days after the
certification of the representative issues by the National Labor Relations Board. If an agreement
is not reached within the first 120 days after the certification has been issued, the Subcontractor

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 182 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 3 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

and its tier subcontractors agree to engage in mediation using the services of the Federal
Mediation and Conciliation Service.

4. PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES

4.1 Applicability of Laws. Pursuant to Government Code section 5956.8, the Project
is subject to California State prevailing wages. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will
comply with any applicable California prevailing wage laws commencing with Section 1720 of
Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code. The Subcontractor acknowledges and agrees that it has
performed its own investigation as to the applicability of California prevailing wage laws under
Government Code section 5956.8 and commencing with Labor Code section 1720 et seq., and
that the following provisions only include a summary of the requirements for prevailing wages
under the California Labor Code. Prior to the start of construction, Subcontractor will
acknowledge in writing, and cause each of its tier subcontractors to acknowledge in writing, that
the final pricing includes full compensation for all labor in compliance with California Labor
Code and that no additional compensation will be owed to Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors in the event that Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors are required to pay higher
wages or incur additional costs related to compliance.

4.2 Subcontractor Compliance. The Subcontractor is aware of the requirements of
Labor Code sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title
8, section 16000 et seq. (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing wage
rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance”
projects. Although the Project is being performed pursuant to a public private partnership under
Government Code section 5956, et seq., Subcontractor acknowledges that it must fully comply with
the Prevailing Wage Laws with respect to the Project. The Subcontractor will obtain a copy of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages before commencement of Project construction from the website
of the Division of Labor Statistics and Research of the Department of Industrial Relations located at
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/statistics_research.html. Subcontractor will make copies of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform
construction work on the Project to interested parties upon request, and will post copies at the
Subcontractor’s principal place of business and at the Project site office. Subcontractor will defend,
indemnify and hold the Contractor, Concessionaire, City and the Authority, and their respective
elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs,
penalties or interest arising out of labor union disputes for failure by Subcontractor or any of its tier
subcontractors to comply or allegedly fail to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

4.3 Penalty for Paying Less Than Prevailing Wage. Under Labor Code section
1775, the Subcontractor and each of its tier subcontractors will forfeit as a penalty not more than
two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less
than the stipulated prevailing wage rate for any construction work done by Subcontractor, or by
its tier subcontractor, in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code. The difference between
the stipulated prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or
portion thereof, for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate,
will be paid to each worker by the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractor.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 183 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 4 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

4.4 Monitoring Tier Subcontractor Compliance. The Subcontractor will monitor
the payment of the specified general prevailing rate of per diem wages by its tier subcontractors to
their respective employees by periodic review of the certified payroll records of its tier
subcontractors. Upon becoming aware of the failure of any of its tier subcontractors to pay its
workers the specified prevailing wage rate, the Subcontractor will diligently take corrective action to
halt or rectify the failure including, but not limited to, requesting that the Contractor retain sufficient
funds due the tier subcontractor for construction work performed on the Project. As part of its
application for final payment, the Subcontractor will cause each of its tier subcontractors to provide
an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury that the tier subcontractor has paid the specified general
prevailing rate of per diem wages to its employees and any amounts due under Section 1813.

4.5 Penalty for Exceeding Maximum Hour Limits. The Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors will, as a penalty to the state or political division on whose behalf the Prime
Contract is made, forfeit twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution of
the construction work for each calendar day that the worker is required or permitted to work
more than eight (8) hours in any one (1) calendar day and 40 hours in any one (1) calendar week
in violation of the provisions of Section 1813. Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 1810
to 1814, inclusive, of the Labor Code, or any stipulation inserted in the Contract Documents,
work performed by employees of contractors in excess of eight (8) hours per day, and 40 hours
during any one (1) week, will be permitted upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of
eight (8) hours per day at not less than 1 ½ times the basic rate of pay.

4.6 Posting of Rates. Contractor will post, at appropriate conspicuous points at the
Project site(s), a schedule showing all determined general prevailing wage rates and all
authorized deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned.

4.7 Notice Regarding Complaints. The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement
will notify the Subcontractor within 15 days of receipt of a complaint of the failure of any of its
tier subcontractors to pay workers the general prevailing rate of per diem wages.

4.8 Copy of Certain Labor Code Provisions.

Section 1771. Except for public works projects of one thousand dollars ($1,000)
or less, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the public work is performed, and not
less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime
work fixed as provided in this chapter, shall be paid to all workers employed on
public works.

This section is applicable only to work performed under contract, and is not applicable to work
carried out by a public agency with its own forces. This section is applicable to contracts let for
maintenance work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 184 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 5 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Section 1775

(a) (1)The contractor and any subcontractor under the contractor shall, as a
penalty to the state or political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded,
forfeit not more than two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for
each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rates as determined by the director for the work
or craft in which the worker is employed for any public work done under the contract by the
contractor or, except as provided in subdivision (b), by any subcontractor under the contractor.

(2) (A) The amount of the penalty shall be determined by the Labor
Commissioner based on consideration of both of the following:

(i) Whether the failure of the contractor or subcontractor to pay the
correct rate of per diem wages was a good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly and
voluntarily corrected when brought to the attention of the contractor or subcontractor.

(ii) Whether the contractor or subcontractor has a prior record of
failing to meet its prevailing wage obligations.

(B) (i) The penalty may not be less than forty dollars ($40) for each
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rate, unless
the failure of the contractor or subcontractor to pay the correct rate of per diem wages was a
good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly and voluntarily corrected when brought to
the attention of the contractor or subcontractor.

(ii) The penalty may not be less than eighty dollars ($80) for each
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rate, if the
contractor or subcontractor has been assessed penalties within the previous three years for failing
to meet its prevailing wage obligations on a separate contract, unless those penalties were
subsequently withdrawn or overturned.

(iii) The penalty may not be less than one hundred twenty dollars
($120) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing
wage rate, if the Labor Commissioner determines that the violation was willful, as defined in
subdivision (c) of Section 1777.1.

(C) If the amount due under this section is collected from the contractor or
subcontractor, any outstanding wage claim under Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1720) of
Part 7 of Division 2 against that contractor or subcontractor shall be satisfied before applying
that amount to the penalty imposed on that contractor or subcontractor pursuant to this section.

(D) The determination of the Labor Commissioner as to the amount of the
penalty shall be reviewable only for abuse of discretion.

(E) The difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid
to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than
the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the contractor or subcontractor, and the

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 185 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 6 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract a stipulation that this section
will be complied with.

(b) If a worker employed by a subcontractor on a public works project is not paid
the general prevailing rate of per diem wages by the subcontractor, the prime contractor of the
project is not liable for any penalties under subdivision (a) unless the prime contractor had
knowledge of that failure of the subcontractor to pay the specified prevailing rate of wages to those
workers or unless the prime contractor fails to comply with all of the following requirements:

(1) The contract executed between the contractor and the subcontractor for the
performance of work on the public works project shall include a copy of the provisions of this
section and Sections 1771, 1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815.

(2) The contractor shall monitor the payment of the specified general
prevailing rate of per diem wages by the subcontractor to the employees, by periodic review of
the certified payroll records of the subcontractor.

(3) Upon becoming aware of the failure of the subcontractor to pay his or her
workers the specified prevailing rate of wages, the contractor shall diligently take corrective
action to halt or rectify the failure, including, but not limited to, retaining sufficient funds due the
subcontractor for work performed on the public works project.

(4) Prior to making final payment to the subcontractor for work performed on
the public works project, the contractor shall obtain an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury
from the subcontractor that the subcontractor has paid the specified general prevailing rate of per
diem wages to his or her employees on the public works project and any amounts due pursuant to
Section 1813.

(c) The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall notify the contractor on a
public works project within 15 days of the receipt by the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement of a complaint of the failure of a subcontractor on that public works project to pay
workers the general prevailing rate of per diem wages.

Section 1776

(a) Each contractor and subcontractor shall keep accurate payroll records,
showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time and
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each
journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with
the public work. Each payroll record shall contain or be verified by a written declaration that it is
made under penalty of perjury, stating both of the following:

(1) The information contained in the payroll record is true and correct.

(2) The employer has complied with the requirements of Sections 1771, 1811,
and 1815 for any work performed by his or her employees on the public works project.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 186 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 7 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(b) The payroll records enumerated under subdivision (a) shall be certified and
shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the contractor on
the following basis:

(1) A certified copy of an employee’s payroll record shall be made available
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on request.

(2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall
be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the body
awarding the contract, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

(3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall
be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for copies thereof. However, a
request by the public shall be made through either the body awarding the contract, the Division
of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested
payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph (2), the requesting party shall,
prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by the contractor,
subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. The public may not be given
access to the records at the principal office of the contractor.

(c) The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of
Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by the
division. The payroll records may consist of printouts of payroll data that are maintained as
computer records, if the printouts contain the same information as the forms provided by the
division and the printouts are verified in the manner specified in subdivision (a).

(d) A contractor or subcontractor shall file a certified copy of the records
enumerated in subdivision (a) with the entity that requested the records within 10 days after
receipt of a written request.

(e) Except as provided in subdivision (f), any copy of records made available for
inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by the
awarding body, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated to prevent disclosure of an individual’s name,
address, and social security number. The name and address of the contractor awarded the
contract or the subcontractor performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated. Any
copy of records made available for inspection by, or furnished to, a joint labor-management
committee established pursuant to the federal Labor Management Cooperation Act of 1978 (29
U.S.C. Sec. 175a) shall be marked or obliterated only to prevent disclosure of an individual’s
name and social security number. A joint labor management committee may maintain an action
in a court of competent jurisdiction against an employer who fails to comply with Section 1774.
The court may award restitution to an employee for unpaid wages and may award the joint labor
management committee reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in maintaining the action.
An action under this subdivision may not be based on the employer’s misclassification of the
craft of a worker on its certified payroll records. Nothing in this subdivision limits any other
available remedies for a violation of this chapter.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 187 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 8 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(f) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, agencies that are included in the
Joint Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy established pursuant to Section 329
of the Unemployment Insurance Code and other law enforcement agencies investigating violations
of law shall, upon request, be provided unredacted copies of certified payroll records. Any copies
of records or certified payroll made available for inspection and furnished upon request to the
public by an agency included in the Joint Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy
or to a law enforcement agency investigating a violation of law shall be marked or redacted to
prevent disclosure of an individual’s name, address, and social security number.

(2) An employer shall not be liable for damages in a civil action for any
reasonable act or omission taken in good faith in compliance with this subdivision.

(g) The contractor shall inform the body awarding the contract of the location of
the records enumerated under subdivision (a), including the street address, city, and county, and
shall, within five working days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

(h) The contractor or subcontractor has 10 days in which to comply subsequent to
receipt of a written notice requesting the records enumerated in subdivision (a). In the event that
the contractor or subcontractor fails to comply within the 10-day period, he or she shall, as a
penalty to the state or political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded,
forfeit one hundred dollars ($100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker,
until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, these penalties shall be withheld
from progress payments then due. A contractor is not subject to a penalty assessment pursuant to
this section due to the failure of a subcontractor to comply with this section.

(i) The body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract
stipulations to effectuate this section.

(j) The director shall adopt rules consistent with the California Public Records Act
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code)
and the Information Practices Act of 1977 (Title 1.8 (commencing with Section 1798) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code) governing the release of these records, including the establishment of
reasonable fees to be charged for reproducing copies of records required by this section.

Section 1777.5

(a) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the employment of properly registered
apprentices upon public works.

(b) Every apprentice employed upon public works shall be paid the prevailing
rate of per diem wages for apprentices in the trade to which he or she is registered and shall be
employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which he or she is registered.

(c) Only apprentices, as defined in Section 3077, who are in training under
apprenticeship standards that have been approved by the Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards and who are parties to written apprentice agreements under Chapter 4 (commencing

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 188 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 9 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

with Section 3070) of Division 3 are eligible to be employed at the apprentice wage rate on
public works. The employment and training of each apprentice shall be in accordance with either
of the following:

(1) The apprenticeship standards and apprentice agreements under which he or
she is training.

(2) The rules and regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council.

(d) When the contractor to whom the contract is awarded by the state or any political
subdivision, in performing any of the work under the contract, employs workers in any apprenticeable
craft or trade, the contractor shall employ apprentices in at least the ratio set forth in this section and
may apply to any apprenticeship program in the craft or trade that can provide apprentices to the site
of the public work for a certificate approving the contractor under the apprenticeship standards for the
employment and training of apprentices in the area or industry affected. However, the decision of the
apprenticeship program to approve or deny a certificate shall be subject to review by the Administrator
of Apprenticeship. The apprenticeship program or programs, upon approving the contractor, shall
arrange for the dispatch of apprentices to the contractor. A contractor covered by an apprenticeship
program’s standards shall not be required to submit any additional application in order to include
additional public works contracts under that program.

“Apprenticeable craft or trade,” as used in this section, means a craft or trade
determined as an apprenticeable occupation in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by
the California Apprenticeship Council. As used in this section, “contractor” includes any
subcontractor under a contractor who performs any public works not excluded by subdivision (o).

(e) Prior to commencing work on a contract for public works, every contractor
shall submit contract award information to an applicable apprenticeship program that can supply
apprentices to the site of the public work. The information submitted shall include an estimate of
journeyman hours to be performed under the contract, the number of apprentices proposed to be
employed, and the approximate dates the apprentices would be employed. A copy of this
information shall also be submitted to the awarding body if requested by the awarding body.

Within 60 days after concluding work on the contract, each contractor and
subcontractor shall submit to the awarding body, if requested, and to the apprenticeship program
a verified statement of the journeyman and apprentice hours performed on the contract. The
information under this subdivision shall be public. The apprenticeship programs shall retain this
information for 12 months.

(f) The apprenticeship program that can supply apprentices to the area of the site
of the public work shall ensure equal employment and affirmative action in apprenticeship for
women and minorities.

(g) The ratio of work performed by apprentices to journeymen employed in a
particular craft or trade on the public work may be no higher than the ratio stipulated in the
apprenticeship standards under which the apprenticeship program operates where the contractor

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 189 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 10 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

agrees to be bound by those standards, but, except as otherwise provided in this section, in no case
shall the ratio be less than one hour of apprentice work for every five hours of journeyman work.

(h) This ratio of apprentice work to journeyman work shall apply during any day
or portion of a day when any journeyman is employed at the jobsite and shall be computed on the
basis of the hours worked during the day by journeymen so employed. Any work performed by a
journeyman in excess of eight hours per day or 40 hours per week shall not be used to calculate
the ratio. The contractor shall employ apprentices for the number of hours computed as above
before the end of the contract or, in the case of a subcontractor, before the end of the subcontract.
However, the contractor shall endeavor, to the greatest extent possible, to employ apprentices
during the same time period that the journeymen in the same craft or trade are employed at the
jobsite. Where an hourly apprenticeship ratio is not feasible for a particular craft or trade, the
Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, upon application of an apprenticeship
program, may order a minimum ratio of not less than one apprentice for each five journeymen in
a craft or trade classification.

(i) A contractor covered by this section that has agreed to be covered by an
apprenticeship program’s standards upon the issuance of the approval certificate, or that has been
previously approved for an apprenticeship program in the craft or trade, shall employ the number
of apprentices or the ratio of apprentices to journeymen stipulated in the applicable
apprenticeship standards, but in no event less than the 1-to-5 ratio required by subdivision (g).

(j) Upon proper showing by a contractor that he or she employs apprentices in a
particular craft or trade in the state on all of his or her contracts on an annual average of not less
than one hour of apprentice work for every five hours of labor performed by journeymen, the
Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards may grant a certificate exempting the
contractor from the 1-to-5 hourly ratio, as set forth in this section for that craft or trade.

(k) An apprenticeship program has the discretion to grant to a participating
contractor or contractor association a certificate, which shall be subject to the approval of the
Administrator of Apprenticeship, exempting the contractor from the 1-to-5 ratio set forth in this
section when it finds that any one of the following conditions is met:

(1) Unemployment for the previous three-month period in the area exceeds an
average of 15 percent.

(2) The number of apprentices in training in the area exceeds a ratio of 1 to 5.

(3) There is a showing that the apprenticeable craft or trade is replacing at
least one-thirtieth of its journeymen annually through apprenticeship training, either on a
statewide basis or on a local basis.

(4) Assignment of an apprentice to any work performed under a public works
contract would create a condition that would jeopardize his or her life or the life, safety, or
property of fellow employees or the public at large, or the specific task to which the apprentice is
to be assigned is of a nature that training cannot be provided by a journeyman.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 190 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 11 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(l) When an exemption is granted pursuant to subdivision (k) to an organization that
represents contractors in a specific trade from the 1-to-5 ratio on a local or statewide basis, the
member contractors shall not be required to submit individual applications for approval to local
joint apprenticeship committees, if they are already covered by the local apprenticeship standards.

(m)(1) A contractor to whom a contract is awarded, who, in performing any of the
work under the contract, employs journeymen or apprentices in any apprenticeable craft or trade
shall contribute to the California Apprenticeship Council the same amount that the director
determines is the prevailing amount of apprenticeship training contributions in the area of the
public works site. A contractor may take as a credit for payments to the council any amounts
paid by the contractor to an approved apprenticeship program that can supply apprentices to the
site of the public works project. The contractor may add the amount of the contributions in
computing his or her bid for the contract.

(2) At the conclusion of the 2002-03 fiscal year and each fiscal year
thereafter, the California Apprenticeship Council shall distribute training contributions received
by the council under this subdivision, less the expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards for administering this subdivision, by making grants to approved apprenticeship
programs for the purpose of training apprentices. The funds shall be distributed as follows:

(A) If there is an approved multiemployer apprenticeship program serving
the same craft or trade and geographic area for which the training contributions were made to the
council, a grant to that program shall be made.

(B) If there are two or more approved multiemployer apprenticeship
programs serving the same craft or trade and geographic area for which the training contributions
were made to the council, the grant shall be divided among those programs based on the number
of apprentices registered in each program.

(C) All training contributions not distributed under subparagraphs (A) and
(B) shall be used to defray the future expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.

(3) All training contributions received pursuant to this subdivision shall be
deposited in the Apprenticeship Training Contribution Fund, which is hereby created in the State
Treasury. Upon appropriation by the Legislature, all money in the Apprenticeship Training
Contribution Fund shall be used for the purpose of carrying out this subdivision and to pay the
expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.

(n) The body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract
stipulations to effectuate this section. The stipulations shall fix the responsibility of compliance
with this section for all apprenticeable occupations with the prime contractor.

(o) This section does not apply to contracts of general contractors or to contracts
of specialty contractors not bidding for work through a general or prime contractor when the
contracts of general contractors or those specialty contractors involve less than thirty thousand
dollars ($30,000).

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 191 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 12 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(p) All decisions of an apprenticeship program under this section are subject to
Section 3081.

Section 1813. The contractor or subcontractor shall, as a penalty to the state or
political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded, forfeit twenty-five dollars
($25) for each worker employed in the execution of the contract by the respective contractor or
subcontractor for each calendar day during which the worker is required or permitted to work
more than 8 hours in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of
the provisions of this article. In awarding any contract for public work, the awarding body shall
cause to be inserted in the contract a stipulation to this effect. The awarding body shall take
cognizance of all violations of this article committed in the course of the execution of the
contract, and shall report them to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.

Section 1815. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 1810 to 1814,
inclusive, of this code, and notwithstanding any stipulation inserted in any contract pursuant to
the requirements of said sections, work performed by employees of contractors in excess of 8
hours per day, and 40 hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon public work upon
compensation for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours per day at not less than 1 1/2 times the
basic rate of pay.

5. EMPLOYMENT OF APPRENTICES

5.1 Applicability of Laws. The Subcontractor’s attention is directed to the
provisions of Sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor Code concerning employment of
apprentices by the Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors. The Subcontractor will obtain a
certificate of apprenticeship before employing any apprentice pursuant to Sections 1777.5, 1777.6,
and 1777.7 of the Labor Code. Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules,
and other requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, the Administrator
of Apprenticeships, or from the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, and its branch offices.

6. PAYROLL RECORDS

6.1 Maintenance. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, the Subcontractor and each
of its tier subcontractors will maintain weekly certified payroll records showing the name, address,
social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and
week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other
employee performing labor in connection with construction work at the Project. Subcontractor
will certify under penalty of perjury that records maintained and submitted by Subcontractor are
true and accurate and that the employer has complied with the requirements of Labor Code
sections 1771, 1811, and 1815 for any construction work performed on the Project. Subcontractor
will also require its tier subcontractor(s) to certify weekly payroll records under penalty of perjury.

6.2 Submission and Availability. The payroll records will be certified and
submitted by the Subcontractor on a monthly basis with its application for payment or at other times
that may be designated by the Contractor. The Subcontractor will also provide the following:

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 192 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 13 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

6.2.1 A certified copy of the employee’s payroll records will be made available
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on request.

6.2.2 A certified copy of all payroll records described will be made available for
inspection or furnished upon request of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”), the
Division of Apprenticeship Standards (“DAS”), or the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”).

6.3 Forms. The certified payroll records will be on forms provided by the DLSE of
the DIR or will contain the same information as the forms provided by the DLSE.

6.4 Privacy. Any copy of records made available for inspection and furnished upon
request to the public will be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an
individual’s name, address, and social security number. The name and address of the
Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors will not be marked or obliterated.

6.5 Compliance. In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article
6, the Subcontractor will have 10 days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice
specifying any item or actions necessary to ensure compliance with this Article. If non-compliance
is evident after the 10-day period, the Subcontractor will, as a penalty, forfeit one hundred dollars
($100) for each day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon
the request of the DAS or the DLSE, the penalties will be withheld from progress payments due.

7. REMOVAL, RELOCATION, OR PROTECTION OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

7.1 Responsibility. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of work,
Contractor will be responsible for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing main
or trunk-line utility facilities located on the Project site. If Subcontractor discovers utility
facilities not identified in the Construction Documents, it will immediately notify the Contractor
in writing and the Contractor will notify the utility company. If, however, removal, relocation or
protection of existing main or trunk-line facilities is required by Subcontractor’s scope of work,
subcontractor may be reasonably compensated for the cost of locating or repairing damage to
utilities that are not identified in the Construction Documents provided that the damage was not
caused due to the negligence of the Subcontractor. Under no circumstance will Subcontractor be
entitled to additional compensation if the removal, relocation or protection of the existing
utilities was included in its scope of work and the presence of such utilities at the Project site can
be inferred from other aboveground, visible facilities, such as buildings, meter and junction
boxes, or on or adjacent to the Project site.

8. INSPECTION FEES FOR PERMANENT UTILITIES.

8.1 Fees. All governmental inspection fees and other municipal charges for
permanent utilities including, but not limited to, sewer, electrical, phone, gas, water, and
irrigation will be Contractor’s responsibility.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 193 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 14 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

9. SOILS INVESTIGATIONS

9.1 Examination of Site. Subcontractor acknowledges that any soils investigation
report (including any borings) was prepared for purposes of design only and Subcontractor and
its tier subcontractors are required to examine the site before submitting a bid and must make
whatever tests they deem appropriate to determine the underground condition of the soil.

10. TRENCHING, SHORING AND UNKNOWN SITE CONDITIONS

10.1 Labor Code Compliance. Subcontractor will comply with Labor Code sections
6500, 6705, and 6707, and Public Contract Code section 7104 regarding trenching and shoring.

10.1.1 Permit Requirements for Trenches 5’-0” or More in Depth.
Subcontractor agrees to comply in full with section 6500 of the Labor Code and to provide the
required permits prior to the initiation of any work, method, operation or process that involves:
(i) construction of trenches or excavations that are 5’-0” or deeper and into which a person is
required to descend; (ii) the construction of any building, structure, falsework, or scaffolding
more than three (3) stories high or the equivalent height; (iii) the demolition of any building,
structure, falsework, or scaffold more than three (3) stories high or the equivalent height; or (iv)
the underground use of diesel engines in work in mines and tunnels.

10.1.1.1 Detailed Plans for Trenches 5’-0” or More in Depth. In
compliance with Labor Code section 6705, the Subcontractor will submit to Contractor, and
Contractor will submit to the Concessionaire, in advance of excavation, a detailed plan showing the
design of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the
hazard of caving ground during the excavation of any trench or trenches 5’-0” or more in depth. If
the plan varies from shoring system standards, the plan will be prepared by a registered civil or
structural engineer. The plan will not be less effective than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other
provisions of the Construction Safety Orders, as defined in the California Code of Regulations.

10.1.1.2 Separate Bid Items for Sheeting, Shoring, etc. To the extent
the construction work involves construction of a pipeline, sewer, sewage disposal system, boring
and jacking pits, or similar trenches or open excavations, which are 5’-0” or deeper, Subcontractor
and its tier subcontractors will comply with all Applicable Laws, regulations, and codes, and all
bids will contain, as a bid item, adequate sheeting, shoring, and bracing, or equivalent method, for
the protection of life or limb pursuant to Labor Code section 6707, which will conform to
applicable safety orders. Nothing in this Article 10 will be construed to impose tort liability on the
Contractor, Authority, City, Concessionaire or any of their respective employees.

10.2 Excavations Deeper than 4’-0”. If Subcontractor’s work involves digging
trenches or other excavation that extend deeper than 4’-0” below the surface, Subcontractor will
promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the Contractor, in writing, of any:

10.2.1 Material that the Subcontractor believes may be hazardous waste, as
defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class
I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of Applicable Law.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 194 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 15 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

10.2.2 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those
indicated in the Contract Documents or otherwise disclosed to Subcontractor as pre-existing
Environmental Conditions.

10.2.3 Unknown Site Conditions.

10.3 Unknown Site Conditions or Environmental Conditions. The Contractor in
conjunction with the Concessionaire and Authority will promptly investigate the conditions, and
to the extent the conditions result in an adjustment to the Contractor’s compensation or schedule
under the Prime Contract, Contractor will be obligated to adjust Subcontractor’s compensation or
schedule to the extent applicable to Subcontractor’s work.

10.4 Adjustment. If the physical conditions at the site are not Unknown Site
Conditions or unknown Environmental Conditions and no change in terms of the Prime Contract
is made due to such site conditions, the Contractor will notify the Subcontractor in writing,
stating the reasons. Also, Subcontractor will not be entitled to an adjustment in compensation or
schedule regarding claimed Unknown Site Conditions (whether above or below grade) or
unknown Environmental Condition if:

10.4.1 Subcontractor knew of the existence of the conditions, or could have
reasonably discovered the existence of the condition through diligent review of all disclosed
documentation relating to the Project, at the time Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors
submitted a bid for the Project, and did not qualify its contract price for such conditions; or

10.4.2 Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractor should have known of the
existence of the conditions as a result of having complied with the requirements of the Contract
Documents; or

10.4.3 Subcontractor, or any of its tier subcontractor, was required to give
written notice of the Unknown Site Conditions or unknown Environmental Condition under the
Contract Documents, and failed to do so within the time required.

10.5 Dispute. In the event of a dispute, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractor(s)
will not be excused from the Substantial Completion Date for the Project and will proceed with all
construction work to be performed under the Contract Documents. Disputes between the parties will
be resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions set forth in the Subcontract.

11. SURVEYING

11.1 Field Engineering. If specified in its scope of Work, Subcontractor or one of its
tier subcontractors will employ a California State licensed civil engineer or land surveyor to
provide field engineering services to establish benchmarks and line and grade for horizontal and
vertical control.

12. DEMOLITION

12.1 Demolition Plan. Prior to commencing any required demolition work,
Subcontractor will submit to Contractor, and Contractor will submit to the Concessionaire, a

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 195 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 16 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

demolition plan for review and approval. Under no circumstances can demolition interrupt
operations of the existing water and wastewater facilities without ___ days written notice to
Contractor and Contractor’s prior approval. The Subcontractor’s demolition plan will address,
at a minimum, the following:

12.1.1 Identify areas that will require demolition and provide a schedule for those
demolition activities that are coordinated with the operations and the approved project schedule;

12.1.2 Inventory materials and equipment that will be salvaged during
demolition and whether the salvaged materials and equipment will be reused, recycled, or sold at
fair market value on Concessionaire’s behalf;

12.1.3 Document procedures for protecting the existing structures and/or
materials, equipment and components that are remaining, as well as protection plans for adjacent
property and persons that comply with the requirements in Article 15.

12.1.4 Document procedures for proper ventilation, noise, and dust control
during demolition operations and clean-up after demolition is completed.

12.1.5 Document procedures for required disruption of any utility service as a
result of demolition activities and a record of any utilities that are capped during the process.
Any required shut-off or interruption of service must be approved in writing by Concessionaire
and notice must be provided by Contractor in writing to affected utility customers at least ____
calendar days in advance of any disruption in service, which requires Subcontractor to notify
Contractor at least five (5) more calendar days beforehand, and all necessary water, emergency
power, etc., must be in place prior to shut-off or disruption.

12.1.6 Document procedures to ensure that fire protection and fire life safety
equipment remain operable during demolition.

12.1.7 Provide for all required temporary sheeting, shoring, bracing or other
structural support necessary to ensure stability of the existing structure or adjacent properties and
prevent movement, settlement or collapse during demolition operations. All required temporary
structural support will be designed by a California licensed structural or civil engineer and will
comply with any trenching and shoring requirements in Article 10.

12.1.8 Document procedures to deal with encountering Environmental
Conditions and Unknown Site Conditions.

12.1.9 Document procedures for hauling away and disposal of any demolished
materials and equipment. The procedures should include, among other things, requirements for
refrigerant recovery under the Environmental Protection Agency, a list of all required hauling
permits, requirements for hauling and disposing of hazardous waste, volatile organic compounds
or any other substance that is regulated by Health and Safety Code, the South Coast Air Quality
Management District or any other governmental agency that regulates the proper hauling and
disposal of certain materials and substances.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 196 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 17 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

12.1.10 Document procedures to ensure that removal and replacement of
equipment will not void any existing warranties.

12.1.11 Require a survey of existing conditions and video or photographic
documentation before commencement of the demolition activity to demonstrate existing
conditions of adjacent areas or property.

12.2 Permits and Fees. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will secure all
required hauling permits. The cost for all permits and dumping fees is included in
Subcontractor’s Contract Price, subject to any approved Change Orders for Unknown Site
Conditions or unknown Environmental Conditions in accordance with Article 10.

13. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS

13.1 Water Control. During construction, Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
maintain all trenches and excavated areas free from water accumulation and will provide the
necessary barriers to protect the improvements at the Project site from ponding, running water
and soil erosion. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide for increased drainage of
stormwater and any water that may be applied or discharged on the site during performance of
the construction work. All drainage facilities will be adequate to prevent damage to the
construction work, Project site, and adjacent property. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will construct dikes, if necessary, to divert any increased runoff from entering adjacent property
(except in natural channels), to protect the Project site and the construction work, and to direct
water to drainage channels or conduits. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide
ponding as necessary to prevent downstream flooding.

13.2 Pollution Control. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide a plan
that meets the requirements of California Stormwater Best Management Practices (Stormwater
Quality Task Force, 1993) to prevent the pollution of drains and watercourses by sanitary wastes,
sediment, debris, and other substances and/or soil erosion during construction operations.

13.2.1 No sanitary wastes will be permitted to enter any drain or watercourse other
than sanitary sewers. No sediment, debris, or other substance will be permitted to enter sanitary
sewers without authorization of the receiving sanitary sewer service, and all possible best
management practices will be taken to prevent materials from entering into any drain or watercourse.

13.2.2 In the event that dewatering of excavations is required, Subcontractor or
its tier subcontractors will obtain the necessary permits from local governmental authorities for
discharge of the dewatering effluent. Subcontractor will be responsible for assuring that water
quality of the discharge meets the appropriate permit requirements prior to any discharge.

13.3 Erosion Control. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide an erosion
control plan that is consistent with Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”)
requirements to prevent soil erosion at the Project site and adjacent property resulting from
construction operations. Effective measures will be initiated before commencement of clearing,
grading, excavation, or other operations that will disturb the natural protection.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 197 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 18 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

13.3.1 Erosion and sedimentation control practices will include installation of
silt fences, straw wattle, soil stabilization, revegetation, and runoff control to limit increases in
sediment in stormwater runoff, including but not limited to, detention basins, straw bales, silt
fences, check dams, geo-fabrics, drainage swales, and sandbag dikes.

13.3.2 The construction work will be scheduled to expose areas subject to
erosion for the shortest possible time, and natural vegetation will be preserved to the greatest
extent practicable. Temporary storage and construction buildings will be located, and
construction traffic routed, to minimize erosion. Temporary fast-growing vegetation or other
suitable ground cover will be provided as necessary to control runoff.

13.4 Traffic Control. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of Work,
Contractor will provide a traffic control plan in accordance with the California Department of
Transportation Traffic Manual as part of its site logistics plan. Contractor will submit its traffic
control plan to the Concessionaire and the appropriate agency for approval before commencement of
the construction work. Subcontractor will comply with the approved traffic plan.

13.4.1 Traffic control will include signs, warning lights, reflectors, barriers, and
other necessary safety devices and measures, including sufficient flagmen to direct vehicular traffic
through the construction areas. No material or equipment will be stored or parked where it will
interfere with the free and safe passage of public traffic. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
remove all equipment and other obstructions from the public right-of-way at the end of each day’s
work, and at other times when construction operations are suspended for any reason.

13.4.2 All traffic associated with construction operations, including without
limitation delivery and mail trucks, will enter Contractor’s access gate and road. Subcontractor
or its tier subcontractors will provide signs directing construction and delivery traffic to this gate
and will take all necessary steps to minimize inconvenience to the general public throughout the
construction process. No driveways or private roads will be blocked without notifying the
property owner, and access must be restored during all non-working hours.

13.4.3 Safe access must be maintained for pedestrian traffic throughout any
public work area at all times.

13.4.4 At least one lane of traffic in each direction on all roads used during a
Project must be kept open at all times unless prior approval is provided by any affected agency.
No roads will be blocked or made inaccessible, due to Subcontractor’s or its tier subcontractors’
construction work, without prior written consent of the affected agencies in the form of an
encroachment permit. Under no circumstances will the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
block or obstruct fire lanes at any time.

13.5 Air Pollution Control. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will comply
with all applicable air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances and statutes. All containers
of paint, thinner, curing compound, solvent or liquid asphalt will be labeled to indicate that the
contents fully comply with the applicable material requirements. Dust control will be provided
for all demolition operations and Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will provide dust
control as required for their respective operations.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 198 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 19 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

13.6 Fire Protection Control. Subcontractor will provide fire watch and be
responsible for all fire prevention in connection with its scope of Work. Open fires will not be
permitted on or around the Project site.

13.6.1 The Subcontractor will make chemical fire extinguishers available at the
location where the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors perform any torch cutting or welding
operations. Subcontractor will provide the Contractor with notice prior to undertaking any torch
cutting and welding operations. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, if performing cutting
or welding operations, will undertake all appropriate safety measures including but not limited to
a fire watch, fire extinguishers, and fire blankets and will be responsible for any damage caused
by its operations.

14. SAFETY

14.1 OSHA. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will maintain emergency first
aid treatment for their employees which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.), and California Code of Regulations, Title 8,
Industrial Relations Division 1, Department of Industrial Relations, Chapter 4.

14.2 Health and Safety Plan. Employers on a construction project are responsible for
the health and safety for their workers as regulated by municipal, State, and Federal acts and
regulations. If Contractor does not provide Subcontractor with a safety plan, Subcontractor will
prepare and submit a safety plan that complies with OSHA regulations regarding health and
safety of workers to Contractor before commencement of any construction work. Regardless of
the safety program, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors are obligated to comply with all
Applicable Laws, regulations, and codes concerning safety applicable to the construction work
and to the safety standards established under Applicable Laws during the progress of the Project.

14.3 Signs. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will erect and maintain, as
required by existing conditions and performance of the construction work, reasonable safeguards
for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards,
promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities.

14.4 Weekly Safety Meetings. Subcontractor will hold weekly meetings with its tier
subcontractors to review tier subcontractor compliance with the health and safety program.

14.5 Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”). Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors must comply with all requirements of the Hazard Communication Standard (Title
29, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1910, as amended). Subcontractor will, at a minimum (i)
keep all MSDS on file electronically at the Project site, with regularly updated lists of the MSDS
copied to Contractor; (ii) cause all tier subcontractors and employees to clearly label all hazardous
compounds as to content with appropriate warnings noted and the name and address of the
manufacturer listed; and (iii) ensure that all tier subcontractors and employees using hazardous
compounds are trained in protective handling and are knowledgeable about the potential hazards.

14.6 Safety Walks. Subcontractor will conduct daily jobsite inspections to verify that
the construction work is being performed in a safe and workmanlike manner and in accordance

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 199 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 20 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

with the health and safety program. Subcontractor will provide written notice to its tier
subcontractors demanding immediate correction of any known safety violation.

15. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

15.1 Safety and Protection. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will be
responsible for providing a safe place for the performance of the construction work and for the
physical conditions and safety of areas affected by the Project. Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors will take all necessary precautions to provide for the safety and protection of all
persons who may come in contact with the Project and for all property within or adjacent to the
Project site including adequate precautions to protect existing sidewalks, curbs, pavements,
utilities, and other adjoining property and structures. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
will repair any damage caused by their operations at their own respective expense and will
provide protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

15.1.1 Employees and other persons at the Project site;

15.1.2 Equipment, materials, and vehicles stored at the sites or off-site if under
the care, custody, or control of the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractor;

15.1.3 Existing structures, property and the work of other separate contractors
performing separate work on behalf of the Authority, Concessionaire or Contractor (other than
Subcontractor).

15.2 Requirements. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will:

15.2.1 Enclose the working area with a substantial barricade, and arrange
construction work to cause minimal inconvenience and danger to the public;

15.2.2 Provide substantial barricades around any shrubs or trees indicated to be
preserved;

15.2.3 Ensure that existing facilities, fences and other structures are all adequately
protected and that, upon completion of all construction work, all facilities that may have been
damaged are restored to a condition acceptable to the Contractor, Concessionaire and the Authority;

15.2.4 Preserve and protect from injury all buildings, pole lines and all direction,
warning, and mileage signs that have been placed within the right-of-way.

15.3 Field Offices. All Subcontractor field offices will be constructed of fire resistant
materials. The Subcontractor will coordinate with Contractor regarding site logistics, storage and
field offices as Project site conditions permit. Construction details of the Subcontractor’s or its tier
subcontractor’s field office(s) and their location on the site will be subject to the approval of the
Contractor and Concessionaire, which will not be unreasonably withheld, and will contain adequate
fire protection equipment. Field office relocation, if required, will be at the Subcontractor’s expense.

15.4 Temporary Protection. Subcontractor will provide barricades (lighted, if
required), fences, and protection necessary for general safety as related to its scope of work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 200 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 21 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Subcontractor will notify the Contractor 48 hours prior to removing any safety installation.
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors who damage or remove safety or protective work during
the performance of their respective construction work will be responsible for the immediate
restoration of the safety or protective installations to ensure continuous compliance with all
applicable safety regulations and any safety requirements per OSHA regulations.

15.5 Damages to Materials and Equipment. Subcontractor is responsible to notify
the Contractor of any damage to material or equipment during the Project and will immediately
repair or restore the damage to the satisfaction of the Contractor and Concessionaire.

15.6 Precautionary Measures. These precautionary measures will apply
continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.

15.7 Investigation and Reporting. If damage to persons or property occurs as a result
of construction work during the Project, Subcontractor will be responsible for proper investigation
and documentation, including video or photography, to adequately memorialize and make a record
of what transpired. The Contractor and Concessionaire will be entitled to inspect and copy any
documentation, video, or photographs.

16. TEMPORARY FACILITIES

16.1 Temporary Electricity. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of
work, Contractor will provide, maintain, and pay for temporary electrical power at the Project site
for construction purposes and trailers. In certain situations, permanent power may be available
through Authority, but Subcontractor must provide all necessary wiring and appurtenances for
connection to Authority’s facilities system. Contractor will meter all connections to determine
usage rates. For smaller loads, such as test equipment, work area lighting, and small hand tools,
Subcontractor may use existing electrical circuits following approval in writing by Contractor.

16.2 Temporary Communications. Subcontractor will provide, maintain, and pay for
all applicable communications and data service connections for its field offices, including all
installation and connection charges.

16.3 Temporary Water. Subcontractor will provide, maintain, and pay for all
required potable water required for construction field personnel as well as water required for and in
connection with its construction operations such as dust control. Unnecessary waste of water will
not be permitted. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors must use special hydrant wrenches for
opening and closing fire hydrants in lieu of pipe wrenches.

16.4 Temporary Fences. Subcontractor will provide all necessary temporary fencing
and gates required for the Project site. Temporary fencing will be subject to restrictions in the
use permit. Subcontractor will maintain all fences through Final Completion of the construction
work. Gates are to remain closed and locked during off-hours.

16.5 Temporary Sanitary Facilities. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s
scope of work, Contractor will provide and maintain all required temporary toilets for use of all
construction personnel and field labor through Final Completion of the construction work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 201 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 22 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Location of temporary sanitary facilities must be approved by Contractor prior to delivery.
Contractor will provide at least one (1) temporary toilet facility for every 20 persons. Unless
otherwise permitted, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will cause all construction
personnel (including field labor) to use temporary sanitary facilities rather than the Authority’s
facilities. All temporary sanitary facilities will comply with the Department of Health standards.

16.6 Temporary Barriers and Enclosures. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will provide barriers to prevent unauthorized entry to construction areas, to allow for safe use of
the Project site, and to protect existing facilities and adjacent properties from damage from
construction operations.

16.7 Construction Equipment and Aids. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
furnish, install, maintain, and operate all construction equipment required by the performance of
the construction work. Construction aids include elevators and hoists, cranes, temporary
enclosures, swing staging, scaffolding and temporary stairs. When sandblasting, spray painting,
spraying of insulation, or other activities inconveniencing or dangerous to property or the health
of construction personnel or the public are in progress, Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will enclose the area of activity to contain the dust, over-spray, or other hazard.

16.8 Removal of Temporary Facilities and Equipment. Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors will remove all temporary utilities, equipment, facilities, and materials before
final inspection of the Project and clean and repair any damage caused by installation or use of
temporary work restoring Authority’s existing facilities to their original conditions.

17. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL

17.1 Testing and Inspection. Materials and equipment to be furnished under the
Contract Documents are subject to testing and inspection.

17.2 Permits, Licenses, and Certificates. Subcontractor will submit to Contractor
record copies of the all permits, licenses, certifications, inspection reports, releases, jurisdictional
settlements, notices, receipts for fee payments, judgments, and other similar documentation
demonstrating compliance with standards and regulations bearing on performance of the
construction work.

17.3 Quality Control Plan. Subcontractor will assist Contractor to prepare and
submit to the Concessionaire for approval a plan that describes the procedures and methods
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will utilize to control the quality of the construction
work. The Quality Control Plan must be approved before the start of construction and will
reflect any testing and inspection requirements. Contractor may require revisions of the Quality
Control Plan that are necessary to ensure the specified quality of the construction work.
Contractor and Subcontractor will assign appropriate site personnel to oversee quality control.
At a minimum, the Quality Control Plan will provide information regarding the following:

17.3.1 Quality control supervision and document control;

17.3.2 Identification of personnel for required training and qualification activities;

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 202 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 23 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

17.3.3 Procedures for testing and inspections that identify individual inspection
or testing points and acceptance criteria, and include provisions for recording results and the
responsible inspection/test personnel;

17.3.4 Procedures for identifying what applicable technical and quality
requirements will be required of vendors supplying materials, parts and services to ensure
compliance with the approved Construction Documents;

17.3.5 Procedures for receiving, inspecting and accepting materials and
equipment. The procedures will include, at a minimum, examination of the physical condition
for compliance with the approved Construction Documents, purchase order and/or subcontract
agreement, and identifying and processing any non-conforming goods;

17.3.6 Provisions for identifying and timely remedying non-conforming or
defective construction work;

17.3.7 Documentation control to maintain records of the activities included in the
Quality Control Plan. All documentation will be submitted to Contractor for submission to
Concessionaire as part of the close-out documentation for the Project and therefore must be
logically organized and indexed for reference.

17.4 Manufacturer’s Field Services. To the extent required, Subcontractor will
engage a factory-authorized service representative to inspect field-assembled components and
equipment installation, including service connections. All manufacturers’ field service reports
must be in writing and included as part of the records turned over to Contractor during close-out.

17.5 Quality Control Reports. Subcontractor will keep daily Quality Control Reports
throughout the duration of the construction process certifying that the relevant areas of the
construction work have been inspected. The Quality Control Reports will be prepared, signed
and dated by the Subcontractor’s personnel identified as the supervisor in the Quality Control
Plan and will include, at a minimum, the following information:

17.5.1 Identification of the material, equipment or component that was
inspected and indicate, if applicable, if the submittals have been reviewed and approved;

17.5.2 Indicate that all materials and/or equipment that have not been installed
have been properly stored and protected;

17.5.3 Indicate that the construction work has been coordinated by
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, that all required preliminary work has been inspected
by the Quality Control personnel and was properly performed, and that the area is ready to
receive subsequent construction work. If the construction work is not acceptable, provide a
written description of any re-work required in the area inspected with an explanation of the cause
of the re-work (including which tier subcontractors are involved), any cost involved in the
required re-work, and the expected completion date of the required re-work;

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 203 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 24 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

17.5.4 Results of any off-site testing or quality control work and any required
further actions;

17.5.5 Other necessary information including, directions received, quality
control problem areas, deviations from the Quality Control Plan, construction deficiencies
encountered, Quality Control meetings held, acknowledgement that as-built drawings or building
information models have been updated (if applicable), corrective direction given by Quality
Control personnel, and corrective action taken by Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors.

17.6 Test and Inspection Logs. Subcontractor will maintain an on-site inspection log
that is accessible by the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority, independent engineer, testing
agency, special inspector, and any governmental authority with jurisdiction over the Project.
Subcontractor will timely provide information necessary for Subcontractor to maintain the log with
respect to Subcontractor’s scope of work. The log will document all tests and inspections performed
on the Project during construction. The record of tests will include the following information:

17.6.1 Request for Inspection;

17.6.2 Date test or inspection was conducted;

17.6.3 Identity of testing agency or special inspector;

17.6.4 Description of the construction work tested or inspected;

17.6.5 Identification of any drawings or applicable details on the approved
Construction Documents or submittals that were used during testing and inspection;

17.6.6 Date that the test or inspection was concluded and the date that the results
were transmitted to Contractor.

18. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

18.1 Notices. Subcontractor will give all notices and comply with all Applicable
Laws, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on conduct of its construction work. If
Subcontractor observes that the Construction Documents are at variance with any laws, ordinances,
etc., Subcontractor will promptly notify the Contractor, in writing, and any necessary changes will
be made. If Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors perform any construction work knowing it to be
contrary to Applicable Law and without notice to the Contractor, Subcontractor will bear all costs
associated with any required corrections or repairs.

18.2 Americans with Disabilities. Subcontractor will be responsible for familiarity
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) in relation to
requirements related to the construction work.

19. NOTICE OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS

19.1 Third-Party Claims. Contractor will provide Subcontractor with timely
notification of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to the Subcontractor’s work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 204 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 25 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Subcontractor will provide Contractor with timely notification of the receipt of any third-party
claims relating to the Subcontractor’s work.

20. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION.

20.1 Subcontractor’s Certification. Subcontractor certifies, and will cause its tier
subcontractors to certify, that it has complied with Government Code section 8355 relating to a
drug-free workplace and will address these requirements in its health and safety program.
Subcontractor will submit a certificate under penalty of perjury stating that Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will:

20.1.1 Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the
person’s or organization’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violations of the prohibition;

20.1.2 Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
(i) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (ii) the person’s or organization’s policy of
maintaining a drug-free workplace; (iii) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and (iv) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for
drug abuse violations;

20.1.3 Subcontractor will require that each employee, as well as tier
subcontractors and each of their respective employees, performing construction work on the
Project be given a copy of the statement required by Section 20.1.1 and that the employee agrees
to abide by the terms of the statement as a condition of employment.

21. NONDISCRIMINATION/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

21.1 Non-Discrimination Policy. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1735 and other
applicable provisions of law, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will not discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national
origin, age, political affiliation, marital status, or disability in the performance of its obligations
under the Contract Documents. Subcontractor will take affirmative action to ensure that
employees are treated during employment or training without regard to their race, color, religion,
sex, national origin, age, political affiliation, marital status, or disability and will comply with the
following requirements:

21.1.1 During the performance of the Contract Documents, Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will not deny benefits to any person on the basis of religion, color, ethnic group
identification, sex, age, physical or mental disability, nor will they discriminate unlawfully against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40) or
sex. Subcontractor will ensure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for
employment are free of discrimination.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 205 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 26 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

21.1.2 Subcontractor will comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment
and Housing Act (Gov. Code section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder
(Cal. Admin. Code, Tit. 2, sections 7285.0 et seq.), and the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1,
Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Gov. Code sections 11135-11139.5).

21.1.3 Subcontractor will permit access by representatives of the Department of
Fair Employment and Housing upon reasonable notice at any time during the normal business
hours, but in no case less than 24 hours' notice, to its books, records, accounts, other sources of
information and its facilities as the Department requires to ascertain compliance with this clause.

21.1.4 Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will give written notice of their
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have collective bargaining or
other agreements.

21.1.5 Subcontractor will include the nondiscrimination and compliance
provisions of this clause in all subcontracts.

22. OWNERSHIP OF DESIGN DOCUMENTS

22.1 Non-Exclusive, Irrevocable License. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
and consultants each assign or grant to Contractor and Concessionaire a non-exclusive, irrevocable
license with respect to all Intellectual Property that is required to complete the design and
construction of the Project or otherwise required for Contractor to perform its services under the
Prime Contract including any Intellectual Property regarding the operation and management of the
Project facility. With respect to Intellectual Property that is licensed by Subcontractor or an
affiliate of Subcontractor from any design professional, tier subcontractor or other person or entity,
or any Intellectual Property that is owned by Subcontractor, an affiliate of Subcontractor or any of
Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors or consultants, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors and
consultants each assign or grant to Contractor a non-exclusive, irrevocable license for the
additional purpose of completing the design and construction of the Project, but only to the extent
that such license is required in order to properly design and construct the Project facility in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract.

22.1.1 Exceptions. The following exceptions apply:

22.1.1.1 Nothing contained in Section 22.1 limits the rights, title and
interest of the Subcontractor, or any of its design professional or their design consultants, or any
design-build tier subcontractor, or vendor to continue to use their respective general design
details that each of them uses or has used on multiple projects, or new standard design details
that were or may be developed during design of the Project.

22.1.1.2 If Subcontractor is providing design-build services and
Subcontractor is terminated rather than assigned to Concessionaire before completion of its
services and Concessionaire or Contractor uses incomplete design documents for further work or
services connected with the Project, then Concessionaire and Contractor will each release the
Subcontractor from claims and causes of action arising from further development of the design-
build documents. However, the design professional who was responsible for the design-build

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 206 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 27 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

documents will remain liable to Contractor, Concessionaire and Authority for the information
contained therein prior to the termination date, and other design professionals retained by the
Contractor, Concessionaire and/or Authority to complete the Project will be entitled to rely on
the accuracy of the information reflected in those design-build documents. Concessionaire and
Contractor, as applicable, will indemnify and hold the Subcontractor and its designers harmless
from claims and causes of action arising out of future use of the design-build documents but only
to the extent that the claims or causes of action arise from the further development of the design-
build documents after the termination date and provided that the error and omission was not
present in the design-build documents prepared by the Subcontractor or its designers or caused
by the negligent performance of the design-build services for the Project.

22.2 Statutory Copyright. All copies made under this license will bear the statutory
copyright notice, if any, shown on the Intellectual Property. Submittal or distribution to meet
official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be
construed as publication in derogation of the copyright or other reserved rights and interests.

23. TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS.

23.1 Employees. Subcontractor warrants that Subcontractor has not employed or
retained any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for
subcontractor, to solicit or secure this Subcontract and that has not paid or agreed to pay any
person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Subcontractor, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Subcontract.

23.2 Contract Price. Subcontractor warrants that the prices for the services sold
Contractor hereunder are not less favorable than those currently extended to any other customer
of Subcontractor for the same or similar services in similar quantities. Subcontractor further
warrants that wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate,
complete and current at the time of the Subcontract. The Subcontractor agrees that the original
Contract Price and any additions thereto may be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by
which Contractor or Concessionaire determines the Contract Price was increased due to
inaccurate, incomplete, or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs.

23.3 Gratuities. The Subcontractor represents and warrants that in connection with its
performance of this Subcontract, it has not or will not, directly or indirectly, pay, give, offer,
promise to pay or give, or authorize the payment or giving of any money, gift, or things of value
to any governmental official, political party, or candidate for political office; or to any person
who knowingly will give all or a portion of the money, gift, or thing of value to any such official
in its official capacity. Breach of this representation or warranty will be considered a default
under the terms of this Subcontract and will, in addition to any other remedies, entitle Contractor
to recover all amounts paid to Subcontractor under this Subcontract.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 207 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 28 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

24. COMMUNICATIONS.

24.1 Inquiries. All inquiries the Subcontractor may have concerning this Subcontract
will be made to Contractor and not directly to the Concessionaire.

24.2 Correspondence. All of Subcontractor’s written correspondence or
communication regarding this Subcontract will include Contractor’s Subcontract Number and
Work description, and shall be mailed or delivered to Contractor’s designated representative.

25. CLEAN UP AND RECYCLING

25.1 Material Recycling. Subcontractor will endeavor to reduce the amount of waste
material generated during construction. Construction waste that is unavoidably generated will be
segregated into recyclable and non-recyclable materials. Recyclable materials will preferably be
reused during construction, but if reuse is not practical, will be recycled rather than being
transported to a landfill.

25.2 Cleaning Up. Subcontractor will keep the premises and surrounding area free
from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by the work of Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors. At completion of the construction work, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
are responsible for removing their waste materials, rubbish, construction tools and equipment,
machinery and surplus materials from and about the Project site. If Subcontractor fails to clean
up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Concessionaire or Contractor may do so and the
cost associated with the clean-up will be at Subcontractor’s sole expense.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 208 of 495



Page I-1 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT I 
 

WAIVER & RELEASE FORMS 
 
 

See attached. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 209 of 495



Page I-2 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON PROGRESS PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8132) 

 
NOTICE:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES THE CLAIMANT’S LIEN, STOP PAYMENT NOTICE, 
AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS EFFECTIVE ON RECEIPT OF PAYMENT. A PERSON 
SHOULD NOT RELY ON THIS DOCUMENT UNLESS SATISFIED THAT THE CLAIMANT 
HAS RECEIVED PAYMENT. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 

Name                                                              of                                                              Claimant:  

  Name                                                                of                                                                

Customer:    

Job                                                                                                                                   Location:  

  Owner: 

Through Date:    
 

Conditional Waiver and Release 
 

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has for labor  
and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job through the Through Date   
of this document. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a 
written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. This document is effective 
only on the claimant’s receipt of payment from the financial institution on which the following check is drawn: 

 

Maker of Check:     

Amount of Check: $     

Check Payable to:    
Exceptions 

 

This document does not affect any of the following: 
 

(1) Retentions; 
(2) Extras for which the claimant has not received payment; 
(3) The following progress payments for which the claimant has previously given a conditional waiver and 

release but has not received payment: 
Date(s) of waiver and release:    

 

Amount(s) of unpaid progress payment(s): $     
(4) Contract rights, including: 

(A) a right based on rescission, abandonment, or breach of contract; and 
(B) the right to recover compensation for work not compensated by the payment. 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s Title:    

 

Date of Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 210 of 495



Page I-3 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON PROGRESS PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8134) 

 
NOTICE TO CLAIMANT:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP 
PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES 
THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS 
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. 
IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 
Name                                                       of                                                       Claimant:  
  Name                                                         of                                                         
Customer:    
Job                                                                                                                    Location:  
  Owner: 
Through Date:    

 

Unconditional Waiver and Release 
 

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job through 
the Through Date of this document.  Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or 
material delivered, pursuant to a written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to 
the date that this document is signed by the claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless 
listed as an Exception below.  The claimant has received the following progress payment: 

 
$     

 

Exceptions 
 

This document does not affect any of the following: 
 

(1) Retentions; 
(2) Extras for which the claimant has not received payment; 
(3) Contract rights, including: 

(A) a right based on rescission, abandonment, or breach of contract, and 
(B) the right to recover compensation for work not compensated by the payment. 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s 
Title: 

 

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 211 of 495



Page I-4 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8136) 

 
NOTICE:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES THE CLAIMANT’S LIEN, STOP PAYMENT NOTICE, 
AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS EFFECTIVE ON RECEIPT OF PAYMENT. A PERSON 
SHOULD NOT RELY ON THIS DOCUMENT UNLESS SATISFIED THAT THE CLAIMANT 
HAS RECEIVED PAYMENT. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 
Name of Claimant:    

Name of Customer:    

Job Location:    
 

Owner: 
 

Conditional Waiver and Release 
 
This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job.  Rights 
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change 
order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. This document 
is effective only on the claimant’s receipt of payment from the financial institution on which the 
following check is drawn: 

 
Maker of Check:     

Amount of Check: $     

Check Payable to:    
 

Exceptions 
 
This document does not affect any of the following: 

 
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $    

 
 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

Claimant’s Title:    

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 212 of 495



Page I-5 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT 
 

(CA CIVIL CODE §8138) 
 
NOTICE TO CLAIMANT:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP 
PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES 
THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS 
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. 
IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM. 

 
Identifying Information: 

 
Name                                                      of                                                      Claimant:  
  Name                                                        of                                                        
Customer:    
Job                                                                                                                  Location:  
  Owner: 

 
 

Unconditional Waiver and Release 
 
This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job. Rights 
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change 
order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. The claimant 
has been paid in full. 

 
Exceptions 

 
This document does not affect any of the following: 

 
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $     

 
 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s 
Title: 

 

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 213 of 495



Page J-1 Exhibit J Warranty Form 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT J 

WARRANTY FORM 
 

 
 
  (Project/Component)   

 

  (Location)   
 
 
We hereby guarantee the  (Project/Component) that we have constructed for a 
period of one year from (Date) , which is the date of Substantial Completion of the Project or 
within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Applicable Law or by the terms of any 
applicable special guarantee or extended warranty required by the Contract Documents. 

 
The following are excluded from the provisions of this warranty: 

 
 
 
 

We agree that if any of the equipment should fail due to any reason other than improper maintenance or 
improper operation, if any pipe or appurtenances should develop leakage, or if any settlement of fill or 
backfill occurs, or should any portion of the Work fail to fulfill any of the requirements of the Contract 
Documents, we will, within five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such defects, provide on-site 
troubleshooting services, and within 10 days after receipt of written notice, commence to repair or replace 
the same together with any other work which may be damaged or displaced in so doing. 

 
In the event of our failure to comply with the abovementioned conditions or should the exigencies of the 
case require repairs or replacements to be made before we can be notified or respond to notification, we do 
hereby authorize Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. to proceed to have the defect repaired and 
made good at our expense, and we will pay the cost therefor upon demand.  We acknowledge and agree 
that Rialto Water Services, LLC has an express right to enforce this warranty or to proceed to have the 
defect repaired and made good at our sole expense should Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. fail 
to timely do so. 

 
The warranty provided herein shall not be in lieu of, but shall be in addition to, any warranties or 
other obligations otherwise imposed by the Contract Documents and by Applicable Law. 

 
Contractor:   

 

Signed:   
 

Title:   
 

Date:   

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 214 of 495



 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

PROJECT:  Veolia – City of Rialto Water Facility Improvement Program 

 Project S3 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Sycamore 

 

DATE: June 3, 2016 

 

TO: All Holders of Record of Contract Documents 

 

Bidders for the above named project shall take note of the following changes, additions, deletions, 

clarifications, etc., in the Contact Documents, which shall become part of the Contract Documents, and 

shall be taken into consideration and be included in the Bid. 

 

Please acknowledge Addendum No. 1 in the Bid in the space provided as evidence that the Bidder has 

received and reviewed this Addendum and has followed instructions outlined herein. 

 

 

 

       

Company Name 

 

 

 

       

Signature  

 

Confirming Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum No. _____  

 

 

 

   

Date  

 

 

 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 215 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT WE LARGE VALVE REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Page 1 

 

 

 

Contract documents for the subject project shall be amended as follows: 

 

1. On BF-3, NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), bid date: 

 Change, “Bids are due and will be opened by Tuesday June 7, 2016 by 5:00PM PST”  

 To: 

 “Bids are due and will be opened by Wednesday June 15, 2016 by 5:00 PM PST.”  

2. On Page BF-3, NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), disclosure of bids date: 

Change, “Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and 

will be revealed no later than June 10, 2016.”  

To: 

“Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and will be 

revealed no later than July 13, 2016.” 

3. On Page BF-9, Bid Schedule sheet: 

See the attached revised bid schedule including new line items such as: 

 

CCTV Pre & Post Inspection 

Insurance & Business License 

Payment and Performance Bonds 

Manhole Rehabilitations 

 

4. On Page BF-31, MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT under 5. Sewer Lateral Service Connections: 

 

After, “Payment for sewer lateral service connections will be made at the Contract unit price per 

each acceptable connection made.” 

 

Add the following sentence: 

 

“by method of inserted branch saddle.” 

 

5. On Page BF-33, MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT: 

 

After “9. Street Repairs” and before “END OF SECTION” 

 

 Added the following sections: 

 

“10. CCTV Pre & Post Inspection: Payment for Pre & Post CCTV inspection will be made at the 

Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, equipment, labor, coordination, and all 

other items necessary for closed circuit color television video inspection required before and after 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 216 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT WE LARGE VALVE REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Page 2 

 

 

construction work. See page BF-53, 02776-5 of 8 Section III “VIDEO INSPECTION” which 

shall be applicable to both before and after CCTV inspection.” 

 

“11. Insurance & Business License: Payment for Insurance & Business License will be made at 

the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, labor, delivery, clerical & 

administrative work, coordination, and all other items necessary for Insurance requirements to be 

fulfilled per the Contract and a valid Business license per the City requirements. See page BF-

121, EXHIBIT G INSURANCE.” 

 

“12. Payment & Performance Bonds: Payment for Payment and Performance Bonds will be made 

at the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, labor, delivery, clerical & 

administrative work, coordination, and all other items necessary for Insurance requirements to be 

fulfilled per the Contract. See page BF-17, PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDS. Each the 

Payment bond will have the additional obligees listed and the Performance bond will have the 

additional obligees needed.” 

 

“13. Manhole Rehabilitations: Work under this item shall include, but not be limited to, 

furnishing all equipment, labor, material, and appurtenances necessary to replace existing 

manholes, as directed by the Engineer. The work shall consist of pavement removal, excavation, 

demolition, removal of existing manhole, disposal of removed materials, construction of new 

manhole base or installation of a precast manhole base, installation of new precast manhole 

sections, and installation of frame and cover concrete work, including the addition of new 

concrete, in order to form a proper manhole channel and bench to the heights and dimensions per 

City Standards. The work shall also consist of the sealing of the inlet and outlet pipe outer 

diameters with grout to close all gaps as directed by the Engineer. The work shall also consist of 

all regrouting & relining of manhole to construct a complete manhole per City Standards, 

backfill, and pavement restoration as necessary. The work shall also consist of all incidental work 

including sewer bypass pumping. All work shall be as necessary.” See Page BF-57 in reference to 

the entire Section 07950 MANHOLE REHABILITATIONS. 

 

6. On Page BF-53, Section 02776 5 of 8, Section II: 

 

After “These flows are estimated only” under section G, add the following sentence: 

 

“Assumptions that can be made is that sewer runs ¾ full of the existing pipe.” 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 217 of 495



 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

PROJECT:  Veolia – City of Rialto Water Facility Improvement Program 

 Project S3 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Sycamore 

 

DATE: June 30, 2016 

 

TO: All Holders of Record of Contract Documents 

 

Bidders for the above named project shall take note of the following changes, additions, deletions, 

clarifications, etc., in the Contact Documents, which shall become part of the Contract Documents, and 

shall be taken into consideration and be included in the Bid. 

 

Please acknowledge Addendum No. 2 in the Bid in the space provided as evidence that the Bidder has 

received and reviewed this Addendum and has followed instructions outlined herein. 

 

 

 

       

Company Name 

 

 

 

       

Signature  

 

Confirming Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum No. _____  

 

 

 

   

Date  

 

 

 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 218 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT WE LARGE VALVE REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

Page 1 

 

 

 

Contract documents for the subject project shall be amended as follows: 

 

1. On BF-3, NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), bid date: 

 1. On Page BF-12, in section 8.5.1 Liquidated Damages: 

 

Replace “[optional]” with [optional].   
 

“[optional]” and fill in the blank in section 8.5.1 Liquidated Damages with “$1,000” such that the 

section of the contract reads as follows: 

 

“8.5.1 Liquidated Damages [optional].  The Contractor and Subcontractor acknowledge and 
agree that if Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time, the 
Contractor will suffer damages that are both extremely difficult and impracticable to ascertain. 
Therefore, Contractor and Subcontractor agree that, in the event Subcontractor fails to achieve 
Substantial Completion within the Contract Time and if as a result of that delay the Substantial 
Completion Date is extended, Subcontractor will pay to Contractor as liquidated damages, and 
not as a penalty, the amount of $1,000 per calendar day until such time that Substantial 
Completion is achieved. Payment of liquidated damages represents a reasonable estimate of 
fair compensation for the losses that reasonably may be anticipated. Contractor and 
Subcontractor acknowledge and agree that this liquidated damages provision will be 
Contractor’s only remedy for delay damages caused by Subcontractor’s failure to achieve 
Substantial Completion within its Contract Time. Nothing contained in this Section 8.5.1 will 
preclude the Contractor from recovery for actual damages caused by reasons other than the 
Subcontractor’s failure to timely achieve Substantial Completion within its Contract Time 
including, but not limited to, claims for actual losses incurred due to breach of contract, 
negligence, defective work, injury to persons or property or third party claims.  Subcontractor 
acknowledges and agrees that the liquidated damages amount is a reasonable amount for the 
Contractor’s consequential damages due to delay under the circumstances and existing at the 
time of the Effective Date of this Subcontract. 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 219 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S3 Sewer Replacement – Sycamore Ave. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 – Insurance and Bond documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 220 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 221 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 222 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 223 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 224 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 225 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 226 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 227 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 228 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 229 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 230 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 231 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 232 of 495



POLICY NUMBER: GLO0197854-00 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
 CG 20 12 04 13
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CG 20 12 04 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services | Uniform FormsTM 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL  
AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL  

SUBDIVISION – PERMITS OR AUTHORIZATIONS 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision: 
 
City of Rialto, Concessionaire, Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc., Rialto Utility Authority, a California 
joint powers authority ("RUA"), Rialto Water Services, LLC ("RWS, LLC), Union Bank, N.A., Secured Parties 
and Separate Contractors as notified by the Concessionaire, and each of their respective officers, directors, 
employees and affiliates 
 
 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.
 
A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to 

include as an additional insured any state or 
governmental agency or subdivision or political 
subdivision shown in the Schedule, subject to the 
following provisions:  

 1. This insurance applies only with respect to 
operations performed by you or on your behalf 
for which the state or governmental agency or 
subdivision or political subdivision has issued a 
permit or authorization.  
However:  

 a. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted 
by law; and  

 b. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

 2. This insurance does not apply to:  
 a. "Bodily injury", "property damage" or 

"personal and advertising injury" arising out 
of operations performed for the federal 
government, state or municipality; or  

 b. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
included within the "products-completed 
operations hazard".  

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section III – Limits Of Insurance:  
If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or  
 2. Available under the applicable Limits of 

Insurance shown in the Declarations;  
whichever is less.  
This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 233 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 234 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 235 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 236 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 237 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 238 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 239 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 240 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 241 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 242 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 243 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 244 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 245 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 246 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 247 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 248 of 495



 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECTS 

File:  014050/9651400090      SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC   5-28 
 

CITY OF RIALTO 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

 

Concession Agreement Project S4 
 

SEWER PIPE REPLACEMENTS 
 
Design and Permitting: Varies 
Construction: Varies                                              Project Costs: $681,206 
SAIC Asset Management CIP Project S4 

 

Need for Project: 

Existing sewer pipe replacements are needed to relieve current capacity issues which may cause 

sewer backups and surcharging, reduce system maintenance efforts, and to provide additional 

capacity for future development growth.   

Background: 

The location of the sewer mains to be replaced is along Willow Avenue north of Foothill Blvd. 

and along Foothill Blvd. between Willow Avenue and Lilac.  Existing sewer mains in this area 

are old and undersized for existing flow conditions.  The proposed sewer replacements are also 

in an area where the current sewer system operator, Veolia, reports frequent maintenance 

problems.   

Recommended Solution: 

The proposed solution will consist of the replacement of approximately 2,100 linear feet of an 

existing undersized 8-inch diameter sewer pipe along Willow Avenue with larger 12-inch 

diameter pipe.  In addition, the replacement of approximately 1,300 linear feet of an existing 

undersized 8-inch diameter sewer pipe along Foothill Blvd. with larger 12-inch diameter pipe.  

These proposed replacement pipes will relieve the current problems and provide additional 

capacity for future development growth.  See Figure S4 for an illustration of the pipes that are 

proposed for replacement. 

Output and Benefits:  

The proposed CIP project will relieve current capacity issues that are the cause of sewer 

backups and surcharging.  In addition, the sewer pipe replacements will reduce the wastewater 

system maintenance efforts and provide additional capacity for future growth. 

 Options:  

Doing nothing will result in the continued maintenance issues which will be exacerbated by 

future development.     

Budget Discussion: 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 249 of 495



 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECTS 

File:  014050/9651400090      SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC   5-29 
 

The total estimated cost for this project is $681,206.  Refer to Table 5-2 for a breakdown of the 

cost estimate and back-up data. 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 250 of 495



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!
!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

250-5 250-7250-6250-1

234-8

250-4250-3250-2

266-8 266-9

266-2

266-1

234-9

250-9

265-64

250-18

249-38

234-70

250-38

233-68

234-29

250-29

250-28

249-45

233-64

250-61

250-60

250-23

250-30

234-42234-28234-27

234-35

250-63

250-62

233-49233-47233-46

250-59

233-58

250-31

234-44

234-43

250-32

249-47

234-34234-33

233-48

234-75

250-33

250-34

250-43
250-42 250-44

250-11

234-30

234-66234-65

250-13

250-12

249-41

266-17

249-36

233-59

249-46

249-37

233-45

250-68

250-14

249-40
249-51

250-22

250-72

250-71

249-48

250-37

234-32234-31

250-48250-47

250-35 250-36

250-56250-55

249-50
249-49

250-58250-57

234-72

234-71

250-46250-45

250-10

250-69

250-19

249-72

249-58

250-67250-66

249-64

265-27

233-66

249-56

249-31

249-26

233-67

233-63

249-62

249-65

250-65250-64

249-53249-52

250-16

265-35

233-60

249-66

249-44

249-60
249-59

249-43

233-65

265-30

249-61

249-57

249-18

250-17

266-34 266-35
265-69

233-53233-52

249-71249-70

250-15249-67

250-21250-20

265-26

249-42

233-62233-61

266-16
266-15

233-44

265-63

265-36

249-74249-73

249-39249-23

249-54

266-21

234-10

250-25
250-24

265-38

265-37

234-62234-61

265-29265-28

249-63

249-55

249-35

LIL
AC

 AV
E

WI
LL

OW
 AV

E

ALLEY

VIS
TA

 AV
E

VE
RD

E A
VE

MI
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

CL
IFF

OR
D A

VE

PA
RK

 AV
E

CL
IFF

OR
D A

VE

ALLEY

PA
RK

 AV
E

ALLEYALLEY

Source: Esri, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, GeoEye, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, and the GIS User Community

500 0 500250
Feet

±
Figure S4

Five Year Sewer
Capital Improvement Project

Rialto Sewer Master Plan

CIP  #S4

Legend
Rialto City Limits
Sewer Service Area
Freeway/Highway
Local Road
Rail Road

 
Sewer Lines

Existing Pipelines
Pipe Replacements

CIP  #S4

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 251 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

FINAL CONSTRUCTION WORK AUTHORIZATION 

Project 

S4 Sewer Replacement on N. Willow.   

 

Scope of Work 

The following narrative is taken directly from the Concession Agreement (CA): 
 
Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow and W. Foothill (3,950 feet total). 
Problem or Opportunity: Sewers are surcharged and/or could overflow under current conditions. 
Recommended Solution: Replace 2,630’ of 8” with 12” on N. Willow; and 1,320’ of 8” with 12” 
on W. Foothill. 
Measurable Benefits: No surcharge or overflow under current conditions. 
Basis of Recommendation: RW Beck hydraulic modeling. Surcharging confirmed on N. Willow 
with Veolia operator. 
Assumptions / Risks: The proposed improvements reflect internal growth but not external growth 
such as the proposed Lytle Creek development. Normal construction risks associated with 
unknown underground conditions exist. 
 
Veolia’s value engineering: 

The CA estimated replacement of 3,950 feet of sewer main replacement along N. Willow and W. 
Foothill. After Veolia performed value engineering studies of these sewer mains it was 
determined that only approximately 2,090 feet of sewer needed replacement along Willow Ave. 
There are also 31 sewer lateral connections that will be addressed which the CA did not include 
in its estimate. The method for construction will be through pipe bursting from existing 8’’ pipe 
to 12’’. Surcharge is constantly observed along Willow Ave. 

 

Cost Estimate 

See Attachment 2 – Final Cost Sheet with total cost of $849,967. 

The CA estimated cost for the project was $820,000 the actual market cost for the project is 
$849,967. 

 

Schedule 

See Attachment 3. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 252 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 
Notice of Inviting Bids, Request for Bid (RFB) and Addendum 
 
See Attachment 4. 
 
 
 
Construction Contract and Technical Specification 
 
See Attachment 4 – Refer to PDF pages 29 to 74 for the Technical Specifications. Refer to PDF 
pages 75 to 173 for the Contract. 
 
 
 
Insurance and Bonding Requirement 
 
See Attachment 5. 
 
 
 
Acceptance Testing 
 
See Attachment 4 - Refer to the Technical Specifications sections: 
 
 
Page 53; Section 02776 Part III, Video Inspection 
 
Page 55; Section 02776 Part III, Section V. Field Testing 
 
Page 59; Section 07950 Part 3.3 Preliminary Inspection 
 
Page 60; Section 07950 Part 3.7 Inspection and testing of lining 
 
 
 
 
Major Assumptions 
 
No major assumptions underlie this Wastewater Facility Improvement.  
 
 
 
Other Provisions 
 
Upon completion of construction, provide a Notice of Completion and information required for 
GASB 34.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 253 of 495



Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

Employment Impact 

Ferreira Construction Co, Inc. based out of Chino, CA, Veolia’s subcontractor, anticipates 7 
employees will be expended to complete the project. No new employees will be hired for this 
work. None of the current employees reside in Rialto, CA. Therefore, the investment of 
$849,967 for Project S4 will not be creating any new jobs to the market; however, it will keep 
the current workforce employed. The contractor has 27 years of experience in the nature of work 
that this project covers. 

Approval by Rialto Utility Authority of Conceptual Design Report: 

Approved on: _________October 10, 2014_______________________ 

Approval by Rialto Utility Authority of Substantial Complete Design: 

Approved on: ________April 13, 2016________________________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 254 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 255 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 – Scope of Work 

 

The CA estimated replacement of 3,950 feet of sewer main replacement along N. Willow and W. 
Foothill. After Veolia performed value engineering studies of these sewer mains it was 
determined that only approximately 2,090 feet of sewer needed replacement along Willow Ave. 
There are also 31 sewer lateral connections that will be addressed which the CA did not include 
in its estimate. The method for construction will be through pipe bursting from existing 8’’ pipe 
to 12’’. Surcharge is constantly observed along Willow Ave. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 256 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 – Final Cost Sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 257 of 495



ver. 8.9.16
Item Description Quantity Unit Total Cost

1 Mobilization 1 LS 32,600$                     
2 Traffic Control 1 LS 33,655$                     

3
General Conditions/Construction Site 
Management/BMP's

1 LS 7,262$                        

4 Potholing 1 LS 10,645$                     
5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 31 EA 76,570$                     

6
Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-
inch (Etiwanda Ave. & Willow Ave.)

2090 LF 236,170$                   

7 Sewer Bypass System 1 LS 12,072$                     
8 Street Repair 1 LS 140,555$                   
9 CCTV Pre & Post Inspection 1 LS 14,332$                     

10 Insurance and Business Licence 1 LS 2,000$                        
11 Payment and Performance Bonds 1 LS 3,000$                        
12 Manhole Rehabilitations 9 EA 84,960$                     

653,821$                   
10%  $               65,382.10 
1%  $                  6,538.21 

6%
 $               39,229.26 

5%  $               32,691.05 
8%  $               52,305.68 

 $                   849,967 

Contingency
O&M Project Development

Grand Total

Construction Total

10,645$                   
2,470$                      

113$                         

12,072$                   
140,555$                 

14,332$                   
2,000$                      
3,000$                      

Detailed Design & Permitting / 
Bidding Support

Construction Phase Engineering 
O&M Project Management Services

Ferreira

9,440$                      

Unit Price

Veolia - S4 Sewer Replacement
City of Rialto - Etiwanda Ave. and Willow Ave.

Total Project Cost

32,600$                   
33,655$                   

7,262$                      

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 258 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 – Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 259 of 495



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 Contract Documents 26 days Tue 8/2/16 Tue 9/6/16

2 Notice to Proceed 1 day Wed 9/7/16 Wed 9/7/16 1

3 Contract Submittals &
Material Procurment

30 days Thu 9/8/16 Wed 
10/19/16

2

4 Pot Hole Site 5 days Thu 10/20/16 Wed 10/26/163

5 Pre‐ Dig Latterals 8 days Thu 10/27/16 Mon 11/7/16 4

6 Dig Launch Pits 6 days Tue 11/8/16 Tue 11/15/16 5

7 String Pipe & Fuse 10 days Wed 11/16/16 Tue 11/29/16 6

8 Burst Pipe 20 days Wed 11/30/16 Tue 12/27/16 7

9 Site Restoration 10 days Wed 12/28/16 Tue 1/10/17 8

10 Punch List 5 days Wed 1/11/17 Tue 1/17/17 9

M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T
ul 31, '16 Aug 7, '16 Aug 14, '16 Aug 21, '16 Aug 28, '16 Sep 4, '16 Sep 11, '16 Sep 18, '16 Sep 25, '16 Oct 2, '16 Oct 9, '16 Oct 16, '16 Oct 23, '16 Oct 30, '16 Nov 6, '16 Nov 13, '16 Nov 20, '16 Nov 27, '16 Dec 4, '16 Dec 11, '16 Dec 18, '16 Dec 25, '16 Jan 1, '17 Jan 8, '17 Jan 15, '17

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: Project1
Date: Tue 8/2/16

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 260 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 – Notice of Inviting Bids, Request for Bid (RFB) and Addendums if applicable 
 

 

Construction Contract and Technical Specification 
 
See Attachment 4 – Refer to PDF pages 29 to 74 for the Technical Specifications. Refer to PDF 
pages 75 to 173 for the Contract. 

 

Acceptance Testing 
 
See Attachment 4 - Refer to the Technical Specifications sections: 
 
 
Page 53; Section 02776 Part III, Video Inspection 
 
Page 55; Section 02776 Part III, Section V. Field Testing 
 
Page 59; Section 07950 Part 3.3 Preliminary Inspection 
 
Page 60; Section 07950 Part 3.7 Inspection and testing of lining 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 261 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -1 

 
 
 
 

 

 
VEOLIA WATER WEST OPERATING SERVICES, INC. 

IN THE CITY OF RIALTO 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
 

FOR RECEIVING BIDS ON: 
 

PROJECT: S4 Sewer Main Replacement on N. WILLOW 
 

METHOD: Design, Bid, Build 
 

 
 

Bid Opening: May 17, 2016 @ 437 N Riverside Ave., Rialto, CA 92376 
 

 
      

 
Veolia Water 

Capital Improvement Projects 
 437 N Riverside Ave., Rialto, CA 92376 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 262 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -2 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS)  
 

BID FORM 
 
BID BOND 
 
IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT 
 
PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BONDS   
 
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
 
CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE/INSURANCE ENDORSEMENTS 
 
SAMPLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT 
 
CONTRACT/PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION FORM 
 
BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
BID SCHEDULE 
 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
LUMP SUM CONTRACT SCHEDULE R.3 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS SCHEDULE R.6 
 
SUBCONTRACTORS & CONSULTANTS INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS SCHEDULE R.9 
 
  
 
  
  
  
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 263 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -3 

 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) 

 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

 
PROJECT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. WILLOW 

 
FOR 

 
CITY OF RIALTO 

 
THROUGH DESING-BID-BUILD PROJECT DELIVERY METHOD 

 
Veolia hereby requests sealed bids for project S4 consisting of sewer replacement along N. 
Willow Ave. upsizing from 8’’ to 12’’. Bids will be received Alejandro Juarez through email 
(alejandro.juarez@veolia.com) and/or Veolia Customer Service Office located at 437 N 
Riverside, Rialto, CA 92376. All bid forms must be completed in full or the bid will not be 
considered. Emailed bids must be received at the due date and time. 
 
Mandatory Site Walk held Thursday May 26, 2016 @ 747 N Willow Ave. after the S3 job 
walk. 
 
Bids are due and will be opened by Tuesday June 7, 2016 by 5:00PM PST. 
 
Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and will be 
revealed no later than June 10, 2016. 
 
Veolia reserves the right after opening bids to reject any or all bids, to waive any informality 
(non-responsiveness) in a bid, or to make award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder and 
reject all other bids, as it may best serve the interest of Veolia Water and/or Rialto Water 
Services (RWS). If a bid is accepted, it will be combined with other project costs (owner 
purchased equipment, construction management, etc.) and presented to Rialto Utility Authority 
and RWS for approval. Although we believe that the project will approve, there is no guarantee 
of authorization of the project, project proceeding, or ratification of a contract. The bidder shall 
guarantee the Total Bid Price for a period of 90 Calendar days from the date of bid submittal. 
 
As a condition of award, the successful bidder must provide proof of insurance. Insurance 
certificates shall list City of Rialto, Rialto Utility Authority, Rialto Water Services, and Union 
Bank N.A. as additionally insured. Automobile, general liability, and workers compensation 
insurance are required.  Contractor shall thoroughly understand insurance requirements provided 
in Schedule R9 and under the Subcontract Exhibit G. Contractors bidding this project must have 
a Class A License in good standing to bid this project. Upon awarding the contractors shall also 
obtain a business license with City of Rialto and any other permits needed. 
 
Your quotation should include all labor, supervision, material, supplies, equipment, inspections, 
and any other incidentals required for the work as described in the enclosed documents provided. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 264 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -4 

Your firm is presumed to hold all necessary licenses and other qualifications, and your work will 
be required to meet all local, state and federal codes, laws, rules and regulations. 
 
Any discrepancies you may discover among documents provided and applicable laws, rules, 
codes, or regulations should be brought to Veolia’s attention with your quotation. For purposes 
of pricing the work, you should assume that the most stringent of the foregoing requirements will 
apply to your work. Should you be awarded a Subcontract, no additional compensation will be 
granted for compliance with any of these requirements. 
 
Should your review of the Scope documents indicate that cost and/or schedule savings might be 
realized through the use of alternate materials, modified configurations, or more efficient layouts 
(all without compromising function, interfaces, or quality), Veolia may consider detailed 
alternate proposals in addition to the base-bid proposal. Alternates may be considered only if 
submitted along with the base bid proposal. 
 
Do not submit any project correspondence such as RFI's, bids, questions, etc. to the City of 
Rialto directly, these are to be returned to Veolia who is the Prime Contractor for Rialto 
Water Services. All questions relative to this RFP shall be in writing utilizing the Request for 
Information (RFI) Form found in this bid package, and emailed to;  Alejandro Juarez, Project 
Engineer at alejandro.juarez@veolia.com.  
 
The RFI submission deadline is six (6) business days before the bid due date. Veolia will 
respond to bid RFI's no later than close of business five (5) business days after the RFI 
submission unless extensions are granted by an extended due date for bids. Responses will be 
made by email, call or as seen necessary by Veolia.    
 
Bidder confirms that bidder and all subcontractors are bound by and signatory to a collective 
bargaining agreement with a labor organization whose jurisdiction covers the type of work to be 
performed, that is 1) either currently affiliated with, or previously affiliated with as of January 1, 
2001, the Building and Construction Trades Department of the AFL-CIO; and 2) whose 
collective bargaining agreement or other applicable documentation provides a mechanism for the 
expeditious resolution of jurisdictional  disputes, and 3) that observes area standards for wages 
and other terms and conditions of employment, including fringe benefits.” 
 
The Veolia is an equal opportunity employer. Minority business enterprises and women's 
business enterprises are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The parties acknowledge and agree that their obligations 
under this Agreement are subject to, and conditioned upon, 
the approval of City/RUA of the project, and the execution 
and delivery of a Final Construction Work Authorization 
by City/RUA and a Final Work Authorization by RWS.   If 
these conditions precedent fail to occur, this Agreement will 
terminate without further notice or action by either party. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 265 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -5 

General History and Description of Work 
 
History:   
 
A section of undersized pipe has been identified for replacement along N. Willow Ave and part 
of W. Etiwanda Ave. 
 
Scope:  
 
Chosen subcontractor shall replace existing 8’’ sewer with new 12’’ sewer via the pipe bursting 
method for about 2090 feet. Connection to sewer laterals and bypass systems is required. 
 
Provide and furnish all measures, administrative, facilities, equipment, labor, material, logistics, 
insurance, bonds, and design for the project. See attached Bid Schedule, Specifications, and 
Plans. 

BIDDER'S REFERENCE/EXPERIENCE 
  
Bidders must be Union. The following statements as to experience of the bidder are submitted in 
conjunction with the bid as part thereof and the truthfulness and accuracy of the information is 
guaranteed by the bidder. 
 
The bidder has been engaged in the contracting business, under the present business name for _____ 
years.  Experience in work of a nature similar to that covered in the bid extends over a period of 
_____ years. The bidder has completed at least three (3) construction projects of a similar nature and 
size to the subject project. Similar projects shall have included installation of sewer of a similar size 
and nature to the project sewer replacement, in live sewer lines within an urban setting. 
 
The bidder, as a contractor, has never failed to satisfactorily complete a contract awarded to him 
except as follows (name any and all exceptions and reasons therefore): 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
The following contracts have been satisfactorily completed in the last five (5) years for the persons, 
firms, or authorities indicated, and to whom reference is made (name five (5) contracts) of these 
three. At least two (2) of the listed will have been the same or almost the same project for another 
client: 
 

Year 
 

Type of Work 
 

Contract 
Amount 

 
Location and for Whom Performed 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 266 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -6 

BIDDER'S REFERENCE FINANCIAL 
 
Reference is hereby made to the following bank or banks as to the financial responsibility of the 
bidder: 
 
 

Name of Bank 
 

Address 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Reference is hereby made to the following surety companies as to the financial responsibility and 
general reliability of the bidder: 
 
Name of Surety Company ________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                               
 
Name of Surety Company ________________________________________________________                                                                                            
 
Signature of Bidder ____________________________________________________________
                                                                                            
Title__________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                             
 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 267 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -7 

BID FORM 
 

BID TO VEOLIA 
 

PROJECT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. WILLOW 
 

Name of Bidder______________________________________________________________                                                                                                       
 
Business Address____________________________________________________________                                                                                                      
 
Mailing Address _____________________________________________________________                                                                                                       
 
Phone Number ____________________  Place of Residence  _________________________ 
 
Pursuant to and in compliance with your Notice to Contractors and other documents relating thereto, the 
undersigned bidder, having familiarized himself with the terms of the contract and the cost of the work at the place 
where the work is to be done, hereby proposes and agrees to perform within the time stipulated in the contract, 
including all of its component parts and everything required to be performed, and to provide and furnish any and all 
of the labor, material, tools, expendable equipment, and all utility and transportation services necessary to perform 
the contract and complete in a workmanlike manner all of the work required in connection with the construction of 
PROJECT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLCEMENT all in strict conformity with the plans and specifications, the 
Department of Transportation Standard Plans, the Standard Specifications, the Labor Surcharge and Equipment 
Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished, the General Prevailing Wage Rates, latest issue, and 
other contract documents, including all Addenda on file in the office of the City Engineer of the City of Rialto for 
the contract unit prices hereinafter set forth.  The following documents are attached in this bid or will be provided 
before commencement of Work: 
 
• Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
• Bidder's Reference 
• Bidder's Reference Financial 
• Bid Schedule 
• Subcontractors  
• Non-Collusion Affidavit 
• Bid Bond 
• Compliance with IRCA 
• Certificate of Contractor 
• Performance Bond 
• Payment Bond 
• Contractor Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 
• Certificate of Insurance 
• Insurance Endorsements 
• Sample Agreement 
• Request for Information (RFI) form 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 268 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -8 

 
 
The undersigned as bidder declares that the only persons or parties interested in this bid as principals are those named 
herein, that this bid is made without collusion with any person, firm, or corporation, and he proposes and agrees if this 
bid is accepted that he will execute a contract with Veolia substantially in the form of the contract; the bidder once 
awarded the bid will accept in full payment thereof for the following lump sum cost and unit prices, to with: 
 

BID SCHEDULE 
 
Please see attachment in email. 
Completed signed and dated bid schedule shall be submitted with this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 269 of 495



Date:_________________

Item Description Quantity Unit
Unit Price          

$
Total Cost    $

1 Mobilization 1 LS -$                      

2 Traffic Control 1 LS -$                      

3
General Conditions/Construction Site 

Management/BMP's
1 LS -$                      

4 Potholing 1 LS -$                      

5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 31 EA -$                      

6
Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-

inch (Etiwanda Ave. & Willow Ave.)
2090 LF -$                      

7 Sewer Bypass System 1 LS -$                      

8 Street Repair 1 LS -$                      

-$                      

(1)  Include Contractor pipe replacement method/technology for Bid Item 6 in the provided space below.

(3) Disclaimer: Work not specified or referenced in bid schedule does not relieve the contractor of complying with 

the Documents: drawings, specifications, addendums and any and all related documents provided and the costs that 

may accrue in complying with the Documents. Bidder understands and agrees that bid will remain valid for 90 

calendar days.

(4) By signing and submitting this bid Contractor acknowledges that bid is "Complete"

EA = Each,  LS = Lump Sum,  LF = Lineal Feet, SF= Square Feet, SY = Square Yard, CY = Cubic Yard

BID SCHEDULE

Contractor Name: ________________________________________________________________________

Bid Total in Words: ______________________________________________________________________

Notes

Veolia - S4 Sewer Replacement
City of Rialto - Etiwanda Ave. and Willow Ave.

Total

(2) Contractors shall submit their project schedule for their base bid.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 270 of 495



Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost

1 Mobilization 1 LS 15,000$      15,000$       

2 Traffic Control 1 LS 55,000$      55,000$       

3
General Conditions/Construction Site 

Management/BMP's
1 LS 20,000$      20,000$       

4 Potholing 1 LS 14,400$      14,400$       

5 Sewer Lateral Service Connections 31 EA 1,800$        55,800$       

6
Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-

inch (Etiwanda Ave. & Willow Ave.)
2090 LF 175$            365,750$     

7 Bypass Sewer System 1 LS 40,000$      40,000$       

8 Street Repair 1 LS 50,000$      50,000$       

615,950$     

92,400$       

708,350$     

EA = Each,  LS = Lump Sum,  LF = Lineal Feet, SF= Square Feet, SY = Square Yard, CY = Cubic Yard

Contingency @ 15%

Grand Total

S4 Sewer Replacement

Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

3/11/2016

Rev. 1 - Revised for Plan Check Comments

Subtotal

City of Rialto - Etiwanda Ave. and Willow Ave.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 271 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -9 

BID BOND 
(This or other official form is acceptable) 

We, ___________________________________________________________ as Principal,  

and _______________________________________________ as Surety, jointly and severally, bind 
ourselves, our heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, as set forth herein, to the 

 VEOLIA 

(herein called City) for payment of the penal sum of 

_________________________ Dollars ($________________________), lawful money of the United States. 
Principal has submitted the accompanying bid for the construction of 

 PROJECT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. WILLOW

If the Principal is awarded the contract and enters into a written contract, in the form prescribed by Veolia, at 
the price designated by his bid, and files two bonds with Veolia, or substitute security in lieu thereof, one to 
guarantee payment for labor and materials and the other to guarantee faithful performance, in the time and 
manner specified by Veolia, and carries all insurance in type and amount which conforms to the Contract 
Documents and furnishes required certificates and endorsements thereof, then this obligation shall be null 
and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

Forfeiture of this bond, or any deposit made in lieu thereof, shall not preclude Veolia from seeking all other 
remedies provided by law to cover losses sustained as a result of the Principal's failure to do any of the 
foregoing. Bid Bond shall be 100% of the total amount bid.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 272 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -10 

Principal and Surety agree that if Veolia is required to engage the services of an attorney in connection with 
the enforcement of this bond, each shall pay Veolia’s reasonable attorney's fees incurred with or without suit. 
 
 Executed on _________________________,20  
 
   
 PRINCIPAL 
 
(Seal if Corporation) By   
 
 Title   
 
(Attach Acknowledgment of Authorized Representative of Principal) 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
  (name and address of Surety) 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  (name and address of Surety's agent for service of 
  process in California, if different from above) 
  
 
  
 
 
   (Telephone number of Surety's agent in California) 
 
 
(Attach Acknowledgment)    
  SURETY 
 
  By   
  (Attorney-in-Fact) 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: 
 
No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted.  Sureties must be authorized to do business 
in and have an agent for service of process in California.  Certified copy of Power of Attorney must be 
attached.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 273 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -11 

SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4100 to 4113 inclusive, of the Government Code of the 
State of California, every bidder shall set forth the name and location of the place of business of 
each subcontractor who will perform work or labor in or about the construction of the work or 
improvement in an amount in excess of one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total 
bid.  If the Bidder fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work in excess of one half 
(1/2) of one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total bid, he agrees to perform that portion himself.  
The following is the required list of subcontractors: 
 

BIDDER'S LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Use extra sheet if necessary) 

 
 
Type of Work Name and Address of Subcontractors Contractor’s License No. 
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
         
 
 
________________________________                   ___________ 
Signature of Bidder     Date 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 274 of 495



Veolia Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement BF -12 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
 

___________________________________________________________, being first a duly  
 
sworn, deposes and  says that he/she is    of   
  the party making the foregoing bid, that the bid is not made in the 
interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or 
corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly 
induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall 
refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, 
communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any 
overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage 
against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all 
statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted 
his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative 
thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, 
bid depository or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid." 
 
  ___________________________________ 
  Bidder 
 
 
 
 
State of California ) 
    )   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 
On this _________ day of ____________________ 20_____, before me personally came 
___________________________to me known, or proven to be on the basis of satisfactory evidence, who 
being duly sworn, did depose and say:  that _________________________ is an authorized representative of 
the _________________________________ and acknowledged to me that 
_________________________________ executed the within instrument on behalf of said bidder. 
 
In witness whereof, I have signed and affixed my official seal on the date first above written. 
 
   
    
  Notary Public 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 275 of 495



Veolia   
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  1 

COMPLIANCE WITH IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT 
("IRCA") 

 
 
Contractor acknowledges that Contractor, and all subcontractors hired by Contractor to perform services 

under this Agreement, are aware of and understand the Immigration Reform and Control Act ("IRCA").  

Contractor is and shall remain in compliance with the IRCA and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired by 

Contractor to perform services under this Agreement are in compliance with the IRCA.  In addition, Contractor 

agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers and employees, from any liability, 

damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that Contractor's employees, or the 

employees of any subcontractor hired by Contractor, are not authorized to work in the United States for 

Contractor or its subcontractor and/or any other claims based upon alleged IRCA violations committed by 

Contractor or Contractor's subcontractor(s). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________           _____________________ 
Signature of Bidder                                                                     Date 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 276 of 495



Veolia  Certificate of Contractor 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  CC - 1 

 
CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR 

 

I,_______________________________________________________, certify that I am a/the 

__________________________________ [designate sole proprietor, partner in partnership, or specify 

corporate office, e.g., secretary] in the entity named as CONTRACTOR in the foregoing contract. 
 

I hereby expressly certify that the name of the entity to which I am associated is 

______________________________________________; that this entity is in good standing and has 

complied with all applicable laws and regulations, and that I have been expressly authorized by the 

proper parties in this entity to execute this contract on behalf of the above-named entity. 
 
 
    
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 
Name   
          (Please Type) 
 
Title   
 
 
On this _______ day of ____________________, 20__, before me personally came 
____________________________ to me known, or proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, 
who being duly sworn, did depose and say:  that (he/she) is an authorized representative of the 
Contractor and acknowledged to me that (he/she) executed the within instrument on behalf of said 
Contractor, ________________________________________. 
 
In witness whereof, I have signed and affixed my official seal on the date in this certificate first above 
written. 
 
 
    
  NOTARY PUBLIC 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 277 of 495



Veolia Payment Bond 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  PYBD - 1 

 
 
 
 

PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDS 
 
 
Please attach payment bond and performance bond rider which includes the following as additional 
obligees for each payment and performance bond separately: 
 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
    437 North Riverside Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
    335 West Rialto Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
    350 California Street, 11th Floor 
    San Francisco, CA 94104 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 278 of 495



Veolia Contractor's Certificate Regarding Workers' Compensation 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  CCRWC - 1 

 
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' 

COMPENSATION 
 
 
Description of Contract: Veolia 
 PROEJCT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. WILLOW 
 
Labor Code Section 3700 Provides (in part): 
 

"Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more 
of the following ways: 

 
(a)  By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly 
authorized to write compensation insurance in this State. 

 
(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, 
which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of 
ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees." 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be 
insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the 
work of this contract. 
 
 
Dated: , 20__  
  (Contractor) 
 
  By____________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  (Official Title) 
 
  (SEAL) 
 
 
(Labor Code Section 1861 provides that the above certificate must be signed and filed by the Contractor 
with the City prior to performing any work under this contract.) 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 279 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  1 
 

INSURANCE 
 
Insurance and other details are included in Schedule R5 and its attachments. 
Attach insurance certificates for all required insurances and include the following below as additional 
insured for each insurance form including insurance form C G 20 12: 
 
 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
    437 North Riverside Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
    335 West Rialto Avenue 
    Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
    350 California Street, 11th Floor 
    San Francisco, CA 94104 
 

 
 

 
 
Please pay special attention to Section 2.4.1 on amounts of Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance 
under Schedule R.5 in exhibit G.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 280 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  2 
 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
 
 
Description of Contract: Veolia 
 PROJECT S4 SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON N. WILLOW 
 
Type of Insurance: Liability Insurance 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the following policies have been issued by the below-stated company in 
conformance with the requirements of Schedule R9 and Exhibit G from the Subcontract and are in force 
at this time: 
 
 POLICY                  EXPIRATION         LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
NUMBER                        DATE                 In Thousands (000)   
 
 
 A. GENERAL LIABILITY  
  General Aggregate 

Products-Comp Ops 
   Aggregate 

$   
 
$   

  Personal and 
   Advertising 
   Injury          

 
 
$   

  Each Occurrence 
Fire Damage 
(any one fire) 
Medical Expense 
(any one person) 

 
 
$   
 
$   

  
 
B. 

 
 
EXCESS GENERAL LIABILITY 

Each 
Occurrence 

$___________ 

 
AGGREGATE 
$__________ 

 C. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  
  Bodily Injury 

(Each Person) 
Bodily Injury 

(Each Accident 
Property Damage 

 
$   
 
$   
$   

  Or 
Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage 

Combined Single Limit 

 
 
 
$   

  
 
D. 

 
 

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

Each 
Occurrence 

$___________ 

 
AGGREGATE 
$__________ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 281 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  3 
 

 
The following types of coverage are included in said policies (indicate by "X" in space): 
 

A. GENERAL LIABILITY  

 Commercial Form .......................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Premises-Operations ..................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Explosion and Collapse Hazard .................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Underground ...............................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Products/Completed Operations ................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Contractual Insurance ................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Broad Form Property Damage ...................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Independent Contractors ............................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury ........................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

B. EXCESS GENERAL LIABILITY  

 Following Form  ..........................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

C. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

 Business Auto Form Including Loading and Unloading..............................   YES___ NO___ 

 Owned ........................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Hired ...........................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

 Non-Owned .................................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

   

D. EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

 Following Form ...........................................................................................   YES___ NO___ 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 282 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  4 
 

 
This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  
This certificate does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed herein. 
 
This is to certify that the policy has been issued to the named insured for the policy period indicated, 
notwithstanding any requirement, term, or condition of any contract or other document with respect to 
which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described 
herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions, and conditions of such policies. 
 
The Company will give at least 30 days' written notice to the City and the Engineer/Architect prior to any 
cancellation of said policies.   
 
 
    
Named Insured (Contractor)  Insurance Company 
 
    
Street Number  Street Number 
 
    
City and State  City and State 
 
 
  By  
  (Company Representative) 
 
  (SEE NOTICE ON PAGE 4) 
 
 
Insurance Company Agent for Service 
of Process in California: 
 
  
  
Name 
 
  
Agency 
 
  
Street Number 
 
  
City and State 
 
  
Telephone Number 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 283 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  5 
 

NOTICE: 
 
No substitution or revision to the above certificate form will be accepted.  If the insurance called for is 
provided by more than one insurance company, a separate certificate in the exact above form shall be 
provided for each insurance company. 
 
Insurers must be authorized to do business and have an agent for service of process in California and 
have a "B+" policyholder's rating and a financial rating of at least Class VIII in accordance with the most 
current Best's Rating. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 284 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  6 
 

 
SAMPLE 

 
SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT: 

 
 

SCHEDULE R3 AGREEMENT FORM 
PROVIDED AS ATTACHMENT 

 
Article 31. Contract Documents and Order of Precedence 
 
This Contract, together with any Attachments hereto (all of which are incorporated herein by 
this reference) shall comprise this Contract and shall together be referred to as the “Contract 
Documents.” 
 
Upon discovery, the Contractor shall promptly notify the other in writing of any conflicts, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies, errors, or omissions in, between or among any of Contract 
Documents or Applicable Legal Requirements and shall cooperate in effecting a resolution of 
the same that is consistent with the principles expressed in this Article 31. In the event of any 
inconsistencies between this Contract and the other Contract Documents, the following order 
of precedence in the interpretation hereof or resolution of such conflict hereunder shall 
prevail: 
 
 (i) duly authorized and executed Change Orders and written amendments to this 
Contract executed by both Parties; 
  
  (ii) this Contract; 
  
  (iii) the Attachments; and 
  
  (iv) Drawings produced and delivered pursuant to this Contract (in respect of 
which, precedence shall be given to Drawings of a larger scale over those of smaller, figured 
dimensions on the Drawings shall control over scaled dimensions, and noted materials shall 
control over undimensioned graphic indications). 
 
Where an irreconcilable conflict exists among Applicable Legal Requirements, this Contract, 
the Drawings and the specifications in the Materials, the earliest item mentioned in this 
sentence involving a conflict shall control over any later mentioned item or items subject to 
such conflict. Notwithstanding the foregoing terms of this Article 31, if a conflict exists 
within or between parts of the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and 
Applicable Legal Requirements, the more stringent or higher quality requirements shall 
control. Where a conflict exists among Codes and Standards applicable to Seller’s 
performance of the Work, the most stringent provision of such Codes and Standards shall 
govern. 
 

Special Conditions 
 
Notification Requirements 
 
Contractor shall post notices to the local residences and businesses of when they will be working in the area. 
The notice shall clearly state the estimated duration of the work and provide contact information, phone 
numbers and emails to the Project Manager and field foremen. The notices shall be posted 72 hours prior to 
performing any work in the area 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 285 of 495



SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 
 
Article 31. Contract Documents and Order of Precedence 

 
This Contract, together with any Attachments hereto (all of which are incorporated herein by 
this reference) shall comprise this Contract and shall together be referred to as the “Contract 
Documents.” 

 
Upon discovery, the Contractor shall promptly notify the other in writing of any conflicts, 
ambiguities, inconsistencies, errors, or omissions in, between or among any of Contract 
Documents or Applicable Legal Requirements and shall cooperate in effecting a resolution of 
the same that is consistent with the principles expressed in this Article 31. In the event of any 
inconsistencies between this Contract and the other Contract Documents, the following order 
of precedence in the interpretation hereof or resolution of such conflict hereunder shall 
prevail: 

 
(i) duly authorized and executed Change Orders and written amendments to this 

Contract executed by both Parties; 

(ii) this Contract; 

(iii) the Attachments; and 
 

(iv) Drawings produced and delivered pursuant to this Contract (in respect of 
which, precedence shall be given to Drawings of a larger scale over those of smaller, figured 
dimensions on the Drawings shall control over scaled dimensions, and noted materials shall 
control over undimensioned graphic indications). 

 
Where an irreconcilable conflict exists among Applicable Legal Requirements, this Contract, 
the Drawings and the specifications in the Materials, the earliest item mentioned in this 
sentence involving a conflict shall control over any later mentioned item or items subject to 
such conflict. Notwithstanding the foregoing terms of this Article 31, if a conflict exists 
within or between parts of the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and 
Applicable Legal Requirements, the more stringent or higher quality requirements shall 
control. Where a conflict exists among Codes and Standards applicable to Seller’s 
performance of the Work, the most stringent provision of such Codes and Standards shall 
govern. 

 
Special Conditions 

 
Notification Requirements 

 
Contractor shall post notices to the local residences and businesses of when they will be working in the area. 
The notice shall clearly state the estimated duration of the work and provide contact information, phone 
numbers and emails to the Project Manager and field foremen. The notices shall be posted 72 hours prior to 
performing any work in the area 

 
Veolia 
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 286 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  7 
 

CONTRACT / PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

Bidder shall provide a project schedule which shall reflect the progress that the contractor can make to 
the best of the contractors ability.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 287 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  8 
 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) 
 

 

DATE REQUESTED:  

SUBJECT / TOPIC:  

TO:  

FROM:  
 
 
 

REQUEST 

 

CAUSE FOR 
REQUEST 

 

SUGGESTION/ 
ATTACHMENT 

 

RESPONSE 

 

 
 
NOTE: Request will only be submitted in this format. Veolia shall have five (5) business 
days to provide a response which may or may not necessarily resolve the request. Veolia 
holds the right to, have the contractor research, investigate, study, test, field check or use any 
methods and means necessary and acceptable to industry standards for the resolution of 
requests after a notice to proceed. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 288 of 495



Veolia  
S4 Sewer Main Replacement  9 
 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items Submitted for Bid Approval 
 

1. Proposal (Bid Schedule attachment) signed with bid in numbers and words       
2. Bid Bond & Pertinent Official Documents            
3. Bidders Reference / Experience             
4. List of Subcontractors               

 
Items Submitted After Bid is Approved  

(Require three original hard copies of each) 
 
5. Schedule R3 
6. Insurance with additional insured and CG 20 12 form 
7. Payment bond with additional obligee riders and Performance bond with additional 

obligee riders 
8. Project Schedule 
9. Certificate of Non-Collusion Affidavit 
10. “IRCA” 

 
Items after NTP is given 

 
11. City Business License 
12. Encroachment Permit 
13. Material Submittals 
14. Any other requested documents 
15. Certified Payroll as requested 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 289 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 1 of 5 

 

SECTION 012000 

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

PART 1 GENERAL 

 

I. SECTION INCLUDES 

 

A. Explanation and Definitions 

 

B. Measurement 

 

C. Payment 

 

D. Schedule of Values 

 

II. EXPLANATION AND DEFINITIONS 

 

A. The following explanation of the Measurement and Payment for the Bid 
Schedule items is made for information and guidance. The omission of 
reference to any item in this description shall not, however, alter the intent 
of the Bid Schedule or relieve the CONTRACTOR of the necessity of 
furnishing such as a part of the Contract. Measurement and payment for 
all Contract Items shall made be in accordance with this section or as 
modified by the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
 

III. MEASUREMENT 
 

A. The quantities set forth in the Bid Schedule are approximate and are given 
to establish a uniform basis for the comparison of bids. Veolia reserves 
the right to increase or decrease the quantity of any class or portion of the 
work during the progress of construction in accord with the terms of the 
Contract. 
 

IV. PAYMENT 
 

A. Make payment for the items listed on the Bid Schedule on the basis of the 
work actually performed and completed, such work including but not 
limited to, the furnishing of all necessary labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, clean up, restoration of disturbed areas, and all other 
appurtenances to complete the construction and installation of the work as 
shown on the drawings and described in the specifications. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 290 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 2 of 5 

 

B. Unit prices are used as a means of computing the final figures for bid and 
Contract purposes, for periodic payments, for work performed, for 
determining value of additions or deletions and wherever else reasonable. 

 

V. SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

A. Approval of Schedule: Submit to Veolia for approval a preliminary 
schedule of values, in duplicate, for all of the Work. Prepare preliminary 
schedule in accordance with the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
Submit preliminary schedule of values within 10 calendar days after the 
Effective Date of the Agreement. Submit final schedule of values in 
accordance with the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
 

B. Format: Utilize a format similar to the Bid Schedule. Identify each line item 
with number and title of the major specification items. Identify bonding and 
insurance. Include within each line item a direct proportional amount of 
CONTRACTOR's overhead and profit. 

 

C. Revisions: With each Application for Payment, revise schedule to list 
approved Change Orders.  

 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 
 

Not Used 

 
PART 3 EXECUTION 
 
I. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

 
A. Payment will be made on the basis of work actually performed completing 

each item in the Bid, such work including, but not limited to, the furnishing 
of all necessary labor, materials, equipment, transportation, cleanup, and 
all other appurtenances to complete the construction and installation of the 
work to the configuration and extent as shown on the drawings and 
described in the specifications. Payment for each item includes 
compensation for cleanup and restorations. Cost of cleanup and surface 
restorations (including pavement replacement) will be considered as the 
percentage retained in accordance with the Contract Documents, and 
complete payment will not be made until cleanup, restorations and as-
bullts are completed. 
 
1. Mobilization: Payment for mobilization will be made at the Contract 

lump sum price. Mobilization shall be performed per Section 01505 
of the project specifications. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 291 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 3 of 5 

 

2. Traffic Control: Payment for traffic control will be made at the 
Contract lump sum price. Traffic control shall be provided as 
required by the project drawings. This items includes: all materials, 
equipment, and labor for traffic control for all work required by the 
contract documents; staging and restaging of, adjustments and 
modifications to the plan; all traffic control devices including bicycle 
and pedestrian traffic control devices; engineered traffic control 
plan and modifications thereto; coordination with Veolia and City of 
Rialto. 

 

3. General Conditions, Construction Site Management, Best 
Management Practices (BMPs): Payment for General Conditions, 
Construction Site Management, BMPs will be made at the Contract 
lump sum price. This item includes: construction management; 
coordination with Veolia, City of Rialto, property owners, tenants, 
other contractors and all others related to performing the work and 
running the site; project administration; bonding and insurance; 
coordination with the engineer and requests for information; jobsite 
vehicles, offices, portable toilets and sanitation facilities; break 
areas; transportation; potable drinking water; water for general use 
including but not limited to dust control and cleaning; compliance 
with safety requirements including personal protective equipment 
(PPE); dust and runoff control best management practices including 
materials, equipment, and labor; jobsite housekeeping and cleanup; 
street sweeping; and as-builting of project drawings. 

 

4. Potholing: Payment for potholing will be made at the Contract 
lump sum price. This item includes: utility locating labor, equipment, 
and coordination; sawcutting; excavation of all materials by all 
methods including but not limited to high pressure air, vacuum, and 
excavator-type equipment; soil handling, storage and/or disposal; 
traffic and pedestrian trench and hole covers and temporary 
pavement patching; coordination with utility owners and 
technicians; backfill material, backfill and compaction. 

 

5. Sewer Lateral Service Connections: Payment for sewer lateral 
service connections will be made at the Contract unit price per each 
acceptable connection made. This item includes: sewer service 
lateral locating labor, equipment, and coordination; sawcutting; 
excavation of all materials by all methods including but not limited 
to high pressure air, vacuum, and excavator-type equipment; soil 
handling, storage and/or disposal; traffic and pedestrian trench and 
hole covers and temporary pavement patching; temporary capping 
of laterals; labor, materials and equipment for reconnection of 
laterals to sewer mains; coordination with utility owners and 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 292 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 4 of 5 

 

technicians; coordination with property owners and tenants; backfill 
material, backfill and compaction. 

 

6. Pipe Bursting Replacement of 8-inch pipe with 12-inch: 
Payment for replacement of new sanitary sewer pipe by pipe 
bursting shall be made at the Contract unit price per lineal foot for 
the pipe in-place. This item includes: clearing, disposal, and 
replacement of trees, grass, irrigation, bushes, mailboxes and 
landscaping; sawcutting, removal and disposal of concrete and 
pavement, pavement markers and striping; replacement of concrete 
including but not limited to sidewalks, curbs, and gutters; 
preparation of manholes for installation; excavation of all materials 
encountered including handling and storage; backfill, compaction, 
and replacement of sidewalks, driveways and other surface 
materials not specifically designated in the bid; excavation in 
vicinity of adjacent utilities and in shallow areas to accommodate 
bursting; traffic and pedestrian trench and hole covers and 
temporary pavement patching; compaction testing; labor, 
equipment and materials for storage and staging of pipe; materials, 
labor, and equipment for bursting and installation of pipe (size and 
type per the Project Drawings); labor, materials, and equipment for 
excavation shoring; protection of existing utilities; pipe reaming; 
repair of manholes; dewatering; coordination with other contractors; 
videoing of new pipe. Measure pipe to the nearest foot along the 
centerline including the lengths of manholes and fittings. Measure 
lineal footage horizontally.  
 

7. Sewer Bypass System: Payment for the sewer bypass system will 
be made at the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: 
design, engineering, and coordination including submittals; storage, 
staging, setup, restaging and removal of materials and equipment; 
materials, equipment, and labor; protection of, maintenance of, and 
adjustments to the system; coordination with property owners, 
tenants, Veolia, and the City;  

 

8. Street Repair: Payment for street repair will be made at the 
Contract lump sum price. This item includes: preparation of 
subgrade; subbase, base and pavement material, material handling 
and storage; compaction and compaction testing; labor and 
equipment; paving; sawcutting, removal, grinding and disposal of 
pavement; repair and replacement of grade rings around manholes 
and other utility covers; replacement of striping and pavement 
markers; overlay and fog seal. 
 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 293 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
3/11/16  012000 - 5 of 5 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 294 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 1 

SECTION 01330 

SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Submittal procedures. 

B. Construction progress schedules. 

C. Proposed products list. 

D. Product data. 

E. Shop drawings. 

F. Samples. 

G. Design data. 

H. Test reports. 

I. Certificates. 

J. Manufacturer's instructions. 

K. Manufacturer's field reports. 

L. Erection drawings. 

II. SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 

A. Transmit each submittal with Engineer acceptance form. 

B. Number each submittal sequentially. Mark revised submittals with original 
number and sequential numeric suffix. 

C. Identify Project, Contractor, subcontractor and supplier; pertinent drawing 
and detail number, and specification section number, appropriate to 
submittal. 

D. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, 
approval, verification of products required, field dimensions, adjacent 
construction Work, and coordination of information is in accordance with 
requirements of the Work and Contract Documents. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 295 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 2 

E. Schedule submittals to expedite Project, and deliver to Engineer at 
business address.  Coordinate submission of related items. 

F. For each submittal for review, allow 15 days excluding delivery time to and 
from Contractor. 

G. Identify variations from Contract Documents and product or system 
limitations which may be detrimental to successful performance of 
completed Work. 

H. Allow space on submittals for Contractor and Engineer review stamps. 

I. When revised for resubmission, identify changes made since previous 
submission. 

J. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals as appropriate.  Instruct parties to 
promptly report inability to comply with requirements. 

K. Submittals not requested will not be recognized or processed. 

L. Submit number of submittals Contractor requires returned plus four copies 
to be retained by City/Engineer. 

III. CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

A. Submit preliminary outline Schedules within 15 days after date established 
in Notice to Proceed for coordination with Owner's requirements and work 
of separate contracts.  After review, submit detailed schedules within 15 
days modified to accommodate revisions recommended by Owner or 
Engineer. 

B. Submit revised Progress Schedules with each Application for Payment. 

C. Distribute copies of reviewed schedules to Project site file, subcontractors, 
suppliers, and other concerned parties. 

D. Instruct recipients to promptly report, in writing, problems anticipated by 
projections indicated in schedules. 

E. Submit computer generated horizontal bar chart with separate line for 
each major portion of Work or operation, identifying first work day of each 
week. 

IV. PROPOSED PRODUCTS LIST 

A. Within 15 days after date of Notice to Proceed, submit list of major 
products proposed for use, with name of manufacturer, trade name, and 
model number of each product. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 296 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 3 

B. For products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, 
trade name, model or catalog designation, and reference standards. 

V. PRODUCT DATA 

A. Product Data:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and design concept 
expressed in Contract Documents.  Provide copies and distribute in 
accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record 
documents purposes. 

B. Submit number of product data Contractor requires returned plus four 
copies to be retained by City/Engineer.  Electronic copies of this 
information can be substituted for hard copies if approved by the City in 
advance.   

C. Mark each copy to identify applicable products, models, options, and other 
data.  Supplement manufacturers' standard data to provide information 
specific to this Project. 

D. Indicate product utility and electrical characteristics, utility connection 
requirements, and location of utility outlets for service for functional 
equipment and appliances. 

E. After review distribute in accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
article above and provide copies for record documents. 

VI. SHOP DRAWINGS 

A. Shop Drawings:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and design concept 
expressed in Contract Documents.  Produce copies and distribute in 
accordance with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record 
documents purposes. 

B. Indicate special utility and electrical characteristics, utility connection 
requirements, and location of utility outlets for service for functional 
equipment and appliances. 

C. Submit number of shop drawings Contractor requires returned plus four 
copies to be retained by City/Engineer.  Electronic copies of this 
information can be substituted for hard copies if approved by the City in 
advance.   

VII. SAMPLES 

A. Samples:  Submit to Engineer for review for limited purpose of checking 
for conformance with information given and design concept expressed in 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 297 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 4 

Contract Documents.  Produce duplicates and distribute in accordance 
with SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record documents 
purposes. 

B. Samples For Selection as Specified in Product Sections: 
1. Submit to Engineer for aesthetic, color, or finish selection. 
2. Submit samples of finishes from full range of manufacturers' 

standard colors or in custom colors selected, textures, and patterns 
for Engineer selection. 

3. After review, produce duplicates and distribute in accordance with 
SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES article and for record documents 
purposes. 

C. Submit samples to illustrate functional and aesthetic characteristics of 
Products, with integral parts and attachment devices. Coordinate sample 
submittals for interfacing work. 

D. Include identification on each sample, with full Project information. 

E. Submit number of samples specified in individual specification sections. 

F. Reviewed samples which may be used in the Work are indicated in 
individual specification sections. 

G. Samples will not be used for testing purposes unless specifically stated in 
specification section. 

VIII. DESIGN DATA 

A. Submit for Engineer's knowledge as contract administrator or for Owner. 

B. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

IX. TEST REPORTS 

A. Submit for Engineer's knowledge as contract administrator or for Owner. 

B. Submit test reports for information for limited purpose of assessing 
conformance with information given and design concept expressed in 
Contract Documents. 

X. CERTIFICATES 

A. When specified in individual specification sections, submit certification by 
manufacturer, installation/application subcontractor, or Contractor to 
Engineer, in quantities specified for Product Data. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 298 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 
2/11/2016  01330 - 5 

B. Indicate material or product conforms to or exceeds specified 
requirements.  Submit supporting reference data, affidavits, and 
certifications as appropriate. 

C. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or Product, 
but must be acceptable to Engineer. 

XI. MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS 

A. When specified in individual specification sections, submit printed 
instructions for delivery, storage, assembly, installation, start-up, adjusting, 
and finishing, to Engineer for delivery to Owner in quantities specified for 
Product Data. 

B. Indicate special procedures, perimeter conditions requiring special 
attention, and special environmental criteria required for application or 
installation. 

XII.  MANUFACTURER'S FIELD REPORTS 

A. Submit reports for Engineer's benefit as contract administrator or for 
Owner. 

B. Submit report in duplicate within 30 days of observation to Engineer for 
information. 

C. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

XIII. ERECTION DRAWINGS 

A. Submit drawings for Engineer's benefit as contract administrator or for 
Owner. 

B. Submit for information for limited purpose of assessing conformance with 
information given and design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

C. Data indicating inappropriate or unacceptable Work may be subject to 
action by Engineer or Owner. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Not Used 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

Not Used 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 299 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MOBILIZATION 
2/11/16  01505 - 1 

 

SECTION 01505 

MOBILIZATION 

 

 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. DESCRIPTION 

A. Mobilization shall include the obtaining of all permits, licenses, bonds and 

insurance; moving onto the site of all plant and equipment; furnishing and 

erecting temporary facilities, and their removal; all as required for the 

proper performance and completion of the work. Mobilization shall include, 

but not be limited to, the following principal items: 

1. Moving on to the site of all Contractor's plant and equipment 

required for operations. 

2. Installing temporary construction power, lighting and other 

temporary facilities. 

3. Developing construction water supply. 

4. Providing and maintaining a field office for the Contractor. 

5. Providing on-site sanitary facilities and potable water facilities. 

6. Arranging for and erection of Contractor's work and storage yard. 

7. Obtaining and maintaining all required permits, insurances and 

bonds. 

8. Posting all OSHA required notices and establishment of safety 

programs. 

9. Having the Contractor's superintendent at the job site full time, at all 

times when the construction is in progress. 

10. Submitting Construction Schedule. 

11. Submitting Schedule of Values. 

12. Maintaining the site in a clean, safe and orderly condition. 

13. Demobilization and cleanup. 

14. Photographic documentation of the site and access conditions prior 

to, start of, and at the completion of construction. 

15. Maintaining contractor redline as-built markups throughout 

construction and submission upon completion of the project. 

PART 2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 

I. Standard Plans 

II. Technical Specifications 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 300 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  MOBILIZATION 
2/11/16  01505 - 2 

 

PART 3 MATERIALS 

NOT USED 

 

PART 4 EXECUTION  

NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 301 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 1 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 

SECTION 02620 
HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE AND FITTINGS 

 
 
 
PART 1  GENERAL 
 
 
1.01  DESCRIPTION 
 

This section covers requirements for High Density polyethylene pipe and fittings 
for sewer use.  
 
 

1.02  REFERENCE STANDARDS 
 
The publications listed below form part of this specification to the extent 
referenced and are referred to in the text by the basic designation only. 
Reference shall be made to the latest edition of said standards unless otherwise 
called for.  
 
A. ASTM D3035 – Standard Spec for PE Pipe (DR-PR) based on Controlled 

Outside Diameter  
 

B. ASTM D3261 – Butt Heat Fusion PE Fittings for PE Pipe & Tubing 
 

C. ASTM D3350 – Standard Specification for PE Pipe & Fittings Materials  
 

D. ASTM D1238 – Melt Flow Index 
 

E. ASTM D1505 – Density of Plastics 
 

F. ASTM D2837 – Hydrostatic Design Basis 
 

G. TR-33/2005 – Generic Butt Fusion Joining Procedure for Field Joining of 
PE Pipe 

 
 

1.03  RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 
 
A. Standard Plans 
 
B. Technical Specifications 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 302 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 2 

 
1.04  SERVICE APPLICATION 
 

A. HDPE pipe will be used to transport and convey wastewater. 
 

1.05  SUBMITTALS 
 

A. DOCUMENTATION  
 
1. Documentation from the resin’s manufacturer showing results of the 

following tests for resin identification: Melt Flow Index ASTM D1238.  
 
2. Density ASTM D1505 

 

B. MANUFACTURER  
 
All HDPE pipe and fittings shall be from a single manufacturer, who is fully 
experienced, reputable and qualified in the manufacture of the HDPE pipe 
to be furnished. The pipe shall be designed, constructed and installed in 
accordance with the best practices and methods and shall comply with 
these Specifications.  
 

C. FINISHED PRODUCT EVALUATION  
 
Production staff shall check each length of pipe produced for the items 
listed below. The results of all measurements shall be recorded on 
production sheets, which become part of the manufacturer’s permanent 
records.  
 
1. Pipe in process shall be checked visually, inside and out for cosmetic 

defects (grooves, pits, hollows, etc.)  
2. Pipe outside diameter shall be measured using a suitable periphery 

tape to ensure conformance with ASTM F714 or ASTM D3035, 
whichever is applicable.  

3. Pipe wall thickness shall be measured at 12 equally spaced locations 
around the circumference at both ends of the pipe to ensure 
conformance with ASTM F714 or ASTM D3035, whichever is 
applicable.  

4. Pipe length shall be measured.  
5. Pipe marking shall be examined and checked for accuracy.  
6. Pipe ends shall be checked to ensure they are cut square and clean.  
7. Subject inside surface to a “reverse bend test” to ensure the pipe is 

free of oxidation (brittleness).  
 
 

D. STRESS REGRESSION TESTING  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 303 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 3 

 
The polyethylene pipe manufacturer shall provide certification that stress 
regression testing has been performed on the specific polyethylene resin 
being utilized in the manufacture of this product. This stress regression 
testing shall have been done in accordance with ASTM D2837 and the 
manufacturer shall provide a product supplying a minimum Hydrostatic 
Design Basis (HDB) of 1,600 psi as determined in accordance with ASTM 
D2837.  

 
E. COMPATIBILITY  
 

Contractor is responsible for compatibility between pipe materials, fittings 
and appurtenances. 

 

F. WARRANTY 
 

The pipe MANUFACTURER shall provide a warranty against 
manufacturing defects of material and workmanship for a period of ten 
years after the final acceptance of the project by the OWNER. The 
MANUFACTURER shall replace at no expense to the OWNER any 
defective pipe/fitting material including labor within the warranty period. 

 
 
PART 2  MATERIALS 
 
2.01  MATERIALS FOR PIPE SIZES 4-INCH DIAMETER AND LARGER  

A.  Sizes of the insertions to be used shall be such to renew the sewer to its 
original or greater than flow capacity. The minimum inner diameter (ID) of 
the furnished pipe shall be within a tolerance of ±1-inch of the minimum 
diameter specified in the plans. 

B. Materials used for the manufacture of polyethylene pipe and fittings shall 
be made from a PE 3408 high density polyethylene resin compound 
meeting cell classification 345434C per ASTM D3350; and meeting Type 
lll, Class C, Category 5, Grade P34 per ASTM D1238.  

C.  If rework compounds are required, only those generated in the 
Manufacturer’s own plant from resin compounds of the same class and 
type from the same raw material supplier shall be used.  

D.  Dimensions and workmanship shall be as specified by ASTM F714. HDPE 
fittings and transitions shall meet ASTM D3261. HDPE pipe shall have a 
minimum density of 0.955 grams per cubic centimeter. All HDPE pipe and 
fittings shall have a Hydrostatic Design Basis (HDB) of 1,600 psi.  

E.  HDPE pipe and accessories 4-inch diameter and larger, shall be 160 psi 

at 73.4
o
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 304 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 4 

F.  High Density Polyethylene Pipe (HDPE) manufacturers recommend 
minimum wall thickness of SDR 17 for pipe bursting installations. 

 
G. Material color shall be black with grey interior lining. The black exterior is 

intended to prevent UV damage during storage, and the gray interior lining 
is to allow for more visibility during video CCTV.   
 

H. The pipe shall be homogenous throughout and shall be free of visible 
cracks, holes, foreign material, blisters, or other deleterious faults. 

 

I. The pipe Manufacturer must certify compliance with the above 
requirements.  

 
2.02  FITTINGS  

A.  All molded fittings and fabricated fittings shall be fully pressure rated to 
match the pipe SDR pressure rating to which they are made. All fittings 
shall be molded or fabricated by the manufacturer. No Contractor 
fabricated fittings shall be used unless approved by the Engineer.  

B.  The manufacturer of the HDPE pipe shall supply all HDPE fittings and 
accessories as well as any adapters and/or specials required to perform 
the work as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.  

C.  All fittings shall be installed using butt-fused fittings, thermo-fused 
fittings/couplings, or flanged adapters and must be approved by the 
Engineer. No size on size wet taps shall be permitted.  

D.  All transition from HDPE pipe to VCP or PVC shall be made per the 
approval of the Engineer and per the HDPE pipe manufacturer’s 
recommendations and specifications.  

E. Pipe to pipe connections shall be made with Strong Back couplings as 
manufactured by Fernco.  They shall have a stainless steel shield and 
double stainless steel bands. 

 
2.03 PIPE IDENTIFICATION  
 

A.  The following shall be continuously indent printed on the pipe or spaced at 
intervals not exceeding 5-feet:  
 
1.  Name and/or trademark of the pipe manufacturer.  
 
2.  Nominal pipe size.  
 
3.  Dimension ratio. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 305 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16 02620 - 5 

4. The letters PE followed by the polyethylene grade in accordance with
ASTM

5. Manufacturing standard reference, e.g., ASTM F714 or D-3035, as
required.

6. A production code from which the date and place of manufacture can
be determined.

7. Color Identification, either stripped green by co-extruding longitudinal
identifiable color markings or shall be solid in color.

PART 3 EXECUTION 

3.01 INSTALLATION 

A. High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Pipe shall be installed in accordance with 
the instructions of the manufacturer, as shown on the Drawings and as 
specified herein. A factory qualified joining technician as designated by the 
pipe manufacturer shall perform all heat fusion joints.  

B. HDPE shall be installed by the Pneumatic Pipe Busting Method per Section 
02776. 

C. Care shall be taken in loading, transporting and unloading to prevent damage 
to the pipe. Pipe or fitting shall not be dropped. All pipe or fitting shall be 
examined before installation, and no piece shall be installed which is found to 
be defective. Any damage to the pipe shall be repaired as directed by the 
Engineer. If any defective pipe is discovered after it has been installed, it shall 
be removed and replaced with a sound pipe in a satisfactory manner by the 
contractor, at his own expense.  

D. Under no circumstances shall the pipe or accessories be dropped into the 
trench or forced through a directional bore upon “pull-back”. 

E. Care shall be taken during transportation of the pipe such that it will not be 
cut, kinked or otherwise damaged. 

F. Ropes, fabric or rubber protected slings and straps shall be used when 
handling pipes. Chains, cables or hooks inserted into the pipe ends shall not 
be used. Two slings spread apart shall be used for lifting each length of pipe.  

G. Pipes shall be stored on level ground, preferably turf or sand, free of sharp 
objects, which could damage the pipe. Stacking of the polyethylene pipe shall 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 306 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16 02620 - 6 

be limited to a height that will not cause excessive deformation of the bottom 
layers of pipes under anticipated temperature conditions. Where necessary 
due to ground conditions, the pipe shall be stored on wooden sleepers, 
spaced suitably and of such width as not to allow deformation of the pipe at 
the point of contact with the sleeper or between supports.  

H. Pipe shall be stored on clean level ground to prevent undue scratching or 
gouging. The handling of the pipe shall be in such a manner that the pipe is 
not damaged by dragging it over sharp and cutting objects. The maximum 
allowable depth of cuts, scratches or gouges on the exterior of the pipe is 5 
percent of wall thickness. The interior pipe surface shall be free of cuts, 
gouges or scratches.  

I. Pipe shall be laid to lines and grade shown on the Drawings with bedding and 
backfill as shown on the Drawings. 

J. When laying is not in progress, including lunchtime, the open ends of the pipe 
shall be closed by fabricated plugs, or by other approved means. 

K. Sections of pipe with cuts, scratches or gouges exceeding 5 percent of the 
pipe wall thickness shall be removed completely and the ends of the pipeline 
rejoined. 

L. The pipe shall be joined by the method of thermal butt fusion, as outlined in 
PART 3 – Execution, Section 3.02 Joining Method. All joints shall be made in 
strict compliance with the manufacturer’s recommendations.  

M. The fused polyethelene pipe shall be internally reamed to remove beads 
formed during fusion. 

N. All HDPE pipe must be at the temperature of the surrounding soil at the time 
of backfilling and compaction. 

O. If a defective pipe is discovered after it has been installed, it shall be removed 
and replaced with a sound pipe in a satisfactory manner at no additional cost 
to the Owner. All pipe and fittings shall be thoroughly cleaned before 
installation, shall be kept clean until they are used in the work and when laid, 
shall conform to the lines and grades required. 

P. Open Trench Installation: 

1. The centerline of the pipe shall not deviate from a straight line drawn
between the centers of the openings at the ends of the pipe by more than
1/16-in per foot of length. If a piece of pipe fails to meet this requirement
check for straightness, it shall be rejected and removed from the site.
Laying instructions of the manufacturer shall be explicitly followed.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 307 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 7 

 
2. Good alignment shall be preserved during installation. Deflection of the 

pipe shall occur only at those places on design drawings and as approved 
by the Engineer. Fittings, in addition to those shown on the Drawings, 
shall be used only if necessary or required by the Engineer.  
 

3. Each length of the pipe shall have the assembly mark aligned with the 
pipe previously laid and held securely until enough backfill has been 
placed to hold the pipe in place. Joints shall not be “pulled” or “cramped”.  
 

4. Precautions shall be taken to prevent flotation of the pipe in the trench.  
 

5. When moveable trench bracing such as trench boxes, moveable sheeting, 
shoring or plates are used to support the sides of the trench, care shall be 
taken in placing and moving the boxes or supporting bracing to prevent 
movement of the pipe, or disturbance of the pipe bedding and the backfill. 
Trench boxes, moveable sheeting, shoring or plates shall not be allowed 
to extend below top of the pipe. As trench boxes, moveable sheeting, 
shoring or plates are moved, pipe bedding shall be placed to fill any voids 
created and the backfill shall be recompacted to provide uniform side 
support for the pipe.  
 

6. Restrained joints shall be installed where shown on the Drawings or as 
directed by the Engineer.  

 
Q. Pipe Bursting Installation:  

 
1. Refer to Section 02776 – Pneumatic Pipe Bursting in its entirety.  

 
3.02  JOINING METHOD  

A.  The pipe shall be joined with butt, heat fusion joints as outlined in ASTM 
D2657 and conform to the Generic Butt Fusion Joining Procedure for Field 
Joining of Polyethylene Pipe, Technical Report TR-33/2005, published by 
the Plastic Pipe Institute (PPI). All joints shall be made in strict compliance 
with the manufacturer’s recommendations. A factory qualified joining 
technician as designated by pipe manufacturer or experienced, trained 
technician shall perform all heat fusion joints in the presence of the 
inspector.  

 
B.  Lengths of pipe shall be assembled into suitable installation lengths by the 

butt-fusion process. All pipes so joined shall be made from the same class 
and type of raw material made by the same raw material supplier. Pipe 
shall be furnished in standard laying lengths not to exceed 50 feet and no 
shorter than 20 feet.  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 308 of 495



 

S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  HDPE PIPE AND FITTINGS 
3/11/16  02620 - 8 

C.  On days butt fusions are to be made, the first fusion shall be a trial fusion 
in the presence of an Inspector. The following shall apply:  

 
1. Heating plate surfaces shall be inspected for cuts and scrapes and shall 

be free of dirt and residue. Heater surfaces should be between 400
O
F 

(minimum) to 450
O
F (maximum). Measure the temperature @ 12:00, 

3:00, 6:00 and 9:00 o’clock positions using a pyrometer or infrared 
thermometer at locations where the heating plate will contact the 
pipe/fitting ends. The maximum temperature difference between any 

two points on a single heating surface must not exceed 24
O
F. If this 

temperature is exceeded, the heating plate shall be cleaned per the 
manufacturer’s recommendations.  

2. The fusion or test section shall be cut out after cooling completely for 
inspection.  

3. The test section shall be 12” or 30 times (minimum) the wall thickness 
in length and 1” or 1.5 times the wall thickness in width (minimum).  

4. The joint shall be visually inspected as to continuity of “beads” from the 
melted material, and for assurance of “cold joint” prevention (i.e. – joint 
shall have visible molded material between walls of pipe). Joint 
spacing between the walls of the two ends shall be a minimum of 1/16” 
to a maximum 3/16”.  

 
3.03 CLEANING  
 

At the conclusion of the work, thoroughly clean all of the new pipe lines to 
remove all dirt, stones, pieces of wood or other material which may have 
entered during the construction period by forcing a cleaning swab through 
all mains 4” or greater. Flushing velocities shall be a minimum of 2.5 feet 
per second. All flushing shall be coordinated with the Inspector. Debris 
cleaned from the lines shall be removed from the job site.  

 
3.04  TESTING 
 

A.  Pressure testing shall be conducted per Manufacturer’s recommendations 
and as approved by the Engineer.  

 
 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 309 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 1 of 8 

SECTION 02776 

PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 

PART 1 GENERAL 

I. DESCRIPTION 

A. This specification shall cover the rehabilitation of existing sanitary sewers 
using the GRUNDOCRACK PIPE BURSTING SYSTEM. Pipe bursting is a 
system by which the pneumatic bursting tool fractures the existing pipe 
while simultaneously installing a new Polyethylene Pipe of the same size 
or larger size pipe where the old pipe existed, then reconnects existing 
sewer service house connections followed by television inspection of the 
Polyethylene Pipe. The installation is then completed in accordance with 
the contract documents. Only pneumatically operated equipment with 
either front or rear expanders for the proper connection to the 
Polyethylene Pipe will be allowed for use. The pneumatic tool must be 
used in conjunction with a constant tension/variable speed winch. The 
winch shall have twin cable pulling capstans with twin hydraulic drive 
motors and twin gear boxes for independent operation of 20, 10 or 5 tons. 
The size of the winch depends on the diameter of the pipe to be replaced. 

II. QUALIFICATIONS 

A. The contractor shall provide proof of training by the particular Pipe 
Bursting System Manufacturer and that such a company is a fully trained 
in the use of the pipe bursting system. 

B. Polyethylene pipe joining shall be performed by personnel trained in the 
use of butt-fusion equipment and in accordance with recommended 
methods for new pipe connections. Personnel directly involved with 
installing the new pipe shall receive training in the proper methods for 
handling and installing the polyethylene pipe. Training shall be performed 
by qualified representative. 

III. SUBMITTALS 

Submit the following Contractor’s Drawings: 

A. Shop drawings, catalog data, and manufacturer's technical data showing 
complete information on material composition, physical properties, and 
dimensions of new pipe and fittings. Include manufacturer's 
recommendations for handling, storage, and repair of pipe and fittings 
damaged. 

B. Method of construction and restoration of existing sewer service 
connections. This shall include: 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 310 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 2 of 8 

 
Detail drawings and written descriptions of the entire construction procedure to 
install pipe, bypass sewage flow and reconnection of sewer service connections. 

C. Proof of workmen training for installing pipe. 

D. Television inspection reports and videotapes made prior to pipe bursting 
and after new pipe installation. 

IV. DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Transport, handle, and store pipe and fittings as recommended by 
manufacturer. 

B. If new pipe and fittings become damaged before or during installation, 
they shall be repaired as recommended by the manufacturer or replaced 
as required by the Engineer at the Contractor's expense, before 
proceeding further. 

C. Deliver, store and handle other materials as required to prevent damage. 
D. Material shall be protected as necessary to prevent degradation or 

damage by ultraviolet (UV) radiation. Such protection shall be per the 
manufacturer or by solid, opaque, secured tarping, whichever is more 
stringent 

V. METHODS FOR NEW PIPE INSTALLATION 

The method approved for rehabilitation of existing sewer mains by pipe bursting 
and installation of new polyethylene pipe is T.T. Technologies GRUNDOCRACK 
SYSTEMS, (800-533-2078), www.tttechnologies.com or approved equal. Contact 
TT Technologies, Inc. for a list of contractors in your area. 

VI. TESTS 

Tests for compliance with this specification shall be made as specific herein and 
in accordance with the applicable ASTM Specification. A certificate with this 
specification shall be furnished, upon request, by the manufacturer for all 
material furnished under this specification. Polyethylene plastic pipe and fittings 
may be rejected to meet any requirements of this specification. 

PART 2 MATERIALS 

I. PIPE 
 
Refer to Section 02620 – HDPE Pipe in its entirety. 

II. EQUIPMENT 

The pipe bursting tool shall be designed and manufactured to force its way 
through existing pipe materials by fragmenting the pipe and compressing the old 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 311 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 3 of 8 

pipe sections into the surrounding soil as it progresses. The bursting unit shall be 
pneumatic and shall generate sufficient force to burst and compact the existing 
pipe line. See manufacturer’s specifications for what size tool should be used in 
what diameter of pipe, as well as parameters of what size tool for percentage of 
upsize allowed. 

The pipe bursting tool shall be pulled through the sewer by a winch located at the 
either upstream or downstream manhole. The bursting unit shall pull the 
polyethylene pipe with it as it moves forward. The bursting head shall incorporate 
a shield/expander to prevent collapse of the hole ahead of the PE pipe insertion. 
The pipe bursting unit shall be remotely controlled. 

The pipe bursting tool shall be pneumatic. The bursting action of the tool shall 
increase the external dimensions sufficiently, causing breakage of the pipe at the 
same time expanding the surrounding ground. This action shall not only break 
the pipe but also create a temporary void into which the bursting tool can be 
winched and enables forward progress to be made. At the same time the 
polyethylene pipe, directly attached to the sleeve on the rear of the bursting tool, 
shall also move forward.  The bursting tool shall have its own forward momentum 
while being assisted by winching. A hydraulic winch shall give the bursting tool a 
force of constant tension so that it can be moved forward. To form a complete 
operating system, the bursting tool must be matched to a constant tension 
hydraulic winching system 

III. WINCH UNIT  

A winch shall be attached to the front of the bursting tool, connecting to or 
through the advanced guide head technology. The winch shall provide a constant 
tension to the bursting tool in order that it may operate in an efficient manner. 
The winch shall have twin capstan with twin hydraulic drive motors and twin gear 
boxes for independent operation. 
 
The winch shall be hydraulically operated providing a constant tension 
throughout the operation. The winch shall be of the constant tension type but 
shall be fitted with a direct reading load gauge to measure the winching load. The 
winch must be able to be operated by a remote control if needed.  The winch 
must automatically maintain a constant tension at a set tonnage reading.  The 
constant tension winch shall supply sufficient cable in one continuous length so 
that the pull may be continuous between approved winching points.  The winch, 
cable and cable drum must be provided with safety cage and supports so that it 
may be operated safely without injury to persons or property.  The contractor 
shall provide a system of guide pulleys and bracing at the exit pit to minimize 
cable contact with the existing line between launch and exit pits. 
The supports to the trench shoring in the insertion pit shall remain completely 
separate from the winch boom support system and shall be so designed that 
neither the pipe nor the winch cable shall be in contact with them. 
The supports to the trench shoring in the insertion pit shall remain completely 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 312 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 4 of 8 

separate from the winch boom support system and shall be so designed that 
neither the pipe nor the winch cable shall be in contact with them. 
The winch shall have twin capstan with twin hydraulic drive motors and twin gear 
boxes for independent operation. In no case shall the winch cable storage spool 
be considered part of the twin capstan pulling system 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

I. SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 

All sewer service connections shall be identified and located prior to the pipe 
insertion to expedite reconnection. Upon commencement, pipe insertion shall be 
continuous and without interruption from one manhole to another, except as 
approved by the engineer and/or his representative. Upon completion of insertion 
of the new pipe, the contractor shall expedite the reconnection of services so as 
to minimize any inconvenience to the customers.  Sewer service connections 
shall be connected to the new pipe by various methods. The saddles should be 
made of a material compatible with that of the pipe. Fusion of saddle connection 
to the main is the only means of assuring complete leak free joint is obtained. 

A. Electrofusion saddles as manufactured by Central Plastics or approved 
equal, shall be installed in accordance with the manufactures 
recommended procedures. 

B. Conventional Fusion saddles as manufactured by Central Plastics and 
Performance Pipe shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommended procedures 

C. Connection of the new service lateral to the mainline shall be 
accomplished by means of a compression-fit service connection. The 
service connection shall be specifically designed for connection to the 
sewer main being installed, and shall be INSERTA TEE as manufactured 
by Inserta Tee. Hillsboro, Oregon, (503) 357-2110: or approved equal. 
Install using procedures and equipment as referenced in manufacturer's 
written installation instructions 

II. BYPASSING SEWAGE 

A. By-Pass Pumping: The Contractor, when and where required, shall 
design, furnish, install, and maintain sewage diversion or bypassing for the 
sewer replacement process. The pumps and by-pass lines shall be of 
adequate capacity and size to handle all flows. The system shall include a 
backup pump. 

B. The Contractor shall submit a written bypass plan, shop drawings and the 
pump curve for the bypass system to Veolia for review and approval. 

C. The contractor shall notify Veolia 48 hours before all bypass operations. 
D. The Contractor shall be responsible for continuity of sanitary sewer 

service to each facility connected to the section of sewer during the 
execution of the work. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 313 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 5 of 8 

E. If sewage backup occurs and enters buildings, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for clean-up, repair, property damage cost and claims. 

F. Existing sewer mains may be bypassed but sewer service laterals must 
remain in-service throughout construction. Sewer service laterals may be 
disconnected for a maximum of (8) hours. 

G. The peak sewer flows for sizing of the bypass system are in the following 
table. These flows are estimates only. The Contractor shall field verify 
flows prior to bypassing. 

Table II.E - S4 Peak Sewer Flows

From To Flow

MH No. MH No. (cfs)

233-49 234-8 1.2597

234-8 234-9 2.7455

234-9 234-10 2.7498

234-10 250-9 2.7555

250-9 250-10 2.8914

250-10 250-11 2.8957

250-11 250-12 3.0298

250-12 250-13 3.0340  

III. VIDEO INSPECTION 

Video inspection of pipelines shall be performed by experienced personnel 
trained in locating breaks, obstacles and service connections by closed circuit 
color television. Video inspection shall include the following: 

A. Pre-pipe bursting video inspection by Contractor. Normal pipe bursting 
practice includes video and evaluation of the existing pipe during the 
design phase of the project or prior to commencement of pipe bursting 
operations. 

B. Submittal of post installation digital video files to Veolia Water North 
America Operating Services (Client) before final invoice. The Client will 
submit all videos to the City. 

C. Digital video files to remain property of the Client; Contractor to retain 
second copy for his use and records. All flows tributary to reach of sewer 
being inspected are to be completely by-passed around the reach during 
inspection if necessary and required by the Client. 

D. Post construction video inspection upon completion of reconstruction of 
each reach of sewer with voice description, as appropriate with stationing 
of services indicated. Data and stationing to be on video. 

E. Should any portion of the digital video inspection files be of inadequate 
quality or coverage, as determined by the Client, the Contractor will have 
the portion re-inspected and videoed at no additional expense to the 
Client. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 314 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 6 of 8 

IV. CONSTRUCTION METHOD 

A. The Contractor shall install all pulleys, rollers, bumpers, alignment control 
devices and other equipment required to protect existing manholes, and to 
protect the pipe from damage during installation.  Lubrication may be used 
as recommended by the manufacturer. Under no circumstances will the 
pipe be stressed beyond its elastic limit. Winch line is to be centered in 
pipe to be burst with adjustable boom. 

B. The installed pipe shall be allowed to cool and relax due to tensile 
stressing prior to any reconnection of service lines, sealing of the annulus 
or backfilling of the insertion pit. The duration of cooling and relaxing shall 
be per the manufacturer's recommendations, but not less than four (4) 
hours.. Sufficient excess length of new pipe, not less than four (4) inches, 
shall be installed to protrude into the manhole to provide for shrinkage, 
sealing, trimming and electrofusion coupling. Restraint of pipe ends shall 
be achieved by means of Central Plastics Electrofusion couplings (800) 
654-3872. The Electrofusion couplings shall be slipped over pipe ends 
against manhole wall and fused in place.  Installation of Electrofusion 
couplings shall be done in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommended procedures. 

C. Launch and Receiving Excavations: 
Launch pits need to be long enough to properly align the bursting tool with 
the existing pipe and to allow the HDPE pipe enough space to begin a 
graceful "S-Bend” out of the pit and transition to a “tail ditch” at the street 
above. A good rule of thumb to use for the “tail ditch” is to multiply the 
depth of the existing pipe by a factor of 4. The product is an approximate 
minimum launch pit length plus “tail ditch”.  
 
Tail Ditch Example: Existing pipe is 8' deep; 8' depth x 4 = 32' graduating 
tail ditch. 
Note: The tail ditch only needs to accommodate the outside diameter of 
new pipe.  The receiving pits,  need to be long enough to easily remove 
the bursting tool/expander combination leaving a couple of feet of the 
HDPE pipe to work with. A manhole may be used as the receiving pit at 
the discretion of the Contractor. 

 
1. Windowing Method.  Up to 12" diameter PE pipe, the Contractor 

shall use the "windowing" method where necessary, to prevent 
damage to surrounding infrastructure. This method is described in 
TT Technologies, Inc.'s "Pipe Bursting Operation Manual." Both 
entrance and exit procedures may be conducted.  Underground 
utility locating must be performed prior to determining the necessity 
and feasibility of the "windowing" method. 

2. When an exit pit is difficult due to underground utility placement or 
surrounding infrastructure, the Contractor may remove the tool 
back through the new pipe to the entrance pit. If this method is 
used, the Contractor shall use the GRUNDOCRACK PCG System. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 315 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 7 of 8 

The PCG System uses a pneumatic tool with a special head 
expander. The PCG tool also uses a remote controlled reverse 
procedure to allow reversing the GRUNDOCRACK tool for removal 
back through the newly installed HDPE. In all cases, the tool must 
have the ability to operate in reverse to prevent damage to the 
HDPE during removal. 

3. Service Connections 
Excavations for laterals should be to depth of 1 foot below the 
lateral. This will help to prevent uneven expansion of the soil by the 
bursting tool. This will minimize the potential of creating a hump in 
the new pipe at lateral connections. In some soil conditions, it will 
be important to only excavate for the lateral to the invert of the host 
pipe. This will help minimize the potential of creating sags at lateral 
connections.  These are usually lateral connections where leakage 
has been occurring for some time causing the soil to be softer than 
the rest of the pipeline. 

V. FIELD TESTING 

A. After the existing sewer is completely replaced, the new pipe shall be 
internally inspected with a television camera and recorded. The finished 
tape shall be continuous over the entire length of the sewer between two 
manholes to be free from visual defects. Digital video of the inspection 
shall be provided per Section 3.03. 

B. Defects which may affect the integrity or strength of the pipe in the opinion 
of the Engineer shall be repaired or the pipe replaced at the Contractor's 
expense. 

VI. PIPE JOINING 

A. The polyethylene pipe shall be assembled and joined at the site using the 
butt-fusion method to provide a leak proof joint. Threaded or solvent-
cement joints and connections are not permitted.  All equipment and 
procedures used shall be used in strict compliance with the manufacturer's 
recommendations. Fusing shall be accomplished by personnel certified as 
fusion technicians by a manufacturer of polyethylene pipe and/or fusing 
equipment. 

B. The butt-fused joint shall be true alignment and shall have uniform roll-
back beads resulting from the use of proper temperature and pressure. 
The joint shall be allowed adequate cooling time before removal of 
pressure. The fused joint shall be watertight and shall have tensile 
strength equal to that of the pipe. All joints shall be subject to acceptance 
by the engineer and/or his representative prior to insertion. 

C. The fused polyethelene pipe shall be internally reamed to remove beads 
formed during fusion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 316 of 495



S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT  PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 
3/11/16  02776 - 8 of 8 

D. Terminal sections of pipe that are joined within the insertion pit shall be 
connected with Central Plastics Electrofusion Couplings or connectors 
with tensile strength equivalent to that of the pipe being joined 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 317 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-1 

 

 

Disclaimer: 
Prior to applying any repair protective coating contractor shall verify the existing coating type. 
Repair coating shall be compatible with existing coating. Submit shop drawing of coating type for 
approvals prior to any work. 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL 

 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 

 
A. Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals as 

shown, specified, or required to rehabilitate existing manholes. 
 

B. Work primarily consists application of two part protective coating system 
consisting of epoxy primer and lining with polyurethane. Work may also 
include application of air-placed concrete "gunite" for more severely 
damaged manholes. 

 
C. Only the gunite, polyurethane and epoxy systems and methods described in 

this Section may be used to rehabilitate manholes. Contractor proposals for 
alternates, substitutions, or using systems and methods that do not appear in 
this Section are not equal and are not acceptable. 

 
1.2 SUBMITTALS 

 
A. Submit the following to the Engineer for approval - Submittals: 

 
1. Manufacturer's product data including physical properties, surface 

preparation, repair application, curing and field quality control. 
 

2. Manufacturer's qualifications including a list of references for a 
minimum of three (3) similar rehabilitation installation projects. 

 
3. Qualifications including certification stating the applicator is factory 

trained and approved by the manufacturer in application of the 
specified products. 

 
PART 2 – MATERIALS 

 
2.1 PRE-COATING 

 
A. Concrete gunite is to be used as a pre-coating for more severely damaged 

manholes as directed by the Engineer. 
 

B. Use Gunite 7101 by US Concrete products or equal. Gunite shall be 
specified for use in manhole repair applications, and applied in accordance 
with shotcrete methods per ACI 506. 

 
C. Concrete gunite shall have a 3 day compressive strength of 4,000 psi and a 

28 day compressive strength of 8,000 psi. 
 
2.2 POLYURETHANE AND EPOXY PRIMER 

 
A. Two-component, 100% solid, non-solvent, non-sag or self-leveling, 

polyurethane-base material, applicable in horizontal, vertical, and overhead 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 318 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-2 

installation. 

B. The top coat lining system shall have a tensile strength of 2,000 psi, a 
hardness of 55 and a tear resistance of 150 ppi, as a minimum. 

C. Lining shall be Sancon 100 polyurethane protective lining system, Raven 
405 or approved equal to meet the requirement specified herein. Equivalent 
system means a two part component system which uses a moisture tolerant 
100% solids epoxy base coat and a 100% solids high build polyurethane 
elastomer top coat. The resulting system provides the adhesion of epoxy and 
the flexibility of polyurethane. 

PART 3 – EXECUTION 

3.1 SURFACE PREPARATION 

A. Perform the preparation of the manholes in the following sequence: 

1. Implement sewage bypassing or plugging as necessary. Any flow
control will be the responsibility of the contractor.

2. Manhole steps shall be removed prior to rehabilitation of the
manhole. Anchor bolts shall be  ground down to 1/2"  below the
surface and patched flush.

3. Water blast the manhole interior to remove deteriorated concrete, oil,
grease, or existing coating. Water blast equipment shall be of a
minimum pressure of 5,000 psi and free from cleaning solvents.

4. Remove all debris prior to coating. No debris shall be allowed to enter
the sewer system.

5. Clear debris from all inlets including drop structure inlets.

6. After surface preparation and prior to concrete repair, eliminate all
active structure infiltration prior to liner application. Use gunite as a
pre-coating to prevent infiltration.

7. Air-placed concrete gunite application shall conform to Section
303-2 of the SSPWC. Apply gunite to a thickness (minimum one-
inch thickness) which will restore the original manhole surface.
Allow the gunite to cure for 24 hours prior to the lining application.

8. Manufacturer shall field inspect manhole and provide a written
statement that the manholes have been prepared properly and is
ready for epoxy base coat.

3.2 GUNITE PRE-COATING AND CHANNEL/BENCH RESTORATION 

A. In addition to gunite application for infiltration purposes above, apply gunite 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 319 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-3 

to   restore   structural   condition   of   severely   damaged   manholes   not 
designated for replacement to the satisfaction of the Engineer. 

B. Perform concrete surface preparation and abrade the concrete surface to 
remove all bond-inhibiting materials from the concrete substrate and to 
provide additional mechanical bond. Presoak the prepared concrete surface 
to provide a saturated, surface dry (SSD) condition. 

C. Apply gunite while taking proper consideration for compaction. When 
applying with multiple lifts, scratch the preliminary light before initial set. 
Apply the next lift after the preliminary lift has reached final set. If the 
succeeding lift is not to be immediately placed, keep the surface continually 
moist. Cut-off or level as required matching the original concrete elevation. 
Finish the final surface as required. 

D. Gunite shall have a minimum thickness of 1-inch, or as directed by the 
Engineer. 

E. For manholes in need of channel/bench restoration, bring back the manhole 
channel and shelf areas to their original dimensions using concrete repair 
mortar. Hand trowel shelves to provide a smooth and uniform surface. Allow 
concrete to cure for seven days prior to coating. 

F. For manholes in need of a channel bench, construct a new channel/bench 
per City Standard 204-0 and hand trowel shelves to provide a smooth and 
uniform surface. Allow concrete to cure for seven days prior to coating. 

3.3 PRELIMINARY INSPECTION 

A. Provide to the Engineer safe access to inspect the manholes' structural 
condition. Notify the Engineer at least two working days prior to inspection. 

B. Prior to primer coating, a manufacturer's representative shall field inspect all 
manholes and provide a written statement that the manholes have been 
properly prepared and are ready for application of the primer coat. Provide a 
written statement and submit to Engineer prior to applying primer coat. 

3.4 TWO STAGE LINING SYSTEM 

A. The lining shall be applied through equipment specifically designed and 
approved by the manufacturer of the lining material. The equipment shall 
be in good working order to ensure correct proportioning and mixing of the 
components. 

B. The lining application shall be performed only by workmen trained and 
experienced with the specified material. The contractor shall provide proof 
of such experience with the bid documents. Proof shall include a list of 
similar projects using the specified material. 

C. Prior to application of the polyurethane lining top coat, all surfaces shall 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 320 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION
07950-4

receive an epoxy primer base coat. 

1. Base coat thickness is to be 2 mils minimum.

D. Following application of base coast, apply polyurethane liner: 

1. Apply the lining to a thickness of 125 mils (1/8-inch) in one continuous
coat, without seams, free from any holes or defects immediately prior
to the epoxy primer becoming tack-free.

2. Terminate manhole lining at the flow line; DO NOT coat manhole
channels.

3. During lining application, take wet gauge thickness readings as
required to ensure correct lining thickness.

3.5 WEATHER CONDITIONS 

A. Application of the lining shall not take place when exposed to rain, or high 
winds. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure protection of the work 
from the above mentioned conditions. 

3.6 MAHOLE FRAME AND COVER REPLACEMENT AND GRADE ADJUSTMENTS 

A. For manholes requiring a new frame and cover or grade adjustments, 
remove all interfering items, including frame, cover, grade rings, etc, 
dispose of removed items, and install new components prior to application 
of lining system. 

B. Manhole frame and cover shall be Alhambra foundry A-1170 frame 
and cover conforming to either City Standard 201-0 or an approved 
equivalent after submittal of material.  

C. Concrete grade rings shall be Oldcastle, American Concrete pipe Co, or 
equal. 

D. Following installation of new manhole components, line manholes in 
accordance with Section 3.4. New manhole components do not need a 
gunite pre-coat. 

3.7 INSPECTION AND TESTING OF LINING 

A. Spark testing shall be witnessed by City inspection personnel, an authorized 
City representative or other appropriate personnel. 

B. The cured lining system shall be sparked tested for holidays with a high 
voltage holiday detector instrument. Spark testing equipment shall be Tinker 
and Rasor APW or equivalent instrument specified by the coating 
manufacturer. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 321 of 495



SECTION 07950 – MANHOLE REHABILITATION 

VEOLIA WATER SERVICES MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
07950-5 

 

 

 
 

C. Perform spark testing upon completion of lining installation and visual 
inspection. The voltage shall be set at a minimum of 15,000 volts. Spark 
testing voltage will be set at 100 volts per mil of coating thickness specified. 

 
D. All re-testing costs shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 
3.8 REPAIRS FOLLOWING TESTING 

 
A. The lining shall be fully cured and free from holidays, bubbles, surface 

imperfections, blisters, sags or pinholes and uniform in color. Lining shall 
be adequately adhered to the surface. 

 
B. Remove, rework and patch all areas in question to a point 1-inch minimum 

beyond the limits of the damaged area. 
 

C. All repairs shall be a minimum of 125 mils thick. 
 

D. Holidays shall be primed and recoated to an additional thickness of 30 
mils. 

 
E. Blisters, uncured lining and surface imperfections shall be completely 

removed and the areas recoated with appropriate lining material at a 
minimum thickness of 100 mils. 

 
F. Additional spark testing shall be completed after all repairs have been 

completed, reinspected and approved. All re-testing costs shall be borne 
by the Contractor. 

 
3.9 WARRANTY 

 
A. The Contractor and the manufacturer shall provide to the City a certificate of 

warranty that states: "The complete manhole rehabilitation was performed 
properly. We (the Contractor and Manufacturer) warrant all material and 
workmanship for a period of five (5) years starting from the day of final 
approval from the City. The Contractor and the manufacturer shall provide 
field response to the City's request regarding any defect in the manhole 
rehabilitation. The Contractor shall repair, at its sole expense, any areas that 
fail to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents or are defective. All 
repair work shall receive a new certificate of warranty of five (5) years with 
the same terms and conditions." 

 
END OF SECTION 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 322 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

© ©

PROJECT
LOCATION

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 323 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121

Ontario, CA 91764

P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 324 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 325 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 326 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 327 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 328 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 329 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 330 of 495



2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 121
Ontario, CA 91764
P 909.972.8032  F 310.664.8877

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 331 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 332 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 333 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 334 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 335 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 4777823.9 

 

SCHEDULE R.3 
LUMP SUM SUBCONTRACT FORM 

O&M Subcontract 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 336 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 4777823.9 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBCONTRACT 
[CONSTRUCTION FORM] 

 

 
PROJECT: S4 Sewer Main Replacement on. N Willow 

 
 
 

LOCATED IN: 

Rialto, CA 

PROJECT NO. S4 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 12, 2016 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 337 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

 
 
 

Page 
 
 

1. BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 Prime Contract ...................................................................................................... 1 

2. THE WORK ...................................................................................................................... 1 
2.1 Standard of Care ................................................................................................... 1 
2.2 Means and Methods .............................................................................................. 2 
2.3 Subcontractor Personnel ...................................................................................... 3 
2.4 Contract Documents ............................................................................................. 3 
2.5 Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 4 
2.6 Subcontractor and Contractor ............................................................................ 4 

3. SUBCONTRACTOR .........................................................................................................4 
3.1 Permits and Fees ................................................................................................... 4 
3.2 Superintendent ...................................................................................................... 5 
3.3 Coordination of the Work .................................................................................... 5 
3.4 Field Measurements .............................................................................................. 6 
3.5 Project Meetings .................................................................................................... 6 
3.6 Materials and Equipment ..................................................................................... 6 
3.7 Storage of Materials and Equipment .................................................................. 7 
3.8 Mock-Ups ............................................................................................................... 7 
3.9 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements ....................................................... 7 
3.10 Cleaning Up ........................................................................................................... 7 
3.11 Project .................................................................................................................... 1 
3.12 Definitions .............................................................................................................. 1 
3.13 Work ....................................................................................................................... 1 
3.14 Applicable Law ...................................................................................................... 2 
3.15 Subcontracts and Purchase Orders ..................................................................... 2 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................3 
4.1 Precedence ............................................................................................................. 3 

5. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES.......................................................................... 4 
5.1 Subcontractor and Other Parties ........................................................................ 4 
5.2 Licensing ................................................................................................................ 4 
5.3 Representative ....................................................................................................... 4 
5.4 Constructability and Efficiency ........................................................................... 5 
5.5 Submittals .............................................................................................................. 5 
5.6 Layout and Protection .......................................................................................... 6 
5.7 Project Reporting .................................................................................................. 6 
5.8 Site Logistics .......................................................................................................... 6 
5.9 Risk of Loss ............................................................................................................ 7 
5.10 Safety ...................................................................................................................... 7 
5.11 Cutting and Patching ............................................................................................ 7 
5.12 Test and Inspections ............................................................................................. 7 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 338 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Page i 
(continued) 

5.13 Non-Conforming Work and Correction ............................................................. 8 
5.14 Commissioning ...................................................................................................... 9 
5.15 Punch List .............................................................................................................. 9 
5.16 Close-Out ............................................................................................................... 9 
5.17 Information and Documents ................................................................................ 9 
5.18 Excluded Approvals  ........................................................................................... 10 
5.19 Separate Contractors  ......................................................................................... 10 
5.20 Contract Price  .................................................................................................... 10 
5.21 Contract Time  .................................................................................................... 10 
5.22 Prosecution of the Work  .................................................................................... 11 
5.23 Delays Caused by Subcontractor  ...................................................................... 12 
5.24 General  ................................................................................................................ 12 
5.25 General Conditions Costs  .................................................................................. 13 

6. CHANGES IN THE WORK  ......................................................................................... 14 
6.1 Allowed Adjustments  ......................................................................................... 14 
6.2 Subcontractor Initiated Changes  ...................................................................... 15 
6.3 Pricing  ................................................................................................................. 15 
6.4 Continued Performance ..................................................................................... 16 
6.5 Allowances  .......................................................................................................... 16 
6.6 Contract Time Impacts and Extended Costs  ................................................... 16 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 339 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Page ii 
(continued) 

6.7 Surety  .................................................................................................................. 17 
6.8 Progress Payments  ............................................................................................. 17 
6.9 Payment Not Acceptance of Work .................................................................... 19 
6.10 Waiver of Claims  ................................................................................................ 20 
6.11 Regulated Substances  ........................................................................................ 20 

7. INSURANCE AND BONDS  ..........................................................................................20 
7.1 Waiver of Subrogation  ...................................................................................... 20 
7.2 Option for Subcontractor Bonds  ...................................................................... 21 
7.3 Subcontractor’s Performance  ........................................................................... 21 
7.4 Duty to Defend  .................................................................................................... 23 

8. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES  ............................................................................23 
8.1 Correction of Nonconforming Work  ................................................................ 24 

9. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION  .......................................................24 

10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE  ...................................................................25 
10.1 Notice and Informal Resolution  ........................................................................ 25 
10.2 Binding Arbitration  ........................................................................................... 26 
10.3 Pass-through to Subcontractors ........................................................................ 27 
10.4 Contractor for Cause  ......................................................................................... 27 
10.5 Termination by Subcontractor for Cause  ........................................................ 28 

(continued) 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  ..............................................................................28 
11.1 Governing Law  ................................................................................................... 28 
11.2 Notice  ................................................................................................................... 28 
11.3 Effective Date  ...................................................................................................... 28 
11.4 Survival  ............................................................................................................... 28 
11.5 Remedies  ............................................................................................................. 29 
11.6 Severability  ......................................................................................................... 29 
11.7 Commencement of Statute of Limitations  ....................................................... 29 
11.8 Waiver  ................................................................................................................. 29 
11.9 Assignment of Contract  ..................................................................................... 29 
11.10 Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure  ................................................................. 29 
11.11 Modifications  ...................................................................................................... 29 
11.12 Counterparts ....................................................................................................... 30 
11.13 Section Headings  ................................................................................................ 30 
11.14 Time is of the Essence  ........................................................................................ 30 
11.15 Legal Citations  ................................................................................................... 30 
11.16 State Licensing Requirements.  .......................................................................... 30 
11.17 Entire Agreement  ............................................................................................... 30 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 340 of 495



Schedule R.3 
4777823.9  

Lump Sum Subcontract 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
11.18 Record Documents ................................................................................................ 8 
11.19 Acceptance Testing ............................................................................................... 9 
11.20 Early Occupancy ................................................................................................... 9 

12. CONTRACTOR ................................................................................................................ 9 
12.1 Contractor’s Representative  ............................................................................. 10 
12.2 Timeliness  ........................................................................................................... 10 

13. COMPENSATION  ......................................................................................................... 10 

14. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING  ...................................................................10 
14.1 Scheduling  ........................................................................................................... 10 
14.2 Permitted Delays  ................................................................................................ 11 

15. COST OF THE WORK  ................................................................................................. 12 
15.1 Direct Costs  ......................................................................................................... 12 
15.2 Overhead and Profit  .......................................................................................... 14 
15.3 Change Orders  ................................................................................................... 14 
15.4 Contractor Initiated Changes  ........................................................................... 15 
15.5 Submission  .......................................................................................................... 15 
15.6 Deductive Changes  ............................................................................................. 16 
15.7 Failure to Reach Agreement  ............................................................................. 16 
15.8 Omitted Work  .................................................................................................... 16 

Lump Sum Subcontract 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

16. PAYMENTS  ................................................................................................................... 17 
16.1 Final Payment  ..................................................................................................... 18 
16.2 Payments Withheld  ............................................................................................ 19 

17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  ........................................................................................20 
17.1 Indemnification  .................................................................................................. 20 
17.2 Required Insurance ............................................................................................ 20 
17.3 Builder’s Risk  ..................................................................................................... 21 

18. INDEMNIFICATION  ................................................................................................... 21 
18.1 Exceptions.  .......................................................................................................... 23 
18.2 Survival  ............................................................................................................... 23 
18.3 Warranty ............................................................................................................. 23 
18.4 Updated Information  ......................................................................................... 24 
18.5 Records  ................................................................................................................ 24 
18.6 General  ................................................................................................................ 25 
18.7 Senior Executive Meeting  .................................................................................. 25 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 341 of 495



Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

Page 4 

4777823.9  

18.8 Continuation of Work  ........................................................................................ 27 

19. TERMINATION  ............................................................................................................ 27 
19.1 Termination By Contractor For Convenience  ................................................ 27 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A Definitions 

 

Exhibit B Construction Documents 
 

Exhibit C Contract Price Breakdown; Billing Rates 

Exhibit D Scope of Work 

Exhibit E Project Schedule 
Exhibit F Excluded Approvals 

Exhibit G Insurance 

Exhibit H Subcontractor General Conditions (Schedule R.6 of Prime Contract) 
Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 

Exhibit J Warranty Form 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 342 of 495



Page 1 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

LUMP SUM SUBCONTRACT 
 
This Lump Sum Subcontract (“Subcontract”) is entered into as of July 12, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) by and between: 

The contractor below (“Contractor”): 

Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. 
437 N. Riverside Ave. 
Rialto, CA 92376 

and the subcontractor below (“Subcontractor”): 

[Enter Legal Name of Subcontractor] 
[Enter Address] 
[Enter City/State/Zip] 

 
The Project (“Project”) is:  S4 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow 

 
The Contractor and Subcontractor agree as set forth below. 

 
1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 Project.  The Project is described in the Construction Documents set forth in 

Exhibit B. 
 

1.2 Prime Contract.  The Project is being designed and constructed by Contractor 
under written agreement with its client Rialto Water Services, LLC (“Concessionaire”) pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract.  The Work is provided to support Contractor’s 
obligations to Concessionaire pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract. By 
execution of this Subcontract, the Subcontractor is bound and obligated to the Contractor to the 
same extent that the Contractor is bound to the Concessionaire under the Prime Contract and 
therefore assumes all of the same obligations, liabilities, and responsibilities that the Contractor 
has assumed toward Concessionaire with respect to the Work. 

 
1.3 Definitions. Certain defined terms for this Subcontract are located in Exhibit A. 

 
2. THE WORK 

 
2.1 Work.  The Subcontractor will provide all labor, materials, equipment, and 

appurtenances necessary for proper completion of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents as defined in Article 3. The Subcontractor’s Scope of Work is set forth in Exhibit D. 

 
2.2 Standard of Care.  The Subcontractor will supervise, direct and manage the 

Work using the Subcontractor’s best skill and attention and will perform all Work in a timely, 
workman-like manner consistent with the degree of care and skill customarily exercised by 
California State licensed contractors building wastewater and water treatment facilities that are 
of a similar nature, scope, size and complexity as this Project. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 343 of 495



Page 2 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

2.3 Applicable Law. The Subcontractor will perform the Work in full compliance 
with Applicable Laws in effect at the time the Work is performed. 

 
2.4 Means and Methods.  The Subcontractor is solely responsible for all 

construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for safety precautions 
and programs in connection with the Work. The Subcontractor is entirely responsible for the 
acts and omissions of its agents or employees, subcontractors, suppliers, any of their agents or 
employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work on behalf of the Subcontractor and 
agrees that the City, Authority, Concessionaire, and Contractor are not responsible for 
Subcontractor’s acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those for whom it is responsible. 
The Subcontractor acknowledges and agrees that Contractor is not responsible for any failure of 
Subcontractor to carry out the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
2.5 Subcontracts and Purchase Orders. Those portions of the Work that 

Subcontractor does not customarily perform with its own personnel will be performed by a tier 
subcontractor under written subcontract and subject to Contractor’s approval, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld.  All subcontracts must incorporate by reference the Contract Documents 
and bind the tier subcontractor to Subcontractor to the same extent that Subcontractor is bound to 
the Contractor under this Subcontract.  All tier subcontractors used or employed by the 
Subcontractor must possess the appropriate California state licenses and certifications required 
for performance of their respective portion of the Work and carry out their Work using the same 
degree of skill and care established in Section 2.2.  Each tier subcontractor and its employees are 
obligated to carry out their portion of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  All purchase orders must be in writing. 

 
2.5.1 Subcontractor is responsible for the acts and omissions of its 

subcontractors and of persons or entities either directly or indirectly employed by its 
subcontractors.  Nothing contained in this Subcontract creates a contractual relationship between 
a tier subcontractor and any of the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City. 

 
 
 
provisions: 

2.5.2 Each agreement with a tier subcontractor must include the following 

 
 
 

10.6.1; 
2.5.2.1 overhead and profit mark-up that is consistent with Section 

 

2.5.2.2 a waiver of subrogation on the terms of Section 13.2; 
 

2.5.2.3 a requirement to make payments of builder’s risk insurance 
proceeds per Section 13.3; 

 
2.5.2.4 the provisions of Article 16 regarding books and records; 

 
2.5.2.5 a provision assigning the subcontract to Contractor if 

Subcontractor is terminated, effective upon notice from Contractor to the tier subcontractor that 
it is taking assignment of the subcontract; 

 
2.5.2.6 insurance requirements consistent with Exhibit G; 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 344 of 495



Page 3 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

2.5.2.7 an indemnification provision at least as protective of the 
Indemnified Parties as the provisions in Article 14, with the Indemnified Parties as indemnitees 
in addition to Subcontractor; and 

 
2.5.2.8 a provision that binds the tier subcontractor to the dispute 

resolution procedures set forth in Article 17. 
 

2.6 Subcontractor Personnel.  If any employee or tier-subcontractor of the 
Subcontractor fails or refuses to carry out the Work in accordance with the provisions of this 
Subcontract or appears to be incompetent or acts in a disorderly or improper manner, the 
Subcontractor will remove that person or firm immediately from the Project on demand of the 
Contractor and reassign another person or firm who is similarly qualified and reasonably 
acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
3.1 Contract Documents.  The Subcontractor’s Contract Documents include this 

Subcontract, the General Conditions (Exhibit H), all of the attachments and exhibits included in 
the list of Contract Documents listed in Section 3.1.1, the permitted Construction Documents 
(Exhibit B), and all subsequent contract modifications issued after execution of this Subcontract 
such as Change Orders.  The Contract Documents referred to in this Subcontract are incorporated 
by reference as though set forth in full. 

 
3.1.1 Exhibits. The following exhibits to this Subcontract are Contract Documents: 

 
3.1.1.1 The definitions in Exhibit A; 

 
3.1.1.2 The Construction Documents forth in Exhibit B; 

 
 
 

forth in Exhibit C; 
3.1.1.3 The Contract Price breakdown and maximum billing rates set 

 

3.1.1.4 The Scope of Work set forth in Exhibit D; 
 

3.1.1.5 The Project Schedule set forth in Exhibit E; 
 

3.1.1.6 The list of Excluded Approvals in Exhibit F; 
 

3.1.1.7 The insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit G; 
 

3.1.1.8 The General Conditions attached to Exhibit H; 
 

3.1.1.9 The statutory waiver and release forms attached to Exhibit I; 
 

3.1.1.10 The Warranty Form included in Exhibit J. 
 

3.2 Precedence.  The Contract Documents are intended to be fully cooperative and 
complementary.  Subcontractor will promptly notify Contractor in writing through a request for 
clarification or information if it notices any conflict between or among Contract Documents.  If there 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 345 of 495



Page 4 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

is a conflict between or among the various Contract Documents, the most stringent requirement or 
highest standard will govern unless the Contractor’s response to the request for clarification or 
information dictates otherwise. The general dimensions will be figured on the Construction 
Documents.  These figured dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements. 

 
3.3 Acknowledgment.  The Subcontractor acknowledges it has carefully examined 

and understands this Subcontract and the other Contract Documents; has investigated the nature, 
locality and site of the Project and the conditions and difficulties under which the Work is to be 
performed; and enters into this Subcontract on the basis of its own examination, investigation 
and evaluation of all such matters and not in reliance upon any opinions or representations of the 
Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City, or any of their respective officers, agents, 
servants, or employees. 

 
4. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES 

 
4.1 Subcontractor and Contractor. The Subcontractor’s relationship with the 

Contractor is that of an independent contractor and not as an agent, fiduciary, partner, member 
of, subsidiary of, or otherwise affiliated with the Contractor. The Subcontractor agrees to 
cooperate and collaborate with the Contractor, and to exercise the Subcontractor’s best skill and 
judgment in furthering the interests of the Contractor; to furnish efficient business administration 
and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to 
perform the Work in the most expeditious and economical manner consistent with the 
Contractor’s best interests. The Contractor agrees to timely furnish and approve all information 
required by the Contract Documents and to make timely payments to the Subcontractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2 Subcontractor and Other Parties.  The Concessionaire is an express third party 

beneficiary to this Subcontract and is therefore entitled to the performance of the obligations of 
the Subcontractor intended for the benefit of the Contractor, and to enforcement of the 
Subcontract.  Nothing contained in this Subcontract or the Prime Contract gives the 
Subcontractor or any third party any claim or right of action against the Concessionaire, 
Authority and City that does not otherwise exist without regard to this Subcontract. 

 
5. SUBCONTRACTOR 

 
5.1 Licensing.  Subcontractor warrants that it is authorized to do business in the State 

of California and is properly licensed by all necessary Governmental Agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Project for performance of the Work. 

 
5.2 Permits and Fees.  Except for the Excluded Approvals, Subcontractor will secure 

and pay for all permits and fees necessary for execution of the Work. The Subcontractor is not 
responsible for approvals, easements, assessments and fees required for the development of the 
Project. 

 
5.3 Representative. The Subcontractor will provide a qualified Project 

representative who is authorized to bind the company, receive orders, and make decisions 
regarding the Work. The Project representative may not be changed without Contractor’s written 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 346 of 495



Page 5 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  The Subcontractor’s authorized 
representative is . 

 
5.4 Superintendent. The Subcontractor will provide a qualified superintendent at the 

site to properly supervise all employees, subcontractors and their agents and employees, and 
other persons performing any Work under the Subcontract and to cause the Work to be carried 
out according to the Contract Documents. Subcontractor’s superintendent may not be changed 
without Contractor’s written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  The 
Subcontractor’s superintendent is . 

 
5.5 Constructability and Efficiency.  Throughout the Project, the Subcontractor will 

analyze the Contract Documents and make recommendations to the Contractor whenever 
opportunities exist to improve the most current Interim Project Schedule, labor efficiency, or 
Contractor’s costs and to alert the Contractor of problems in the Project design or in the work of 
Separate Contractors. 

 
5.6 Coordination of the Work.  Before starting each portion of the Work, the 

Subcontractor will (i) review and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that 
portion of the Work, as well as the information furnished by the Contractor and Separate 
Contractors’ submittals that may affect proper installation of the Work; (ii) field measure 
existing conditions related to that portion of the Work; and (iii) observe any conditions at the site 
directly affecting that portion of the Work, reporting any improper conditions and defects to the 
Contractor. The Contractor will review any improper conditions and defects of Separate 
Contractors and remedy any improperly installed work of Separate Contractors. 

 
5.7 Submittals. 

 
5.7.1 Contractor will provide Subcontractor with a submittal schedule that 

indicates when submittals will be issued and when approval is required. Subcontractor will 
submit to Contractor for review all shop drawings, product data, samples and other submittals 
required by the Contract Documents in accordance with Contractor’s submittal schedule and in 
all cases with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to avoid delays in the Work or in 
the activities of the Contractor or its Separate Contractors. Subcontractor will not submit any 
submittal that is merely a tracing or copy of any of the Construction Documents. Each submittal 
will be prepared by the Subcontractor, its tier subcontractor, or supplier and will be submitted 
according to the Contract Documents. 

 
5.7.2 Upon return of any submittal to the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor will 

make any correction required and, within five (5) business days of receipt, furnish corrected 
resubmissions to the Contractor for further review.  The Subcontractor will not perform any of 
the Work for which the Contract Documents require a submittal until the respective submittal has 
been approved by the Contractor.  Upon receipt of approval of a submittal, Subcontractor will 
file a final corrected copy with the Contractor and furnish other copies as may be needed or 
requested by the Contractor.  If Subcontractor fails to submit or resubmit Submittals in a timely 
manner as required to maintain the Project Schedule, the Subcontractor will be liable for all 
costs, expenses, and damages resulting from the delays. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 347 of 495



Page 6 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5.7.3 Subcontractor’s submission of a shop drawing to Contractor constitutes 
Subcontractor’s representation, upon which the Contractor and its consultants may rely, that 
Subcontractor has reviewed the submission for accuracy and compliance with all Construction 
Documents and other Contract Documents, and that all original engineering, if any, has been 
performed by a qualified California State-licensed professional engineer. Review of submittals 
by Contractor and its consultants will not constitute an undertaking to identify deficiencies in 
the submittal. 

 
5.8 Field Measurements.  Notwithstanding the dimensions on the Construction 

Documents, it is the responsibility of the Subcontractor to take field measurements to allow the 
proper matching and fitting of its Work with existing conditions and the work of Separate 
Contractors. 

 
5.9 Layout and Protection.  Subcontractor is responsible for its own layout. 

Subcontractor will preserve and protect all line and grade benchmarks and will not cause damage 
to other contractors’ benchmarks or lay-out points. Any additional surveying or layout caused as 
a result of Subcontractor’s failure to take the necessary precautions to protect such data will be 
performed at Subcontractor’s own cost and expense. 

 
5.10 Project Meetings.  The Subcontractor will attend all Project meetings to discuss 

jobsite procedures, progress, and scheduling, or other Project matters, and to resolve any pending 
design or construction issues. 

 
5.11 Project Reporting.  The Subcontractor will prepare and deliver to the Contractor 

with each invoice (but no less than monthly) a written progress report in a format approved by 
the Contractor that includes at least the following: (a) a brief summary of the Work performed, 
identifying tasks completed, in progress or pending; (b) an estimate of the percentage completed 
for each task; (c) explanation of significant deviations from the Construction Documents; (d) 
progress relative to the Project Schedule and any corrective actions by the Subcontractor; and (e) 
a summary of activities planned for the coming month. 

 
5.12 Materials and Equipment.  All materials and equipment required under the 

Contract Documents will be new, of good quality and free from defects. No substitutions will be 
accepted on this Project unless the specified materials or equipment have been discontinued or 
unless the Contractor has approved the substitution through written Change Order. Materials 
will be furnished in sufficient quantities and procured in time to allow uninterrupted progress of 
the Work. All materials will be properly stored and protected as directed by Contractor and any 
loss or damage due to improper storage or protection will be borne by the Subcontractor unless 
materials or equipment are stolen from Project site and the loss or damage was due to the 
Authority not providing proper security as required under the Prime Contract. 

 
5.13 Site Logistics.  The Subcontractor will schedule and coordinate delivery and 

storage of equipment and materials and the sequencing of its Work with the Contractor’s current 
site logistics plan and the most current Interim Project Schedule. 

 
5.13.1 Subcontractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of 

materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the project site or other areas 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 348 of 495



Page 7 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

identified in the current site logistics plan for such use, and shall not unreasonably encumber the 
premises with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. 

 
5.14 Storage of Materials and Equipment.  Storage of equipment and materials will 

be coordinated through the Contractor.  Subcontractor will maintain its storage area and will 
keep its storage areas clean, safe, and secure.  Any materials or equipment stored offsite will be 
insured or stored in an insured or bonded warehouse. The risk of loss will remain on the 
Subcontractor for all materials and equipment stored off-site per Section 5.15. 

 
5.15 Risk of Loss. All Work at the Project site, or in preparing or delivering materials 

or equipment to the Project site, is performed exclusively at the risk of the Subcontractor until 
the completed Work is accepted by the Contractor.  Subcontractor’s interest in the Work will be 
insured under the builder’s risk policy and, subject to the terms and conditions of that policy, 
Subcontractor may be insured for some or all of the risk of loss under this provision. Contractor 
makes no representations or warranties regarding the scope or adequacy of the builder’s risk 
coverage.  Any damage or loss to the Work will be repaired or replaced promptly by 
Subcontractor and within any extension of time granted under Article 10. 

 
5.16 Mock-Ups.  Subcontractor will provide all mock-ups as required by the Contract 

Documents. Mock-ups will be installed in a location on-site or at such other locations to be 
designated by the Contractor.  Approved mock-ups will remain as standards of acceptance of the 
Work and, where practical and approved, may be incorporated in the Work.  If not so 
incorporated, they will be demolished and removed by the Subcontractor when directed by the 
Contractor to do so. 

 
5.17 Safety. The Subcontractor will comply with the Contractor’s current safety plan 

and any other safety requirements of the Contract Documents, including the General Conditions 
(Exhibit H). 

 
5.18 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements. Subcontractor will comply with 

all prevailing wage and labor requirements set forth in the General Conditions (Exhibit H). 
 

5.19 Cutting and Patching.  Subcontractor will be responsible for all cutting and 
patching required in the prosecution of the Work.  Subcontractor will not damage or endanger a 
portion of the Work or partially or completed construction of Separate Contractors’ work by 
excavating, cutting, patching or otherwise altering the construction. The Subcontractor will 
promptly notify the Contractor before cutting, patching or modifying any construction work of 
Separate Contractors. 

 
5.20 Cleaning Up.  Subcontractor will perform its Work so as to maintain the site in a 

clean, safe, and orderly condition, as more particularly provided in the General Conditions 
(Exhibit H). 

 
5.21 Test and Inspections.  Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work 

required by the Subcontract, the Contract Documents, or by Applicable Laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations or orders of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project will be coordinated by the 
Subcontractor with the Contractor.  When portions of the Work are ready for inspection, the 
Subcontractor will make arrangements for tests, inspections and approvals with an independent 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 349 of 495



Page 8 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Contractor, or with the appropriate public authority. 
The Subcontractor will give the Contractor not less than 48 hours' notice of when and where tests 
and inspections are to be made so that the appropriate parties may be present. 

 
5.21.1 Covered Work Prior to Inspection.  If a portion of the Work is covered 

contrary to the Contractor’s request, or prior to inspection by the proper authorities, it will be 
uncovered for inspection and examination by the Contractor, Independent Engineer or other 
proper authorities and be replaced at the Subcontractor’s expense without change in the 
Subcontractor’s Contract Time or Contract Price. 

 
5.21.2 Final Inspections. The Subcontractor will coordinate the correction and 

completion of the Work with the Contractor. Following Subcontractor’s written notice that all 
Work has been corrected or completed, the Contractor will evaluate the Work to determine if it is 
ready for final inspection.  The Contractor will conduct final inspections with the Subcontractor, 
and, if required, with the Concessionaire, Independent Engineer and Authority. 

 
5.22 Non-Conforming Work and Correction.  Within 24 hours of notice, the 

Subcontractor will commence correction of Work that is rejected by the Contractor, 
Governmental Agencies or Independent Engineer for failing to conform to the requirements of 
the Contract Documents, including destroyed or damaged construction (whether completed or 
partially completed) caused by the Subcontractor’s correction or removal of the non-conforming 
Work, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, 
installed, or completed.  The Subcontractor will bear all costs associated with correction of non- 
conforming Work. 

 
5.23 Record Documents. 

 
5.23.1 The Subcontractor will prepare and maintain on a current basis an accurate 

and complete set of “Record Documents” consisting of: 
 

5.23.1.1 “Record Drawings,” which are drawings showing clearly, in a 
redlined format, all existing conditions, changes, revisions and substitutions during construction, 
including without limitation, field changes and the final location of all mechanical equipment, 
utility lines, ducts, outlets, pipes, and other significant features; 

 
5.23.1.2 “Annotated Specifications” showing clearly all changes, 

revisions and substitutions during construction.  If a specification allows the election of one of 
several brands, makes, or types of material or equipment, the annotations will show which of the 
allowable items was furnished; and 

 
5.23.1.3 Change Orders, Interim Work Directives, and submittals. 

 
5.23.2 The Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications will be updated 

regularly, no later than weekly, to reflect the as-built conditions of the Work. 
 

5.23.3 The Record Documents will be kept at the Project site. The Record 
Documents will be available for inspection by the Contractor, Authority, City, Concessionaire, 
Independent Engineer, and any Governmental Agency with jurisdiction over the Project. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 350 of 495



Page 9 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5.23.4 The Record Documents will be used to generate the final as-built 
documents as part of the Subcontractor’s close-out requirements. Subcontractor must include 
copies of the as-built plans and specifications as required by the Construction Documents in its 
deliverables to the Contractor. 

 
5.24 Commissioning.  To the extent required, the Contractor will schedule and 

oversee the Subcontractor’s final testing and start-up of utilities, operational systems, and 
equipment as part of Contractor’s commissioning of the Project. All inspections and testing will 
be conducted by the Contractor in conjunction with the Independent Engineer and other 
Governmental Agencies.  During commissioning and before Final Completion, the Contractor 
will oversee Subcontractor’s operation, adjustment and balancing of all equipment, and training 
of Contractor’s maintenance personnel in the correct operation and maintenance of equipment. 

 
5.25 Acceptance Testing. To the extent directed by the Contractor, the Subcontractor 

will assist the Contractor in conducting the acceptance test following startup of the completed 
construction of the Project.  If the Project fails to successfully complete the acceptance test, the 
Subcontractor will provide services to the Contractor as requested to determine the cause of 
failure and provide corrective actions as necessary to successfully complete the acceptance test. 
The acceptance test will be conducted by the Contractor in connection with the Independent 
Engineer and other necessary parties. 

 
5.26 Punch List.  When the Subcontractor considers its Work substantially complete it 

will notify the Contractor who, in conjunction with the Subcontractor and the engineer of record, 
will prepare a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory items and a schedule for their completion. The 
Contractor will schedule and monitor the progress of all punch list work and conduct inspections 
to determine whether the Project is ready for inspection by Governmental Agencies with 
jurisdiction over the Project to determine whether Substantial Completion has been achieved. 

 
5.26.1 Final Punch List. The Contractor will prepare a final punch list upon 

Substantial Completion. Any non-conforming Work will be corrected by the Subcontractor and its 
responsible subcontractors under Section 5.22. Subcontractor shall diligently complete its Work 
shown on the final punch list and notify Contractor when Subcontractor’s Work is ready for final 
inspection.  The Contractor will schedule and monitor the progress of all final punch list Work and 
conduct inspections to determine whether Subcontractor has achieved Final Completion. 

 
5.27 Early Occupancy. The Contractor reserves the right for Contractor, 

Concessionaire, or Authority to occupy or utilize any portion of the Work at any time before Final 
Completion, and such occupancy or use will not constitute acceptance of any part of the Work. 

 
5.28 Close-Out. After Substantial Completion but before Final Completion, the 

Subcontractor will transmit to the Contractor all required as-built drawings and specifications, 
operation and maintenance manuals, references, warranties, attic stock, keying schedule, and 
other items required by the Contract Documents. 

 
6. CONTRACTOR 

 
6.1 Information and Documents.  The Contractor will provide information 

regarding requirements for the Project, including the Construction Documents and available 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 351 of 495



Page 10 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

surveys and other information describing the Project site (including Schedule M of the Prime 
Contract) to the extent received from Concessionaire or Authority and applicable to the Work. 

 
6.2 Contractor’s Representative.  The Contractor’s designated representative is 

 Alejandro Juarez. 
 

6.3 Excluded Approvals.  The Contractor or Authority, as applicable, is responsible 
for obtaining the Excluded Approvals (Exhibit F). 

 
6.4 Timeliness.  Information or services under the Contractor’s control will be timely 

furnished to the Subcontractor by the Contractor to avoid delay in design and the orderly 
progress of the Work in accordance with the Interim Project Schedule. 

 
6.5 Separate Contractors.  The Contractor will endeavor to require its Separate 

Contractors to name the Subcontractor as an additional insured under their commercial general 
liability policies, and to waive subrogation rights against the Subcontractor under its commercial 
general liability policy and applicable property insurance. The Subcontractor likewise agrees to 
name each Separate Contractor as an additional insured under the Subcontractor’s commercial 
general liability policy, and to waive subrogation rights against the Separate Contractors under 
the commercial general liability policy. The Subcontractor will coordinate the Work with the 
work and services of Separate Contractors and will accommodate the work and services of the 
Separate Contractors to effect smooth and efficient workflow and integrated work product. 
Separate Contractors will remain responsible and liable for all safety violations arising from their 
respective work. 

 
7. COMPENSATION 

 
7.1 Contract Price. The Subcontractor’s Contract Price for providing all Work in 

strict accordance with the Contract Document is the lump sum amount of 
$TBD and constitutes full and complete compensation to Subcontractor for the Work. The 
lump sum Contract Price covers all Subcontractor’s Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, 
and Overhead and Profit, as defined in Article 9. The breakdown of the Contract Price is set 
forth in Exhibit C. The Contract Price is only subject to increases and decreases as a result of 
approved Change Orders in accordance with Article 10. 

 
8. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING 

 
8.1 Contract Time. Subcontractor must achieve Substantial Completion within the 

Contract Time, time being of the essence. 
 

8.2 Scheduling. Overall scheduling will be based on critical path or network 
precedence methodologies coordinating all major components of the Work including long lead 
item schedules and Contractor’s occupancy requirements projecting milestone dates for 
Substantial Completion and Final Completion. The Subcontractor will participate and cooperate 
with the Contractor in the development of schedules and other efforts to achieve timely 
completion of the Work as established in the Project Schedule set forth in Exhibit E. 

 
8.2.1 Monthly Project Schedules.  The Contractor will create Monthly Project 

Schedule Updates incorporating activities and schedule updates of the various contractors on the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 352 of 495



Page 11 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Project as necessary to reflect the status of construction and projected milestone dates including 
Substantial Completion. The Subcontractor will provide information in an agreed upon format, 
and as requested by the Contractor, for the scheduling of times and sequences of operations 
required for its Work in coordination with the Monthly Project Schedule Updates. 

 
8.2.2 Interim Project Schedules.  The Contractor, with the assistance of the 

Subcontractor and Separate Contractors, will also create Interim Project Schedules that will 
provide a 3-week look ahead for the performance of upcoming Project work and document all 
Project work performed during the prior 3-week period. The Subcontractor will continuously 
monitor the Monthly Project Schedule Update and Interim Project Schedule so as to understand 
and accommodate the timing, phasing, and sequencing of operations of its Work and the work of 
Separate Contractors.  The Interim Project Schedule is to be used as a working tool to evaluate 
any schedule slippages and collaborate on methods for improving labor efficiency. 

 
8.3 Prosecution of the Work. Subcontractor will commence the Work after 

execution of this Subcontract and as directed by Contractor in a written notice to proceed. 
Subcontractor will diligently prosecute and complete its Work pursuant to the most current 
Interim Project Schedule.  The Subcontractor will coordinate its Work with the work of Separate 
Contractors being performed on the Project so as not to delay, impede, obstruct, hinder or 
interfere with the commencement, progress, or completion of the whole or any part of any work 
being performed on the Project, and in accordance with the Contract Time.  Contractor will 
determine the normal working hours for the Work and overtime shall be subject to Contractor’s 
prior written approval. 

 
8.3.1 Schedule Slippage. The Subcontractor will notify the Contractor within 

three (3) business days of any delays to its Work or other slippage in the Project Schedule as a 
result of its Work and must submit a detailed recovery plan for evaluation and approval by the 
Contractor. All costs associated with the recovery will be the responsibility of the Subcontractor 
subject to Section 8.4. 

 
8.3.2 Acceleration.  The Contractor may direct the Subcontractor to work 

overtime.  If the Subcontractor is in compliance with the Project Schedule, the Subcontractor may 
submit a request for a Change Order for the actual additional wages paid, if any, per Article 10. 

 
8.4 Permitted Delays.  If the Subcontractor is delayed in the commencement, 

prosecution or completion of the Work by (i) any Uncontrollable Circumstance; (ii) Design 
Changes; (iii) Authority-Directed Changes in the Work or changes directed by the Contractor 
that were not specified, illustrated or reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents; (iv) a 
Change in Law; (v) Unknown Site Conditions; and/or (vi) unknown Environmental Conditions, 
and to the extent that the delay impacts the critical path of the Project Schedule extending the 
Substantial Completion Date, then the Subcontractor may be entitled to an extension of the 
Contract Time for the same period of time that the Substantial Completion Date was delayed 
provided that the delay was not caused, in whole or in part, by any fault, neglect, act or omission 
of the Subcontractor or those for whom it is responsible, and subject to the provisions in Article 
10.  Notwithstanding the above, the Subcontractor will not be entitled to any extension of 
Contract Time or an adjustment in Contract Price under Article 10 unless the Subcontractor (1) 
notifies the Contractor in writing of the cause or causes of the delay within three (3) business 
days of the commencement of the delay; and (2) demonstrates that it could not have anticipated 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 353 of 495



Page 12 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

or avoided the delay and has used all available means to minimize the consequences of the delay, 
including application of available schedule float. 

 
8.5 Delays Caused by Subcontractor.  If the progress of the Work or the Project is 

delayed by any fault or neglect, or act or failure to act by the Subcontractor or any of its 
employees, consultants, subcontractors or suppliers, and the delay causes any additional cost, 
expense, liability or damage to the Contractor (including legal fees and disbursements incurred 
by the Contractor, whether incurred in defending claims arising from the delay or in seeking 
reimbursement and indemnity from the Subcontractor or its surety, if any), or any damages 
(including any liquidated damage) or additional costs or expenses for which the Contractor may 
or will become liable, then the Subcontractor and its surety (if any) will compensate the 
Contractor for, and indemnify it against, all such costs, expenses, damages and liability. 

 
8.5.1 Liquidated Damages [optional].  The Contractor and Subcontractor 

acknowledge and agree that if Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the 
Contract Time, the Contractor will suffer damages that are both extremely difficult and 
impracticable to ascertain. Therefore, Contractor and Subcontractor agree that, in the event 
Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time and if as a result 
of that delay the Substantial Completion Date is extended, Subcontractor will pay to Contractor 
as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of $ per calendar day until such 
time that Substantial Completion is achieved. Payment of liquidated damages represents a 
reasonable estimate of fair compensation for the losses that reasonably may be anticipated. 
Contractor and Subcontractor acknowledge and agree that this liquidated damages provision will 
be Contractor’s only remedy for delay damages caused by Subcontractor’s failure to achieve 
Substantial Completion within its Contract Time. Nothing contained in this Section 8.5.1 will 
preclude the Contractor from recovery for actual damages caused by reasons other than the 
Subcontractor’s failure to timely achieve Substantial Completion within its Contract Time 
including, but not limited to, claims for actual losses incurred due to breach of contract, 
negligence, defective work, injury to persons or property or third party claims.  Subcontractor 
acknowledges and agrees that the liquidated damages amount is a reasonable amount for the 
Contractor’s consequential damages due to delay under the circumstances and existing at the 
time of the Effective Date of this Subcontract. 

 
9. COST OF THE WORK 

 
9.1 General.  This Article 9 addresses allowable costs when Subcontractor is 

compensated for Change Order work on a cost reimbursable basis. 
 

9.2 Direct Costs. The term “Direct Costs” means all costs from those categories of 
Subcontractor’s own labor set forth in Section 9.2.1, subcontractor costs in accordance with the 
requirements of their written subcontracts, material, equipment rentals, appurtenances, and those 
miscellaneous costs set forth in Section 9.2.2, that are necessarily incurred by the Subcontractor 
for the proper performance of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
9.2.1 Direct Labor. 

 
9.2.1.1 All labor performed by Subcontractor’s employees at hourly rates 

that do not exceed the agreed maximum billing rates shown for that classification in Exhibit C. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 354 of 495



Page 13 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

9.2.1.2 All labor performed by workers directly employed by the 
Subcontractor to perform Work on-site as documented by weekly certified payroll reports. 

 
9.2.2 Miscellaneous Costs. 

 
9.2.2.1 Sales, use, gross receipt, or similar taxes imposed by a 

Governmental Agency that are related to the Work. 
 

9.2.2.2 That portion of required Subcontractor insurance coverage and 
bond premiums that can be directly attributed to the Subcontract. 

 
9.2.2.3 Fees and assessments for permits, licenses and inspections that 

Subcontractor is required to pay under the Contract Documents. 
 

9.2.2.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents. 
 

9.2.2.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, 
process or product required by the Contract Documents. 

 
9.2.2.6 Costs of removal and disposal of debris from the site and 

recycle costs not offset by recycle fees or rebates. 
 
 
 

of the Work. 
9.2.2.7 Cost of document reproduction necessary for proper execution 

 

9.2.2.8 Expenses for Subcontractor’s personnel incurred while traveling 
in discharge of duties connected with the Work. 

 
9.2.2.9 Costs associated with safety and protection of person and 

property required under this Subcontract. 
 

9.3 General Conditions Costs.  General Conditions Costs consist of the following 
items of cost: 

 
9.3.1 Labor for Subcontractor’s project management, superintending, 

accounting, engineering, detailing, drafting, planning and scheduling, purchasing, estimating, 
review and processing of Change Orders, accounting, IT, and data processing for payroll, 
payables and receivables, whether performed at the site or off-site offices, but only for that 
portion of their time required for the Work at no more than the agreed maximum billing rates 
shown for that classification in Exhibit C; 

 
9.3.2 All costs related to on-site temporary office facilities including, but not 

limited to, temporary office furniture and equipment desk and computers (inclusive of all 
software, applications, systems, and support), devices, servers, printers, copiers, plotters, cell 
phones, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and parcel delivery 
charges, telephone service at the site, digital cameras, etc., plus any costs for transportation, 
installation, minor repairs and replacements, dismantling, and removal thereof. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 355 of 495



Page 14 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

9.4 Overhead and Profit.  The following items of cost are covered by Subcontract’s 
Overhead and Profit: 

 
9.4.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Subcontractor’s personnel 

stationed at the Subcontractor’s principal office or offices other than the site office to the extent 
not covered by Sections 9.2.1.1 or 9.3.1; 

 
9.4.2 Costs of small tools, consumables, pick-up trucks for Subcontractor personnel 

staffing the Project and other Project-related “general requirements” costs approved by Contractor; 
 

9.4.3 All costs associated with repairing or correcting damaged or non- 
conforming Work executed by the Subcontractor or its subcontractors or suppliers provided 
damage was not caused by a Separate Contractor; 

 
9.4.4 All costs and expenses associated with Subcontractor’s principal office, 

capital expenses, including interest on the Subcontractor’s capital employed for the Work; 
 

9.4.5 Costs due to the negligence or failure of the Subcontractor, its 
subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them for whose 
acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility under the Contract Documents; 

 
9.4.6 All other costs and expenses incurred in the performance of the Work 

under the Contract Documents not covered under the definition of Direct Costs or General 
Conditions Costs. 

 
10. CHANGES IN THE WORK 

 
10.1 Change Orders.  All agreed changes in the Work will only be authorized by a 

Contractor-executed Change Order and performed under the applicable conditions of the 
Contract Documents.  A Change Order signed by the Subcontractor indicates the Subcontractor’s 
agreement to changes in its Contract Price, Contract Time or other contract terms and that the 
adjustments in the Change Order fully and completely resolve any claim by Subcontractor 
regarding compensation or time arising from or related to the subject of the Change Order. 

 
10.2 Allowed Adjustments.  The Contract Price and/or Contract Time may only be 

adjusted through written Change Order under one of the following circumstances: 
 

10.2.1 Additional time or resources directed by Contractor due to an 
Uncontrollable Circumstance; 

 
10.2.2 Design Changes; 

 
10.2.3 An Authority-Directed Change in the scope of the Work or changes 

directed by the Contractor that were not specified, illustrated or reasonably inferable from the 
Contract Documents; 

 
10.2.4 Acceleration of the Work to the extent an adjustment is directed under 

Section 8.3.2 and not necessary to mitigate delays caused by the negligence or contractual breach 
by Subcontractor; 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 356 of 495



Page 15 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

10.2.5 Extra Work required due to Unknown Site Conditions or unknown 
Environmental Conditions; 

 
10.2.6 Extra Work required due to Change of Law; 

 
10.2.7 To the extent that Contractor receives proceeds from builder’s risk 

insurance attributable to damage or loss to Subcontractor’s Work, the Contract Price will be 
increased by the allocable amount of such proceeds; 

 
10.3 Contractor Initiated Changes. The Subcontractor must submit a rough order of 

magnitude of the change to the Contractor within three (3) business days of receipt of the scope 
of a proposed change order and a complete cost proposal, including any change in Contract Time 
under Section 8.4, within eight (8) business days of receipt. 

 
10.4 Subcontractor Initiated Changes. The Subcontractor must give the Contractor 

written notice of a requested Change Order within five (5) business days of discovery of the facts 
or circumstances giving rise to the proposed change order, with contractual justification and 
back-up required by Sections 8.4 and 10.6 or otherwise reasonably requested by Contractor. 

 
10.5 Submission.  All claims for additional compensation to the Subcontractor will be 

based on the billable rates set forth in Exhibit C and presented in writing to the Contractor and 
approved by the Contractor before the expense is incurred unless Contractor directs the 
Subcontractor to proceed under an Interim Work Directive. 

 
10.6 Pricing.  Methods used for determining adjustments to the Contract Price include: 

(i) mutual acceptance of a lump sum adjustment properly itemized and supported by sufficient 
substantiating data to permit evaluation of the Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, and 
Overhead and Profit, if any, as set forth in Section 10.6.1; (ii) Work performed on a time and 
material basis plus Overhead and Profit, if any, as set forth in Section 10.6.1; or (iii) unit costs 
agreed upon by Contractor and Subcontractor.  If the additional Work is performed on a time and 
material basis, the Subcontractor will keep and present an itemized accounting for the Work 
performed based on daily time tickets executed by the Contractor, material and equipment 
invoices, and other supporting data substantiating the amount of the Change Order. All time and 
material costs will be limited to Direct Costs and General Conditions Costs, and the adjustment 
to the Contract Price will be broken down by Direct Costs, General Conditions Costs, Overhead 
and Profit. 

 
10.6.1 Overhead and Profit.  Adjustments to Subcontractor’s Overhead and Profit 

on additive and deductive Change Orders will be limited to those percentages set forth below. 
The Subcontractor’s Overhead and Profit will be calculated as a percentage of the subtotal of 
Direct Costs and General Conditions Costs associated with the Change Order. 

 

15% for Subcontractor on its direct subcontractors and suppliers [no more 
than 15% per Prime Contract] 

 

15% for Subcontractor on self-performed trade work [no more than 15% 
per Prime Contract] 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 357 of 495



Page 16 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

5% maximum mark-up by Subcontractor’s direct subcontractors on their 
changed work 

 
10.6.2 Payment and Performance Bonds.  If Subcontractor is required to provide 

payment and performance bonds, then all Subcontractor proposals for any and all potential 
change orders will include payment and performance bond costs at a premium not to exceed    % 
of the Contractor’s Direct Costs and General Conditions costs for Work. 

 
10.7 Deductive Changes.  The amount of credit for deductive Change Orders resulting 

in a net decrease to the Contract Price will be the actual net decrease based on the decrease of the 
Direct Costs pursuant to one of the pricing methods set forth in Section 10.6 plus a decrease in 
the Overhead and Profit per Section 10.6.1. When both additions and credits covering related 
Work or substitutions are involved in a proposed change, the Change Order will be determined 
on the sum of the net increase or decrease. There will not be a decrease in General Conditions 
Costs for deductive Change Orders unless the Subcontractor’s Contract Time is reduced as a 
result of the change. 

 
10.8 Continued Performance.  No Work will be allowed to lag pending the 

adjustment through Change Order, but will be promptly executed as directed, even if a dispute arises. 
 

10.9 Failure to Reach Agreement. Provided the requested change meets one of the 
conditions in Section 10.2, if the Contractor and Subcontractor cannot agree on the value of the 
proposed change order, or if the Contractor fails to approve or disapprove of the proposed 
change within 10 business days, the Subcontractor will proceed with the Work promptly upon 
receipt of a written Interim Work Directive from the Contractor and will perform the Work on a 
time and material basis per Section 10.6.  If the Work is performed under an Interim Work 
Directive, the Subcontractor must submit all required data under Section 10.6 within 10 Days of 
completion of the Work covered by the Interim Work Directive in order to perfect its claim. 
Failure of the Subcontractor to provide the Contractor with notice of its claim and to submit the 
written claim within 10 Days of completion of the directed Work constitutes an agreement on the 
part of the Subcontractor that it will not be paid for the directed Work. No claim is allowed after 
the Work in question has been performed unless a written Change Order has been executed or 
timely written notice of claim has been made by the Subcontractor.  Subcontractor will not be 
entitled to claim or to bring suit for damages, whether for loss of Profits or otherwise, on account 
of an omission of any item or portion of Work covered by the executed Change Order. 

 
10.10 Allowances.  Any allowance items included in the Contract Price set forth in 

Exhibit C are included in the Contract Price. When the allowance item is capable of firm pricing, 
the Subcontractor will submit a request for Change Order under Section 10.4 to adjust the Contract 
Price by the difference between the firm price and the amount of the allowance item. 

 
10.11 Omitted Work. If the Subcontractor omits Work that is included in the Contract 

Documents, the Contractor will have the right to withhold from payments due or to become due 
to the Subcontractor an amount which, in the Contractor’s opinion, is equal to the value of Work 
that was omitted until the Work is performed. 

 
10.12 Contract Time Impacts and Extended Costs. The Subcontractor will not 

reserve a right to assert impact costs, extended job site costs, extended Overhead, constructive 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 358 of 495



Page 17 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

acceleration and/or actual acceleration beyond what is allowable under Article 8 and claimed in a 
proposed change order under Article 10.  No claims will be allowed for impact, extended 
Overhead costs, constructive acceleration and/or actual acceleration due to a multiplicity of 
changes and/or clarifications.  Nothing contained in this Section will be construed as restricting the 
rights and remedies of Subcontractor in violation of Civil Code section 2782.  If this provision is 
determined to conflict with Civil Code section 2782, this provision will be reformed to provide the 
greatest protection to the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority and City under Applicable Law. 

 
10.13 Surety.  All changes, additions or omissions in the Work ordered in writing by  

the Contractor are part of the Work and will be performed and furnished in strict accordance with 
all of the terms and provisions of this Subcontract and the other Contract Documents. The 
Subcontractor will keep its surety, if any, informed of all modifications to this Subcontract. 
The obligations of Subcontractor’s surety are not to be reduced, waived or adversely affected by 
the issuance of Change Orders even if the Contractor fails to inform the surety of the Change 
Order(s) and the Contractor will not be required to obtain consent of any surety to any 
Subcontract modifications. 

 
11. PAYMENTS 

 
11.1 Progress Payments. The Contractor will make monthly progress payments on all 

undisputed Work within 45 days after approval of Subcontractor’s certified application for 
payment that was properly submitted pursuant to the Contract Documents. Each application for 
payment will include a completed AIA G702 cover sheet, AIA G703 schedule of values or 
similar forms approved by Contractor, statutory conditional waivers and release of claims (see 
Exhibit I) for all amounts included in the application for payment, and all other reasonably 
requested back-up. 

 
11.1.1 Schedule of Values. The schedule of values will allocate the entire Direct 

Costs among the various portions of the Work except that the Subcontractor’s General 
Conditions Costs, Overhead and Profit will be carried on separate line items. A draft schedule of 
values must be submitted to the Contractor by the 20th day of each month in order to be included 
in the monthly billing cycle. 

 
11.1.2 Evaluation of Application for Payment. Subcontractor will submit each 

application for payment to the Contractor by the 20th day of each month for review and approval. 
The approval of an application for payment is subject to results of subsequent tests and 
inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to Final 
Completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Contractor. The Contractor is 
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the 
Subcontractor and approval will not be deemed to represent that any examination, audit, or 
arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted with the Subcontractor’s application for 
payment has been made or that Contractor has verified that the Work is in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
11.1.3 Retention. The Contractor will withhold ten percent (10%) retention on 

the entire amount of the monthly application for payment. Retention will be withheld until the 
Project achieves Final Completion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 359 of 495



Page 18 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

11.1.4 Change Orders.  Applications for payment may include requests for 
payment on account of properly authorized changes in the Work. 

 
11.1.5 Stored Materials.  Stored materials may be included in the application for 

payment provided the materials are properly stored in accordance with Section 5.14. 
 

11.1.6 Stop Payment Notices and Claims.  By submitting an application for 
payment, the Subcontractor warrants that all Work included in the application for payment has 
been performed in accordance with the Contract Documents and that title to all Work covered by 
an application for payment will pass to the Authority no later than the time of payment and to the 
best of the Subcontractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, will pass to the Authority free 
and clear of all stop payment notices, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. Subcontractor 
will provide executed statutory conditional waivers and release of claims (see Exhibit I) for all 
amounts included in the application for payment. 

 
11.1.7 Subcontractor Payment to Tier Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

Subcontractor will pay amounts due to its subcontractors, consultants and suppliers no later than 
three (3) business days after receipt of payment from Contractor. 

 
11.1.8 Contractor Payment to Tier Subcontractors and Suppliers. The Contractor 

will not have an obligation to directly pay any of Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors, consultants 
or suppliers for Work performed unless required by Applicable Law.  However, if the Contractor 
is aware that a stop payment notice has been given or has reason to believe that the 
Subcontractor is not paying its subcontractors and suppliers, the Contractor may make payment 
of sums due to Subcontractor through joint check or pay those subcontractors and suppliers 
directly and withhold those payments from Subcontractor. 

 
11.2 Final Payment.  Upon Substantial Completion, the Subcontractor will submit a 

final payment application.  If items remain to be completed at that time, then the Subcontractor 
in conjunction with the Contractor will create a punch list pursuant to Section 5.26. The 
Contractor will continue to withhold the ten percent (10%) retention until Final Completion of 
the Project, including completion of all punch list items. Upon Final Completion of the Project, 
final payment of the retention, if unencumbered, will be paid to the Subcontractor within three 
(3) business days following Contractor’s receipt of final payment. 

 
11.2.1 Contract Price Reduction. Upon Final Completion of the Project, the 

Contractor may reduce the Contract Price to reflect costs charged to the Subcontractor, back- 
charges, or payments withheld pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

 
11.2.2 Evidence.  Before issuance of final payment, Contractor may request 

satisfactory evidence that (i) all payrolls, materials bills and other indebtedness connected with the 
Work have been paid or otherwise satisfied; (ii) insurance required by the Contract Documents 
will remain in force after final payment and will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 
30 Days prior written notice has been given to the Contractor; (iii) the Subcontractor knows of no 
substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the 
Contract Documents; (iv) the surety, if any, has consented to final payment; (v) Project 
commissioning has occurred and the Contractor has received all close-out documents required 
under Section 5.28 and as required by the Contract Documents; and (vi) other data establishing 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 360 of 495



Page 19 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as statutory unconditional releases and waivers of 
claims (see Exhibit I), security interests or encumbrances arising out of this Subcontract have been 
received.  If any of Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors refuse to furnish a release or waiver 
required by the Contractor, the Subcontractor will furnish a bond to indemnify the Contractor 
against stop payment notices under Section 11.2.3, provided that the tier subcontractor’s work is 
Work for which the Subcontractor has been paid by the Contractor. 

 
11.2.3 Stop Payment Notice.  If any claim or stop payment notice is made or filed 

against the City, Authority, Concessionaire, Contractor, Contractor’s payment bond, or the Project 
funds by any person claiming that the Subcontractor or any of its subcontractors or suppliers has 
failed to make payment for any labor, services, materials, equipment, taxes or other items or 
obligations furnished or incurred for or in connection with the Work, or if at any time there is 
evidence of nonpayment or of any claim or stop payment notice for which, if established, the 
Contractor or its payment bond might become liable and that is chargeable to the Subcontractor, the 
Contractor may, in its discretion, allow the Subcontractor to file a bond in an amount equal to 125% 
of the claim stated in the stop payment notice pursuant to Applicable Law and the Contractor will 
release the funds to the Subcontractor.  If the Contractor does not permit the Subcontractor to post a 
bond, the Contractor will have the right to retain from any payment then due or thereafter to 
become due an amount that it deems sufficient to (1) satisfy, discharge and/or defend against any 
claim or stop payment notice action that may be brought or judgment, which may be recovered; (2) 
make good any nonpayment, damage, failure or default; or (3) compensate the Contractor for the 
claim. The Subcontractor will indemnify and hold each Indemnified Party harmless against any 
and all losses, liability, damages, costs and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements, which 
may be sustained or incurred by any or all of them in connection with the Subcontractor’s failure to 
timely and properly make payments to its subcontractors and suppliers.  The Contractor will have 
the right to withhold from Subcontractor a reasonable amount for the foregoing purposes.  If the 
amount is insufficient to cover the amount of the claim, the Subcontractor will be liable for the 
difference and will make payment to the Contractor upon 30 Days written notice. 

 
11.3 Payment Not Acceptance of Work. Approval of an application for payment 

(final or otherwise) or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Contractor, 
Concessionaire, or Authority will not be used as conclusive evidence that the Work was properly 
performed or constitute acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
11.4 Payments Withheld. In addition to the Subcontractor’s retention under Section 

11.1.3, the Contractor may withhold payments due to the Subcontractor as may be necessary to 
cover (i) claims to the extent described in Section 11.2.3; (ii) defective Work not remedied; (iii) 
failure of Subcontractor to make proper payments to its subcontractors, consultants or suppliers; 
(iv) completion of the Subcontract if there exists a reasonable doubt that the Work can be 
completed for the balance then unpaid; (v) damage to a Separate Contractor or third party caused 
by Subcontractor; (vi) amounts that may be due to the Contractor for claims against Subcontractor; 
(vii) failure to provide Contractor with timely updates under Section 8.2.1 and 8.2.2; (viii) clean- 
up of Subcontractor’s work area; (ix) failure of the Subcontractor to comply with requirements of 
the Contract Documents; (x) disputed amounts in the application for payment; and (xi) fines or 
penalties assessed against the Contractor as a result of the acts or omissions of Subcontractor or 
those for whom it is responsible. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 361 of 495



Page 20 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

11.5 Waiver of Claims.  Acceptance of final payment by the Subcontractor will 
constitute a waiver of claims by Subcontractor and its subcontractors and suppliers except for 
those previously made in writing and identified by the Subcontractor as unsettled at the time of 
final application for payment. 

 
12. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 

 
12.1 Regulated Substances.  If Regulated Substances or materials (of a type legally 

requiring employer to notify its employees) are being used or stored on the Project site by the 
Subcontractor, its subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed or retained by them, 
the Subcontractor will immediately provide written notice of the chemical composition to the 
Contractor in sufficient time to permit compliance with the law by the Contractor and Separate 
Contractors at the Project site.  If the Subcontractor encounters a material reasonably believed to 
be a Regulated Substance on site, the Subcontractor will immediately stop Work in the affected 
area and report the condition to the Contractor in writing. Work will resume in the affected area 
once the Regulated Substance is rendered harmless or removed, as determined by a licensed 
laboratory retained by the Contractor. 

 
12.2 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Subcontractor agrees to 

indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all loss, 
injury, claims, actions, proceedings, liability, damages, fines, penalties, cost and expenses, 
including legal fees and disbursements: (i) caused by the negligent mishandling by 
Subcontractor or its subcontractors and suppliers of any Regulated Substances to the extent the 
materials or substances were brought onto the Project site by the Subcontractor, its tier 
subcontractors or material suppliers; (ii) to the extent that Subcontractor was aware of an 
Environmental Condition and expressly accepted remediation as part of its Work under this 
Subcontract and then negligently performs such remediation services; or (iii) to the extent that 
the Subcontractor, or any of its employees, subcontractors or suppliers, exacerbates a pre- 
existing Environmental Condition, or renders the pre-existing Environmental Condition more 
difficult or more expensive to investigate or remediate after obtaining actual knowledge as to the 
nature, location and extent of the pre-existing Environmental Condition; or (iv) to the extent that 
the Subcontractor or any of its subcontractors takes action to disturb the pre-existing 
Environmental Condition after discovery of such condition, and in taking such action fails to 
exercise reasonable care consistent with Prudent Industry Practices and in accordance with 
Applicable Law.  Defense obligations are set forth in Section 14.3. 

 
13. INSURANCE AND BONDS 

 
13.1 Required Insurance.  The Subcontractor agrees that it will maintain insurance, 

and will cause its subcontractors and consultants to maintain such insurance, and abide by the 
Contractor’s insurance requirements, as specified in Exhibit G and Schedule R.9 of the Prime 
Contract. This Section 13.1 will survive the completion or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 
13.2 Waiver of Subrogation. Subcontractor waives all rights against Contractor, City, 

Authority, Concessionaire, and Separate Contractors and its own subcontractors for loss or 
damage to the extent reimbursed by any property or equipment insurance applicable to the Work, 
except such rights as Subcontractor may have to the proceeds of the insurance.  If any applicable 
policies of insurance referred to in this Section require an endorsement or consent of the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 362 of 495



Page 21 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

insurance company to provide for continued coverage where there is a waiver of subrogation, the 
owners of those policies will cause them to be endorsed or obtain consent. 

 
13.3 Builder’s Risk.  The Concessionaire will be providing commercially reasonable 

builder’s risk insurance for the Project on a replacement cost basis. This insurance will cover the 
interests of City, Authority, Contractor, Subcontractor and tier subcontractors in the Project.  If 
there is a covered loss affecting the Work, Contractor will pay Subcontractor its just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by Contractor, and Subcontractor by appropriate written agreements 
will require its tier subcontractors to make payments to their subcontractors in similar manner. 

 
13.4 Option for Subcontractor Bonds.  If Contractor notifies Subcontractor in 

writing any time prior to the notice to proceed with the Work that Contractor will require 
Subcontractor to provide payment and performance bonds, then Subcontractor will furnish a 
payment and a performance bond to the Contractor, each in the amount requested by Contractor, 
within 10 business days of Contractor’s notice.  The Contract Price will be adjusted by Change 
Order for the amount of the bond premium based on the percentage shown in Section 10.6.2. 
The surety supplying the bonds must be an admitted surety insurer, as defined in Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 995.120, authorized to do business as a surety in the State of California, and 
be listed in the current list of “Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable 
Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies” as published in Circular 
570 (amended) by the Audit Staff, Bureau of Government Financial Operations, U.S. Treasury 
Department except that the surety must have no less than a A-IX rating by A.M. Best.  All bonds 
shall be in the form acceptable to Contractor. All bonds signed by an agent must be 
accompanied by a certified copy of such agent’s authority to act.  Failure to furnish the required 
payment and performance bonds to the Contractor within the 10 business day time period 
constitutes a default under this Subcontract and the Contractor will have all of the rights and 
remedies provided under this Subcontract and afforded by law. 

 
13.4.1 Payment of Subcontractors. Without limiting the responsibilities of 

Subcontractor and its surety (if any) under the terms of this Subcontract, Subcontractor and its 
surety (if any) agree to promptly pay all lawful claims of the Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors, 
materialmen, laborers, persons, firms or corporations for labor or services performed or materials, 
supplies, machinery equipment, rentals, fuels, oils, tools, appliances, insurance and other items 
furnished, used, or consumed in connection with the prosecution of the Work including Change 
Orders, and will indemnify and save harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against all 
liability, loss, damage and expense, including interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, which the 
Indemnified Party may sustain by reason of Subcontractor’s or its surety’s failure to do so. 

 
14. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
14.1 Subcontractor’s Performance. To the fullest extent permitted by law and public 

policy of the State of California, but subject to Section 14.2, Subcontractor will indemnify, 
protect, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties and each of them, from and against 
any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, expenses, actual attorneys’ fees, 
losses or liabilities, in law or equity, of every kind and nature whatsoever arising out of or in any 
way relating to (i) this Subcontract; (ii) actual or alleged acts or omissions by Subcontractor or 
any of its tier subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, employees, or persons for whom it is 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 363 of 495



Page 22 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

responsible, regardless of whether the acts or omissions are negligent; or (iii) the Work, 
including, but not limited to claims for: 

 
14.1.1 Personal injury, including bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death to 

any persons, employees or agents of Subcontractor, any Indemnified Party, or any Separate 
Contractor, and/or damage to property of anyone (including loss of use) other than to the Work, 
caused or alleged to be caused in whole, or in part, by any actual or allegedly negligent act or 
omission of Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Subcontractor or anyone 
for whose acts Subcontractor may be liable regardless of whether the personal injury or property 
damage is caused in part by an Indemnified Party. 

 
14.1.2 Penalties, fees and costs imposed on account of the violation of any 

Applicable Law, including CalOSHA violations, orders, citations, rules, regulations, standards, 
ordinances or statutes, caused by the act or omission of the Subcontractor or those for whom it 
is liable. 

 
14.1.3 Failure to obtain necessary licenses for performance of the Work and 

infringement of any Intellectual Property rights (including copyright or patent) that are brought 
against Contractor, City, Authority or Concessionaire arising out of the Work. 

 
14.1.4 Project claims or stop payment notices for labor performed or materials 

used or furnished to be used for the Work, including all incidental or consequential damages 
resulting to an Indemnified Party from stop payment notices provided Subcontractor received 
payment for the Work at issue. 

 
14.1.5 Any vicarious liability, whether real or alleged, of Indemnified Parties, 

arising or alleged to arise from any negligent acts, errors or omissions of Subcontractor or any of 
its tier subcontractors or consultants. 

 
14.1.6 Failure of Subcontractor to comply with the insurance provisions set forth 

in Article 13 and Schedule R.9 of the Prime Contract. 
 

14.1.7 Claims by third parties, including Separate Contractors, alleging or 
arising, in whole or in part, out of actual or alleged acts or omissions by Subcontractor, any of its 
subcontractors or suppliers (regardless of tier), and/or any of its or their respective directors, 
officers, employees, agents, partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, successors and assigns 
(including without limitation, claims regarding alleged or actual delays, failure to cooperate or 
coordinate, damage to work performed by others, interferences, disruption, etc.). 

 
14.1.8 Any violation or infraction by Subcontractor of any Applicable Law, 

order, citation, rule, regulation, standard, ordinance or statute in any way relating to the 
occupational health or safety of employees including, but not limited to, the use of Contractor’s 
or others’ equipment, hoists, elevators, or scaffolds. 

 
14.1.9 Indemnification for Regulated Substances and Environmental Conditions 

pursuant to Section 12.2. 
 
The specific listing in Subsections 14.1.1 through 14.1.9 will not in any way limit 
Subcontractor’s agreement to indemnify any Indemnified Party for all acts and omissions of the 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 364 of 495



Page 23 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Subcontractor and anyone for whom Subcontractor is responsible in the performance of the 
Work and other obligations under this Subcontract including the amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for Subcontractor under the Workers’ Compensation 
Acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. The obligation to defend and 
indemnify will apply even if Subcontractor is not actively involved in the events that give rise to 
the claims for which a defense or indemnity is sought. 

 
14.2 Exceptions.  The defense and indemnification provisions in this Article 14 will 

extend to claims occurring after this Subcontract is terminated as well as while it is in force. 
Such provisions apply regardless of any passive negligence of any Indemnified Party. 
Subcontractor, however, will not be obligated under this Subcontract to indemnify an 
Indemnified Party for claims arising from that Indemnified Party’s sole or active negligence or 
willful misconduct.  Subcontractor will not be required to provide a defense or to indemnify 
Contractor to the extent of Contractor’s own active negligence, provided that Subcontractor will 
continue to indemnify Contractor and provide a defense to the extent and in proportion to the 
degree that the Contractor is not actively negligent.  Nothing herein will be construed to impose 
any obligation in conflict with the provisions of Civil Code section 2782, 2782.05, and/or 
Insurance Code section 11580.04.  In the event of a conflict, the provision conflicting with Civil 
Code section 2782, 2782.05, and/or Insurance Code section 11580.04 will be reformed to 
provide the greatest protection to the Indemnified Parties allowed under the law. 

 
14.3 Duty to Defend.  The Subcontractor will: 

 
14.3.1 At Subcontractor’s own cost, expense and risk, defend all claims as required 

in Section 14.1 that may be brought or instituted by third persons including, but not limited to, 
Governmental Agencies or employees of Subcontractor, against the Indemnified Parties; 

 
14.3.2 Pay and satisfy any judgment or decree that may be rendered against the 

Indemnified Parties arising out of a claim covered by Section 14.1; and/or 
 

14.3.3 Reimburse the Indemnified Parties for any and all legal expense incurred 
by any of them in connection with the claim or in enforcing the indemnity granted in this section. 

 
The duty to defend will apply, and Subcontractor will be required to furnish a defense, 
notwithstanding that there has not yet been an adjudication or finding of liability on the part of 
the Subcontractor or any Indemnified Party, or as to whether an exception to provide a defense 
or indemnity may apply. 

 
14.4 Survival. This Article 14 will survive Final Completion of the Project or 

termination of this Subcontract. 
 
15. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES 

 
15.1 Warranty. Subcontractor expressly warrants that all Work will be of appropriate 

quality, free from defects, and conforming to the Contract Documents and Applicable Laws. 
Subcontractor’s warranty excludes damage due to improper or insufficient maintenance, 
improper operation, or normal wear and tear under normal usage. Subcontractor will procure all 
tier subcontractor and manufacturer express warranties required under the Contract Documents 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 365 of 495



Page 24 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

on Contractor’s behalf and will transmit the warranties to the Contractor as part of its close-out 
documentation. This provision will survive Final Completion of the Project or termination of 
this Subcontract. 

 
15.2 Correction of Nonconforming Work. For a period of one (1) year commencing 

from Substantial Completion or the date of repair, whichever is later, and for longer periods 
specified in the Contract Documents for certain equipment manufacturers or suppliers, the 
Subcontractor will provide all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to promptly repair or 
replace any and all deficient, defective or non-conforming Work, provided that the Work was 
properly maintained and used, together with any other Work that is damaged during repair or 
replacement, without expense to the Contractor (including any additional re-inspection fees).  If 
the Contractor’s operations or use are impaired by the defective or deficient Work or its 
correction, the Subcontractor shall use such overtime labor and timesaving procedures as the 
Contractor may require at the Subcontractor’s expense. Establishment of the one (1) year period 
for correction of Work relates only to the Subcontractor’s express warranty on workmanship and 
specific obligation to correct defective or non-conforming Work, and has no relationship to 
statute of limitations periods for legal claims arising from this Subcontract. 

 
15.2.1 The Subcontractor shall provide on-site troubleshooting services within 

five (5) days after receipt of notice in writing from Contractor of a problem with the Work. 
Contractor is hereby authorized to repair any defective or non-conforming Work, and the 
Subcontractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for the cost thereof, if 10 days after giving of 
such notice to the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor has failed to make or undertake the repairs 
with due diligence.  In case of emergency, where, in the opinion of Contractor, delay could cause 
serious loss or damage, repairs may be made without notice being sent to the Subcontractor, and 
the expense in connection therewith shall be charged to the Contractor, and its surety (if any) 
shall be liable for the cost thereof. 

 
15.2.2 Also, as part of the close-out documentation for Substantial Completion, 

the Subcontractor shall execute and submit a completed “Warranty Form” in the format included 
in Exhibit J, for the Work, and any portion of the Work possessed. The Warranty Form shall be 
submitted prior to Substantial Completion or within five (5) days of the occupancy or use of a 
portion of the Project, whichever is applicable. 

 
15.2.3 Prior to the expiration of the work correction period, Contractor reserves 

the right to hold a meeting and require the attendance of the Subcontractor. The purpose of the 
meeting is to review warranties, bonds, and maintenance requirements, and determine required 
repair or replacement of defective items. 

 
15.3 Updated Information. The Subcontractor shall direct all of its equipment 

suppliers and/or manufacturers to promptly provide to it and to Contractor any and all 
information concerning product defects or other problems and shall promptly forward to 
Contractor any such information received, whether before, during, or after the warranty period. 

 
16. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION 

 
16.1 Records.  The Subcontractor will keep full and detailed accounts and exercise 

controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Subcontract.  The 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 366 of 495



Page 25 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

Contractor and Concessionaire will have the right during normal business hours to audit and 
copy the Subcontractor’s documents related to this Project including, but not limited to, records, 
books, estimates, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts and invoices for materials, 
supplies and equipment, temporary facilities, etc., contracts, purchase orders, vouchers, 
memorandums, Change Orders and all substantiating documentation, certified payroll, and bid 
documents in order to evaluate accuracy and completeness of Subcontractor’s billing. Should 
the audit disclose a material discrepancy from the payment applications or requirements of the 
Contract Documents, then in addition to repaying Contractor all sums due and owing, 
Subcontractor will pay __% annual interest computed monthly from the date of the overpayment. 
Subcontractor agrees to remit payment of all monies due and owing no later than 30 Days after 
receipt of notice or, at Contractor election, Contractor may deduct the sums against any monies 
due to Subcontractor.  The Subcontractor will preserve all Project records for a period of at least 
10 years after final payment or termination, or for such longer period as may be required by law. 
The Subcontractor will incorporate Article 16 auditing provisions into all its subcontracts for the 
Project and require its subcontractors to keep detailed and accurate accounting records for their 
portion of the Work for a period of at least 10 years. 

 
17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE 

 
17.1 General.  “Disputes” are disputes, claims, or other matters in question between 

the Subcontractor and the Contractor arising out of or connected to this Project, including breach 
of contract.  All Disputes will be resolved as provided in this Article 17, which article will 
survive Final Completion of the Project or termination of this Subcontract. 

 
17.2 Notice and Informal Resolution. Either party may initiate the dispute resolution 

procedures stated in this Article by providing the other party with written notice of a potential 
Dispute which specifies in reasonable detail the basis of the Dispute and the remedy sought. The 
Subcontractor must give notice of a potential Dispute to the Contractor within 14 Days following 
the occurrence of the event or condition or circumstance giving rise to the potential Dispute or 
else all claims related to the Dispute are waived.  Under no circumstances will a claim be made if 
it is barred by applicable statutes of limitation or repose. The authorized representatives of the 
parties will meet within seven (7) Days of receipt of a notice of potential Dispute and make good 
faith efforts to resolve it. 

 
17.3 Senior Executive Meeting.  If the authorized representatives of the parties are 

unable to resolve the Dispute, either party may request a meeting of senior executives of each party 
for the purpose of resolving the Dispute. Each party’s senior executive will review the Dispute in 
detail and then meet face-to-face to discuss and use good faith efforts to resolve the matter (“Senior 
Executive Meeting”). The Senior Executive Meeting will occur no later than 14 Days after the 
request made by a party for the meeting, unless the parties agree upon a longer period of time. 
The parties will promptly designate a senior executive for purposes of this section. Any party may, 
if necessary, designate by notice a different senior executive at any time during the course of the 
Project.  The Senior Executive Meeting will be for the express purposes of (a) exchanging and 
reviewing all pertinent non-privileged documents and information relating to the matters and issues 
in the Dispute; (b) freely and candidly discussing each party’s position; and (c) reaching agreement 
upon a reasonable, compromise resolution of the Dispute.  If a negotiated settlement is reached, the 
terms of the settlement will be recorded in a written Change Order (prior to Final Completion) or a 
written settlement agreement (after Final Completion) signed by the parties. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 367 of 495



Page 26 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

17.4 Binding Arbitration.  If the senior executives cannot resolve the Dispute as set 
forth above, the matter must be resolved through arbitration in accordance with the following 
arbitration procedures: 

 
17.4.1 Joinder.  The Prime Contract requires binding arbitration of disputes arising 

under it that are not informally resolved.  Each of Contractor and Subcontractor consent to the 
joinder of any other parties, including Concessionaire, Authority or City, to the arbitration if the 
Disputes under this Subcontract and claims of other parties arise from the same, substantially the 
same, or interrelated facts, issues or incidents, or where separate arbitration of disputes creates 
risk of inconsistent awards or results.  The Subcontractor has no right to join in proceedings 
between the Contractor and the Concessionaire unless the Contractor consents to the joinder. 

 
17.4.2 Location. The arbitration shall take place at Los Angeles, California, or at 

such other location as the Contractor and Subcontractor may agree, unless the Dispute is being 
arbitrated as a part of a larger arbitration under the Prime Contract, in which case the arbitration 
of the Dispute will be at the location of the arbitration proceeding under the Prime Contract. 
The arbitration of the Dispute will be in accordance with the terms of this Section 17.4 and the 
Arbitration Rules. 

 
17.4.3 Arbitration Notice. Upon the occurrence of a Dispute, and failure of the 

parties to resolve the dispute through the informal processes described above, either party may 
initiate the arbitration process by giving written notice to the other parties (“Arbitration Notice”) 
or as set forth in the Arbitration Rules. 

 
17.4.4 Appointment of Arbitrator. Within 30 days of the Arbitration Notice, the 

Contractor and Subcontractor will agree upon the appointment of a single mutually approved 
arbitrator.  The arbitrator shall be a retired judge from the California Superior Court or a retired 
judge or magistrate judge from the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
California. Such retired judge may be, but is not required to be, affiliated with a private dispute 
resolution service such as the American Arbitration Association or JAMS. No party to the 
proceeding may propose a retired judge who previously served in a judicial post in San Bernardino 
County, California.  If the Contractor and Subcontractor are the only parties to the arbitration and 
are unable to agree upon a single arbitrator within the 30-day period, then the Contractor and 
Subcontractor will each designate an arbitrator, and the arbitrators so designated by the Contractor 
and Subcontractor will, within 15 additional days, agree upon a third independent arbitrator.  If the 
Dispute is being resolved under joinder to an arbitration under the Prime Contract, then the 
arbitrator(s) will be the arbitrator(s) selected pursuant to the Prime Contract. The parties shall 
mutually cooperate to retain the arbitrator(s) upon terms and conditions mutually satisfactory to the 
parties as soon as practicable after selection of the arbitrator(s). 

 
17.4.5 Fees.  The fees of the arbitrator(s) will be split equally among the parties 

unless the arbitrator(s) award(s) fees to the prevailing party as set forth in Section 17.4.7. 
 

17.4.6 Discovery.  For a period of 90 days following the appointment of the 
arbitrator(s) (or such longer period as the parties may mutually agree or the arbitrator(s) may 
direct), the parties to the arbitration will have the right to engage in discovery relevant to the 
matters in dispute pursuant to the discovery rules of the California Code of Civil Procedure. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 368 of 495



Page 27 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

17.4.7 Arbitration Rules.  The arbitrator(s) will decide disputes pursuant to the 
Arbitration Rules in force at the time of the arbitration. The arbitrator(s) will be required to 
make a final determination, not subject to appeal, within 120 days from the designation of the 
arbitrator(s), and the parties to the arbitration will be bound by the terms of the final 
determination.  The determination by the arbitrator(s) will be made in writing and will contain 
written findings of fact, and may be specifically enforced by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
The arbitrator(s) will determine a fair and equitable allocation of the reasonable expenses of the 
parties involved in the arbitration that are incurred in connection with the resolution of any 
dispute hereunder.  Each party to the arbitration will bear its own attorney’s fees, unless the 
arbitrator(s) determines that the nature of the action or defense of the losing party was frivolous, 
in which event the arbitrator will determine a fair and equitable attorney’s fee to be paid by the 
losing party or parties to the prevailing party or parties. 

 
17.4.8 Independence.  The arbitrator(s) will retain independence of all parties to 

the arbitration, and no party shall engage or attempt to engage the services of the arbitrator(s) for 
any other purpose without prior written notice to the other parties. 

 
17.5 Continuation of Work. Subcontractor must diligently continue to prosecute its 

Work, including Work that is disputed between Contractor and Subcontractor, and Contractor must 
continue to make all undisputed payments to Subcontractor, regardless of the existence of a Dispute 
or the pendency of dispute resolution proceedings between Subcontractor and Contractor. 

 
17.6 Pass-through to Subcontractors.  The Subcontractor will cause the provisions of 

this Article 17 to be incorporated in the subcontracts with subcontractors of any tier. 
 
18. TERMINATION 

 
18.1 Contractor for Cause. The Contractor may terminate this Subcontract upon not 

less than seven (7) Days written notice and an additional seven (7) Days to commence curing if 
the Subcontractor is in material breach of any term or provision of this Subcontract. The notice 
will set forth the reason for termination and the effective date of termination after the period to 
cure.  If the Contractor terminates this Subcontract for cause, the Subcontractor will not be 
entitled to any further payments until Final Completion of the Project. The Subcontractor will be 
entitled to payment for Work rendered through the effective date of termination upon Final 
Completion of the Project, less any amounts the Contractor expended for others to perform the 
Work set forth in this Subcontract or paid under other contracts as a result of the Subcontractor’s 
breach.  Nothing stated in this paragraph will prevent the Contractor from pursuing and 
recovering any damages allowed by law from Subcontractor arising out of the breach of this 
Subcontract.  If a duly appointed arbitrator deems that termination of the Subcontractor was 
wrongful or otherwise improper, the termination will be deemed a termination for convenience 
under Section 18.2. 

 
18.2 Termination By Contractor For Convenience.  The Contractor may terminate 

this Subcontract for convenience upon seven (7) Days written notice at any time.  The notice will 
state the extent and effective date of termination. The Subcontractor will be entitled to receive 
(i) payment for all Work properly completed through the effective date of termination; (ii) the 
reasonable cost incurred by Subcontractor in securing and protecting the Work in progress 
against loss, damage, or deterioration; and (3) no more than two (2) weeks of demobilization 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 369 of 495



Page 28 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

costs, plus any cancellation charges of suppliers, and other special costs approved by Contractor 
in advance. Subcontractor will not be entitled to receive compensation for the portion of the 
Work not performed or any lost profits.  All disputes over termination will be resolved under 
Article 17. 

 
18.3 Termination by Subcontractor for Cause. The Subcontractor may terminate 

this Subcontract upon 15 Days written notice and an additional 15 Days opportunity to cure, if 
the Contractor fails to make payment to the Subcontractor in accordance with this Subcontract or 
if the Project is suspended and all labor is ceased for more than 60 days provided that the 
suspension was not caused or due to any fault or neglect of the Subcontractor or those for whom 
it is responsible.  The Subcontractor will be compensated for Work performed through the 
effective date of termination. 

 
19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
19.1 Governing Law.  This Subcontract will be governed and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California without regard to the principles of the conflict of laws. 
Both parties agree that any enforcement of a judgment or alternative dispute award will be filed 
with the appropriate court of law in San Bernardino County. 

 
19.2 Notice. Any notice required to be given by this Subcontract will be in writing and 

deemed effective upon: (a) the date of personal delivery, if received by the addressee before 5:00 
p.m. local time on a business day; (b) three (3) business days after being sent via registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested; or (c) one (1) business day after being sent by 
overnight commercial courier providing next-business-day delivery. Notices will be addressed 
to the following respective parties: 

 

Contractor: 
Fadi Alabbas 
Veolia Water West Operating 
Services, Inc. 
437 N. Riverside Ave. 
Rialto, CA 

Subcontractor: 
[name of person] 
[name of entity] 
[address] 
[city] 

 
 
 
 

19.3 Effective Date.  The Effective Date set forth above is the date as to which all 
Contract Documents have reference for purposes of coordination of their meaning and effect. 
Any Work commenced and any payments made pursuant to an award or letter of intent prior to 
the execution hereof will be deemed to have been done and paid after the Effective Date and 
governed by the terms of the Contract Documents. 

 
19.4 Survival.  The warranty, liability, indemnity, insurance, audit, and ownership of 

Work Product/Intellectual Property provisions of this Subcontract, along with the provisions of 
this Article 19, shall survive its termination or final settlement. The provisions of this 
Subcontract relating to bonds, termination and settlement of disputes and claims shall survive its 
termination, but not its final settlement. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 370 of 495



Page 29 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

19.5 Remedies. The remedies reserved for Contractor herein shall be cumulative and 
additional to any other or further remedies provided in law or equity. 

 
19.6 Severability. The terms and conditions of this Subcontract will be interpreted in 

accordance with their plain meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. Any rule of 
construction or interpretation to the contrary will be of no force or effect with respect to this 
Subcontract.  If a duly appointed arbitrator finds any term or provision of this Subcontract to be 
void or unenforceable for any reason, such term or provision will be deemed severed, and the 
remainder of the Subcontract will remain in full force and effect according to its terms and 
provisions, to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

 
19.7 Commencement of Statute of Limitations.  Causes of action between the parties 

to this Subcontract pertaining to acts or failures to act will be deemed to have accrued and the 
applicable statutes of limitations will commence to run not later than either the date of Substantial 
Completion for the Project, or the date of a recorded notice of completion, whichever is later. 

 
19.8 Waiver.  No action or failure to act by the Contractor or Subcontractor waives 

any right or duty afforded them under this Subcontract, nor will such action or failure to act 
constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach of this Subcontract, unless specifically agreed 
to in writing. 

 
19.9 Assignment of Contract. The Contractor and Subcontractor, respectively, bind 

themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this 
Subcontract and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of the other party 
with respect to all covenants of this Subcontract. The Subcontractor may not assign this 
Subcontract without the written consent of the Contractor, and any unconsented assignment is 
void.  This Subcontract may be assigned, without the consent of Subcontractor, to the 
Concessionaire or an assignee or designee of the Concessionaire including the City, Authority or 
an assignee or designee of the Secured Parties if the Prime Contract is terminated, contingent 
upon the Contractor, Concessionaire, or such assignee or designee providing written notice to 
Subcontractor that the Concessionaire or such assignee or designee is taking this Subcontract by 
assignment. 

 
19.10 Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure. During the performance of the Work, and 

for 10 years after Final Completion, Subcontractor shall not release information regarding the 
Work, except for information that is in the public domain, to any person. Noncompliance by the 
Subcontractor or others under the control or direction of the Subcontractor with this obligation 
shall be sufficient cause for Contractor immediately to terminate this Subcontract for cause 
without prior written notice, and shall entitle Contractor to injunctive and other relief from a 
court of competent jurisdiction.  In addition, Subcontractor agrees to comply with any more 
restrictive confidentiality requirements imposed by Concessionaire in the Prime Contract. 
Subcontractor acknowledges that certain information disclosed by Subcontractor and in 
possession of Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority or City may be subject to disclosure under 
the Public Records Act (California Government Code Section 6250 et seq.). 

 
19.11 Modifications.  All modifications to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Subcontract must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 371 of 495



Page 30 of 30 Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

19.12 Counterparts.  This Subcontract may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
will be deemed an original, and all of which when taken together will constitute one instrument. 

 
19.13 Section Headings.  The section headings contained in this Subcontract are for 

reference purposes only and will not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Subcontract. 

 
19.14 Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to each and every 

provision of the Contract Documents. 
 

19.15 Legal Citations.  Legal citations to statutory requirements are included in the 
Subcontract and the General Conditions to the Subcontract for convenience and an omission of 
any statutory requirement will not relieve the Subcontractor or its subcontractors from 
compliance with the law. 

 
19.16 State Licensing Requirements.  CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED BY LAW 

TO BE LICENSED AND REGULATED BY THE CONTRACTORS’ STATE LICENSE 
BOARD WHICH HAS JURISDICTION TO INVESTIGATE COMPLAINTS AGAINST 
CONTRACTORS IF A COMPLAINT REGARDING A PATENT ACT OR OMISSION IS 
FILED WITHIN FOUR (4) YEARS OF THE DATE OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION.  A 
COMPLAINT REGARDING A LATENT ACT OR OMISSION PERTAINING TO 
STRUCTURAL DEFECTS MUST BE FILED WITHIN 10 YEARS OF THE DATE OF THE 
ALLEGED VIOLATION. ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING A CONTRACTOR MAY BE 
REFERRED TO THE REGISTRAR, CONTRACTORS’ STATE LICENSE BOARD, P.O. BOX 
26000, SACRAMENTO, CA 95826. 

 
19.17 Entire Agreement. The Subcontract and Contract Documents constitute the 

entire agreement between the Contractor and the Subcontractor and supersede any and all 
contemporaneous or prior oral and written negotiations, representations, or agreements by the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Subcontract. 

 
This Subcontract is entered into as of the Effective Date first written above. 
 
Project S4 Sewer Main Replacement 

 
Contractor Subcontractor 

 
Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. [Insert] 

 

By:_   By:_   
 

Name:   Name:   
 

Title:   Title:   
 

Subcontractor License No.    
Date:                                     

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 372 of 495



Page A-1 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT A 

DEFINITIONS 

1. DEFINED TERMS 
 

1.1 “Applicable Law” means any federal, State, local (or other political subdivision) 
constitution, statute, law, rule, code, regulation, consent decree, consent order, consent 
agreement, permit, Governmental Approval, any determination or order entered, promulgated or 
approved by any Governmental Agency having jurisdiction, any common law or principle of 
common law applicable to, as the case may be, any of the Work, Project, parties, activities, 
requirements or obligations of the parties under the Subcontract. 

 
1.2 “Arbitration Rules” means California Code of Civil Procedure, section 1280 et 

seq., as may be amended by the California State Legislature. 
 

1.3 “Authority” means the Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority. 
 

1.4 “Authority-Directed Change” means changes to the Project scope illustrated in 
the Construction Documents. 

 
1.5 “Change of Law”  means any of the following events occurring after the 

Effective Date: 
 

1.5.1 the adoption, modification or repeal, or change in interpretation or 
application, of any Applicable Law; or 

 
1.5.2 the modification, change in interpretation or application, or imposition of 

any material conditions, restrictions or limitations in any Governmental Approval, which 
imposes limitations, additional costs or burdens with respect to Subcontractor’s obligations under 
this Subcontract. 

 
1.6 “Change Order” is a mutually agreed written order amending the Contract Time, 

Contract Price or other contract terms. All Change Orders will be executed by the Subcontractor 
and Contractor. 

 
1.7 “City” means the City of Rialto, California. 

 
1.8 “Construction Documents” means the permitted plans, specifications, 

calculations (if required) and other technical documents and reports describing the Work and 
listed in Exhibit B as the Construction Documents. 

 
1.9 “Contract Documents” are those documents set forth in Article 3 of the 

Subcontract and all subsequent contract modifications issued after execution of the Subcontract 
such as Change Orders. 

 
1.10 “Contractor” means Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 373 of 495



Page A-2 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.11 “Contract Price” is the lump sum price set forth in Section 7.1 of the 
Subcontract for completing all Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents, subject 
to adjustments through approved Change Order. 

 
1.12 “Contract Time” is the period of time allotted under the Project Schedule set 

forth in Exhibit E for the Subcontractor to achieve Substantial Completion. 
 

1.13 The word “delay” means any and every delay, obstruction, hindrance, 
interference, loss of productivity, or inefficiency of any kind. 

 
1.14 “Design Change” means any change in the Construction Documents that 

materially affects Subcontractor’s performance of the Work. 
 

1.15 “Direct Costs” is defined in Section 9.2 of the Subcontract. 
 

1.16 “Effective Date” means the date agreed upon by the Subcontractor and Contractor 
for the effectiveness of the Subcontract, which is set forth on page 1 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.17 “Environmental Condition” means the presence of any Regulated Substance on 

or at the Project site or any other location included in the sewage collection system or water 
delivery system, including the presence in surface water, groundwater, soils, or subsurface strata, 
or the migration of such a Regulated Substance from the Project site. 

 
1.18 “Excluded Approvals” means those permits and approvals listed in Exhibit F. 

 
1.19 “Final Completion” occurs on the date when Subcontractor has completed all Work 

in accordance with the Contract Documents; all final punch list items have been completed and 
accepted by the Contractor; the Project has been commissioned in accordance with the written 
testing and commissioning procedures; all close-out documentation required under the Construction 
Documents have been transmitted to the Contractor; a certificate of occupancy, if applicable, has 
been issued by the Governmental Agency having jurisdiction over construction of the Project; and 
confirmation of achievement of Final Completion from the Independent Engineer (if required) has 
been received. 

 
1.20 “Financing Party” means any Person that provides debt or equity financing to 

Concessionaire, including conduit issuers, financial institutions, bondholders, financial insurers, 
and hedge providers, or any agent or trustee acting on behalf of such Person (including the bond 
trustee acting on behalf of the bondholders), or that is from time to time a party to, or has rights 
under, any Financing Document. 

 
1.21 “Financing Document” means any loan agreement, trust agreement, credit 

agreement, continuing disclosure undertaking, tax agreement, pledge agreement, security 
agreement or other financing agreement or arrangement that Concessionaire may enter into in 
connection with the Concessionaire financing or additional Concessionaire financing (whether 
by means of loans, financial insurance, letters of credit, guarantees, or any other means), any 
bond documents, the trust agreement or the depositary agreement and any hedging agreement 
and, in each case, the security agreements execute in connection therewith. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 374 of 495



Page A-3 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.22 “General Conditions” means the general conditions attached to this Subcontract 
as Exhibit H. The Subcontractor will have those obligations described of subcontractors in the 
General Conditions to the extent applicable to the scope of this Subcontract. 

 
1.23 “General Conditions Costs” means those costs described in Section 9.3 of the 

Subcontract. 
 

1.24 “Governmental Agency” means any legislative, executive, judicial, or 
administrative department, board, commission, court, agency or other instrumentality of the 
Federal, State or local government, including a joint powers agency formed by two (2) or more 
of the foregoing. 

 
1.25 “Governmental Approval” means any permit, license, approval, consent or 

other authorization which is required under Applicable Law for the Work or for the performance 
of any of the obligations under this Subcontract. 

 
1.26 “Indemnified Party” includes Contractor, Concessionaire, City, Authority, 

Trustee and each Financing Party (including Secured Parties) and their respective officers, 
agents, directors, partners, members, employees, affiliates, parents and subsidiaries. 

 
1.27 “Independent Engineer” means any independent third party engineer appointed 

pursuant to the Prime Contract to fill the role of Independent Engineer under the Prime Contract. 
 

1.28 “Intellectual Property” means any patents, copyrights, trade secrets, licensed 
software, proprietary technology or systems, or other intellectual property right owned or 
licensed in accordance with Applicable Law. 

 
1.29 “Interim Project Schedule” is a detailed work plan created by the Contractor to 

provide a three-week look ahead of upcoming work by Project contractors as well as 
documentation of Project work completed three weeks prior. 

 
1.30 “Interim Work Directive” means a written directive issued by the Contractor 

authorizing the Subcontractor to proceed with a modification to the scope of Work. The Interim 
Work Directive is not a Change Order and will only be assembled and issued when there is not 
adequate time to process a Change Order prior to proceeding with revisions to the scope of the 
Work or where there is disagreement as to whether an item is included scope. The Subcontractor 
is responsible for providing rough order of magnitude pricing to the Contractor for use in 
assembling the Interim Work Directive. 

 
1.31 “Monthly Project Schedule Updates” is a monthly schedule created by the 

Contractor incorporating the activities and schedule updates of the contractors on the Project. 
 

1.32 “Overhead and Profit” is the amount included in the Contract Price for all costs 
associated with those categories of items set forth in Section 9.4 of the Subcontract and all profit 
associated with performance of the Work, as well as the percentage set forth in Section 10.6.1 as 
the mark-up for any Change Order Work. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 375 of 495



Page A-4 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

1.33 “Permitted Delay” means a delay qualifying for an extension of the date for 
Substantial Completion under Section 8.4 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.34 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, 

partnership, firm, association, Governmental Agency or any other entity whether acting in an 
individual, fiduciary or other capacity. 

 
1.35 “Prime Contract” means the Operations and Maintenance Subcontract made as 

of November 29, 2012 between Concessionaire and Contractor and the executed Final Work 
Authorization for the Project. 

 
1.36 “Project” means the project described by the Construction Documents set forth 

in Exhibit B. 
 

1.37 “Project Schedule” means the schedule included in the Subcontract as Exhibit E, 
as adjusted per the Subcontract. 

 
1.38 “Prudent Industry Practices” means those methods, techniques, standards and 

practices which, at the time they are employed and in light of the circumstances at the time, are 
generally accepted as reasonably prudent in the wastewater treatment and collection or drinking 
water distribution industry or recycled water delivery industry as practiced in the Western United 
States and particularly in California for water and wastewater facilities of a similar size and used for 
similar purpose as the Project.  Prudent Industry Practices is not necessarily defined as the optimal 
methods, techniques, standards or practices to the exclusion of others, but rather to refer to a range 
of methods, techniques, standards and practices that are reasonable under the circumstances. 

 
1.39 “Record Documents” are described in Section 5.23 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.40 “Regulated Substances” means any pollutant, contaminant, substance, hazardous 

substance, hazardous material, toxic substance, toxic pollutant, solid waste, municipal waste, 
industrial waste, or hazardous waste, petroleum or petroleum-derived substance, asbestos, or 
polychlorinated biphenyls, that is defined as such in, is subject to regulation under, or may form 
the basis for any requirement for investigation or remediation under, any Applicable Law. 

 
1.41 “Secured Parties” means the bond trustee, in its capacity as trustee under the bond 

indenture; the bondholders and any other agents acting on behalf of the bondholders under the bond 
documents, including any depository bank, collateral agent and the Trustee; and the holders of any 
water authority parity debt or wastewater authority parity debt and any other agents acting on behalf 
of such holders, including any depositary bank, collateral agent or trustee. 

 
1.42 “Separate Contractors” means, as applicable, another subcontractor of 

Contractor, a separate contractor of the Authority, City, Concessionaire, or any subcontractors of 
any of the foregoing to the extent they are doing work on or adjacent to the Project site. 

 
1.43 “Subcontractor” is defined on page 1 of the Subcontract. 

 
1.44 “Substantial Completion” means the date when (1) the Project is sufficiently 

complete according to the Construction Documents, Contract Documents and the written testing 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 376 of 495



Page A-5 Exhibit A Definitions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

and commissioning procedures to allow the Contractor to utilize the Project for its intended 
purpose and for the Contractor to begin training staff in the Project’s operation; (2) the 
Independent Engineer (if required) and Governmental Agency with jurisdiction has provided all 
necessary sign-offs and approvals for the use or occupancy of the Project. 

 
1.45 “Substantial Completion Date” is the date shown in the approved Project 

Schedule as the milestone for Substantial Completion. 
 

1.46 “Trustee” means Union Bank, N.A., as trustee under that certain Trust 
Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2012, by and among Rialto Water Services, LLC, 
Rialto Utility Authority, City of Rialto and the Trustee, and its successors and assigns 
thereunder. 

 
1.47 “Uncontrollable Circumstance” means any act, event, condition or 

circumstance beyond the reasonable control of the Subcontractor, its tier subcontractors or 
anyone performing a portion of the Work on Subcontractor’s behalf or at Subcontractor’s 
direction under this Subcontract which prevents, delays or otherwise adversely affects the ability 
of the Subcontractor to perform its Work.  Such acts, events, conditions or circumstances 
include, but are not limited to, Change of Law; labor disputes such as strikes, lockouts that 
cannot be resolved by Subcontractor through use of a dual gate, or other labor disturbances; 
earthquake, flood, hurricanes, or other natural disaster and acts of God; war, terrorism, or civil 
insurrection; any failure or delay in obtaining any Governmental Approval beyond 
Subcontractor’s or its tier subcontractors’ control and that was not due to any negligent act or 
omission in their respective performance of the Work; any failure, delay or interference by a 
third party (other than City, Authority, Concessionaire or Contractor); or issuance of a temporary 
restraining order or other form of injunction that prohibits prosecution of a material portion of 
Subcontractor’s obligations under this Subcontract. 

 
1.48 “Unknown Site Conditions” means the discovery of (i) historical, archaeological 

or cultural finds; (ii) rare, endangered or threatened species; (iii) Regulated Substances; (iv) 
underground obstructions or underground utilities; (v) geotechnical or soils issues; or (vi) 
unknown features or conditions with respect to the Project site which were either unknown by 
Subcontractor or could not have been discovered by a reasonably prudent California state 
licensed contractor through diligent review of all documentation disclosed relevant to the Project 
and Subcontractor’s site investigation performed prior to the Effective Date. 

 
1.49 “Work” or “construction work” means all labor, materials, services, equipment, 

supplies, tools, and appurtenances necessary for the proper completion of the construction work 
described in Exhibit B, and all of Subcontractor’s obligations under this Subcontract. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 377 of 495



Page B-1 Exhibit B Construction Documents 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT B 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 

[Refer to Technical Specifications and Plans] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[INCLUDE SCHEDULE M] 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 378 of 495



O&M Subcontract Schedule M - Claims Regarding Environmental
Rialto Wastewater Facility and Water Facility Conditions

1OHSUSA:751680320.2

SCHEDULE M

CLAIMS REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

In accordance with the disclosure of the Authority made under the Concession Agreement, the
Concessionaire discloses that the following pending or threatened, claims, complaints, notices or
requests for information have been received by Authority with respect to any alleged violation of
any Environmental Law at, under, in, across or arising from any of the Utility Facilities or the
Utility Facilities Site, or with respect to any potential liabilities with respect to Environmental
Conditions at, on, in, under or affecting any of the Utility Facilities or the Utility Facilities Site:

i) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order 99-86, revising Cleanup and Abatement Order No. 98-96

ii) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order dated September 25, 2002

iii) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Amended Cleanup
and Abatement Order No. R8-2004-0072, Amending Order No. R8-2003-0013

iv) Regional Water Quality Control Board – Santa Ana Region, Cleanup and
Abatement Order No. R8-2004-0042, Amended Cleanup and Abatement Order
No. R8-2005-0053, and Remedial Investigative Order No. R8-2005-0121

v) State Water Resources Control Board, Matter No. A1824, In Re The Matter of
Perchlorate Contamination at a 160 Acre Site in the Rialto Area

vi) State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2008-0018, adopted
March 18, 2008

vii) United States Environmental Protection Agency, National Priorities List, B.F.
Goodrich Superfund Site, Rialto, California; EPA No. CAN000905945

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 379 of 495



Page C-1 Exhibit C Contract Price Breakdown; Billing Rates 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CONTRACT PRICE BREAKDOWN; BILLING RATES 
 
The breakdown of the Contract Price is attached to this Exhibit C. 

 
The maximum billing rates that Subcontractor may charge for Change Order work performed on 
a cost reimbursable basis are those attached to this Exhibit C behind the Contract Price 
breakdown. 

 
Any allowance items included in the Contract Price are described below: 

 
 
 
  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 380 of 495



Page D-1 Exhibit D Scope Of Work 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT D 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 
Replacement of Sewer Main along N. Willow Ave. Further details available in project 
specifications and plans. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 381 of 495



Page E-1 Exhibit E Project Schedule 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT E 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The Project Schedule is attached to this Exhibit E. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 382 of 495



Page F-1 Exhibit F Excluded Approvals 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT F 

EXCLUDED APPROVALS 

1. Excluded Approvals 
 
The Subcontractor is not required to obtain the following permits and approvals: 

 
1.1 Any notification, approval, certification, environmental assessment, finding of no 

significant impact, or environmental impact report or equivalent required under the National 
Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq. and CEQA, and the regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto; 

 
1.2 Any regulatory permits for the operation of the water or wastewater treatment 

facility, as applicable; or 
 

1.3 Any City zoning or land use approvals. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 383 of 495



Page G-1 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT G 

INSURANCE 

1. General.  Subcontractor will procure and maintain all insurance required by this Exhibit 
with limits in accordance with Schedule R.9 to the Prime Contract with companies satisfactory to 
Contractor and Concessionaire.  Certificates evidencing such insurance and, upon request of 
either Contractor or Concessionaire, copies of the insurance policies and endorsements will be 
promptly delivered to Contractor. The policies will provide that there will be no cancellation or 
material modification of coverage without 30 days (except for 10 days for non-payment of 
premiums) prior written notice to Contractor and Concessionaire. Evidence that the required 
insurance is currently in force is a condition precedent to Contractor’s obligation to pay the 
Subcontractor. 

 
2. Types of Required Insurance. Subcontractor will maintain the following coverages: 

 
2.1 Workers Compensation; Employer’s Liability. Workers compensation insurance 

and occupational disease insurance as required by law and employer’s liability insurance with 
statutory minimum limits, covering all work places involved in this Subcontract.  If applicable, 
Subcontractor will furnish a certificate of permission to self-insure under the workers’ 
compensation and employers’ liability insurance statutes of California. The workers 
compensation policy will be endorsed to include coverage for USL&H benefits if 
Subcontractor’s employees work in or about navigable waterways. 

 
2.1.1 Subcontractor and its consultants and subcontractors each waive any and 

all rights of recovery against Contractor, City, Authority, and Concessionaire for all losses or 
damages pertaining to the insurance required under this Section 2.1, if such loss or damage is 
covered by any other insurance policy in force (whether or not described in this Subcontract) or 
required to be in force at the time of the loss or damage. 

 
2.2 Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance written on 

the occurrence basis on ISO form CG 00 01 12 04 or an equivalent form, with limits of not less 
than [$1,000,000] per occurrence and in the annual project aggregate.  Modified Occurrence 
form is not acceptable.  The insurance will cover all operations of Subcontractor, including but 
not limited to: (i) premises, operations and mobile equipment liability; (ii) completed operations 
and products liability; (iii) contractual liability coverage including the tort liability of another 
assumed in a business contract; (iv) explosion, collapse, and underground property damage; (v) 
broad form property damage liability; and (vi) personal injury and advertising liability. 

 
2.3 Automobile.  Commercial automobile liability insurance coverage with limits not 

less than [$1,000,000] per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined. Coverage 
will be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 12, CA 00 20, or an equivalent form 
and will apply to any auto including owned, hired, and non-owned autos. 

 
2.4 Excess/Umbrella Liability.  Excess or umbrella liability coverage will apply over 

the employer’s liability, commercial general liability and automobile liability policies required 
above and will be at least as broad as the underlying coverage, including but not limited to 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 384 of 495



Page G-2 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

completed operations and contractual liability, with limits per occurrence and annual project 
aggregate as follows: 

 
2.4.1 If Subcontractor’s scope includes any of the following items of Work, 

Subcontractor’s insurance limits will be [$9,000,000]: 
 

• installation of pipe, mains, services and meters; 
• demolition, excavation and foundations; 
• masonry or concrete (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior 

renovation); 
• steel and welding; 
• hoisting and scaffolding; 
• painting (tanks) and sandblasting; 
• roofing and waterproofing; 
• carpentry (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior renovation); 
• electrical (other than for projects involving only exterior/interior renovation); 
• HVAC, plumbing or mechanical (other than for projects involving only 

exterior/interior renovation); 
• use of hazardous equipment including cranes and boom trucks; 
• installation of large equipment such as boilers, pumps, HVAC units, etc. 
• if the scope of Work is related to plant or distribution systems. 

 
2.4.2 if Subcontractor’s scope does not include any of the items listed in Section 

2.4.1 above, insurance limits will be [$4,000,000]. 
 

2.5 Property Insurance/Contractor’s Equipment.  Subcontractor will insure its own 
property and equipment (owned, rented or borrowed) including but not limited to tools, 
materials, supplies, equipment, and temporary structures, including their contents except for such 
contents as are to be included in and remain a part of the permanent construction. 

 
3. Subcontractor will require each of its subcontractors to procure and maintain during the 
life of the Project the same insurance coverages meeting the same requirements as those 
specified above for Subcontractor.  Subcontractor will not allow any subcontractor to provide 
work in connection with the Project until that party has procured and provided evidence of the 
insurance specified herein. 

 
4. City, Authority, Concessionaire, Contractor, Secured Parties and Separate Contractors as 
notified by the Concessionaire, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees and 
affiliates will be named as additional insured parties under the commercial general liability, 
automobile liability and umbrella/excess liability insurance policies with respect to the Work. 
The additional insured endorsement on the commercial general liability policy will include both 
“ongoing operations” and liability arising from “your work/completed operations” (the 
equivalent of ISO additional insured endorsement CG20-10-11-85). 

 
5. Certificates of insurance will be provided/updated annually until one year after 
Substantial Completion. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 385 of 495



Page G-3 Exhibit G Insurance 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

6. All insurance coverage (except workers compensation) to be maintained and furnished by 
Subcontractor will be primary and non-contributory with respect to any insurance maintained by 
any additional insured. 

 
7. Each policy of liability insurance will include a waiver of subrogation in favor of all 
additional insured parties and will be endorsed to recite the name of the Project and the location 
of the Project site.  If the Subcontractor’s liability policies do not contain the standard ISO 
separation of insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they will be endorsed to 
provide cross-liability coverage. 

 
8. Insurance coverage will be maintained by insurance companies that have a rating of at 
least A-VII in the most recent edition of A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide and are otherwise 
satisfactory to the Contractor and Concessionaire.  The Contractor and Concessionaire have the 
right to periodically review Subcontractor’s insurance policies and coverages and require 
changes to such policies to the extent that said insurance is relevant to this Subcontract. Any 
additional premiums or other associated costs for such changes will be at the Contractor’s 
expense unless the policy fails to comply with the requirements of this Exhibit, in which case the 
Subcontractor will bear such costs. 

 
9. The Subcontractor will be responsible for any and all deductibles under all policies 
without adjustment to the Contract Price. 

 
10. If the policies of insurance referred to in this Exhibit require an endorsement or consent of 
the insurance company to provide for continued coverage where there is a waiver of subrogation, 
the owners of such policies will cause them to be so endorsed or obtain such consent. 

 
11. Failure to maintain the required insurance is a material breach of contract. Also, if 
Subcontractor fails to maintain the insurance as set forth herein, Contractor will have the right, 
but not the obligation, to purchase said insurance at Subcontractor’s expense. 

 
12. By requiring insurance herein, Contractor does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect Subcontractor and such coverage and limits will not be 
deemed as a limitation on Subcontractor’s liability under the indemnities granted in this contract. 

 
13. Insurance form C G 20 12 will also be completed at the City’s request which shall 
include the following additional insured: 

 
1) Rialto Water Services ("RWS, LLC") 
437 North Riverside Avenue 
Rialto CA 92376 
 
2) Rialto Utility Authority, a California joint powers authority, ("RUA") 
335 West Rialto Avenue 
Rialto CA 92376 
 
3) Union Bank, N.A. 
350 California Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94104 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 386 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

SCHEDULE R.9
SUBCONTRACTOR AND CONSULTANTS INSURANCE

REQUIREMENTS
O&M Subcontract

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 387 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements
Schedule R.9

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

4745505.1

SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 388 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 1 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

The attached exhibit contains the insurance coverage limits and requirements for
subcontractors engaged by Concessionaire (other than Contractor) and Contractor as
required by Section 21.2.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 389 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 2 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 390 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 3 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 391 of 495



Subcontractor and Consultants Insurance Requirements Page 4 of 4
Schedule R.9

4745505.1

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 392 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 393 of 495



Page H-1 Exhibit H Subcontractor General Conditions 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT H 
 

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS (SCHEDULE R.6 OF PRIME CONTRACT) 
 
 
The Subcontractor General Conditions (Schedule R.6 of the Prime Contract) are attached to this Exhibit H 
for convenience and are part of the Contract Documents. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 394 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions
Schedule R.6

4734834.11

SCHEDULE R.6
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

O&M Subcontract

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 395 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions
Schedule R.6

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

i

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

4734834.11

SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 396 of 495



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

Subcontractor General Conditions i
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

1. WORKERS AND WORKERS COMPENSATION ...........................................................1

1.1 Strict Discipline and Good Order.........................................................................1
1.2 Removal of Persons................................................................................................1
1.3 Insurance Certification..........................................................................................1

2. CONSTRUCTION RELATED WORK ..............................................................................1

2.1 Employment Standards .........................................................................................1
2.2 Equipment and Machinery Procurement ............................................................2

3. WORKERS RIGHTS AND LABOR NEUTRALITY........................................................2

3.1 Right to Organize ...................................................................................................2
3.2 Labor Organization Representation ....................................................................2
3.3 Collective Bargaining.............................................................................................2

4. PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES...................................................................................3

4.1 Applicability of Laws.............................................................................................3
4.2 Subcontractor Compliance ...................................................................................3
4.3 Penalty for Paying Less Than Prevailing Wage..................................................3
4.4 Monitoring Tier Subcontractor Compliance.......................................................4
4.5 Penalty for Exceeding Maximum Hour Limits ...................................................4
4.6 Posting of Rates ......................................................................................................4
4.7 Notice Regarding Complaints...............................................................................4
4.8 Copy of Certain Labor Code Provisions..............................................................4

5. EMPLOYMENT OF APPRENTICES ..............................................................................12

5.1 Applicability of Laws...........................................................................................12

6. PAYROLL RECORDS......................................................................................................12

6.1 Maintenance .........................................................................................................12
6.2 Submission and Availability................................................................................12
6.3 Forms ....................................................................................................................13
6.4 Privacy ..................................................................................................................13
6.5 Compliance ...........................................................................................................13

7. REMOVAL, RELOCATION, OR PROTECTION OF EXISTING UTILITIES. ............13

7.1 Responsibility .......................................................................................................13

8. INSPECTION FEES FOR PERMANENT UTILITIES....................................................13

8.1 Fees ........................................................................................................................13

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 397 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions ii
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

9. SOILS INVESTIGATIONS ..............................................................................................14

9.1 Examination of Site..............................................................................................14

10. TRENCHING, SHORING AND UNKNOWN SITE CONDITIONS..............................14

10.1 Labor Code Compliance......................................................................................14
10.2 Excavations Deeper than 4’-0” ...........................................................................14
10.3 Unknown Site Conditions or Environmental Conditions ................................15
10.4 Adjustment ...........................................................................................................15
10.5 Dispute ..................................................................................................................15

11. SURVEYING ....................................................................................................................15

11.1 Field Engineering .................................................................................................15

12. DEMOLITION ..................................................................................................................15

12.1 Demolition Plan ....................................................................................................15
12.2 Permits and Fees ..................................................................................................17

13. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS...................................................................................17

13.1 Water Control ......................................................................................................17
13.2 Pollution Control..................................................................................................17
13.3 Erosion Control ....................................................................................................17
13.4 Traffic Control .....................................................................................................18
13.5 Air Pollution Control ...........................................................................................18
13.6 Fire Protection Control .......................................................................................19

14. SAFETY ............................................................................................................................19

14.1 OSHA ....................................................................................................................19
14.2 Health and Safety Plan ........................................................................................19
14.3 Signs ......................................................................................................................19
14.4 Weekly Safety Meetings ......................................................................................19
14.5 Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”) .............................................................19
14.6 Safety Walks .........................................................................................................19

15. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY ................................................................20

15.1 Safety and Protection...........................................................................................20
15.2 Requirements........................................................................................................20
15.3 Field Offices ..........................................................................................................20
15.4 Temporary Protection .........................................................................................20
15.5 Damages to Materials and Equipment...............................................................21
15.6 Precautionary Measures......................................................................................21
15.7 Investigation and Reporting................................................................................21

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 398 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions iii
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

16. TEMPORARY FACILITIES.............................................................................................21

16.1 Temporary Electricity .........................................................................................21
16.2 Temporary Communications ..............................................................................21
16.3 Temporary Water ................................................................................................21
16.4 Temporary Fences ...............................................................................................21
16.5 Temporary Sanitary Facilities ............................................................................21
16.6 Temporary Barriers and Enclosures .................................................................22
16.7 Construction Equipment and Aids.....................................................................22
16.8 Removal of Temporary Facilities and Equipment............................................22

17. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL.................................................22

17.1 Testing and Inspection.........................................................................................22
17.2 Permits, Licenses, and Certificates.....................................................................22
17.3 Quality Control Plan............................................................................................22
17.4 Manufacturer’s Field Services............................................................................23
17.5 Quality Control Reports......................................................................................23
17.6 Test and Inspection Logs.....................................................................................24

18. LAWS AND REGULATIONS..........................................................................................24

18.1 Notices ...................................................................................................................24
18.2 Americans with Disabilities.................................................................................24

19. NOTICE OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS...........................................................................24

19.1 Third-Party Claims..............................................................................................24

20. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION. ...........................................................25

20.1 Subcontractor’s Certification .............................................................................25

21. NONDISCRIMINATION/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY .........................25

21.1 Non-Discrimination Policy ..................................................................................25

22. OWNERSHIP OF DESIGN DOCUMENTS.....................................................................26

22.1 Non-Exclusive, Irrevocable License ...................................................................26
22.2 Statutory Copyright.............................................................................................27

23. TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS. ...................................................27

23.1 Employees. ............................................................................................................27
23.2 Contract Price. .....................................................................................................27
23.3 Gratuities. .............................................................................................................27

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 399 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions iv
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

24. COMMUNICATIONS. .....................................................................................................28

24.1 Inquiries. ...............................................................................................................28
24.2 Correspondence....................................................................................................28

25. CLEAN UP AND RECYCLING ......................................................................................28

25.1 Material Recycling ...............................................................................................28
25.2 Cleaning Up ..........................................................................................................28

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 400 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 1 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

SCHEDULE R.6
SUBCONTRACTOR GENERAL CONDITIONS

O&M Subcontract

1. WORKERS AND WORKERS COMPENSATION

1.1 Strict Discipline and Good Order. At all times, Subcontractor will enforce
strict discipline and good order among its employees. Subcontractor will not employ any unfit
person or anyone not skilled in the construction work assigned on the Project.

1.2 Removal of Persons. The Concessionaire or Contractor can request removal of
any person in the employ of the Subcontractor whom Concessionaire or Contractor believes
incompetent, improper, disruptive, or a hindrance to Subcontractor’s performance of its work. If the
person is dismissed, he or she will not be re-employed to perform any portion of the work required
under the Contract Documents without written approval of the Concessionaire and Contractor.

1.3 Insurance Certification. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors and vendors
are required to secure the payment of compensation of their respective employees in accordance
with Labor Code section 3700. Before commencing any construction work on the Project,
Subcontractor and each of its tier subcontractors and vendors will sign and file a certification
with the Contractor and Concessionaire under Labor Code section 1861 stating the following:

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which
require every employer to be insured against liability for workers’
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before
commencing the performance of the construction work on the Project.

2. CONSTRUCTION RELATED WORK

2.1 Employment Standards. Subcontractor and all tier subcontractors performing
material construction work for the Project, including delivery to the job site of major
construction materials, shall:

2.1.1 Be bound by and signatory to a collective bargaining agreement with a
labor organization whose jurisdiction covers the type of work to be performed, who is an
“Approved Building Trades Department Contractor or Subcontractor,” and whose collective
bargaining agreement or other applicable documentation provides a mechanism for the
expeditious resolution of jurisdictional disputes. For purposes of this section, “Approved
Building Trades Department Contractor or Subcontractor” means a contractor or tier
subcontractor who is signatory to a labor organization that is either currently affiliated with, or
previously affiliated with as of January 1, 2001, the Building and Construction Trades
Department of the AFL-CIO; and

2.1.2 Observe area standards for wages and other terms and conditions of
employment, including fringe benefits.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 401 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 2 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

2.2 Equipment and Machinery Procurement. Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors will seek to have a “best value” policy with respect to procurement of significant
equipment or machinery (including fabrication) utilized in the Project. This best value approach
will consider the quality assurance of union-built equipment and machinery.

3. WORKERS RIGHTS AND LABOR NEUTRALITY

3.1 Right to Organize. The Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will honor the
right of every worker to organize into a union of his or her choosing and remain neutral in any
organizing efforts to ensure the exercise by employees and workers of their rights under Section
7 of the National Labor Relations Act, as well as to avoid picketing and other economic action
against the employer. The Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, as employers, will comply
with the following policies:

3.1.1 Recognize that national labor law guarantees employees the right to form
or select any labor organization to act as their exclusive representative for the purpose of
collective bargaining with their employer;

3.1.2 Refrain from any action or statement that will directly or indirectly state or
imply any opposition by the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors, as employers, to the
selection by any workers or employees of a collective bargaining agreement, or preference for or
opposition to any particular union as a bargaining agent;

3.1.3 Provide access to workers and employees and union representatives to its
non-public areas of the Project jobsites during non-working hours and on such other terms as the
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, as employers, and the union representatives may
reasonably agree for the purpose of organizing efforts; and

3.1.4 Upon request by union representatives, furnish a complete list of
Subcontractor’s and its tier subcontractors’ employees and update that list periodically, as
required by Applicable Law.

3.2 Labor Organization Representation. If a labor organization files a
representation petition with the National Labor Relations Board seeking to represent employees
of either the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors at the Project site, the Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will work in good faith to resolve any issues or other possible legal defects in
the petition and set an election date that is within 30 days of the filing of the petition. If the
employees freely vote by secret ballot to select a labor organization as their exclusive bargaining
representative, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will promptly recognize the labor
organization and agree to meet for purposes of collective bargaining.

3.3 Collective Bargaining. If a labor organization is elected as the exclusive
bargaining representative per Section 3.2, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will be
available for bargaining for no less than 15 weekdays in the first 120 calendar days after the
certification of the representative issues by the National Labor Relations Board. If an agreement
is not reached within the first 120 days after the certification has been issued, the Subcontractor

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 402 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 3 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

and its tier subcontractors agree to engage in mediation using the services of the Federal
Mediation and Conciliation Service.

4. PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES

4.1 Applicability of Laws. Pursuant to Government Code section 5956.8, the Project
is subject to California State prevailing wages. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will
comply with any applicable California prevailing wage laws commencing with Section 1720 of
Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code. The Subcontractor acknowledges and agrees that it has
performed its own investigation as to the applicability of California prevailing wage laws under
Government Code section 5956.8 and commencing with Labor Code section 1720 et seq., and
that the following provisions only include a summary of the requirements for prevailing wages
under the California Labor Code. Prior to the start of construction, Subcontractor will
acknowledge in writing, and cause each of its tier subcontractors to acknowledge in writing, that
the final pricing includes full compensation for all labor in compliance with California Labor
Code and that no additional compensation will be owed to Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors in the event that Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors are required to pay higher
wages or incur additional costs related to compliance.

4.2 Subcontractor Compliance. The Subcontractor is aware of the requirements of
Labor Code sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title
8, section 16000 et seq. (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing wage
rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance”
projects. Although the Project is being performed pursuant to a public private partnership under
Government Code section 5956, et seq., Subcontractor acknowledges that it must fully comply with
the Prevailing Wage Laws with respect to the Project. The Subcontractor will obtain a copy of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages before commencement of Project construction from the website
of the Division of Labor Statistics and Research of the Department of Industrial Relations located at
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/statistics_research.html. Subcontractor will make copies of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform
construction work on the Project to interested parties upon request, and will post copies at the
Subcontractor’s principal place of business and at the Project site office. Subcontractor will defend,
indemnify and hold the Contractor, Concessionaire, City and the Authority, and their respective
elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs,
penalties or interest arising out of labor union disputes for failure by Subcontractor or any of its tier
subcontractors to comply or allegedly fail to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

4.3 Penalty for Paying Less Than Prevailing Wage. Under Labor Code section
1775, the Subcontractor and each of its tier subcontractors will forfeit as a penalty not more than
two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less
than the stipulated prevailing wage rate for any construction work done by Subcontractor, or by
its tier subcontractor, in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code. The difference between
the stipulated prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or
portion thereof, for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate,
will be paid to each worker by the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractor.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 403 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 4 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

4.4 Monitoring Tier Subcontractor Compliance. The Subcontractor will monitor
the payment of the specified general prevailing rate of per diem wages by its tier subcontractors to
their respective employees by periodic review of the certified payroll records of its tier
subcontractors. Upon becoming aware of the failure of any of its tier subcontractors to pay its
workers the specified prevailing wage rate, the Subcontractor will diligently take corrective action to
halt or rectify the failure including, but not limited to, requesting that the Contractor retain sufficient
funds due the tier subcontractor for construction work performed on the Project. As part of its
application for final payment, the Subcontractor will cause each of its tier subcontractors to provide
an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury that the tier subcontractor has paid the specified general
prevailing rate of per diem wages to its employees and any amounts due under Section 1813.

4.5 Penalty for Exceeding Maximum Hour Limits. The Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors will, as a penalty to the state or political division on whose behalf the Prime
Contract is made, forfeit twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution of
the construction work for each calendar day that the worker is required or permitted to work
more than eight (8) hours in any one (1) calendar day and 40 hours in any one (1) calendar week
in violation of the provisions of Section 1813. Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 1810
to 1814, inclusive, of the Labor Code, or any stipulation inserted in the Contract Documents,
work performed by employees of contractors in excess of eight (8) hours per day, and 40 hours
during any one (1) week, will be permitted upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of
eight (8) hours per day at not less than 1 ½ times the basic rate of pay.

4.6 Posting of Rates. Contractor will post, at appropriate conspicuous points at the
Project site(s), a schedule showing all determined general prevailing wage rates and all
authorized deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned.

4.7 Notice Regarding Complaints. The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement
will notify the Subcontractor within 15 days of receipt of a complaint of the failure of any of its
tier subcontractors to pay workers the general prevailing rate of per diem wages.

4.8 Copy of Certain Labor Code Provisions.

Section 1771. Except for public works projects of one thousand dollars ($1,000)
or less, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the public work is performed, and not
less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime
work fixed as provided in this chapter, shall be paid to all workers employed on
public works.

This section is applicable only to work performed under contract, and is not applicable to work
carried out by a public agency with its own forces. This section is applicable to contracts let for
maintenance work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 404 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 5 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Section 1775

(a) (1)The contractor and any subcontractor under the contractor shall, as a
penalty to the state or political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded,
forfeit not more than two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for
each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rates as determined by the director for the work
or craft in which the worker is employed for any public work done under the contract by the
contractor or, except as provided in subdivision (b), by any subcontractor under the contractor.

(2) (A) The amount of the penalty shall be determined by the Labor
Commissioner based on consideration of both of the following:

(i) Whether the failure of the contractor or subcontractor to pay the
correct rate of per diem wages was a good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly and
voluntarily corrected when brought to the attention of the contractor or subcontractor.

(ii) Whether the contractor or subcontractor has a prior record of
failing to meet its prevailing wage obligations.

(B) (i) The penalty may not be less than forty dollars ($40) for each
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rate, unless
the failure of the contractor or subcontractor to pay the correct rate of per diem wages was a
good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly and voluntarily corrected when brought to
the attention of the contractor or subcontractor.

(ii) The penalty may not be less than eighty dollars ($80) for each
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rate, if the
contractor or subcontractor has been assessed penalties within the previous three years for failing
to meet its prevailing wage obligations on a separate contract, unless those penalties were
subsequently withdrawn or overturned.

(iii) The penalty may not be less than one hundred twenty dollars
($120) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing
wage rate, if the Labor Commissioner determines that the violation was willful, as defined in
subdivision (c) of Section 1777.1.

(C) If the amount due under this section is collected from the contractor or
subcontractor, any outstanding wage claim under Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1720) of
Part 7 of Division 2 against that contractor or subcontractor shall be satisfied before applying
that amount to the penalty imposed on that contractor or subcontractor pursuant to this section.

(D) The determination of the Labor Commissioner as to the amount of the
penalty shall be reviewable only for abuse of discretion.

(E) The difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid
to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than
the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the contractor or subcontractor, and the

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 405 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 6 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract a stipulation that this section
will be complied with.

(b) If a worker employed by a subcontractor on a public works project is not paid
the general prevailing rate of per diem wages by the subcontractor, the prime contractor of the
project is not liable for any penalties under subdivision (a) unless the prime contractor had
knowledge of that failure of the subcontractor to pay the specified prevailing rate of wages to those
workers or unless the prime contractor fails to comply with all of the following requirements:

(1) The contract executed between the contractor and the subcontractor for the
performance of work on the public works project shall include a copy of the provisions of this
section and Sections 1771, 1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815.

(2) The contractor shall monitor the payment of the specified general
prevailing rate of per diem wages by the subcontractor to the employees, by periodic review of
the certified payroll records of the subcontractor.

(3) Upon becoming aware of the failure of the subcontractor to pay his or her
workers the specified prevailing rate of wages, the contractor shall diligently take corrective
action to halt or rectify the failure, including, but not limited to, retaining sufficient funds due the
subcontractor for work performed on the public works project.

(4) Prior to making final payment to the subcontractor for work performed on
the public works project, the contractor shall obtain an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury
from the subcontractor that the subcontractor has paid the specified general prevailing rate of per
diem wages to his or her employees on the public works project and any amounts due pursuant to
Section 1813.

(c) The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall notify the contractor on a
public works project within 15 days of the receipt by the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement of a complaint of the failure of a subcontractor on that public works project to pay
workers the general prevailing rate of per diem wages.

Section 1776

(a) Each contractor and subcontractor shall keep accurate payroll records,
showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time and
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each
journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with
the public work. Each payroll record shall contain or be verified by a written declaration that it is
made under penalty of perjury, stating both of the following:

(1) The information contained in the payroll record is true and correct.

(2) The employer has complied with the requirements of Sections 1771, 1811,
and 1815 for any work performed by his or her employees on the public works project.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 406 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 7 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(b) The payroll records enumerated under subdivision (a) shall be certified and
shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the contractor on
the following basis:

(1) A certified copy of an employee’s payroll record shall be made available
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on request.

(2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall
be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the body
awarding the contract, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

(3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall
be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for copies thereof. However, a
request by the public shall be made through either the body awarding the contract, the Division
of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested
payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph (2), the requesting party shall,
prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by the contractor,
subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. The public may not be given
access to the records at the principal office of the contractor.

(c) The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of
Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by the
division. The payroll records may consist of printouts of payroll data that are maintained as
computer records, if the printouts contain the same information as the forms provided by the
division and the printouts are verified in the manner specified in subdivision (a).

(d) A contractor or subcontractor shall file a certified copy of the records
enumerated in subdivision (a) with the entity that requested the records within 10 days after
receipt of a written request.

(e) Except as provided in subdivision (f), any copy of records made available for
inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by the
awarding body, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated to prevent disclosure of an individual’s name,
address, and social security number. The name and address of the contractor awarded the
contract or the subcontractor performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated. Any
copy of records made available for inspection by, or furnished to, a joint labor-management
committee established pursuant to the federal Labor Management Cooperation Act of 1978 (29
U.S.C. Sec. 175a) shall be marked or obliterated only to prevent disclosure of an individual’s
name and social security number. A joint labor management committee may maintain an action
in a court of competent jurisdiction against an employer who fails to comply with Section 1774.
The court may award restitution to an employee for unpaid wages and may award the joint labor
management committee reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in maintaining the action.
An action under this subdivision may not be based on the employer’s misclassification of the
craft of a worker on its certified payroll records. Nothing in this subdivision limits any other
available remedies for a violation of this chapter.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 407 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 8 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(f) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, agencies that are included in the
Joint Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy established pursuant to Section 329
of the Unemployment Insurance Code and other law enforcement agencies investigating violations
of law shall, upon request, be provided unredacted copies of certified payroll records. Any copies
of records or certified payroll made available for inspection and furnished upon request to the
public by an agency included in the Joint Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy
or to a law enforcement agency investigating a violation of law shall be marked or redacted to
prevent disclosure of an individual’s name, address, and social security number.

(2) An employer shall not be liable for damages in a civil action for any
reasonable act or omission taken in good faith in compliance with this subdivision.

(g) The contractor shall inform the body awarding the contract of the location of
the records enumerated under subdivision (a), including the street address, city, and county, and
shall, within five working days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

(h) The contractor or subcontractor has 10 days in which to comply subsequent to
receipt of a written notice requesting the records enumerated in subdivision (a). In the event that
the contractor or subcontractor fails to comply within the 10-day period, he or she shall, as a
penalty to the state or political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded,
forfeit one hundred dollars ($100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker,
until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, these penalties shall be withheld
from progress payments then due. A contractor is not subject to a penalty assessment pursuant to
this section due to the failure of a subcontractor to comply with this section.

(i) The body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract
stipulations to effectuate this section.

(j) The director shall adopt rules consistent with the California Public Records Act
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code)
and the Information Practices Act of 1977 (Title 1.8 (commencing with Section 1798) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code) governing the release of these records, including the establishment of
reasonable fees to be charged for reproducing copies of records required by this section.

Section 1777.5

(a) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the employment of properly registered
apprentices upon public works.

(b) Every apprentice employed upon public works shall be paid the prevailing
rate of per diem wages for apprentices in the trade to which he or she is registered and shall be
employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which he or she is registered.

(c) Only apprentices, as defined in Section 3077, who are in training under
apprenticeship standards that have been approved by the Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards and who are parties to written apprentice agreements under Chapter 4 (commencing

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 408 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 9 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

with Section 3070) of Division 3 are eligible to be employed at the apprentice wage rate on
public works. The employment and training of each apprentice shall be in accordance with either
of the following:

(1) The apprenticeship standards and apprentice agreements under which he or
she is training.

(2) The rules and regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council.

(d) When the contractor to whom the contract is awarded by the state or any political
subdivision, in performing any of the work under the contract, employs workers in any apprenticeable
craft or trade, the contractor shall employ apprentices in at least the ratio set forth in this section and
may apply to any apprenticeship program in the craft or trade that can provide apprentices to the site
of the public work for a certificate approving the contractor under the apprenticeship standards for the
employment and training of apprentices in the area or industry affected. However, the decision of the
apprenticeship program to approve or deny a certificate shall be subject to review by the Administrator
of Apprenticeship. The apprenticeship program or programs, upon approving the contractor, shall
arrange for the dispatch of apprentices to the contractor. A contractor covered by an apprenticeship
program’s standards shall not be required to submit any additional application in order to include
additional public works contracts under that program.

“Apprenticeable craft or trade,” as used in this section, means a craft or trade
determined as an apprenticeable occupation in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by
the California Apprenticeship Council. As used in this section, “contractor” includes any
subcontractor under a contractor who performs any public works not excluded by subdivision (o).

(e) Prior to commencing work on a contract for public works, every contractor
shall submit contract award information to an applicable apprenticeship program that can supply
apprentices to the site of the public work. The information submitted shall include an estimate of
journeyman hours to be performed under the contract, the number of apprentices proposed to be
employed, and the approximate dates the apprentices would be employed. A copy of this
information shall also be submitted to the awarding body if requested by the awarding body.

Within 60 days after concluding work on the contract, each contractor and
subcontractor shall submit to the awarding body, if requested, and to the apprenticeship program
a verified statement of the journeyman and apprentice hours performed on the contract. The
information under this subdivision shall be public. The apprenticeship programs shall retain this
information for 12 months.

(f) The apprenticeship program that can supply apprentices to the area of the site
of the public work shall ensure equal employment and affirmative action in apprenticeship for
women and minorities.

(g) The ratio of work performed by apprentices to journeymen employed in a
particular craft or trade on the public work may be no higher than the ratio stipulated in the
apprenticeship standards under which the apprenticeship program operates where the contractor

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 409 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 10 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

agrees to be bound by those standards, but, except as otherwise provided in this section, in no case
shall the ratio be less than one hour of apprentice work for every five hours of journeyman work.

(h) This ratio of apprentice work to journeyman work shall apply during any day
or portion of a day when any journeyman is employed at the jobsite and shall be computed on the
basis of the hours worked during the day by journeymen so employed. Any work performed by a
journeyman in excess of eight hours per day or 40 hours per week shall not be used to calculate
the ratio. The contractor shall employ apprentices for the number of hours computed as above
before the end of the contract or, in the case of a subcontractor, before the end of the subcontract.
However, the contractor shall endeavor, to the greatest extent possible, to employ apprentices
during the same time period that the journeymen in the same craft or trade are employed at the
jobsite. Where an hourly apprenticeship ratio is not feasible for a particular craft or trade, the
Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, upon application of an apprenticeship
program, may order a minimum ratio of not less than one apprentice for each five journeymen in
a craft or trade classification.

(i) A contractor covered by this section that has agreed to be covered by an
apprenticeship program’s standards upon the issuance of the approval certificate, or that has been
previously approved for an apprenticeship program in the craft or trade, shall employ the number
of apprentices or the ratio of apprentices to journeymen stipulated in the applicable
apprenticeship standards, but in no event less than the 1-to-5 ratio required by subdivision (g).

(j) Upon proper showing by a contractor that he or she employs apprentices in a
particular craft or trade in the state on all of his or her contracts on an annual average of not less
than one hour of apprentice work for every five hours of labor performed by journeymen, the
Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards may grant a certificate exempting the
contractor from the 1-to-5 hourly ratio, as set forth in this section for that craft or trade.

(k) An apprenticeship program has the discretion to grant to a participating
contractor or contractor association a certificate, which shall be subject to the approval of the
Administrator of Apprenticeship, exempting the contractor from the 1-to-5 ratio set forth in this
section when it finds that any one of the following conditions is met:

(1) Unemployment for the previous three-month period in the area exceeds an
average of 15 percent.

(2) The number of apprentices in training in the area exceeds a ratio of 1 to 5.

(3) There is a showing that the apprenticeable craft or trade is replacing at
least one-thirtieth of its journeymen annually through apprenticeship training, either on a
statewide basis or on a local basis.

(4) Assignment of an apprentice to any work performed under a public works
contract would create a condition that would jeopardize his or her life or the life, safety, or
property of fellow employees or the public at large, or the specific task to which the apprentice is
to be assigned is of a nature that training cannot be provided by a journeyman.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 410 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 11 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(l) When an exemption is granted pursuant to subdivision (k) to an organization that
represents contractors in a specific trade from the 1-to-5 ratio on a local or statewide basis, the
member contractors shall not be required to submit individual applications for approval to local
joint apprenticeship committees, if they are already covered by the local apprenticeship standards.

(m)(1) A contractor to whom a contract is awarded, who, in performing any of the
work under the contract, employs journeymen or apprentices in any apprenticeable craft or trade
shall contribute to the California Apprenticeship Council the same amount that the director
determines is the prevailing amount of apprenticeship training contributions in the area of the
public works site. A contractor may take as a credit for payments to the council any amounts
paid by the contractor to an approved apprenticeship program that can supply apprentices to the
site of the public works project. The contractor may add the amount of the contributions in
computing his or her bid for the contract.

(2) At the conclusion of the 2002-03 fiscal year and each fiscal year
thereafter, the California Apprenticeship Council shall distribute training contributions received
by the council under this subdivision, less the expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards for administering this subdivision, by making grants to approved apprenticeship
programs for the purpose of training apprentices. The funds shall be distributed as follows:

(A) If there is an approved multiemployer apprenticeship program serving
the same craft or trade and geographic area for which the training contributions were made to the
council, a grant to that program shall be made.

(B) If there are two or more approved multiemployer apprenticeship
programs serving the same craft or trade and geographic area for which the training contributions
were made to the council, the grant shall be divided among those programs based on the number
of apprentices registered in each program.

(C) All training contributions not distributed under subparagraphs (A) and
(B) shall be used to defray the future expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.

(3) All training contributions received pursuant to this subdivision shall be
deposited in the Apprenticeship Training Contribution Fund, which is hereby created in the State
Treasury. Upon appropriation by the Legislature, all money in the Apprenticeship Training
Contribution Fund shall be used for the purpose of carrying out this subdivision and to pay the
expenses of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.

(n) The body awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the contract
stipulations to effectuate this section. The stipulations shall fix the responsibility of compliance
with this section for all apprenticeable occupations with the prime contractor.

(o) This section does not apply to contracts of general contractors or to contracts
of specialty contractors not bidding for work through a general or prime contractor when the
contracts of general contractors or those specialty contractors involve less than thirty thousand
dollars ($30,000).

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 411 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 12 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

(p) All decisions of an apprenticeship program under this section are subject to
Section 3081.

Section 1813. The contractor or subcontractor shall, as a penalty to the state or
political subdivision on whose behalf the contract is made or awarded, forfeit twenty-five dollars
($25) for each worker employed in the execution of the contract by the respective contractor or
subcontractor for each calendar day during which the worker is required or permitted to work
more than 8 hours in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of
the provisions of this article. In awarding any contract for public work, the awarding body shall
cause to be inserted in the contract a stipulation to this effect. The awarding body shall take
cognizance of all violations of this article committed in the course of the execution of the
contract, and shall report them to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.

Section 1815. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 1810 to 1814,
inclusive, of this code, and notwithstanding any stipulation inserted in any contract pursuant to
the requirements of said sections, work performed by employees of contractors in excess of 8
hours per day, and 40 hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon public work upon
compensation for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours per day at not less than 1 1/2 times the
basic rate of pay.

5. EMPLOYMENT OF APPRENTICES

5.1 Applicability of Laws. The Subcontractor’s attention is directed to the
provisions of Sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor Code concerning employment of
apprentices by the Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors. The Subcontractor will obtain a
certificate of apprenticeship before employing any apprentice pursuant to Sections 1777.5, 1777.6,
and 1777.7 of the Labor Code. Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules,
and other requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, the Administrator
of Apprenticeships, or from the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, and its branch offices.

6. PAYROLL RECORDS

6.1 Maintenance. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, the Subcontractor and each
of its tier subcontractors will maintain weekly certified payroll records showing the name, address,
social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and
week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other
employee performing labor in connection with construction work at the Project. Subcontractor
will certify under penalty of perjury that records maintained and submitted by Subcontractor are
true and accurate and that the employer has complied with the requirements of Labor Code
sections 1771, 1811, and 1815 for any construction work performed on the Project. Subcontractor
will also require its tier subcontractor(s) to certify weekly payroll records under penalty of perjury.

6.2 Submission and Availability. The payroll records will be certified and
submitted by the Subcontractor on a monthly basis with its application for payment or at other times
that may be designated by the Contractor. The Subcontractor will also provide the following:

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 412 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 13 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

6.2.1 A certified copy of the employee’s payroll records will be made available
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on request.

6.2.2 A certified copy of all payroll records described will be made available for
inspection or furnished upon request of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (“DLSE”), the
Division of Apprenticeship Standards (“DAS”), or the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”).

6.3 Forms. The certified payroll records will be on forms provided by the DLSE of
the DIR or will contain the same information as the forms provided by the DLSE.

6.4 Privacy. Any copy of records made available for inspection and furnished upon
request to the public will be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an
individual’s name, address, and social security number. The name and address of the
Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors will not be marked or obliterated.

6.5 Compliance. In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article
6, the Subcontractor will have 10 days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice
specifying any item or actions necessary to ensure compliance with this Article. If non-compliance
is evident after the 10-day period, the Subcontractor will, as a penalty, forfeit one hundred dollars
($100) for each day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon
the request of the DAS or the DLSE, the penalties will be withheld from progress payments due.

7. REMOVAL, RELOCATION, OR PROTECTION OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

7.1 Responsibility. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of work,
Contractor will be responsible for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing main
or trunk-line utility facilities located on the Project site. If Subcontractor discovers utility
facilities not identified in the Construction Documents, it will immediately notify the Contractor
in writing and the Contractor will notify the utility company. If, however, removal, relocation or
protection of existing main or trunk-line facilities is required by Subcontractor’s scope of work,
subcontractor may be reasonably compensated for the cost of locating or repairing damage to
utilities that are not identified in the Construction Documents provided that the damage was not
caused due to the negligence of the Subcontractor. Under no circumstance will Subcontractor be
entitled to additional compensation if the removal, relocation or protection of the existing
utilities was included in its scope of work and the presence of such utilities at the Project site can
be inferred from other aboveground, visible facilities, such as buildings, meter and junction
boxes, or on or adjacent to the Project site.

8. INSPECTION FEES FOR PERMANENT UTILITIES.

8.1 Fees. All governmental inspection fees and other municipal charges for
permanent utilities including, but not limited to, sewer, electrical, phone, gas, water, and
irrigation will be Contractor’s responsibility.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 413 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 14 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

9. SOILS INVESTIGATIONS

9.1 Examination of Site. Subcontractor acknowledges that any soils investigation
report (including any borings) was prepared for purposes of design only and Subcontractor and
its tier subcontractors are required to examine the site before submitting a bid and must make
whatever tests they deem appropriate to determine the underground condition of the soil.

10. TRENCHING, SHORING AND UNKNOWN SITE CONDITIONS

10.1 Labor Code Compliance. Subcontractor will comply with Labor Code sections
6500, 6705, and 6707, and Public Contract Code section 7104 regarding trenching and shoring.

10.1.1 Permit Requirements for Trenches 5’-0” or More in Depth.
Subcontractor agrees to comply in full with section 6500 of the Labor Code and to provide the
required permits prior to the initiation of any work, method, operation or process that involves:
(i) construction of trenches or excavations that are 5’-0” or deeper and into which a person is
required to descend; (ii) the construction of any building, structure, falsework, or scaffolding
more than three (3) stories high or the equivalent height; (iii) the demolition of any building,
structure, falsework, or scaffold more than three (3) stories high or the equivalent height; or (iv)
the underground use of diesel engines in work in mines and tunnels.

10.1.1.1 Detailed Plans for Trenches 5’-0” or More in Depth. In
compliance with Labor Code section 6705, the Subcontractor will submit to Contractor, and
Contractor will submit to the Concessionaire, in advance of excavation, a detailed plan showing the
design of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the
hazard of caving ground during the excavation of any trench or trenches 5’-0” or more in depth. If
the plan varies from shoring system standards, the plan will be prepared by a registered civil or
structural engineer. The plan will not be less effective than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other
provisions of the Construction Safety Orders, as defined in the California Code of Regulations.

10.1.1.2 Separate Bid Items for Sheeting, Shoring, etc. To the extent
the construction work involves construction of a pipeline, sewer, sewage disposal system, boring
and jacking pits, or similar trenches or open excavations, which are 5’-0” or deeper, Subcontractor
and its tier subcontractors will comply with all Applicable Laws, regulations, and codes, and all
bids will contain, as a bid item, adequate sheeting, shoring, and bracing, or equivalent method, for
the protection of life or limb pursuant to Labor Code section 6707, which will conform to
applicable safety orders. Nothing in this Article 10 will be construed to impose tort liability on the
Contractor, Authority, City, Concessionaire or any of their respective employees.

10.2 Excavations Deeper than 4’-0”. If Subcontractor’s work involves digging
trenches or other excavation that extend deeper than 4’-0” below the surface, Subcontractor will
promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the Contractor, in writing, of any:

10.2.1 Material that the Subcontractor believes may be hazardous waste, as
defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class
I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of Applicable Law.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 414 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 15 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

10.2.2 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those
indicated in the Contract Documents or otherwise disclosed to Subcontractor as pre-existing
Environmental Conditions.

10.2.3 Unknown Site Conditions.

10.3 Unknown Site Conditions or Environmental Conditions. The Contractor in
conjunction with the Concessionaire and Authority will promptly investigate the conditions, and
to the extent the conditions result in an adjustment to the Contractor’s compensation or schedule
under the Prime Contract, Contractor will be obligated to adjust Subcontractor’s compensation or
schedule to the extent applicable to Subcontractor’s work.

10.4 Adjustment. If the physical conditions at the site are not Unknown Site
Conditions or unknown Environmental Conditions and no change in terms of the Prime Contract
is made due to such site conditions, the Contractor will notify the Subcontractor in writing,
stating the reasons. Also, Subcontractor will not be entitled to an adjustment in compensation or
schedule regarding claimed Unknown Site Conditions (whether above or below grade) or
unknown Environmental Condition if:

10.4.1 Subcontractor knew of the existence of the conditions, or could have
reasonably discovered the existence of the condition through diligent review of all disclosed
documentation relating to the Project, at the time Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractors
submitted a bid for the Project, and did not qualify its contract price for such conditions; or

10.4.2 Subcontractor or any of its tier subcontractor should have known of the
existence of the conditions as a result of having complied with the requirements of the Contract
Documents; or

10.4.3 Subcontractor, or any of its tier subcontractor, was required to give
written notice of the Unknown Site Conditions or unknown Environmental Condition under the
Contract Documents, and failed to do so within the time required.

10.5 Dispute. In the event of a dispute, the Subcontractor and its tier subcontractor(s)
will not be excused from the Substantial Completion Date for the Project and will proceed with all
construction work to be performed under the Contract Documents. Disputes between the parties will
be resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions set forth in the Subcontract.

11. SURVEYING

11.1 Field Engineering. If specified in its scope of Work, Subcontractor or one of its
tier subcontractors will employ a California State licensed civil engineer or land surveyor to
provide field engineering services to establish benchmarks and line and grade for horizontal and
vertical control.

12. DEMOLITION

12.1 Demolition Plan. Prior to commencing any required demolition work,
Subcontractor will submit to Contractor, and Contractor will submit to the Concessionaire, a

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 415 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 16 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

demolition plan for review and approval. Under no circumstances can demolition interrupt
operations of the existing water and wastewater facilities without ___ days written notice to
Contractor and Contractor’s prior approval. The Subcontractor’s demolition plan will address,
at a minimum, the following:

12.1.1 Identify areas that will require demolition and provide a schedule for those
demolition activities that are coordinated with the operations and the approved project schedule;

12.1.2 Inventory materials and equipment that will be salvaged during
demolition and whether the salvaged materials and equipment will be reused, recycled, or sold at
fair market value on Concessionaire’s behalf;

12.1.3 Document procedures for protecting the existing structures and/or
materials, equipment and components that are remaining, as well as protection plans for adjacent
property and persons that comply with the requirements in Article 15.

12.1.4 Document procedures for proper ventilation, noise, and dust control
during demolition operations and clean-up after demolition is completed.

12.1.5 Document procedures for required disruption of any utility service as a
result of demolition activities and a record of any utilities that are capped during the process.
Any required shut-off or interruption of service must be approved in writing by Concessionaire
and notice must be provided by Contractor in writing to affected utility customers at least ____
calendar days in advance of any disruption in service, which requires Subcontractor to notify
Contractor at least five (5) more calendar days beforehand, and all necessary water, emergency
power, etc., must be in place prior to shut-off or disruption.

12.1.6 Document procedures to ensure that fire protection and fire life safety
equipment remain operable during demolition.

12.1.7 Provide for all required temporary sheeting, shoring, bracing or other
structural support necessary to ensure stability of the existing structure or adjacent properties and
prevent movement, settlement or collapse during demolition operations. All required temporary
structural support will be designed by a California licensed structural or civil engineer and will
comply with any trenching and shoring requirements in Article 10.

12.1.8 Document procedures to deal with encountering Environmental
Conditions and Unknown Site Conditions.

12.1.9 Document procedures for hauling away and disposal of any demolished
materials and equipment. The procedures should include, among other things, requirements for
refrigerant recovery under the Environmental Protection Agency, a list of all required hauling
permits, requirements for hauling and disposing of hazardous waste, volatile organic compounds
or any other substance that is regulated by Health and Safety Code, the South Coast Air Quality
Management District or any other governmental agency that regulates the proper hauling and
disposal of certain materials and substances.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 416 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 17 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

12.1.10 Document procedures to ensure that removal and replacement of
equipment will not void any existing warranties.

12.1.11 Require a survey of existing conditions and video or photographic
documentation before commencement of the demolition activity to demonstrate existing
conditions of adjacent areas or property.

12.2 Permits and Fees. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will secure all
required hauling permits. The cost for all permits and dumping fees is included in
Subcontractor’s Contract Price, subject to any approved Change Orders for Unknown Site
Conditions or unknown Environmental Conditions in accordance with Article 10.

13. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS

13.1 Water Control. During construction, Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
maintain all trenches and excavated areas free from water accumulation and will provide the
necessary barriers to protect the improvements at the Project site from ponding, running water
and soil erosion. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide for increased drainage of
stormwater and any water that may be applied or discharged on the site during performance of
the construction work. All drainage facilities will be adequate to prevent damage to the
construction work, Project site, and adjacent property. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will construct dikes, if necessary, to divert any increased runoff from entering adjacent property
(except in natural channels), to protect the Project site and the construction work, and to direct
water to drainage channels or conduits. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide
ponding as necessary to prevent downstream flooding.

13.2 Pollution Control. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide a plan
that meets the requirements of California Stormwater Best Management Practices (Stormwater
Quality Task Force, 1993) to prevent the pollution of drains and watercourses by sanitary wastes,
sediment, debris, and other substances and/or soil erosion during construction operations.

13.2.1 No sanitary wastes will be permitted to enter any drain or watercourse other
than sanitary sewers. No sediment, debris, or other substance will be permitted to enter sanitary
sewers without authorization of the receiving sanitary sewer service, and all possible best
management practices will be taken to prevent materials from entering into any drain or watercourse.

13.2.2 In the event that dewatering of excavations is required, Subcontractor or
its tier subcontractors will obtain the necessary permits from local governmental authorities for
discharge of the dewatering effluent. Subcontractor will be responsible for assuring that water
quality of the discharge meets the appropriate permit requirements prior to any discharge.

13.3 Erosion Control. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will provide an erosion
control plan that is consistent with Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”)
requirements to prevent soil erosion at the Project site and adjacent property resulting from
construction operations. Effective measures will be initiated before commencement of clearing,
grading, excavation, or other operations that will disturb the natural protection.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 417 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 18 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

13.3.1 Erosion and sedimentation control practices will include installation of
silt fences, straw wattle, soil stabilization, revegetation, and runoff control to limit increases in
sediment in stormwater runoff, including but not limited to, detention basins, straw bales, silt
fences, check dams, geo-fabrics, drainage swales, and sandbag dikes.

13.3.2 The construction work will be scheduled to expose areas subject to
erosion for the shortest possible time, and natural vegetation will be preserved to the greatest
extent practicable. Temporary storage and construction buildings will be located, and
construction traffic routed, to minimize erosion. Temporary fast-growing vegetation or other
suitable ground cover will be provided as necessary to control runoff.

13.4 Traffic Control. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of Work,
Contractor will provide a traffic control plan in accordance with the California Department of
Transportation Traffic Manual as part of its site logistics plan. Contractor will submit its traffic
control plan to the Concessionaire and the appropriate agency for approval before commencement of
the construction work. Subcontractor will comply with the approved traffic plan.

13.4.1 Traffic control will include signs, warning lights, reflectors, barriers, and
other necessary safety devices and measures, including sufficient flagmen to direct vehicular traffic
through the construction areas. No material or equipment will be stored or parked where it will
interfere with the free and safe passage of public traffic. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
remove all equipment and other obstructions from the public right-of-way at the end of each day’s
work, and at other times when construction operations are suspended for any reason.

13.4.2 All traffic associated with construction operations, including without
limitation delivery and mail trucks, will enter Contractor’s access gate and road. Subcontractor
or its tier subcontractors will provide signs directing construction and delivery traffic to this gate
and will take all necessary steps to minimize inconvenience to the general public throughout the
construction process. No driveways or private roads will be blocked without notifying the
property owner, and access must be restored during all non-working hours.

13.4.3 Safe access must be maintained for pedestrian traffic throughout any
public work area at all times.

13.4.4 At least one lane of traffic in each direction on all roads used during a
Project must be kept open at all times unless prior approval is provided by any affected agency.
No roads will be blocked or made inaccessible, due to Subcontractor’s or its tier subcontractors’
construction work, without prior written consent of the affected agencies in the form of an
encroachment permit. Under no circumstances will the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
block or obstruct fire lanes at any time.

13.5 Air Pollution Control. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will comply
with all applicable air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances and statutes. All containers
of paint, thinner, curing compound, solvent or liquid asphalt will be labeled to indicate that the
contents fully comply with the applicable material requirements. Dust control will be provided
for all demolition operations and Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will provide dust
control as required for their respective operations.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 418 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 19 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

13.6 Fire Protection Control. Subcontractor will provide fire watch and be
responsible for all fire prevention in connection with its scope of Work. Open fires will not be
permitted on or around the Project site.

13.6.1 The Subcontractor will make chemical fire extinguishers available at the
location where the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors perform any torch cutting or welding
operations. Subcontractor will provide the Contractor with notice prior to undertaking any torch
cutting and welding operations. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, if performing cutting
or welding operations, will undertake all appropriate safety measures including but not limited to
a fire watch, fire extinguishers, and fire blankets and will be responsible for any damage caused
by its operations.

14. SAFETY

14.1 OSHA. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will maintain emergency first
aid treatment for their employees which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.), and California Code of Regulations, Title 8,
Industrial Relations Division 1, Department of Industrial Relations, Chapter 4.

14.2 Health and Safety Plan. Employers on a construction project are responsible for
the health and safety for their workers as regulated by municipal, State, and Federal acts and
regulations. If Contractor does not provide Subcontractor with a safety plan, Subcontractor will
prepare and submit a safety plan that complies with OSHA regulations regarding health and
safety of workers to Contractor before commencement of any construction work. Regardless of
the safety program, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors are obligated to comply with all
Applicable Laws, regulations, and codes concerning safety applicable to the construction work
and to the safety standards established under Applicable Laws during the progress of the Project.

14.3 Signs. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will erect and maintain, as
required by existing conditions and performance of the construction work, reasonable safeguards
for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards,
promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities.

14.4 Weekly Safety Meetings. Subcontractor will hold weekly meetings with its tier
subcontractors to review tier subcontractor compliance with the health and safety program.

14.5 Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”). Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors must comply with all requirements of the Hazard Communication Standard (Title
29, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1910, as amended). Subcontractor will, at a minimum (i)
keep all MSDS on file electronically at the Project site, with regularly updated lists of the MSDS
copied to Contractor; (ii) cause all tier subcontractors and employees to clearly label all hazardous
compounds as to content with appropriate warnings noted and the name and address of the
manufacturer listed; and (iii) ensure that all tier subcontractors and employees using hazardous
compounds are trained in protective handling and are knowledgeable about the potential hazards.

14.6 Safety Walks. Subcontractor will conduct daily jobsite inspections to verify that
the construction work is being performed in a safe and workmanlike manner and in accordance

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 419 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 20 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

with the health and safety program. Subcontractor will provide written notice to its tier
subcontractors demanding immediate correction of any known safety violation.

15. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

15.1 Safety and Protection. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will be
responsible for providing a safe place for the performance of the construction work and for the
physical conditions and safety of areas affected by the Project. Subcontractor and its tier
subcontractors will take all necessary precautions to provide for the safety and protection of all
persons who may come in contact with the Project and for all property within or adjacent to the
Project site including adequate precautions to protect existing sidewalks, curbs, pavements,
utilities, and other adjoining property and structures. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
will repair any damage caused by their operations at their own respective expense and will
provide protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

15.1.1 Employees and other persons at the Project site;

15.1.2 Equipment, materials, and vehicles stored at the sites or off-site if under
the care, custody, or control of the Subcontractor or its tier subcontractor;

15.1.3 Existing structures, property and the work of other separate contractors
performing separate work on behalf of the Authority, Concessionaire or Contractor (other than
Subcontractor).

15.2 Requirements. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will:

15.2.1 Enclose the working area with a substantial barricade, and arrange
construction work to cause minimal inconvenience and danger to the public;

15.2.2 Provide substantial barricades around any shrubs or trees indicated to be
preserved;

15.2.3 Ensure that existing facilities, fences and other structures are all adequately
protected and that, upon completion of all construction work, all facilities that may have been
damaged are restored to a condition acceptable to the Contractor, Concessionaire and the Authority;

15.2.4 Preserve and protect from injury all buildings, pole lines and all direction,
warning, and mileage signs that have been placed within the right-of-way.

15.3 Field Offices. All Subcontractor field offices will be constructed of fire resistant
materials. The Subcontractor will coordinate with Contractor regarding site logistics, storage and
field offices as Project site conditions permit. Construction details of the Subcontractor’s or its tier
subcontractor’s field office(s) and their location on the site will be subject to the approval of the
Contractor and Concessionaire, which will not be unreasonably withheld, and will contain adequate
fire protection equipment. Field office relocation, if required, will be at the Subcontractor’s expense.

15.4 Temporary Protection. Subcontractor will provide barricades (lighted, if
required), fences, and protection necessary for general safety as related to its scope of work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 420 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 21 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Subcontractor will notify the Contractor 48 hours prior to removing any safety installation.
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors who damage or remove safety or protective work during
the performance of their respective construction work will be responsible for the immediate
restoration of the safety or protective installations to ensure continuous compliance with all
applicable safety regulations and any safety requirements per OSHA regulations.

15.5 Damages to Materials and Equipment. Subcontractor is responsible to notify
the Contractor of any damage to material or equipment during the Project and will immediately
repair or restore the damage to the satisfaction of the Contractor and Concessionaire.

15.6 Precautionary Measures. These precautionary measures will apply
continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.

15.7 Investigation and Reporting. If damage to persons or property occurs as a result
of construction work during the Project, Subcontractor will be responsible for proper investigation
and documentation, including video or photography, to adequately memorialize and make a record
of what transpired. The Contractor and Concessionaire will be entitled to inspect and copy any
documentation, video, or photographs.

16. TEMPORARY FACILITIES

16.1 Temporary Electricity. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s scope of
work, Contractor will provide, maintain, and pay for temporary electrical power at the Project site
for construction purposes and trailers. In certain situations, permanent power may be available
through Authority, but Subcontractor must provide all necessary wiring and appurtenances for
connection to Authority’s facilities system. Contractor will meter all connections to determine
usage rates. For smaller loads, such as test equipment, work area lighting, and small hand tools,
Subcontractor may use existing electrical circuits following approval in writing by Contractor.

16.2 Temporary Communications. Subcontractor will provide, maintain, and pay for
all applicable communications and data service connections for its field offices, including all
installation and connection charges.

16.3 Temporary Water. Subcontractor will provide, maintain, and pay for all
required potable water required for construction field personnel as well as water required for and in
connection with its construction operations such as dust control. Unnecessary waste of water will
not be permitted. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors must use special hydrant wrenches for
opening and closing fire hydrants in lieu of pipe wrenches.

16.4 Temporary Fences. Subcontractor will provide all necessary temporary fencing
and gates required for the Project site. Temporary fencing will be subject to restrictions in the
use permit. Subcontractor will maintain all fences through Final Completion of the construction
work. Gates are to remain closed and locked during off-hours.

16.5 Temporary Sanitary Facilities. Unless specifically required in Subcontractor’s
scope of work, Contractor will provide and maintain all required temporary toilets for use of all
construction personnel and field labor through Final Completion of the construction work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 421 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 22 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Location of temporary sanitary facilities must be approved by Contractor prior to delivery.
Contractor will provide at least one (1) temporary toilet facility for every 20 persons. Unless
otherwise permitted, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will cause all construction
personnel (including field labor) to use temporary sanitary facilities rather than the Authority’s
facilities. All temporary sanitary facilities will comply with the Department of Health standards.

16.6 Temporary Barriers and Enclosures. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will provide barriers to prevent unauthorized entry to construction areas, to allow for safe use of
the Project site, and to protect existing facilities and adjacent properties from damage from
construction operations.

16.7 Construction Equipment and Aids. Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors will
furnish, install, maintain, and operate all construction equipment required by the performance of
the construction work. Construction aids include elevators and hoists, cranes, temporary
enclosures, swing staging, scaffolding and temporary stairs. When sandblasting, spray painting,
spraying of insulation, or other activities inconveniencing or dangerous to property or the health
of construction personnel or the public are in progress, Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors
will enclose the area of activity to contain the dust, over-spray, or other hazard.

16.8 Removal of Temporary Facilities and Equipment. Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors will remove all temporary utilities, equipment, facilities, and materials before
final inspection of the Project and clean and repair any damage caused by installation or use of
temporary work restoring Authority’s existing facilities to their original conditions.

17. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL

17.1 Testing and Inspection. Materials and equipment to be furnished under the
Contract Documents are subject to testing and inspection.

17.2 Permits, Licenses, and Certificates. Subcontractor will submit to Contractor
record copies of the all permits, licenses, certifications, inspection reports, releases, jurisdictional
settlements, notices, receipts for fee payments, judgments, and other similar documentation
demonstrating compliance with standards and regulations bearing on performance of the
construction work.

17.3 Quality Control Plan. Subcontractor will assist Contractor to prepare and
submit to the Concessionaire for approval a plan that describes the procedures and methods
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will utilize to control the quality of the construction
work. The Quality Control Plan must be approved before the start of construction and will
reflect any testing and inspection requirements. Contractor may require revisions of the Quality
Control Plan that are necessary to ensure the specified quality of the construction work.
Contractor and Subcontractor will assign appropriate site personnel to oversee quality control.
At a minimum, the Quality Control Plan will provide information regarding the following:

17.3.1 Quality control supervision and document control;

17.3.2 Identification of personnel for required training and qualification activities;

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 422 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 23 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

17.3.3 Procedures for testing and inspections that identify individual inspection
or testing points and acceptance criteria, and include provisions for recording results and the
responsible inspection/test personnel;

17.3.4 Procedures for identifying what applicable technical and quality
requirements will be required of vendors supplying materials, parts and services to ensure
compliance with the approved Construction Documents;

17.3.5 Procedures for receiving, inspecting and accepting materials and
equipment. The procedures will include, at a minimum, examination of the physical condition
for compliance with the approved Construction Documents, purchase order and/or subcontract
agreement, and identifying and processing any non-conforming goods;

17.3.6 Provisions for identifying and timely remedying non-conforming or
defective construction work;

17.3.7 Documentation control to maintain records of the activities included in the
Quality Control Plan. All documentation will be submitted to Contractor for submission to
Concessionaire as part of the close-out documentation for the Project and therefore must be
logically organized and indexed for reference.

17.4 Manufacturer’s Field Services. To the extent required, Subcontractor will
engage a factory-authorized service representative to inspect field-assembled components and
equipment installation, including service connections. All manufacturers’ field service reports
must be in writing and included as part of the records turned over to Contractor during close-out.

17.5 Quality Control Reports. Subcontractor will keep daily Quality Control Reports
throughout the duration of the construction process certifying that the relevant areas of the
construction work have been inspected. The Quality Control Reports will be prepared, signed
and dated by the Subcontractor’s personnel identified as the supervisor in the Quality Control
Plan and will include, at a minimum, the following information:

17.5.1 Identification of the material, equipment or component that was
inspected and indicate, if applicable, if the submittals have been reviewed and approved;

17.5.2 Indicate that all materials and/or equipment that have not been installed
have been properly stored and protected;

17.5.3 Indicate that the construction work has been coordinated by
Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors, that all required preliminary work has been inspected
by the Quality Control personnel and was properly performed, and that the area is ready to
receive subsequent construction work. If the construction work is not acceptable, provide a
written description of any re-work required in the area inspected with an explanation of the cause
of the re-work (including which tier subcontractors are involved), any cost involved in the
required re-work, and the expected completion date of the required re-work;

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 423 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 24 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

17.5.4 Results of any off-site testing or quality control work and any required
further actions;

17.5.5 Other necessary information including, directions received, quality
control problem areas, deviations from the Quality Control Plan, construction deficiencies
encountered, Quality Control meetings held, acknowledgement that as-built drawings or building
information models have been updated (if applicable), corrective direction given by Quality
Control personnel, and corrective action taken by Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors.

17.6 Test and Inspection Logs. Subcontractor will maintain an on-site inspection log
that is accessible by the Contractor, Concessionaire, Authority, independent engineer, testing
agency, special inspector, and any governmental authority with jurisdiction over the Project.
Subcontractor will timely provide information necessary for Subcontractor to maintain the log with
respect to Subcontractor’s scope of work. The log will document all tests and inspections performed
on the Project during construction. The record of tests will include the following information:

17.6.1 Request for Inspection;

17.6.2 Date test or inspection was conducted;

17.6.3 Identity of testing agency or special inspector;

17.6.4 Description of the construction work tested or inspected;

17.6.5 Identification of any drawings or applicable details on the approved
Construction Documents or submittals that were used during testing and inspection;

17.6.6 Date that the test or inspection was concluded and the date that the results
were transmitted to Contractor.

18. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

18.1 Notices. Subcontractor will give all notices and comply with all Applicable
Laws, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on conduct of its construction work. If
Subcontractor observes that the Construction Documents are at variance with any laws, ordinances,
etc., Subcontractor will promptly notify the Contractor, in writing, and any necessary changes will
be made. If Subcontractor or its tier subcontractors perform any construction work knowing it to be
contrary to Applicable Law and without notice to the Contractor, Subcontractor will bear all costs
associated with any required corrections or repairs.

18.2 Americans with Disabilities. Subcontractor will be responsible for familiarity
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) in relation to
requirements related to the construction work.

19. NOTICE OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS

19.1 Third-Party Claims. Contractor will provide Subcontractor with timely
notification of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to the Subcontractor’s work.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 424 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 25 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

Subcontractor will provide Contractor with timely notification of the receipt of any third-party
claims relating to the Subcontractor’s work.

20. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION.

20.1 Subcontractor’s Certification. Subcontractor certifies, and will cause its tier
subcontractors to certify, that it has complied with Government Code section 8355 relating to a
drug-free workplace and will address these requirements in its health and safety program.
Subcontractor will submit a certificate under penalty of perjury stating that Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will:

20.1.1 Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the
person’s or organization’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violations of the prohibition;

20.1.2 Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
(i) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (ii) the person’s or organization’s policy of
maintaining a drug-free workplace; (iii) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and (iv) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for
drug abuse violations;

20.1.3 Subcontractor will require that each employee, as well as tier
subcontractors and each of their respective employees, performing construction work on the
Project be given a copy of the statement required by Section 20.1.1 and that the employee agrees
to abide by the terms of the statement as a condition of employment.

21. NONDISCRIMINATION/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

21.1 Non-Discrimination Policy. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1735 and other
applicable provisions of law, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will not discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national
origin, age, political affiliation, marital status, or disability in the performance of its obligations
under the Contract Documents. Subcontractor will take affirmative action to ensure that
employees are treated during employment or training without regard to their race, color, religion,
sex, national origin, age, political affiliation, marital status, or disability and will comply with the
following requirements:

21.1.1 During the performance of the Contract Documents, Subcontractor and its
tier subcontractors will not deny benefits to any person on the basis of religion, color, ethnic group
identification, sex, age, physical or mental disability, nor will they discriminate unlawfully against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40) or
sex. Subcontractor will ensure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for
employment are free of discrimination.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 425 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 26 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

21.1.2 Subcontractor will comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment
and Housing Act (Gov. Code section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder
(Cal. Admin. Code, Tit. 2, sections 7285.0 et seq.), and the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1,
Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Gov. Code sections 11135-11139.5).

21.1.3 Subcontractor will permit access by representatives of the Department of
Fair Employment and Housing upon reasonable notice at any time during the normal business
hours, but in no case less than 24 hours' notice, to its books, records, accounts, other sources of
information and its facilities as the Department requires to ascertain compliance with this clause.

21.1.4 Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors will give written notice of their
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have collective bargaining or
other agreements.

21.1.5 Subcontractor will include the nondiscrimination and compliance
provisions of this clause in all subcontracts.

22. OWNERSHIP OF DESIGN DOCUMENTS

22.1 Non-Exclusive, Irrevocable License. Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
and consultants each assign or grant to Contractor and Concessionaire a non-exclusive, irrevocable
license with respect to all Intellectual Property that is required to complete the design and
construction of the Project or otherwise required for Contractor to perform its services under the
Prime Contract including any Intellectual Property regarding the operation and management of the
Project facility. With respect to Intellectual Property that is licensed by Subcontractor or an
affiliate of Subcontractor from any design professional, tier subcontractor or other person or entity,
or any Intellectual Property that is owned by Subcontractor, an affiliate of Subcontractor or any of
Subcontractor’s tier subcontractors or consultants, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors and
consultants each assign or grant to Contractor a non-exclusive, irrevocable license for the
additional purpose of completing the design and construction of the Project, but only to the extent
that such license is required in order to properly design and construct the Project facility in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Prime Contract.

22.1.1 Exceptions. The following exceptions apply:

22.1.1.1 Nothing contained in Section 22.1 limits the rights, title and
interest of the Subcontractor, or any of its design professional or their design consultants, or any
design-build tier subcontractor, or vendor to continue to use their respective general design
details that each of them uses or has used on multiple projects, or new standard design details
that were or may be developed during design of the Project.

22.1.1.2 If Subcontractor is providing design-build services and
Subcontractor is terminated rather than assigned to Concessionaire before completion of its
services and Concessionaire or Contractor uses incomplete design documents for further work or
services connected with the Project, then Concessionaire and Contractor will each release the
Subcontractor from claims and causes of action arising from further development of the design-
build documents. However, the design professional who was responsible for the design-build

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 426 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 27 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

documents will remain liable to Contractor, Concessionaire and Authority for the information
contained therein prior to the termination date, and other design professionals retained by the
Contractor, Concessionaire and/or Authority to complete the Project will be entitled to rely on
the accuracy of the information reflected in those design-build documents. Concessionaire and
Contractor, as applicable, will indemnify and hold the Subcontractor and its designers harmless
from claims and causes of action arising out of future use of the design-build documents but only
to the extent that the claims or causes of action arise from the further development of the design-
build documents after the termination date and provided that the error and omission was not
present in the design-build documents prepared by the Subcontractor or its designers or caused
by the negligent performance of the design-build services for the Project.

22.2 Statutory Copyright. All copies made under this license will bear the statutory
copyright notice, if any, shown on the Intellectual Property. Submittal or distribution to meet
official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be
construed as publication in derogation of the copyright or other reserved rights and interests.

23. TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS.

23.1 Employees. Subcontractor warrants that Subcontractor has not employed or
retained any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for
subcontractor, to solicit or secure this Subcontract and that has not paid or agreed to pay any
person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Subcontractor, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Subcontract.

23.2 Contract Price. Subcontractor warrants that the prices for the services sold
Contractor hereunder are not less favorable than those currently extended to any other customer
of Subcontractor for the same or similar services in similar quantities. Subcontractor further
warrants that wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate,
complete and current at the time of the Subcontract. The Subcontractor agrees that the original
Contract Price and any additions thereto may be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by
which Contractor or Concessionaire determines the Contract Price was increased due to
inaccurate, incomplete, or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs.

23.3 Gratuities. The Subcontractor represents and warrants that in connection with its
performance of this Subcontract, it has not or will not, directly or indirectly, pay, give, offer,
promise to pay or give, or authorize the payment or giving of any money, gift, or things of value
to any governmental official, political party, or candidate for political office; or to any person
who knowingly will give all or a portion of the money, gift, or thing of value to any such official
in its official capacity. Breach of this representation or warranty will be considered a default
under the terms of this Subcontract and will, in addition to any other remedies, entitle Contractor
to recover all amounts paid to Subcontractor under this Subcontract.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 427 of 495



Subcontractor General Conditions Page 28 of 28
Schedule R.6 4734834.11

24. COMMUNICATIONS.

24.1 Inquiries. All inquiries the Subcontractor may have concerning this Subcontract
will be made to Contractor and not directly to the Concessionaire.

24.2 Correspondence. All of Subcontractor’s written correspondence or
communication regarding this Subcontract will include Contractor’s Subcontract Number and
Work description, and shall be mailed or delivered to Contractor’s designated representative.

25. CLEAN UP AND RECYCLING

25.1 Material Recycling. Subcontractor will endeavor to reduce the amount of waste
material generated during construction. Construction waste that is unavoidably generated will be
segregated into recyclable and non-recyclable materials. Recyclable materials will preferably be
reused during construction, but if reuse is not practical, will be recycled rather than being
transported to a landfill.

25.2 Cleaning Up. Subcontractor will keep the premises and surrounding area free
from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by the work of Subcontractor or its tier
subcontractors. At completion of the construction work, Subcontractor and its tier subcontractors
are responsible for removing their waste materials, rubbish, construction tools and equipment,
machinery and surplus materials from and about the Project site. If Subcontractor fails to clean
up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Concessionaire or Contractor may do so and the
cost associated with the clean-up will be at Subcontractor’s sole expense.

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 428 of 495



Page I-1 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT I 
 

WAIVER & RELEASE FORMS 
 
 

See attached. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 429 of 495



Page I-2 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON PROGRESS PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8132) 

 
NOTICE:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES THE CLAIMANT’S LIEN, STOP PAYMENT NOTICE, 
AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS EFFECTIVE ON RECEIPT OF PAYMENT. A PERSON 
SHOULD NOT RELY ON THIS DOCUMENT UNLESS SATISFIED THAT THE CLAIMANT 
HAS RECEIVED PAYMENT. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 

Name                                                              of                                                              Claimant:  

  Name                                                                of                                                                

Customer:    

Job                                                                                                                                   Location:  

  Owner: 

Through Date:    
 

Conditional Waiver and Release 
 

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has for labor  
and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job through the Through Date   
of this document. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a 
written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. This document is effective 
only on the claimant’s receipt of payment from the financial institution on which the following check is drawn: 

 

Maker of Check:     

Amount of Check: $     

Check Payable to:    
Exceptions 

 

This document does not affect any of the following: 
 

(1) Retentions; 
(2) Extras for which the claimant has not received payment; 
(3) The following progress payments for which the claimant has previously given a conditional waiver and 

release but has not received payment: 
Date(s) of waiver and release:    

 

Amount(s) of unpaid progress payment(s): $     
(4) Contract rights, including: 

(A) a right based on rescission, abandonment, or breach of contract; and 
(B) the right to recover compensation for work not compensated by the payment. 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s Title:    

 

Date of Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 430 of 495



Page I-3 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON PROGRESS PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8134) 

 
NOTICE TO CLAIMANT:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP 
PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES 
THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS 
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. 
IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 
Name                                                       of                                                       Claimant:  
  Name                                                         of                                                         
Customer:    
Job                                                                                                                    Location:  
  Owner: 
Through Date:    

 

Unconditional Waiver and Release 
 

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job through 
the Through Date of this document.  Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or 
material delivered, pursuant to a written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to 
the date that this document is signed by the claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless 
listed as an Exception below.  The claimant has received the following progress payment: 

 
$     

 

Exceptions 
 

This document does not affect any of the following: 
 

(1) Retentions; 
(2) Extras for which the claimant has not received payment; 
(3) Contract rights, including: 

(A) a right based on rescission, abandonment, or breach of contract, and 
(B) the right to recover compensation for work not compensated by the payment. 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s 
Title: 

 

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 431 of 495



Page I-4 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT 
(CA CIVIL CODE §8136) 

 
NOTICE:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES THE CLAIMANT’S LIEN, STOP PAYMENT NOTICE, 
AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS EFFECTIVE ON RECEIPT OF PAYMENT. A PERSON 
SHOULD NOT RELY ON THIS DOCUMENT UNLESS SATISFIED THAT THE CLAIMANT 
HAS RECEIVED PAYMENT. 

 

Identifying Information: 
 
Name of Claimant:    

Name of Customer:    

Job Location:    
 

Owner: 
 

Conditional Waiver and Release 
 
This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job.  Rights 
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change 
order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. This document 
is effective only on the claimant’s receipt of payment from the financial institution on which the 
following check is drawn: 

 
Maker of Check:     

Amount of Check: $     

Check Payable to:    
 

Exceptions 
 
This document does not affect any of the following: 

 
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $    

 
 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

Claimant’s Title:    

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 432 of 495



Page I-5 Exhibit I Waiver & Release Forms 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT 
 

(CA CIVIL CODE §8138) 
 
NOTICE TO CLAIMANT:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP 
PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES 
THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS 
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. 
IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM. 

 
Identifying Information: 

 
Name                                                      of                                                      Claimant:  
  Name                                                        of                                                        
Customer:    
Job                                                                                                                  Location:  
  Owner: 

 
 

Unconditional Waiver and Release 
 
This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has 
for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job. Rights 
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change 
order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the 
claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. The claimant 
has been paid in full. 

 
Exceptions 

 
This document does not affect any of the following: 

 
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $     

 
 

SIGNATURE 
 

Claimant’s 
Signature:    

 
Claimant’s 
Title: 

 

Date of 
Signature:    

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 433 of 495



Page J-1 Exhibit J Warranty Form 
Lump Sum Subcontract 
Schedule R.3 

4777823.9 

 

EXHIBIT J 

WARRANTY FORM 
 

 
 
  (Project/Component)   

 

  (Location)   
 
 
We hereby guarantee the  (Project/Component) that we have constructed for a 
period of one year from (Date) , which is the date of Substantial Completion of the Project or 
within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Applicable Law or by the terms of any 
applicable special guarantee or extended warranty required by the Contract Documents. 

 
The following are excluded from the provisions of this warranty: 

 
 
 
 

We agree that if any of the equipment should fail due to any reason other than improper maintenance or 
improper operation, if any pipe or appurtenances should develop leakage, or if any settlement of fill or 
backfill occurs, or should any portion of the Work fail to fulfill any of the requirements of the Contract 
Documents, we will, within five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such defects, provide on-site 
troubleshooting services, and within 10 days after receipt of written notice, commence to repair or replace 
the same together with any other work which may be damaged or displaced in so doing. 

 
In the event of our failure to comply with the abovementioned conditions or should the exigencies of the 
case require repairs or replacements to be made before we can be notified or respond to notification, we do 
hereby authorize Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. to proceed to have the defect repaired and 
made good at our expense, and we will pay the cost therefor upon demand.  We acknowledge and agree 
that Rialto Water Services, LLC has an express right to enforce this warranty or to proceed to have the 
defect repaired and made good at our sole expense should Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc. fail 
to timely do so. 

 
The warranty provided herein shall not be in lieu of, but shall be in addition to, any warranties or 
other obligations otherwise imposed by the Contract Documents and by Applicable Law. 

 
Contractor:   

 

Signed:   
 

Title:   
 

Date:   

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 434 of 495



 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

PROJECT:  Veolia – City of Rialto Water Facility Improvement Program 

 Project S4 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow 

 

DATE: June 3, 2016 

 

TO: All Holders of Record of Contract Documents 

 

Bidders for the above named project shall take note of the following changes, additions, deletions, 

clarifications, etc., in the Contact Documents, which shall become part of the Contract Documents, and 

shall be taken into consideration and be included in the Bid. 

 

Please acknowledge Addendum No. 1 in the Bid in the space provided as evidence that the Bidder has 

received and reviewed this Addendum and has followed instructions outlined herein. 

 

 

 

       

Company Name 

 

 

 

       

Signature  

 

Confirming Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum No. _____  

 

 

 

   

Date  

 

 

 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 435 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Page 1 

 

 

 

Contract documents for the subject project shall be amended as follows: 

 

1. On BF-3, NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), bid date: 

 Change, “Bids are due and will be opened by Tuesday June 7, 2016 by 5:00PM PST”  

 To: 

 “Bids are due and will be opened by Wednesday June 15, 2016 by 5:00 PM PST.”  

2. On Page BF-3, NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), disclosure of bids date: 

Change, “Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and 

will be revealed no later than June 10, 2016.”  

To: 

“Disclosure of award and bids are subject internal discussion and evaluation and will be 

revealed no later than July 13, 2016.” 

3. On Page BF-9, Bid Schedule sheet: 

See the attached revised bid schedule including new line items such as: 

 

CCTV Pre & Post Inspection 

Insurance & Business License 

Payment and Performance Bonds 

Manhole Rehabilitations 

 

4. On Page BF-31, MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT under 5. Sewer Lateral Service Connections: 

 

After, “Payment for sewer lateral service connections will be made at the Contract unit price per 

each acceptable connection made.” 

 

Add the following sentence: 

 

“by method of inserted branch saddle.” 

 

5. On Page BF-33, MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT: 

 

At the beginning of the page as a continuation of the Measurement and Payment Section 

 

 Added the following sections: 

 

“9. CCTV Pre & Post Inspection: Payment for Pre & Post CCTV inspection will be made at the 

Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, equipment, labor, coordination, and all 

other items necessary for closed circuit color television video inspection required before and after 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 436 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT S4 SEWER REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Page 2 

 

 

construction work. See page BF-53, 02776-5 of 8 Section III “VIDEO INSPECTION” which 

shall be applicable to both before and after CCTV inspection.” 

 

“10. Insurance & Business License: Payment for Insurance & Business License will be made at 

the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, labor, delivery, clerical & 

administrative work, coordination, and all other items necessary for Insurance requirements to be 

fulfilled per the Contract and a valid Business license per the City requirements. See page BF-

121, EXHIBIT G INSURANCE.” 

 

“11. Payment & Performance Bonds: Payment for Payment and Performance Bonds will be made 

at the Contract lump sum price. This item includes: materials, labor, delivery, clerical & 

administrative work, coordination, and all other items necessary for Insurance requirements to be 

fulfilled per the Contract. See page BF-17, PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDS. Each the 

Payment bond will have the additional obligees listed and the Performance bond will have the 

additional obligees needed.” 

 

“12. Manhole Rehabilitations: Work under this item shall include, but not be limited to, 

furnishing all equipment, labor, material, and appurtenances necessary to replace existing 

manholes, as directed by the Engineer. The work shall consist of pavement removal, excavation, 

demolition, removal of existing manhole, disposal of removed materials, construction of new 

manhole base or installation of a precast manhole base, installation of new precast manhole 

sections, and installation of frame and cover concrete work, including the addition of new 

concrete, in order to form a proper manhole channel and bench to the heights and dimensions per 

City Standards. The work shall also consist of the sealing of the inlet and outlet pipe outer 

diameters with grout to close all gaps as directed by the Engineer. The work shall also consist of 

all regrouting & relining of manhole to construct a complete manhole per City Standards, 

backfill, and pavement restoration as necessary. The work shall also consist of all incidental work 

including sewer bypass pumping. All work shall be as necessary.” See Page BF-57 in reference to 

the entire Section 07950 MANHOLE REHABILITATIONS. 

 

6. On Page BF-53, Section 02776 5 of 8, Section II: 

 

After “These flows are estimated only” under section G, add the following sentence: 

 

“Assumptions that can be made is that sewer runs ¾ full of the existing pipe.” 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 437 of 495



 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

PROJECT:  Veolia – City of Rialto Water Facility Improvement Program 

 Project S4 Sewer Main Replacement on N. Willow 

 

DATE: June 30, 2016 

 

TO: All Holders of Record of Contract Documents 

 

Bidders for the above named project shall take note of the following changes, additions, deletions, 

clarifications, etc., in the Contact Documents, which shall become part of the Contract Documents, and 

shall be taken into consideration and be included in the Bid. 

 

Please acknowledge Addendum No. 2 in the Bid in the space provided as evidence that the Bidder has 

received and reviewed this Addendum and has followed instructions outlined herein. 

 

 

 

       

Company Name 

 

 

 

       

Signature  

 

Confirming Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum No. _____  

 

 

 

   

Date  

 

 

 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 438 of 495



VEOLIA CITY OF RIALTO WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

PROJECT WE LARGE VALVE REPLACEMENT 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

Page 1 

 

 

 

Contract documents for the subject project shall be amended as follows: 

 

 1. On Page BF-12, in section 8.5.1 Liquidated Damages: 

 

Replace “[optional]” with [optional].   
 

“[optional]” and fill in the blank in section 8.5.1 Liquidated Damages with “$1,000” such that the 

section of the contract reads as follows: 

 

“8.5.1 Liquidated Damages [optional].  The Contractor and Subcontractor acknowledge and 
agree that if Subcontractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time, the 
Contractor will suffer damages that are both extremely difficult and impracticable to ascertain. 
Therefore, Contractor and Subcontractor agree that, in the event Subcontractor fails to achieve 
Substantial Completion within the Contract Time and if as a result of that delay the Substantial 
Completion Date is extended, Subcontractor will pay to Contractor as liquidated damages, and 
not as a penalty, the amount of $1,000 per calendar day until such time that Substantial 
Completion is achieved. Payment of liquidated damages represents a reasonable estimate of 
fair compensation for the losses that reasonably may be anticipated. Contractor and 
Subcontractor acknowledge and agree that this liquidated damages provision will be 
Contractor’s only remedy for delay damages caused by Subcontractor’s failure to achieve 
Substantial Completion within its Contract Time. Nothing contained in this Section 8.5.1 will 
preclude the Contractor from recovery for actual damages caused by reasons other than the 
Subcontractor’s failure to timely achieve Substantial Completion within its Contract Time 
including, but not limited to, claims for actual losses incurred due to breach of contract, 
negligence, defective work, injury to persons or property or third party claims.  Subcontractor 
acknowledges and agrees that the liquidated damages amount is a reasonable amount for the 
Contractor’s consequential damages due to delay under the circumstances and existing at the 
time of the Effective Date of this Subcontract. 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 439 of 495



  Amended by Katie Nickel, 8/09/2016 

S4 Sewer Replacement – Willow Ave. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 – Insurance and Bond documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 440 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 441 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 442 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 443 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 444 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 445 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 446 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 447 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 448 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 449 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 450 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 451 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 452 of 495



POLICY NUMBER: GLO0197854-00 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
 CG 20 12 04 13
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CG 20 12 04 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services | Uniform FormsTM 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL  
AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL  

SUBDIVISION – PERMITS OR AUTHORIZATIONS 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision: 
 
City of Rialto, Concessionaire, Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc., Rialto Utility Authority, a California 
joint powers authority ("RUA"), Rialto Water Services, LLC ("RWS, LLC), Union Bank, N.A., Secured Parties 
and Separate Contractors as notified by the Concessionaire, and each of their respective officers, directors, 
employees and affiliates 
 
 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.
 
A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to 

include as an additional insured any state or 
governmental agency or subdivision or political 
subdivision shown in the Schedule, subject to the 
following provisions:  

 1. This insurance applies only with respect to 
operations performed by you or on your behalf 
for which the state or governmental agency or 
subdivision or political subdivision has issued a 
permit or authorization.  
However:  

 a. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted 
by law; and  

 b. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

 2. This insurance does not apply to:  
 a. "Bodily injury", "property damage" or 

"personal and advertising injury" arising out 
of operations performed for the federal 
government, state or municipality; or  

 b. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
included within the "products-completed 
operations hazard".  

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section III – Limits Of Insurance:  
If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or  
 2. Available under the applicable Limits of 

Insurance shown in the Declarations;  
whichever is less.  
This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 453 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 454 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 455 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 456 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 457 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 458 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 459 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 460 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 461 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 462 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 463 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 464 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 465 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 466 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 467 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 468 of 495



Utility Commission Report 
August 2016 

 
 
 

 
Operated By 

 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 469 of 495



Utility Commission Monthly Report for Wastewater Operations, August 2016 
 
Compliance Statement 
In August 2016 the VWNA-Rialto facility there were three exceedances with the discharge 
requirements specified in Order No. R8-2014-0010, NPDES No. CA-0105295 as highlighted in 
the first table. 

 
Monthly Regional Water Quality Control Board Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) 
The monthly DMR for August 2016 was completed and sent to the Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (SARWQCB) Region 8, electronically via the California Integrated 
Water Quality System (CIWQS), in the specified time period. 

 
Treatment Facility Overview 
The average daily influent flow calculated from influent flow meter reads in August was 6.3 
Million Gallons per Day (MGD).  Based on influent flow meter reads, a total of 215 MGD 
entered the facility for treatment this month. 

 
There were 938.92 wet tons of treated and stabilized (anaerobically digested) biosolids hauled 
from the VWNA-Rialto facility by Nursery Products to their designated processing site in 
Helendale, California.  Hauled biosolids costs for the month of August were $45,068.16. 

 
Citizen Complaints 
Veolia-Rialto staff received zero citizen complaints related to the Water Reclamation Facility this 
month. 

 

Major Equipment/Process Information 
The secondary treatment process for plants in service (Plants 2, 3, 4, & 5) was stable. As 
specified by the general Wastewater operations plan, Plant No. 1 remained out of service. 

 
Two Plant 5 mixed liquor pump motor windings have failed. Pump #1 has been repaired and 
pump #2 is out for repairs. 
 
Five out of the eight Plant 5 mixers are showing signs of failure.  Annual PMs have shown a 
potential for failure.  Veolia is working a rotation schedule so the mixers can be repaired with the 
least amount of disruption. Mixer #8 was replaced (new); mixer #4 has been repaired.  Mixer #1 
will be repaired next followed by #5 then #6.  
 
Work on Digester#1 continues.  The new Dystor cover was installed and is now in stand-by 
mode. 
 
Plant 5 mixed liquor return pump #2 and VFD #2 failed.  Veolia ordered a new VFD. 
 
Multiple FLU failures occurred in July due to excessive heat. FLU failures are being addressed 
with OR&R project. 
 
Rock Box at the FOG Station is failing causing a safety issue.  Staff is obtaining contractor 
quotes for the repairs.

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 470 of 495



Plant Data Overview 

Final Effluent Data Min. Max. Avg. Permit Limit Permit Compliant 

Effluent Flow, MGD 5.9 6.8 6.3 11.7 MGD Yes 
Turbidity, NTU (Daily Avg) 0.31 0.99 0.65 < 2.0 Daily Avg Yes 
Coliform, MPN (7 - Day 
Median) 

 
< 1.8 

 
<1.8 

 
< 1.8 

 
23 Daily Max 

 
Yes 

Chlorine Residual, mg/L < 0.10 < 0.10 < 0.10 < 0.10 Yes 
Ammonia-Nitrogen, mg/L <0.10 0.10 <0.10 4.5 Yes 

 
TIN, mg/L 

 
7.80 

 
7.80 

 
7.80 

10 mg/L - 12 
Mo. Avg. 

 
Yes 

 
TDS, mg/L (Pre-Disinfection) 

 
491 

 
491 

 
491 

490 - 12 Month 
Rolling Avg Filter Eff 

 
No* 

 
TDS, mg/L (Post-Disinfection) 

 
542 

 
542 

 
542 

490 – 12 Month 
Rolling Avg Final Eff 

 
No* 

pH, Standard Units 7.13 7.55 7.37 6.5 – 8.5 Yes 
 
BOD, mg/L 

 
1.4 

 
1.8 

 
1.7 

 

 
20 

 
Yes 

TSS, mg/L 0.2 0.9 0.7 20 Yes 

Cyanide, µg/L 7.3 7.3 7.3 4.2 No* 
 
 
 

 
Additional Facility Data 

 
Min. 

 
Max. 

 
Avg. 

 
Permit Limit 

 
Permit Compliant 

Influent Flow, MDG 6.1 7.6 6.9 11.7 Yes 
Influent BOD, mg/L (Monthly 

Avg.) 
 

190 
 

300 
 

258 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
Influent TSS, mg/ (Monthly 

Avg.) 
 

82 
 

396 
 

230 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
BOD Percent Removal (Monthly 

Avg.) 
 

99.3 
 

99.4 
 

99.3 
 

> 85% 
 

Yes 
TSS Percent Removal (Monthly 

Avg.) 
 

99.3 
 

99.9 
 

99.6 
 

> 85% 
 

Yes 
Reclaimed Water (Mgals) 0 0.094 0.032 N/A N/A 

 
Natural Gas Use (cf/day) 

 
500 

 
23,400 

 
6,048 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

Digester Gas Production (cf/day) 101,690 159,701 132,864 N/A N/A 
Sodium Hypochlorite Use (Gals/Day) 594 1,019 860 N/A N/A 

Sodium Bisulfite Use (Gals/Day) 176 412 336 N/A N/A 
Ferrous Chloride Use (Gals/Day) 0 964 231 N/A N/A 

Polymer Use, Gravity Belt (Gals/Day) 7 11 9 N/A N/A 
Polymer Use, Belt Press (Gals/Day) 6 26 18 N/A N/A 

Aluminum Sulfate Use (Gals/Day) 4 4 4 N/A N/A 
 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 471 of 495



 
*Only sample dates will show peaks.  Sample dates are on Mondays. *Not all Data was available 
at the time of this report. 
 
 
*Only sample dates will show peaks.  Sample dates are on Mondays. 
 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0
M

G
/L

 
August 2016 Effluent BOD 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

M
G

/L
 

August 2016 Effluent TSS 

 
 

 
 

 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 472 of 495



 
 
PLANNED MAINTENANCE 
There were 266 PM’s generated in August 2016 with 246 completed on-schedule for a 92% 
completion rate. A total of 617 man-hours were spent on PM tasks for an average staff-hour per 
task rate of 2.50 hours. 

 
NOTE – Preventive Maintenance Work Orders are generated and assigned a time value and to 
staff based on a specific project and/or piece of equipment. The work order task ranges in time 
depending on the nature of the task. When the task is completed the employee who completed 
the task then assigns a time value to the work order.  

 
CORRECTIVE (UNPLANNED) MAINTENANCE 
There were 46 Corrective (Unplanned) Maintenance Work Orders requested in August with 37 
completed for an 80% completion rate. A total of 359 staff-hours were spent on Corrective 
(Unplanned) Maintenance tasks, for an average of 9.70 staff-hours per task. 
 
NOTE – Corrective Maintenance Work Orders are generated and assigned to staff based on 
project type, complexity, and/or type of equipment. The completion time of work orders can 
range from fifteen minutes up to eight or more hours depending on the task. The employee 
assigned the task documents how much time it took to complete the task. 

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0
N

TU
 

August 2016 Effluent NTU 
 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 473 of 495



Collections Cleaning Footage for August 2016: 
• 73,823 feet of sewer line was cleaned. The Hot List total cleaning footage was 8,275 

feet. This footage is included in the overall totals.   
• Veolia inspected 11,990 feet of sewer with CCTV for a total of 2.27 miles. Zero 

manholes were inspected this month.  Veolia conducted 199 Underground Utility 
Inspections and Markings. 
 

 
 
FOG Information (Fats, Oils & Grease) 

• Total Monthly FOG received was 177,225 gallons. 
 

0
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000

F
E
E
T
 

Monthly Collections System Cleaning Footage, 2015-2016 

Feet

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000
147,875 

156,678 
144,730 

170,852 
157,606 

167,475 174,126 
156,121 

174,974 

132,893 
143,687 

177,225 

 
 

Monthly FOG 

FATS, OILS & GREASE TOTALS - 2015-2016 

G
A
L
L
O
N
S 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 474 of 495



 
 

Collection System Report 
   There were zero (0) sewer call-outs this month. 

Date Address Comments Personnel Manhole To 
Manhole 

  There were Zero Call-Outs for August 
2016.    

 
Environmental Testing/Monitoring by Local, State or Federal Agencies 
No additional information or changes for this month. 
 
Staffing Level  
Veolia is currently interviewing for a Grade I or higher Operator to replace an open position. 

 
Administrative 
No New Safety Work Orders generated in August 2016. 
 
The Veolia-Rialto Safety Committee agenda items this month were: 

 
 Ergonomics 

 
Next month:  Fall Protection 

 

0
20,000
40,000
60,000
80,000

100,000
120,000
140,000
160,000
180,000
200,000
220,000
240,000

Cu
bi

t F
ee

t 

Digester #2 Gas Production 

Rialto Digester Gas Totals August 2016 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 475 of 495



VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 476 of 495



GLOSSARY: 
 

• BOD: Biochemical Oxygen Demand  
• CF/Day: Cubic Feet per Day 
• CM: Corrective Maintenance 
• DMR: Discharge Monitoring Report 
• FOG: Fats, Oil, Grease 
• MGD: Million Gallons per Day 
• mg/L: Milligrams per Liter 
• MPN: Most Probable Number 
• N/A: Not applicable 
• NPDES: National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
• NTU: Nephelometric Turbidity Units 
• pH: Units used to measure if a solution is base, acid, or neutral 
• PM: Planned Maintenance 
• TDS: Total Dissolved Solids 
• TIN: Total Inorganic Nitrogen 
• TSS: Total Suspended Solids 
• VWNA: Veolia Water North America 
• FLU: Field Logic Unit 

VW_WWS_UCR_AUG2016

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 477 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 478 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 479 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 480 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 481 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 482 of 495



Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 483 of 495



CUSTOMER SERVICE UTILITY AUGUST 2016 COMMISSION REPORT 
 
 
BILLING 
 
There were a total of 20,988 bills produced by the Customer Service billing department this 
month. Billing accuracy percentage objective is 99% and the reported objective for the current 
reporting period is 99.95%. The billing accuracy error rate was five. This value indicates that for 
every 10,000 bills produced, five adjustments were necessary. 
 

BILLED CONSUMPTION 
 
In comparison, the total net billed amount in August 2015 for water was $1,155,519.27 and the 
total net billed amount for sewer was $1,677,640.49. The total net billed amount in August 2016 
for water was $1,107,033.57 and the total net billed amount for sewer was $1,629,336.65. 
 
The net billed amount for water decreased by 4.2% this month when compared against the net 
billed amount for August 2015, and the net billed amount for sewer decreased by 2.8% when 
compared against the net billed amounts for August 2015. 
 
Analysis: The small decrease in the consumption and billed amounts between August 2015 and 
August 2016 is due to the variation in billing cycles (number of days between reads). The billing 
cycle duration for August 2015 was 35 days, as opposed to 28 days for August 2016. 
 
CALL CENTER METRICS – August 2016 
 
The Call Center Queue (CSQ) received 6,344 calls resulting in a 26% increase in call volumes 
when compared against the past month (July 2016).   
 
YTD (year to date) total calls equal 44,082. The total number of abandoned calls for the 
reporting period was 1,139, which represents 17.9% of the total incoming calls offered. Average 
speed of answer (ASA) was four minutes and 49 seconds and the percentage of calls answered 
by agents was 78.9%, which translates into 5,010 calls answered by agents. 
  
The Telephone Service Factor (TSF) for the current reporting period was 28.4% for the period. 
Monthly monitoring of the current objectives in place will continue until after the IVR and new 
customer portal launch. Once the IVR is in place, a decision will be made to determine if the 
existing objectives are the best indicators to gauge performance as it relates to the types of calls 
received and addressed by CS staff. 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 484 of 495



AGENT WRAP CODES – August 2016 

During the current reporting period 30% of the total calls answered by agents were for customers 
who wanted to make a payment only using the assistance of a CSR. This means that 1,918 calls 
were made by customers requesting to make a payment by phone. Once these calls are redirected 
to an IVR, call volumes may decrease on average by up to 30% or more each month.  

 
BAD DEBT 
 
There were 39 accounts moved to bad debt and submitted to collection during the month of July 
totaling $15,562.83, not including accounts sent to bad debt after being placed on property tax 
roll. 
 
 
AGING BALANCES – August 2016 
 
Aging balances for water decreased by 23% and aging sewer balances decreased by 35% when 
compared against the previous month.  
 
There was an increase in water Aging balances over 30 days from the previous month of 10%.    
 
There was a decrease in sewer Aging balances over 30 days from the previous month of 58 %. 
   
Customer Service has revised the collections policy and implemented additional controls to help 
manage and decrease the outstanding Aging balances over 30 days. Policies and procedures 
continue to be monitored for effectiveness and are revised as needed.  

Delinquency notices are now being issued to sewer only accounts on a weekly basis in order to 
address high delinquency rates with accounts of this type. 

 
CUSTOMER SERVICE TRAINING: 

During the month of August Customer Service staff continued with AWWA (American Water 
Works Association) Customer Service Certificate Training. Internal staff training also continues 
with team members on established procedures and policies to ensure consistency and to enhance 
service levels.  

 
IVR AND CUSTOMER PORTAL: 

An agreement to implement the new IVR (pay by phone interface) and customer portal should be 
formalized in September 2016. 

  

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 485 of 495



 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

$800,000.00

Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16

B
al

an
ce

 ($
) 

Water Aging Balances 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 486 of 495



 

$0.00

$500,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,500,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,500,000.00

$3,000,000.00

Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16

B
al

an
ce

 ($
) 

Sewer Aging Balances 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 487 of 495



  

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

$180,000

$200,000

Au
g-

15

Se
p-

15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

De
c-

15

Ja
n-

16

Fe
b-

16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

A
gi

ng
 B

al
an

ce
s (

do
lla

rs
) 

Aging Balances for Water Over 30 Days 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 488 of 495



 

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,200,000.00

$1,400,000.00

$1,600,000.00

Au
g-

15

Se
p-

15

O
ct

-1
5

N
ov

-1
5

De
c-

15

Ja
n-

16

Fe
b-

16

M
ar

-1
6

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

A
gi

ng
 B

al
an

ce
s (

do
lla

rs
) 

Aging Balances for Sewer Over 30 Days 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 489 of 495



August 2016 Utility Commission Monthly Report for Facility Improvement Projects (FIP) 
 
Active Projects  
 
WA – Meter Replacement – (Year 4) 120 meters were replaced this month and will continue 
through year end. 
 
WC - Small Diameter Galvanized Main Replacement – Veolia provided the City with a 
Conceptual Design (CD) memo on July 8, 2016 with a preliminary cost and schedule. The City 
responded to the memo on July 27, 2016, requesting further detail in the breakdown of the costs. 
Veolia will respond by mid-September 2016 with a revised CD memo. 
 
WD - Small Dead End Mains (Looping) Project  
 
Metrolink location - Veolia submitted the permit and plans for review to SANBAG on March 18, 
2016. SANBAG’s engineering department approved the plans and requested a lease agreement 
application which will be completed by the City. City will submit the application for permit in 
the beginning of September 2016 to SANBAG. Veolia will submit the revised SCD to the City 
next month. 
 
Elm Development - The second looping project was approved by the Elm Development’s Home 
Owners Association (HOA) as requested by the City on April 20, 2016. The City requested in 
early July that a legal plat be issued for the property section where the water main will be built. 
Veolia submitted a proposal on July 25th for the work towards a legal plat. The City is also 
seeking proposals with its in house contractor for the legal plat work.  
 
WE - Large Valve Replacement – Veolia provided a memo with recommendations to the City 
on December 1, 2015 to fix four broken valves. The project Substantially Complete Design 
(SCD) was approved on March 27, 2015. Valve shutdowns have been completed with one 
pending. Veolia solicited bids and received one complete bid in February 2016. The project was 
rebid in May through a local bid house. Five contractors showed interest and only one bid. A 
Final Cost Work Authorization (FCWA) was submitted to the City in July. The project was 
approved by Council on August 9th. Construction is anticipated to begin in October. 
 
SB - Mainline Repair and Lining – Last year, in order to support 2016 project 
recommendations, Veolia inspected 127,484 lineal feet (24.14 miles) of pipe and Murgreen and 
Houston & Harris, two third- party contractors, also inspected approximately 9.96 miles of pipe. 
Data for 14.4 miles of pipe was reviewed (the remaining pipe had no substantial issues). 49 point 
repairs and 10 to 16 pipe segment replacements were identified and recommended for repair. 
Collections returned the CD memo with comments for inclusion of hotspots in July. The memo 
will be revised and submitted in September 2016. Veolia continues to assess pipes in order to 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 490 of 495



achieve to goal of 26 miles/year. Veolia is well ahead of schedule and has inspected over 23 
miles of pipe lengths to date for 2016. 
 
S1 - Wastewater Treatment Plant upgrade – AECOM submitted a Draft Technical 
Memorandum to the City on June 28, 2016. West Yost provided comments on July 15, 2016. 
Veolia distributed AECOM submitted its Task 2 Technical Memorandum on August 2, 2016. 
ARUP, RWS’s consultant, returned their review of the memo with minor comments on August 
29, 2016. City is currently reviewing the Task 2 Technical Memorandum. 
 
S3 - Sycamore and Etiwanda - Sewer Pipeline Replacement – Veolia reviewed their sub-
consultants’ 100% design plans and sent the plans to the City for review on February 22, 2016. 
Comments were returned on March 1, 2016. Veolia responded to comments on March 23, 2016. 
Additional comments were returned on March 28, 2016. Approval of the SCD was given on 
April 13. Veolia bid the project on April 29. Bids returned on June 17th and both contractors 
underwent extensive experience verification for the nature of work. The lowest responsible 
bidder was chosen and Veolia is scheduled to present the project to City Council on September 
27, 2016. 
 
S4 - Willow and Foothill - Sewer Pipeline Replacement – This project has been combined 
with and is being implemented concurrently with Project S3. 
 
WB - Service Line Replacement – This project has been placed on hold due to the absence of 
polybutylene service lines. In support of future service line replacement planning, Veolia is 
collecting data in 2016 on pipe material and condition. Veolia submitted to the City a list of 
addresses of commercial businesses that do not have a backflow device for the City’s 
consideration of a project. RWS is awaiting to here how the City plans to move forward. 
 
W1 - Water System SCADA Improvements – One complete bid was received for the project 
from Tesco. The Council took action on the FCWA at the June 28, 2016 meeting; however, the 
FCWA approval included conditions that are under further discussion by RWS and the City. 
 
W4 - Boosters 4 and 5 Improvements – City Council approved the project on December 8, 
2015. Veolia had a pre-construction meeting with the City and Subcontractor on January 28, 
2016. During implementation, the team discussed that an electrical shutdown is required for the 
project construction. It was determined that having a shutdown during the high demand season 
was not optimum; therefore, the shutdown and construction will occur in the fall when the water 
demand is lower. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 491 of 495



W5 - Seismic Improvements to Cedar Reservoir – The project as described in the CA has 
already been completed. This was first observed after an internal inspection revealed a concrete 
reinforcing wall internal to the tank.  However, Veolia was instructed to proceed with, and 
completed a design. Subsequent to completion of design, documentation confirmed that the 
scoped work had been completed. In light of this information, the City requested that Veolia 
develop a cost to inspect the tank internal wall to confirm the presence of reinforcing steel, and 
to develop a project concept that will protect the tank outlet pipe in the event the tank cover fails 
during a seismic event, and falls into the tank, obstructing the outlet pipe. On March 29, 2016, 
Veolia, West Yost, and a DN Tanks representative walked the site to assess the tank. The 
findings from the job walk were more extensive than anticipated and will be presented in a 
Memo in September 2016. 
 
W2 - Chino Well 1 - The initial scope in the contract calls for nitrate blending to address the 
nitrate impact at this well. However, the well is also impacted by perchlorate, which is not 
addressed in the CA project description. This well may not be needed to satisfy the City water 
demand. Veolia met with the City on February 10, 2016 and on June 29, 2016 to discuss the 
City’s water resource strategy. During this meeting, the City requested that Veolia test existing 
wells, and to establish the cost to install treatment at each well in order to utilize wells with the 
lowest total dissolved solids (prior strategy was to avoid treatment costs where possible). City 
staff authorized this work to move forward as an Engineering Study under project WG of the 
CA. 
 
WG – Engineering Study 1 – Wellhead Treatment Study – This study will include testing of 
all City-operated wells to determine constituents of concern, development of treatment options to 
address these constituents, and development of conceptual cost estimates for wellhead treatment. 
The objective is to later use this information to develop a plan that may utilize wellhead 
treatment in lieu of potentially costly facilities needed to reduce source water TDS. A CD is 
being prepared and will be submitted by the end of September 2016. 
 
W6 – City Wells 1 and 2 – Veolia completed an urgent well rehab project for Well 2 using 
OR&R funds. The selected contractor completed the first portion of the work and the remainder 
of the Well 2 improvement project is in the design phase. A CD will be presented to the City for 
review by September 6, 2016. The anticipated start of construction for remaining Well 2 
improvements are anticipated to start in  1 ½ to 3 months. The Well 1 improvements are on hold, 
pending resolution of the City’s water resources needs as discussed above. Well 1 may not be the 
most cost effective solution satisfying the City’s water demand and is under further review. 
 
SA - Manhole Rehabilitation (Year 4) – Veolia prepared a FCWA with Year 4 maps in May 
2016. The FCWA package was submitted to the City by June 21, 2016. The project was 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 492 of 495



approved on July 26, 2016. A pre-construction meeting with City representation was held on July 
27, 2016 and construction will begin in September 2016 after permits are obtained. 
 
 
Completed Projects 
 
WA – Meter Replacement (Year 3) – The first three months of the 800 meter replacements 
were submitted to the City and were inspected. QA/QC inspections will continue through 
September 2016. 
 
SA - Manhole Rehabilitation (Year 3) – All recommended manholes were rehabilitated as 
scheduled and completed by March 15, 2016. GASB 34 documents were approved on April 26, 
2016 and final payment was made in June 2016. 
 
W7 - Water Main and Valve replacement – This project is now complete. City accepted the 
GASB 34 documents on April 7, 2016. Final payment was made in June 2016. 
 
WA – Meter Replacement (Years 1 & 2) – As of November 24, 2015 - (1600) sixteen hundred 
water meters were replaced under years 1 and 2. City inspections occurred and all issues were 
addressed. GASB 34 documentation was submitted to the City on May 31, 2016. 
 
S1.1 - Digester 1 Wall Cap and Coating – DN Tanks completed the project on April 9, 2015.  
 
City Well 3A – Well packer test was completed during the month of February. SA Associates 
provided a memo to the City with recommendations on whether this well can be utilized as a 
water source due to arsenic impacts. Future utilization of this well is being considered along with 
other water resource needs (see discussion for Project W2).  
 
W3 - Booster 3 Improvements – Booster 3 Improvements were completed using Operations 
Repair & Replacement (OR&R) funds. 
 
 
Projects Removed from FIP by City Consensus 
 
S2 - Willow and Randall-Sewer Pipeline Replacement - Leidos updated its model based on 
field surveys of manholes conducted by Veolia. The data collected indicated that the project is no 
longer justified so it was removed. 
 
S5 - Sycamore, Rialto, and San Bernardino-Sewer Pipeline Replacement – Determined by 
City not to be a priority. 
 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 493 of 495



S6-Sycamore and Merrill-Sewer Pipeline Replacement – Determined by City not to be a 
priority. 
 
WF – Hydrant Replacement – Determined by City not to be a priority. 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 494 of 495



City of Rialto  
Regular Utilities Commission Meeting 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 
 

TO DO LIST 
 

 
Upcoming Agenda Items  

Future Agenda Items 

 Consolidation of Water and Wastewater Resolutions 

 Streetlight Acquisition Project 

 Concession Agreement Quarterly Overview 

 Budget Based Rates  

 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Update with Ed Killgore  

 Trash Rate Study 

Regular Utilities Commission Meeting- Tuesday August 16, 2016 Agenda Packet Page 495 of 495


	S3 FCWA Package..pdf
	S3 FCWA Package o
	FCWA_S3v2

	donotreply@veolia.com_20160819_162519
	S3 FCWA Package o
	S3 FCWA Attach 2 Cost
	FCWA_S3v2
	S3 FCWA Attach 3 Schedule
	FCWA_S3v2
	S3 FCWA Attach 4 S3 Full Bid Docs v.5.17.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	S3 RFP 5.16.16

	S3 RFP 5.16.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	S3 RFP 5.16.16
	BIDDER'S REFERENCE/Experience
	BID FORM
	BID SCHEDULE

	S3 Full Bid Package 4.29.16

	S3 OPC rev.4.5.16
	S3 RFP 5.16.16
	BID BOND

	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	S3 RFP 5.16.16
	SUBCONTRACTORS
	NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
	COMPLIANCE WITH IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT ("IRCA")
	CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR
	PAYMENT & PERformance BONDS
	CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' COMPENSATION
	INSURANCE
	CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
	AGGREGATE
	AGGREGATE
	EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

	S3 Full Bid Package 4.29.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 4.5.16
	S3 TECH SPECS
	S3 SECTION 012000 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 2016-03-11
	S3 SECTION 01330 - SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES
	S3 SECTION 01505 - MOBILIZATION
	S3 SECTION 02620 - HDPE PIPE 2016-03-11
	S3 SECTION 02776 - PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING  2016-03-11
	07950 MANHOLE LINING
	PART 1 – GENERAL
	PART 2 – MATERIALS
	PART 3 – EXECUTION
	END OF SECTION


	S3 Sewer Replacement Drawings Rev1 2016-03-11
	Sewer Laterals City Plans 2014
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 147
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 148
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 149
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 150



	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main

	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	1. BACKGROUND 1
	1.1 Prime Contract 1
	2. THE WORK 1
	2.1 Standard of Care 1
	2.2 Means and Methods 2
	2.3 Subcontractor Personnel 3
	2.4 Contract Documents 3
	2.5 Acknowledgment 4
	2.6 Subcontractor and Contractor 4
	3. SUBCONTRACTOR 4
	3.1 Permits and Fees 4
	3.2 Superintendent 5
	3.3 Coordination of the Work 5
	3.4 Field Measurements 6
	3.5 Project Meetings 6
	3.6 Materials and Equipment 6
	3.7 Storage of Materials and Equipment 7
	3.8 Mock-Ups 7
	3.9 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements 7
	3.10 Cleaning Up 7
	11.18 Record Documents 8
	11.19 Acceptance Testing 9
	11.20 Early Occupancy 9
	12. CONTRACTOR 9
	12.1 Contractor’s Representative  10
	13. COMPENSATION  10
	14. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING  10
	14.2 Permitted Delays  11
	15. COST OF THE WORK  12
	15.2 Overhead and Profit  14
	15.4 Contractor Initiated Changes  15
	15.6 Deductive Changes  16
	15.7 Failure to Reach Agreement  16
	16. PAYMENTS  17
	16.2 Payments Withheld  19
	17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  20
	17.2 Required Insurance  20
	18. INDEMNIFICATION  21
	18.4 Updated Information  24
	18.7 Senior Executive Meeting  25
	18.8 Continuation of Work  27
	19. TERMINATION  27
	19.1 Termination By Contractor For Convenience  27


	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	1. BACKGROUND
	2. THE WORK

	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	4. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES
	5. SUBCONTRACTOR
	5.7 Submittals.
	5.23 Record Documents.
	6. CONTRACTOR
	7. COMPENSATION
	8. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING
	9. COST OF THE WORK


	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	10. CHANGES IN THE WORK
	11. PAYMENTS
	12. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.
	13. INSURANCE AND BONDS
	14. INDEMNIFICATION
	15. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES
	16. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION
	17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE
	18. TERMINATION
	19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Contractor:
	Contractor Subcontractor
	EXHIBIT A DEFINITIONS
	1.5 “Change of Law”  means any of the following events occurring after the Effective Date:
	EXHIBIT B CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

	S3 Full Bid Package 4.29.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 4.5.16
	O&M Schedule M - Claims re Environmental Conditions _FINAL_


	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT C
	EXHIBIT D SCOPE OF WORK


	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT E PROJECT SCHEDULE
	EXHIBIT F EXCLUDED APPROVALS
	EXHIBIT G INSURANCE

	S3 Full Bid Package 4.29.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 4.5.16
	O&M Schedule R 9 - Insurance Limits _FINAL_
	Insurance Form C G 20 12


	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT H

	S3 Full Bid Package 4.29.16
	S3 Full Bid Package 4.5.16
	O&M Schedule R 6 - Subcontract General Conditions _FINAL_



	S3 Full Bid Package 5.17.16
	Sched R3 S3 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT I
	EXHIBIT J WARRANTY FORM
	The warranty provided herein shall not be in lieu of, but shall be in addition to, any warranties or other obligations otherwise imposed by the Contract Documents and by Applicable Law.



	S3 Bid Addendum No. 1
	S3 Bid Addendum No. 2
	FCWA_S3v2
	S3 Insurance
	S3 Contract + Ins 42
	S3 Contract + Ins 43
	S3 Contract + Ins 44
	S3 Contract + Ins 45
	S3 Contract + Ins 46
	S3 Contract + Ins 47
	S3 Contract + Ins 48
	S3 Contract + Ins 49
	S3 Contract + Ins 50
	S3 Contract + Ins 51
	S3 Contract + Ins 52
	S3 Contract + Ins 53

	S3 Insurance CG20 12
	Pay+Perf+Rider Bonds


	S4 FCWA Package..pdf
	FCWA_S4v2
	donotreply@veolia.com_20160819_162519
	FCWA_S4v2
	S4 FCWA Attach 2 Cost
	S4 FCWA

	FCWA_S4v2
	S4 FCWA Attach 3 Schedule
	FCWA_S4v2
	S4 FCWA Attach 4 Full Bid Docs v.5.17.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	S4 RFP 5.17.16

	S4 RFP 5.17.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	S4 RFP 5.17.16
	BIDDER'S REFERENCE/Experience
	BID FORM
	BID SCHEDULE


	S4 OPC & Bid Sheet 2016-03-11 v3.22.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	S4 RFP 5.17.16
	BID BOND
	SUBCONTRACTORS
	NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
	COMPLIANCE WITH IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT ("IRCA")
	CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACTOR
	PAYMENT & PERformance BONDS
	CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS' COMPENSATION
	INSURANCE
	CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
	AGGREGATE
	AGGREGATE
	EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY


	S4 Special Conditions
	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.1.16
	S4 Tech Specs
	S4 SECT 012000 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 2016-03-11
	S4 SECTION 01330 - SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES
	S4 SECTION 01505 - MOBILIZATION
	S4 SECT 02620 HDPE PIPE 2016-03-11
	S4 SECT 02776 PNEUMATIC PIPE BURSTING 2016-03-11
	07950 MANHOLE LINING
	PART 1 – GENERAL
	PART 2 – MATERIALS
	PART 3 – EXECUTION
	END OF SECTION


	S4 Sewer Replacement Drawings Rev1 2016-03-11
	Sewer Laterals City Plans 2014
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 147
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 148
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 149
	2015_Standard_Plans_Complete 150



	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main

	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	1. BACKGROUND 1
	1.1 Prime Contract 1
	2. THE WORK 1
	2.1 Standard of Care 1
	2.2 Means and Methods 2
	2.3 Subcontractor Personnel 3
	2.4 Contract Documents 3
	2.5 Acknowledgment 4
	2.6 Subcontractor and Contractor 4
	3. SUBCONTRACTOR 4
	3.1 Permits and Fees 4
	3.2 Superintendent 5
	3.3 Coordination of the Work 5
	3.4 Field Measurements 6
	3.5 Project Meetings 6
	3.6 Materials and Equipment 6
	3.7 Storage of Materials and Equipment 7
	3.8 Mock-Ups 7
	3.9 Prevailing Wages and Labor Requirements 7
	3.10 Cleaning Up 7
	11.18 Record Documents 8
	11.19 Acceptance Testing 9
	11.20 Early Occupancy 9
	12. CONTRACTOR 9
	12.1 Contractor’s Representative  10
	13. COMPENSATION  10
	14. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING  10
	14.2 Permitted Delays  11
	15. COST OF THE WORK  12
	15.2 Overhead and Profit  14
	15.4 Contractor Initiated Changes  15
	15.6 Deductive Changes  16
	15.7 Failure to Reach Agreement  16
	16. PAYMENTS  17
	16.2 Payments Withheld  19
	17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  20
	17.2 Required Insurance  20
	18. INDEMNIFICATION  21
	18.4 Updated Information  24
	18.7 Senior Executive Meeting  25
	18.8 Continuation of Work  27
	19. TERMINATION  27
	19.1 Termination By Contractor For Convenience  27


	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	1. BACKGROUND
	2. THE WORK

	S4 Full Bid Docs v5.17.16
	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	4. RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES
	5. SUBCONTRACTOR
	5.7 Submittals.
	5.23 Record Documents.
	6. CONTRACTOR
	7. COMPENSATION
	8. CONTRACT TIME AND SCHEDULING
	9. COST OF THE WORK
	10. CHANGES IN THE WORK
	11. PAYMENTS

	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	12. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.
	13. INSURANCE AND BONDS
	14. INDEMNIFICATION
	15. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEES
	16. DOCUMENT RETENTION & EXAMINATION
	17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE
	18. TERMINATION
	19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Contractor:
	Contractor Subcontractor
	EXHIBIT A DEFINITIONS
	1.5 “Change of Law”  means any of the following events occurring after the Effective Date:
	EXHIBIT B CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.1.16
	O&M Schedule M - Claims re Environmental Conditions _FINAL_


	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT C
	EXHIBIT D SCOPE OF WORK
	EXHIBIT E PROJECT SCHEDULE
	EXHIBIT F EXCLUDED APPROVALS
	EXHIBIT G INSURANCE

	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.1.16
	O&M Schedule R 9 - Insurance Limits _FINAL_
	Insurance Form C G 20 12


	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT H

	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.1.16
	O&M Schedule R 6 - Subcontract General Conditions _FINAL_


	S4 Full Bid Docs 4.29.16
	Sched R3 S4 Sewer Main
	EXHIBIT I
	EXHIBIT J WARRANTY FORM
	The warranty provided herein shall not be in lieu of, but shall be in addition to, any warranties or other obligations otherwise imposed by the Contract Documents and by Applicable Law.



	S4 Bid Addendum No. 1
	S4 Bid Addendum No. 2
	FCWA_S4v2
	S4 Insurance
	S4 Contract + Ins. 42
	S4 Contract + Ins. 43
	S4 Contract + Ins. 44
	S4 Contract + Ins. 45
	S4 Contract + Ins. 46
	S4 Contract + Ins. 47
	S4 Contract + Ins. 48
	S4 Contract + Ins. 49
	S4 Contract + Ins. 50
	S4 Contract + Ins. 51
	S4 Contract + Ins. 52
	S4 Contract + Ins. 53

	S4 Insurance CG20 12
	Pay+Perf+Rider Bonds

	Veolia UCR August 2016 FINAL.pdf
	VW_WWS_UCR_AUG016_FINAL.pdf
	Utility Commission Monthly Report for Wastewater Operations, August 2016
	Plant Data Overview
	Collections Cleaning Footage for August 2016:
	FOG Information (Fats, Oils & Grease)

	VW_CS_UCR_AUG2016 FINAL.pdf
	CUSTOMER SERVICE UTILITY AUGUST 2016 COMMISSION REPORT





